
Board Agenda, May 18, 2023 

 

1 

 AMENDED  

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
Board of Education Members    

Chinua Rhodes, President (Trustee Area 5) 

Lavinia Grace Phillips, Vice President (Trustee Area 7) 

Jasjit Singh, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 

Tara Jeane (Trustee Area 1) 

Christina Pritchett (Trustee Area 3) 

Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 

Taylor Kayatta (Trustee Area 6) 

Liam McGurk, Student Member 

 

Thursday, May 18, 2023 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 

 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 

Sacramento, CA  95824 
 

AGENDA 
 

2022/23-29 
 

       Allotted Time 
4:30 p.m. 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 

 
 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 

DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 

meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 

litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 

 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 

Code section 54956.9 (One Potential Case) 

b) Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 

54956.9 (OAH Case No. 2023020508, OAH Case No. 2023020910, and United 

States District Court, Eastern District of California, Case No. 2:19-CV-01768-

DJC-KJN)  

 

3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  

(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 

3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee 

Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment 

 



Board Agenda, May 18, 2023 

 

2 

3.4 Education Code 48918- The Board will hear staff recommendation on the 

following student expulsions: Expulsion# 20, 21, 22, and 23 2022/2023 (Lisa Allen 

and Stephan Brown) 

 
6:30 p.m. 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

        4.1       The Pledge of Allegiance 

 

       4.2        Broadcast Statement 

         

       4.3       Stellar Student introduced by Board Member Taylor Kayatta 

 

 
6:35 p.m. 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
 

6:40 p.m. 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
 

6:45 p.m. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                               15 minutes 
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the Board.  Public comment may be (1) emailed to publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2) 

submitted in writing through the district’s website at https://www.scusd.edu/submit-public-comment; or 

(3) provided in-person at the meeting.  The submission deadline for written public comments shall be 

no later than noon on the day of the meeting.  If you intend to address the Board in-person, please fill 

out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called in the order that requests are 

received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to two (2) minutes with no 

more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be heard.  By law, the 

Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its discretion, refer a 

matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.    

 
7:00 p.m. 8.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 

 

 8.1 Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA  

 SEIU 

 TCS 

 Teamsters  

 UPE 

Information 
SCTA – 15 minutes  

SEIU – 3 minutes 

TCS – 3 minutes 

Teamsters – 3 minutes 

UPE – 3 minutes  

 

7:27 p.m.            8.2 District Advisory Committees: 

 Community Advisory Committee  

 District English Learner Advisory Committee 

 Local Control Accountability Plan/Parent Advisory Committee 

 Student Advisory Council 

 Black/African American Advisory Board 

Information 
3 minutes each 

 



Board Agenda, May 18, 2023 

 

3 

 

 

 10.0 BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER INITIATIVES 
 

10:07 p.m.                  10.1 Carbon Neutral Goals and Guidelines for SCUSD  

                         Buildings (Rose Ramos) 
                    Information 
            10 minute presentation 

               10 minute discussion 

 
10:27 p.m.                  10.2 Revision to Board Policies 0420.4, 0420.41, 0420.42,  

                         0420.43 (Charter School Authorization, Oversight,  

                         Renewal, Revocation) (Amanda Goldman) 

 

          2nd Reading/Action 
            3 minute presentation 

               7 minute discussion 

 
 

 

 

11.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 

 

 

10:37 p.m.     11.1 Superintendent’s Report (Jorge A. Aguilar)  Information 
5 minutes 

 

 

10:42 p.m.    11.2 President’s Report (Chinua Rhodes) Information 
5 minutes 

 

 

10:47 p.m..    11.3 Information Sharing by Board Members Information 
10 minutes 

 

7:42 p.m.         8.3 Student Member Report (Liam McGurk) Information 
         5 minutes 

 

 9.0    SPECIAL PRESENTATION 

 

 

7:47 p.m.                   9.1 State Seal of Biliteracy/ Seal of Civic Engagement  

                     (Dr. Olga Simms, Melanie Bean, and Linda Kingston) 
                 Information 
      20 minute presentation 

           5 minute discussion 

8:12 p.m.                  9.2 Approve the Recognition of the 25th Anniversary of Parent  

                      Teacher Home Visits Resolution No. 3312 ( Kelley Odipo and 

                       Gretchen Viglione) 

                          Action 
      10 minute presentation 

            15 minute discussion 

8:37 p.m.                  9.3 Approve Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage  

                       Month Resolution No. 3324 (Board Member Jasjit Singh) 
                         Action 
         5 minute presentation 

            5 minute discussion 

 

8:47 p.m.                  9.4 Mental Health Awareness Resolution No. 3319 

                       (Victoria Flores) 
                           Action 
         5 minute presentation 

            5 minute discussion 

 

8:57 p.m.        9.5 SCUSD Strategic Priorities Investments (Rose Ramos)                 Information 
      40 minute presentation 

           30 minute discussion 



Board Agenda, May 18, 2023 

 

4 

 

10:57 p.m. 12.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                              Action 
                                                                                                                                                               2 minutes 

Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 

member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 

12.1  Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 

 

12.1a Approve Resolution No. 3320 Chavez-Kemble Elementary School Rebuild 

Project Mitigated Negative Declaration (Rose Ramos) 

 

12.1b Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of 

Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus 

Materials and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Rose Ramos) 
 

12.1c Approve Personnel Transactions (Dr. Cancy McArn) 

 

                                  12.1d Business and Financial Report: Warrants, Checks and Electronic Transfers  

                                            issued for the Period of April 1-30, 2023 (Rose Ramos) 

                                      

                                  12.1e Donations to the District for the Period of April 1-30, 2023 (Rose Ramos) 

 

                                  12.1f Approve Staff Recommendations for Expulsions # 20,21,22, 23, and 24 

                                           (Lisa Allen and Stephan Brown) 

 

                                  12.1g Approve Resolution No. 3325Authorizing Execution of Delegate Agency  

                                            Agreement  from SETA (Yvonne Wright and Melissa Sigars) 

 

                                  12.1h Approve Resolution No. 3323: Resolution Regarding Board Stipends 

          (Jorge A. Aguilar) 

 

                                  12.1i Approve Business and Financial Information: Purchase Order Board Report  

                                           for the Period of March 15, 2023 through April 14, 2023 (Rose Ramos) 

 

                                  12.1j Approve Resolution No. 3322 Resolution of intention to Convey Easement  

                                          Entitlements to the City of Sacramento for a Public Sidewalk in front of Ethel  

                                          Phillips Elementary (Rose Ramos)                             
 

10:59 p.m. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

13.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 

 

 June 8, 2023, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  

5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 

 

 

 June 22, 2023, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  

5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 

 

 

  



Board Agenda, May 18, 2023 

 

5 

 

11:01 p.m. 
 

14.0 ADJOURNMENT  

 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 

public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids 

or services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 

at least 48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort 

to accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. 

§12132)]   Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting 

and relating to an open session item will be available on the district’s website at www.scusd.edu 
 

http://www.scusd.edu/


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Agenda Item# 9.1 

 
 
Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023  
 
Subject:  State Seal of Biliteracy/State Seal of Civic Engagement 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Multilingual Literacy/College Career Readiness 
 
 
Recommendation:  Information only 
 
 
Background/Rationale:   
 
State Seal of Biliteracy-Assembly 815 (effective 1/1/12) established the State Seal of 
Biliteracy for eligible high school seniors in our schools. The law lists all criteria that a 
student must meet in order to be considered for this important recognition. The criteria 
include students demonstrating high proficiency in speaking, reading, and writing in 
English and one or more languages. The California State Seal of Biliteracy is an official 
recognition of multilingual language skills for high school seniors and is evidenced by a 
golden seal for the student’s diploma from the State of California and a notation in their 
transcript that informs future colleges, universities and employers that they are biliterate. 
 
State Seal of Civic Engagement – Assembly Bill 24 (effective 9/10/20) established the 
State Seal of Civic Engagement for students who have demonstrated excellence in 
civics education and participation.  The criteria include students to participate in an 
informed civic engagement project that address real world problems and require 
students to identify, inquire into civic needs or problems, consider varied responses, 
take action, and reflect on efforts. The California State Seal of Civic Engagement is an 
official recognition of civic engagement for high school students and is evidenced by a 
golden seal for the student’s diploma from the State of California and a notation on their 
transcript.  
 



Financial Considerations:  Purchase of certificates, certificate covers and white cords 
for a total cost of $856.00  
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Goal 1-Increase the percent of students who are on-track to graduate 
college and career ready. 
• Provide standards-aligned curriculum, assessments and high quality instruction to 
prepare students to graduate college and 
career ready. (Action 1.1) 
• Provide a variety of learning supports including differentiated instruction and 
interventions for all students as needed. (Action1.2) 
• Develop an infrastructure for ongoing analysis of student performance and progress by 
providing teacher release time and 
collaborative learning time. (Action 1.3) 
• Provide effective core instruction, as well as appropriate learning supports and 
interventions, to ensure that English Learners 
make expected progress in attaining English and in academic achievement. (Action 1.4) 
 
Documents Attached:   
Video link will be provided as soon as it is ready to share. 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 20 minutes 
Submitted by: Yvonne Wright, CAO; Dr. Olga Simms, Director; 

Linda Kingston, Director; Melanie Bean; ELD 
Training Specialist 

Approved by:   Jorge Aguilar, Superintendent 
 

Page 1 of 1 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

        RESOLUTION NO. 3312 
Agenda Item# 9.2 

Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023  
 
Subject:  Approve the Recognition of the 25th Anniversary of Parent Teacher 

Home Visits Resolution No. 3312 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Family and Community Empowerment (FACE) 
 
Recommendation:  The SCUSD Board of Education recognizes the 25th Anniversary of 
Parent Teacher Home Visits 
 
Background/Rationale:  Parent Teacher Home Visits began in SCUSD in 1997, and is 
now celebrating 25 years of participation in PTHV for SCUSD as well as on a national 
and international scale.  The Board recognizes this achievement and acknowledges 
SCUSD’s role in founding the program and continually maintaining the program for the 
past 25 years. 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Goal #5 Parents, families, community stakeholders, and students will 
be engaged and empowered as partners in teaching and learning through effective 
communication, capacity building, and collaborative decision-making. 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. 25th Anniversary of Parent Teacher Home Visits Resolution No. 3312 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 minutes 
Submitted by:  Lisa Allen; Deputy Superintendent 
  Kelley Odipo; Director III, State and Federal 

Programs 
  Gretchen Viglione; Training Specialist 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 1 of 1 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3312 

 
RECOGNITION OF THE 25th ANNIVERSARY 

FOR PARENT TEACHER HOME VISITS  
 

WHEREAS, Parent Teacher Home Visits (PTHV) was founded in Sacramento City Unified School 
District (SCUSD) in 1997 as The Parent Teacher Home Visit Project (PTHVP); and 
 

WHEREAS, PTHV was developed and launched as a partnership between Sacramento Area 
Congregations Together (Sacramento ACT), Sacramento City Teachers Association (SCTA) and SCUSD; and 

 
WHEREAS, PTHVP became an independent non-profit organization named Parent Teacher Home 

Visits (PTHV) and is a nationally recognized organization with active participation in 28 states, Washington 
DC, and Canada; and 

 
WHEREAS, PTHV is a national leader in developing relationships between schools and families that 

are imperative for the success of SCUSD students; and 
 
WHEREAS, SCUSD recognizes and celebrates the 25th Anniversary of PTHV; founded in SCUSD 

with continuous participation across the district for 25 years. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of 
Education to hereby adopt this resolution recognizing and celebrating the 25th Anniversary of Parent Teacher 
Home Visits in SCUSD. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on this 
18th day of May, 2023, by the following vote: 

 
 

AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED TO: 
  
____________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar      Chinua Rhodes 
Secretary of the Board of Education    President of the Board of Education 
 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 9.3 
 

 
Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage Month 

Resolution No. 3324 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Board Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve proposed resolution. 
 
Background/Rationale:  May 2023 has been designated as Asian American and 
Pacific Islander Heritage Month.  The month of May was initially chosen to 
commemorate the immigration of the first Japanese to the United States on May 7, 
1843, and to mark the anniversary of the completion of the transcontinental railroad on 
May 10, 1869. The majority of the workers who laid the tracks were Chinese 
immigrants. The Resolution recognizes the importance of the continued contributions of 
Asian and Pacific Americans within our community, state and nation. 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Safe, Emotionally Healthy and 
Engaged Students 
 
Documents Attached:   
Resolution No. 3324 will be provided on Tuesday, May 16, 2023. 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  5 Minutes 
Submitted by:  Jasjit Singh, Board Member and 2nd Vice President 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 1 of 1 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Agenda Item # 9.4 

 
 
Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023 
 
Subject: Approve Resolution 3319: Recognition of May is Mental Health 

Awareness Month 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Student Support & Health Services   
 
Recommendation:   
Approve Resolution No. 3319:  Recognition of May is Mental Health Awareness Month 
 
Background/Rationale:   
 
May has been designated as Mental Health Awareness Month and May 11 is 
designated as National Children's Mental Health Awareness Day dedicated to raising 
awareness of youth, their families and all community members who experience 
emotional, behavioral and mental health challenges.   
 
Sacramento City Unified School District continues to address the social and emotional 
needs of our students, raise mental health awareness through activities such as 
expanding school-based mental and physical health supports to every school, providing 
staff, students and families/caregivers care coordination resource for accessing 
community-based mental health and substance use treatment, providing ongoing 
professional development on suicide prevention and support and resources for the 
mental well-being of our students, families, staff and community. 
 
Financial Considerations:  CARES/ESSER funding for staff expansion already 
dedicated through the Budget Development process. 
 
LCAP Goal:   Safe, Emotionally Healthy, and Engaged Students 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Resolution No. 3319 



 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 5 minutes 
Submitted by:  Victoria Flores, Executive Director Student Support 

& Health Services 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 1 of 1 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3319 

 
“Recognition of May is Mental Health Awareness Month” 

 
WHEREAS, May has been designated as Mental Health Awareness Month and May 11 

was observed as National Children's Mental Health Awareness Day dedicated to raising 
awareness of youth, their families and all community members who experience emotional, 
behavioral and mental health challenges; and 

 
WHEREAS, children and youth experiencing mental, emotional and behavioral health 

needs and their families can achieve a better quality of life with effective culturally relevant and 
responsive resources, treatments and community support within a system of care; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) Youth Risk Behavior Survey 

(YRBS) indicated the following: 
● nearly 3 in 5 U.S. teen girls experienced persistent feeling of sadness or hopelessness in 

2021 - double that of boys and the highest levels reported in a decade, and; 
● The percentage of students who had considered, planned, and/or attempted suicide is high 

and has increased over the years—with rates of suicide attempts highest among Black 
students 

● LGBTQ+ youth were substantially more likely to have experienced all forms of violence 
and had worse mental health outcomes than their heterosexual peers, and; 

● While all teens reported increasing mental health challenges, experiences of violence, and 
suicidal thoughts and behaviors, CDC’s new data indicate females and LGBTQ+ students 
fared worse than their male or heterosexual peers in 2021, and; 

WHEREAS, we recognize that untreated or unrecognized mental health issues may lead 
to low school attendance, academic concerns, family conflicts, substance abuse, and even suicide 
attempts or death by suicide; and 
 

WHEREAS, a focus on prevention and early intervention efforts greatly reduces the 
number of children experiencing serious mental health conditions; and 

  
WHEREAS, children, youth and adults can recover from mental illness and lead full, 

productive lives in the community; and 
 

WHEREAS, addressing the complex mental health needs of our children, youth, and 
families places upon our community and school district critical responsibility to support and 
respond; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) What Works in Schools 

recommends three overarching strategies for improving student wellness; 1) improve mental 
health supports, (2) provide improved professional development and health education and (3) 
improve connectedness and create safe and supportive school environment; and 

https://www.cdc.gov/healthyyouth/data/yrbs/yrbs_data_summary_and_trends.htm


 
WHEREAS, creating a community where everyone feels comfortable reaching out for 

the support they deserve is crucial to ending the stigma around mental health; and  
 
WHEREAS, public awareness of the importance of mental health and well-being and 

reducing the stigma associated with mental health struggles allows community members of all 
ages to find acceptance and understanding in their communities; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Sacramento City Unified School 
District Board of Education recognizes May as Mental Health Awareness Month in honor of 
raising awareness and reducing the stigma and discrimination associated with mental illness and 
seeking treatment.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Sacramento City Unified School District is 

commended for the ongoing work undertaken to address the social and emotional needs of our 
students, raise mental health awareness through activities such as expanding school-based mental 
and physical health supports to every school, providing staff, students and families/caregivers 
care coordination resource for accessing community-based mental health and substance use 
treatment, providing ongoing professional development on suicide prevention and support and 
resources for the mental well-being of our students, families, staff and community. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education 
on this 18th day of May, 2023, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 

 
 

‘ 
 
 

ATTESTED TO: 
 
______________________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar                                                                       Chinua Rhodes 
Secretary of the Board of Education                                        President of the Board of Education 

 
 

 



Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _9.5_ 

 
Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023 
 
Subject:  SCUSD Strategic Priorities Investments 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Receive information on 2023-2024 Proposed Budget Investments 
enrollment.  
 
Background/Rationale:   In June 2023, the Board will take action to adopt the 2023-2024 
District Budget.  The District will present proposed investments.  
 
Financial Considerations:  Potential impact to the District’s 2023-2024 Adopted Budget 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached: 
N/A 
 
 
 
Estimated Time:  40 Minutes 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent    



Page 1 of 2 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 10.1 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023 
 
Subject:  Carbon Neutral Goals and Guidelines for SCUSD Buildings  
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: _____)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 

Division:  Facility Support Services 
 
Recommendation:  Receive information on proposed carbon neutral goals and guidelines for 
SCUSD buildings. A Board resolution will be forthcoming at a subsequent meeting to approve 
the proposed carbon neutral goals and guidelines. 
 
Background/Rationale:  Sacramento City Unified School District (SCUSD) is embarking on a 
process to design, construct, and modernize school buildings and facilities to achieve carbon 
neutrality by 2045, which is set by California Executive Order B-55-18, 2018. As part of the 
ongoing work outlined by the Facilities Master Plan that was Board approved in October 21, 
2021, the District partnered with the New Buildings Institute (NBI) and the Sacramento Municipal 
Utilities District (SMUD) to develop District guidelines for prioritizing efforts to achieve building 
portfolio carbon neutrality by 2045, if not sooner. This includes portfolio and project level energy 
targets and timelines, as well as project requirements for new construction, major 
modernizations, and facility upgrades. This was a major component of the Facilities Master 
Plan. 
 
Financial Considerations:  These targets and guidelines will be incorporated in capital project 
design moving forward, which will positively impact the District’s General Fund over time. 
 
LCAP Goal(s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally 
Healthy and Engaged Students; Family and Community Engagement; Operational 
Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:  

1. Executive Summary 
2. Energy & Carbon Goals  
3. Energy & Carbon Project Requirements 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 minutes 

Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 

  Nathaniel Browning, Director I of Facilities 

  Chamberlain Segrest, Environmental Sustainability Manager  

Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Facilities Support Services 
Carbon Neutral Goals and Guidelines for SCUSD Buildings 
April 27, 2023  
  

 

 
Facilities Support Services  PAGE 1 

 
 
I. Overview/History of Department or Program:  
The SCUSD Facilities Master Plan (FMP) was approved by the Board in October 21, 2021 and 
included an American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) Level 
II Energy Audit for each facility within the District’s portfolio. With the help of a grant from the 
Sacramento Municipal Utilities District (SMUD), the District was able to work closely with New 
Buildings Institute to use the Audit data to determine the Energy Use Intensity (EUI)  for each of the 
District’s buildings. EUI is the amount of energy used per square foot annually, and is a strong 
indicator of a building’s energy performance. That baseline was then used to develop EUI building 
level goals for all new construction, major modernizations, and retrofits ofSacramento City Unified 
School District’s (SCUSD) building portfolio. 
 
These goals are accompanied by a  set of guiding standards to steer the construction process 
towards the EUI goals for each building and project type in the District. The District is working 
towards the California State goal of carbon neutrality by 2045. By utilizing a zero over time 
approach, SCUSD will achieve carbon neutral goals in a way that is cost effective,  aligns with 
broader school District goals and plans, and accounts for other co-benefits such as occupant health, 
wellness, productivity, and reduced strain on environmental resources. Getting to zero carbon over 
time is a long-term, strategic effort to use policies and guidelines to achieve carbon neutral school 
buildings. 
 
The California State goal of carbon neutrality by 2045 was outlined by Executive Order B-55-18 in 
2018 which called for neutral carbon emissions by no later than 2045, and to achieve and maintain 
net negative emissions thereafter.  
 
II. Driving Governance:   

● California Executive Order B-55-18, 2018 
● The District’s Facilities Master Plan  

 
III. Budget:   
The Facilities Master Plan will help the District prioritize capital improvement projects focused on 
carbon neutrality and sustainability. 
 
IV. Goals, Objectives and Measures:   
To provide safe, environmentally adaptable, environmentally sustainable, modern schools and 
playfields. 
 
V. Major Initiatives:  
The energy and carbon goals and guiding standards will help lead District staff in the planning and design 
of capital projects and system retrofits in order to meet our EUI targets and achieve carbon neutrality by 
2045. This process will center co-benefits such as the health and wellbeing of students and staff  



 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Facilities Support Services 
Carbon Neutral Goals and Guidelines for SCUSD Buildings 
April 27, 2023  
  

 

 
Facilities Support Services  PAGE 1 

 
VI. Results:   
To develop Energy Use Intensity (EUI) targets and guidelines for District buildings to help guide the 
replacement, modernization, and/or new construction of District facilities. 
 
VII. Lessons Learned/Next Steps:   
Facilities staff will be bringing a Board Resolution to a subsequent meeting for the Board to 
approve the EUI targets and guidelines presented as part of this agenda item. 



1 
 

Energy and Carbon Goals for Sacramento City School District 
April 2023 

 

SUMMARY: 

This document outlines the energy and carbon goals for Sacramento City Unified School District 
(SCUSD). Once adopted via a formal school resolution, these goals will be incorporated into a 
set of guiding standards to guide the construction process for each building and project type in 
the district. The district is working towards the California State goal of Carbon Neutrality by 
2045. Utilizing a zero over time approach will help districts such as SCUSD achieve carbon 
neutral goals in a way that is cost effective and aligns with broader school district goals and 
plans. Getting to zero carbon over time is a long-term, strategic effort to achieve carbon neutral 
school buildings.   

Achieving zero over time at the portfolio-level requires attention to individual buildings. Every 
opportunity in a building’s lifecycle is seen as an opportunity for improvement in a zero over time 
approach. New construction, major modernizations, system retrofits and equipment replacement 
are all triggering events where energy efficiency and carbon neutral goals should be addressed. 

In the process of adopting these goals – SCUSD will establish a baseline and set strategic, 
measurable, achievable, realistic, and time-bound goals regarding energy and carbon in 
buildings. Most projects in the existing pipeline can be leveraged to incorporate deep energy 
reductions and possibly renewable energy sources.  

Achievable and quantifiable goals for districts on the path to carbon neutral school buildings 
vary depending on the lifecycle event. These are outlined for SCUSD within this document.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

DEFINITIONS 

ENERGY USE INTENSITY (EUI): EUI is an indicator of the energy efficiency of a building’s 
design and/or operations. Expressed as energy use per square foot per year, EUI is calculated 
by dividing the total energy consumed by the building in one year by the total floor area of the 
building. EUI can be expressed as either “site” or “source” (defined further below). 

GETTING TO ZERO OVER TIME: While getting to zero is a realistic goal, the path to healthy, 
efficient, zero carbon schools is a process that will take time to accomplish. Getting to zero over 
time takes a long-term, cost effective, and strategic approach to energy management. It 
leverages every opportunity for facility upgrades to continually improve energy performance. 
This process sets measurable goals for a portfolio and individual projects and uses policies and 
guidance documents to achieve these goals.  

CARBON NEUTRAL: A carbon neutral school is a highly efficient building that has removed on-
site fossil fuel combustion, most often used for space heating, hot water heating and in kitchens.  

ZERO NET ENERGY (ZNE): A ZNE school is an energy-efficient building where on-site 
renewable energy production meets or exceeds energy used over the course of a year.  

SITE ENERGY USE INTENSITY (Site EUI): Site EUI includes energy consumed (including 
heating, cooling, ventilation, domestic hot water, indoor and outdoor lighting, elevators, plug in 
equipment, etc.) on the building site as measured at the site boundary. Site EUI is calculated 
with the total energy use of the building at the meter, regardless of the source. Gas, electricity, 
and renewable energy are all converted to one unit (thousand British thermal units, or kBtu) and 
counted together. 

SOURCE ENERGY USE INTENSITY (Source EUI): Source EUI includes site energy plus the 
energy consumed in the extraction, processing and transmission of primary fuels. Source EUI 
takes into account the total upstream energy that the building consumes, which means it is 
always larger or equal to the site EUI. The exact difference between the site and source EUI is a 
function of the fuel mix delivered to the building, as well as the building’s location. Different 
regions of the country have varying energy sources and transmission infrastructure. 

 

 

  



3 
 

EXISTING DISTRICT ENERGY STATS FOR SCHOOL DISTRICT: 

Average District Site EUI: 35.1 kBtu/sf/year 

Number of Building Sites: 85 are included in this dataset. Two schools (Chavez and 
Kemble Elementaries are combined because they are on the same site and share a gas meter.) 

School Name Type Site EUI 
(kBtu/sf/year) 

Source 
EUI 

(kBtu/sf/year) 
A. Warren McClacksey Adult Center Adult Education 56 104 
Abraham Lincoln Primary (K-6) 38 91 
A.M. Winn Public Waldorf Primary (K-8) 37 82 
Albert Einstein School Primary (M) 49 94 
Alice Birney  Primary (K-8) 33 80 
American Legion High School Secondary (H) 51 157 
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Professions Secondary (H) 42 109 
Bowling Green Chacon Language and 
Science Academy 

Primary (K-6) 20 58 

Bowling Green McCoy Academy for 
Excellence 

Primary (K-6) 34 82 

Bret Harte Elementary  Primary (P-5) 31 83 
Caleb Greenwood Elementary Primary (K-6) 25 57 
California Montessori Project - Capitol 
Campus 

Primary (K-8) 25 54 

California Middle School Primary (M) 31 77 
Camellia Basic Elementary School Primary (K-6) 32 84 
Capital City School (Independent 
Study) 

K-12 19 52 

Capitol Collegiate Academy  Primary (K-8) 40 90 
Caroline Wenzel Elementary Primary (K-6) 25 70 
Cesar E. Chavez Elementary + Edward 
Kemble Elementary at Kemble Site 

Primary (Kemble: K-
3 and Chavez: 4-6) 

COMBINE
D EUI: 35 

COMBINE
D EUI: 73 

Charles A. Jones Career & Education 
Center 

Adult Education 53 129 

C.K. McClatchy High School Secondary (H) 42 95 
Crocker Riverside Elementary  Primary (K-6) 22 62 
David Lubin Elementary Primary (K-6) 28 83 
Earl Warren Elementary School Primary (K-6) 53 131 
Edward Kemble Elementary School Primary (K-3) 38 82 
Elder Creek Elementary School Primary (K-6) 29 70 
Ethel I. Baker Elementary School Primary (K-6) 29 81 
Ethel Phillips Elementary School Primary (K-6) 31 80 
Father Keith B. Kenny School Primary (K-8) 46 115 
Fern Bacon Middle  Primary (M) 38 73 



4 
 

G.W. Carver School of Arts and 
Science 

Secondary (H) 29 72 

Genevieve F. Didion Elementary  Primary (K-6) 33 91 
Golden Empire Elementary School Primary (K-6) 31 94 
H.W. Harkness Elementary School Primary (K-6) 32 77 
Hiram Johnson High School Secondary (H) 63 122 
Hollywood Park Elementary School Primary (K-6) 40 106 
Hubert H. Bancroft Elementary School Primary (K-6) 35 86 
Isador Cohen Elementary School Primary (K-6) 29 75 
James W. Marshall Elementary School Primary (K-6) 28 78 
John Bidwell Elementary Primary (K-6) 27 72 
John Cabrillo Elementary School Primary (K-6) 33 89 
John D. Sloat Elementary Primary (K-6) 40 95 
John F. Kennedy High School Secondary (H) 42 105 
John Morse Therapeutic Center Primary (K-8) 19 46 
John Still Middle (East Campus) Primary (M) 27 67 
John Still Elementary (West Campus)  Primary (K-6) 28 85 
Kit Carson International Academy Secondary (7-12) 24 69 
Language Academy of Sacramento Primary (K-8) 42 133 
Leataata Floyd Elementary Primary (K-6) 23 56 
Leonardo Da Vinci School Primary (K-8) 32 71 
Luther Burbank High School Secondary (H) 33 81 
Maintenance and Operations District Building 57 111 
Mark Twain Elementary School Primary (K-6) 27 71 
Martin Luther King Jr. School Primary (K-8) 36 101 
Matsuyama Elementary Primary (K-6) 160 226 
New Joseph Bonnheim Community 
Charter 

Primary (K-6) 37 94 

Nicholas Elementary School Primary (K-6) 25 65 
O.W. Erlewine Elementary Primary (K-6) 37 86 
Oak Ridge Elementary Primary (K-6) 30 76 
Pacific Elementary  Primary (K-6) 26 74 
Parkway Elementary Primary (K-6) 33 85 
Phoebe A. Hearst Elementary Primary (K-6) 37 88 
Pony Express Elementary Primary (K-6) 22 63 
Print Shop/Nutrition Services District 

Administrative 
Building 

30 67 

Rosa Parks School Primary (K-8) 31 64 
Rosemont High School Secondary (H) 50 117 
Sacramento Accelerated Academy Secondary (H) 38 97 
Sacramento Charter High School Secondary (H) 44 96 
Sacramento New Technology School Secondary (H) 28 66 
Sam Brannan Middle  Primary (M) 45 97 



5 
 

School of Engineering and Science Secondary (7-12) 37 108 
Sequoia Elementary Primary (K-6) 26 65 
Serna Center District 

Administrative 
Building 

45 126 

Sol Aureus College Prep  Primary (K-8) 32 78 
Success Academy Primary (4-8) 21 47 
Susan B Anthony Elementary Primary (K-6) 29 77 
Sutter Middle School Primary (M) 26 68 
Sutterville Elementary School Primary (K-6) 35 84 
Tahoe Elementary Primary (K-6) 24 68 
The Met High School Secondary (H) 25 61 
Theodore Judah Elementary School Primary (K-6) 31 70 
Washington Elementary School Primary  (K-6) 33 80 
West Campus High School Secondary (H) 50 116 
Will C Wood Middle Primary (M) 36 77 
William Land Elementary School Primary (K-6) 36 101 
Woodbine Elementary Primary (K-6) 27 75 
Yav Pem Suab Academy Primary  (K-8) 25 71 

 

PROPOSED BUILDING LEVEL GOALS: 

Building Type New Construction 
Site EUI1 

Major Modernization 
Site EUI2 Retrofit EUI 

Administrative 21-26 kBtu/sf/yr 25-33 kBtu/sf/yr Retrofit projects will 
improve the site energy 
use intensity by 20-50% 
from a 2019 baseline 
weighted by the amount 
of work slated. 

Primary School  
(K-5 and Middle) 

19-24 kBtu/sf/yr 25-30 kBtu/sf/yr 

Secondary School  
(High School) 

20-25 kBtu/sf/yr 25-35 kBtu/sf/yr 

Note: Sacramento is ASHRAE Climate Zone 3B3.  

For New Construction, ASHRAE dictates that an EUI of 21.1 for office, an EUI of 19 for primary and an 
EUI of 19.4 for secondary is feasible for new construction in Climate Zone 3B – but we have provided a 
range for design teams. 

For Modernization, ASHRAE sets the standard that an EUI of 33 is achievable for office, an EUI of 30 for 
primary school, and an EUI of 33 for high school. Based on the NBI Getting to Zero database and past 
work in schools, we have amended the ranges above to be slightly more aggressive except for secondary 
schools which may have unique loads in some cases.  

                                                           
1 New construction targets come from the ASHRAE Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 Zero 
Energy Schools and ASHRAE Advanced Energy Design Guide for Small to Medium Office for 
Administrative buildings: https://www.ashrae.org/technical-resources/aedgs/zero-energy-aedg-free-
download  
2 Modernization targets come from ASHRAE Standard 100 targets for existing buildings which identifies 
that offices can achieve an EUI of 33, primary can achieve an EUI of 30, and secondary an EUI of 33. 
3 https://openei.org/wiki/Climate_Zone_3B  

https://www.ashrae.org/technical-resources/aedgs/zero-energy-aedg-free-download
https://www.ashrae.org/technical-resources/aedgs/zero-energy-aedg-free-download
https://openei.org/wiki/Climate_Zone_3B


6 
 

With the low average EUI across the district, the lower end of this scale should be achievable by these 
future projects. 

 
1. All new construction/addition projects will: 

• achieve a site energy use intensity of 19-24 kBtu/square foot/year before 
photovoltaic (PV), depending on building type, 

• be all-electric and have no on-site gas combustion, 
• PV-ready for all projects (wherever on site appropriate), 
• incorporate renewable energy sources to offset annual electricity use,  
• reduce life cycle impacts associated with high embodied carbon materials,  
• prioritize local products, manufacturers, and contractors to reduce carbon impacts in 

the supply chain, 
• utilize low global warming refrigerants, 
• consider the integration of electric vehicles and fleet infrastructure. 
• Consider threshold goal for PV and storage for resiliency 

 
2. All major modernization projects will:  

• achieve a site energy use intensity of 25-35 kBtu/square foot/year before PV, 
depending on building type, 

• either eliminate on-site gas combustion or have a plan to eliminate gas by 2045 (in a 
resolution or signed by the department director/superintendent) 

 
3. All school facility retrofits will improve the site energy use intensity by 20-50% 

from a 2018-2019 baseline weighted by the amount of work slated.  
• Retrofitted systems should prioritize a shift to all-electric. 
• All retrofitted systems must be the most efficient equipment available whether gas or 

electric. 

  



7 
 

PROPOSED POLICY OR PORTFOLIO LEVEL GOALS 

1. In line with California Executive Order B-55-18, SCUSD’s building portfolio will achieve 
carbon neutrality by 20454. 

2. This district will have an average portfolio site energy use intensity of 25 kBtu/square 
foot/year (without PV).  

3. Reduce energy consumption by 40% by 2030 and 80% by 2040. 
• EUI in 2030: 31.10 kBtu/sf/yr 
• EUI in 2040: 27.10 kBtu/sf/yr 

4. Onsite gas combustion of zero by 2045.  

 

 

 

 

                                                           
4 State of California Executive Order B-55-18 To Achieve Carbon Neutrality: 
https://www.ca.gov/archive/gov39/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/9.10.18-Executive-Order.pdf  

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050

EU
I (

kB
TU

/s
f-y

r)

TOTAL PROJECTED DISTRICT ENERGY USE 
INTENSITY (EUI) OVER TIME

https://www.ca.gov/archive/gov39/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/9.10.18-Executive-Order.pdf
https://www.ca.gov/archive/gov39/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/9.10.18-Executive-Order.pdf


Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

1   

 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District  
Energy & Carbon Project Requirements  

 
 

 
 

 

 
Developed in partnership with 

 New Buildings Institute 
 

  



Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

2   

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Introduction           3 

District Energy and Carbon Emission Goals      4 

Capital Projects - New Construction       5 

 Processes          5 

 Technical Approaches        6 

Capital Projects - Major Modernizations       8 

Facilities Projects          10 

District Energy and Carbon Guidelines       11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

3   

INTRODUCTION 
Guided by the FILL IN RESOLUTION WHEN ADOPTED the Sacramento City Unified School 
District (SCUSD) is embarking on a process to design, construct, and modernize school 
buildings and facilities to achieve carbon neutrality by 2045. Occupant health, student 
experiences, resource efficiency, and sustainability are important to our district and this Project 
Manual explains how the District aims to achieve the stated goals in all construction activities. 
Incorporating energy and carbon requirements into school design standards can make an 
immediate impact on health, attendance, academic performance, and teacher retention while 
decreasing operational costs.  

The District has outlined the goals, processes, and guidelines found in this document to help 
protect students, staff, school visitors, and community members from the detrimental impacts 
brought on by climate change and to prepare our district for the transition away from on-site 
fossil gas use.   
 
The District will strive to ensure all buildings are designed with occupant health, indoor 
environmental quality, and resource efficiency at the forefront. These buildings will prepare 
students for the future by providing a high-quality education that supports concepts and 
practices of sustainability. They will preserve current and future resources by adopting practices 
in design and operations that balance environmental, social, and fiscal responsibility to protect 
and enhance the quality of life.   
 
This document dovetails with other district policies and documents, including the SCUSD 
Technical Specifications, Education Specifications, Board Policy 3511, and Administrative 
Regulation 3511. Together, they outline the guidelines and requirements for capital projects 
(new construction and modernizations) and facilities projects, which are defined below. 
 
Capital Projects: Capital projects include new construction, additions, rebuilds and major 
modernizations, often funded by voter-approved bonds and implemented by the Facilities 
Services Department.   
 
Both new construction and modernization projects under the capital construction program will 
prioritize building envelope, HVAC, lighting, and removal of fossil fuel infrastructure to ensure all 
projects are designed to be as energy and carbon efficient as possible. Where opportunities 
arise modernizations will prioritize replacement of end-of-life roofs, windows, or heating 
systems, wherever possible.  
 
Facilities Projects: Facilities projects are the building repairs and deferred maintenance 
projects managed by our Facilities Services Department. These projects are often funded by the 
school district maintenance and operations budgets. Examples of these types of projects 
include system and equipment replacement, lighting, lighting controls, and HVAC system 
improvements, end-of-life equipment replacement, and school program changes.  
 
These projects generally have limited scope and will support energy and carbon goals by 
upgrading building elements as they reach their end of useful life. In each case, the District 
Energy and Carbon Guidelines below and Technical Specifications will inform the design and 
selection of materials and equipment.  
 



Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

4   

DISTRICT ENERGY AND CARBON EMISSIONS GOALS 
 
The district is committed to leveraging each opportunity to further progress toward achieving these goals. 
This includes bond-funded new construction and modernization projects, facilities retrofit projects funded 
with non-bond funds, as well as routine maintenance and operations practices. Energy and carbon 
emissions reduction opportunities should be considered any time the building envelope or energy using 
systems are addressed. This entire blue section should be customized to reflect the district’s goals. 

Portfolio Level Goals: 
• As required by California Executive Order B-55-18, SCUSD’s building portfolio will achieve 

carbon neutrality by 2045. 
• This district will have an average portfolio site Energy Use Intensity (EUI) of 25 kBtu/square 

foot/year (without PV). For comparison, the District’s current average EUI is 35.1 kBtu/square foot 
per year without PV.  

• Reduce energy consumption by 40% by 2030 and 80% by 2040.  These goals are expressed as 
follows: 

o EUI in 2030: 31.10 kBtu/sf/yr 
o EUI in 2040: 27.10 kBtu/sf/yr 

• As required by California Executive Order B-55-18, the District seeks an onsite gas combustion of 
zero by 2045.  

 

Project Level Goals: 

(1) All new construction projects will:  

• Will achieve a site energy use intensity of 19-24 kBtu/square foot/year without 
photovoltaic (PV), depending on building type, 

• Will have no on-site gas combustion (and will be all electric), 
• Will be PV-ready (where site appropriate), 
• Will incorporate renewable energy sources to offset annual electricity use, including, but 

not limited to, solar and geothermal, 
• Will reduce life cycle impacts associated with high embodied carbon materials wherever 

possible,  
• Will prioritize local products, manufacturers, and contractors to reduce carbon impacts in 

the supply chain, 
• Will utilize low refrigerants that minimize (if not eliminate) global warming impacts, 
• Will consider the addition of charging infrastructure for electric vehicles and the District 

fleet, and 
• Will consider battery storage and/or microgrid solutions supporting the PV system, for 

District and school resiliency, where practicable.  

(2) All major modernization projects:  
• Will achieve a site energy use intensity of 25-35 kBtu/square foot/year before PV, 

depending on the building type, and 
• Will eliminate on-site gas combustion completely, or include a designed plan to eliminate 

gas by 2045. 



Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

5   

(3) All school facility retrofits will improve the site Energy Use Intensity (EUI) by 20-50% 
from a 2018-2019 baseline: 

• Retrofitted systems should prioritize a shift to all-electric. 
• All retrofitted systems must be the most efficient equipment available whether gas or 

electric. 
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS - NEW CONSTRUCTION 
 
The design team is to incorporate the following elements into the construction process:  
 
 
ENGAGE THE LOCAL COMMUNITY: The design team must seek authentic input and 
feedback from the local school community during the design phase. 
 
DESIGNATE AN ENERGY CHAMPION: All projects must nominate an “energy champion” (EC) 
who will ensure that energy and carbon reduction are considered during the design 
process. The EC will sponsor an “eco-charrette,” participate in stakeholder meetings, and will 
review the drawing set at the end of each design phase, and twice during the construction 
documentation phase (conceptual design, schematic design, design development and 
construction documentation). The EC shall participate in the Value Engineering (VE) process so 
that the long-term cost of ownership is considered in the VE process.  
 
EMPLOY INTEGRATED DESIGN:  Zero energy schools require highly structured collaboration 
among those who plan, design, construct, use, operate and maintain them. Integrated Design 
requires that team members from a variety of disciplines work together to consider the 
intersection of local climate conditions, building use patterns, building design and layout, 
building systems, and cost. Integrated design starts early. In the large bond programs, energy 
efficiency and carbon emission reduction strategies begin when estimating the cost of new 
construction and major modernizations.  
 
Major construction and modernization projects will include an “eco-charrette” early in the design 
process.  The eco-charrette will specifically focus on identifying the strategies and systems 
necessary for meeting the EUI targets. In addition, design teams will be expected to optimize 
the interrelationships between the building orientation and building systems, surroundings, and 
occupants. The District’s goal is to include as many passive energy design strategies as 
possible, such as natural daylighting.  
 



Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

6   

 
 

REDUCE ENERGY LOAD FIRST: A key strategy in integrated design is a “strategic 
implementation hierarchy” to optimize energy and carbon emission reductions. This strategy is 
particularly applicable to modernization project.  The goal is to reduce energy loads first.  By 
doing so, HVAC systems may be sized to accommodate the new (lowered) load, rather than 
designed to the former (larger) load.  This saves energy and long term costs for the District.  
Though efficiency in the building envelope is an important part of energy reduction, the 
hierarchy may be different for each project. 
 
Technical Approaches 
 
Design teams will refer to the technical guidance contained in the design guide of the American 
Society of Heating, Refrigeration and Air-Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE), Advanced Energy 
Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings: Achieving Zero Energy (AEDG) to ensure the most 
efficient building approaches are utilized. These technical approaches are generally described 
below.  
 
ENERGY MODELING: Unless the prescriptive measures in the ASHRAE Advanced Energy 
Design Guide for Zero Energy Schools are followed, the design team will conduct energy 
modeling. This model will be refined as details of the design come into focus. Modeling inputs 
should be clearly documented so any variances from modeled numbers during occupancy can 

https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy


Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

7   

be identified quickly. All plug loads (including security cameras, emergency lighting, IT 
equipment, fire alarms, and kitchen equipment) should be captured.  

• An early energy model should be developed no later than the schematic design phase. 
Modeling will investigate building massing, orientation, and system type selection. This 
early model will analyze the relative energy impacts of various design decisions and will 
inform the system type selection.  For example, a better insulated building envelope can 
reduce the size of the HVAC system, thus saving first costs.  

• Later in the design process, energy models will investigate and estimate EUI to allow for 
comparison to goals and cost savings potential of energy conservation 
measures.  These same energy model’s estimates can also be used to size on-site 
renewables needed to achieve zero net carbon.  

• Finally, an as-built model will be created to reflect the actual conditions in the new or 
modernized building. This model should be available to calibrate post-occupancy to 
verify assumptions and provide feedback to the District.  

 
LIFECYCLE COSTING: To limit the adverse long-term impacts, the District requires that all 
value engineering decisions include consideration of life cycle costs. Interactive impacts of 
decisions will be considered before making first cost reduction decisions.  
 
PROJECT CHECK POINTS: During the design and construction process, each project team 
will revisit and report progress on project EUI goals at these key checkpoints:  

• At the end of each phase of the process (conceptual design, schematic design, design 
development, construction documents, and an as-built model).  

• During construction mockups in the field when different disciplines must work together to 
ensure that the building envelope is airtight and energy using systems are integrated.  

• During value engineering when the life cycle costs must be weighed against the first cost 
savings.  

 
COMMISSIONING: Commissioning shall begin in design and follow through to post occupancy. 
Commissioning agents hired by the district will be brought into the design following each project 
through design, construction, and post-occupancy to ensure that the energy goals and design 
intent are achieved as outlined in this document and reflected in the Basis of Design (BOD) 
developed by the project team for each project. Each commissioning plan will include design 
reviews, construction inspections, functional testing, development of a maintenance manual, 
and systems training.  Fundamental commissioning services (as defined by the US Green 
Building Council LEED process) may be provided by the same organization whose 
representatives include design team members.  
 

ENVELOPE COMMISSIONING: Envelope commissioning will be prioritized in all capital 
projects, this process begins with a blower door assessment and thermal imaging of the 
current building shell, where it will be retained, to identify leakage areas of concern. 
Existing envelope improvements should be prioritized based on the building testing 
results to ensure updates are maximizing performance improvement. Design teams 
should refer to the technical specifications of the AEDG for further details on building 
and building envelope commissioning.  

 
TRAINING & STEWARDSHIP:  

• All Facilities Service staff shall be trained by vendors and contractors, per written 
agreement, for any given construction project. Local utility service companies should be 
looped in to provide additional trainings in their area of expertise.  

https://www.usgbc.org/credits/commercial-interiors/v20/eap1
https://www.usgbc.org/credits/commercial-interiors/v20/eap1


Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

8   

• It is critical that building occupants such as staff and students are properly engaged in 
order to operate a building efficiently, maximize savings, and obtain feedback about 
building operation. Occupants must feel ownership over their buildings zero energy 
performance and understand their individual and collective roles in sustaining zero 
energy performance for the long term. Example training materials include videos, 
manuals, and captivating signage. Examples of feedback include working with the 
Commissioning Agent to undergo post-occupancy commissioning. 

 
FINANCIAL INCENTIVES: All projects will seek out local incentives and grants from utilities, 
Community Choice Aggregators (CCAs), Regional Energy Networks (RENs), and other local 
entities to help support district energy, carbon, and financial goals.  
 
VERIFICATION: The measurement and verification (M&V) period typically spans 12 to 24 
months after substantial completion of the building. During this time, the commissioning agent, 
design team, contractor, and energy modeler will work together with the district to review the 
energy performance of the project. This should be an ongoing and proactive process throughout 
the entire period so if anomalies are found between the expected site Energy Use Intensity and 
performance, and the actual site EUI performance, they can be identified and addressed 
quickly.   
 
MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS: Maintenance and operations is a key piece in ensuring that 
resource conservation and efficiency continue through the life of buildings and systems. This 
includes preventative maintenance, energy & water use monitoring, building automation system 
(BAS) monitoring, and continuous commissioning of HVAC and controls. Sustaining zero energy 
performance and reducing energy consumption in the long term should be more important than 
saving money in the short term by reducing expenditures on maintenance. 
 
The M&O team will be a key participant in the retro-commissioning of the completed projects. 
Additionally, the team will undergo the following practices to ensure buildings are maintained 
appropriately.  
 

• Defining and maintaining operational setpoints  
• Equipment scheduling and periodic review to ensure match with occupancy schedules  
• Checking sensor operation  
• Filter changes, fan operation check, coil cleaning and other preventative maintenance 

tasks  
• System flushing and checking steam traps  
• Checking valves for leakage/failure  
• Record keeping of systems and equipment to determine which systems either need 

maintenance or need replacement  
 
EQUIPMENT SELECTION: Every effort shall be made to 1) Select maintenance-friendly, less 
complicated equipment, 2) Select equipment that is tested and proven (ideally in a K-12 setting); 
3) Facilitate easy access to building systems (without ladders/lifts and without disturbing 
classes), and 4) Select materials that are easy to clean and inexpensive to maintain. 
Standardization of replacement materials, such as HVAC filter types and sizes, shall also be 
prioritized. The Maintenance and Operations team should be included in these discussions to 
provide team feedback on system selection.  
 
 



Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

9   

CAPITAL PROJECTS - MAJOR MODERNIZATIONS 
 
While new construction can be designed and built to meet the District’s ambitious energy and 
carbon goals relatively straightforwardly and with minimal additional cost, retrofitting existing 
buildings to reach similar levels of efficiency may present a bigger hurdle. The District 
recognizes that parts of the building may be difficult to update to current standards, for example, 
meeting prescriptive envelope insulation levels within existing walls.  
 
Despite these challenges, modernizations and retrofit projects are key opportunities to 
continually improve energy performance and reduce carbon emissions over time. As mentioned 
in the process section above, design teams will be guided by a strategic implementation 
hierarchy that calls for consideration of balancing energy load reduction, with attention to 
features such as the building envelope and lighting improvements, which should be balanced 
before HVAC upgrades. Minimizing heating load before replacing existing systems avoids 
oversizing of equipment and allows for replacement with equipment and/or systems that are 
more efficient and, where feasible, do not have on-site fossil fuel combustion.  
 
Envelope commissioning will be prioritized in modernization projects, as with all capital projects, 
this process begins with a blower door assessment and thermal imaging of the current building 
shell, where it will be retained, to identify leakage areas of concern. Existing envelope 
improvements should be prioritized based on the building testing results to ensure updates are 
maximizing performance improvement. Design teams should refer to the technical specifications 
of the Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings for further details on building 
and building envelope commissioning.  
 

  MODERNIZATION  
SCOPE  
See further details below  Mandatory  Case-by-

case  
Envelope air sealing and insulating walls and openings  ✔    
Roofs insulation, rainwater collection    ✔  
Glazing & Shading heat minimization, high performance windows    ✔  
Lighting LED lighting & controls  ✔    
Electrical energy monitoring  ✔    
Metering submetering     ✔  
Kitchen electrification & Energy Star energy-efficient equipment  ✔    
Heating electrification & maintainability    ✔  
Ventilation heat recovery & filtration    ✔  
Controls set points & operating hours   ✔    
Domestic Hot Water recirculation pumps & pipe insulation  ✔    

https://www.ashrae.org/technical-resources/aedgs/zero-energy-aedg-free-download


Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

10   

The chart below summarizes which elements will be incorporated into each modernization and 
retrofit project and which will only be included on a case-by-case basis. Design teams will 
consider the synergies with planned scope of work, available funding, and site-specific design 
parameters.   

Plug Loads are measured & controlled   ✔    
Water backflow device & high-efficiency fixtures  ✔    
Schoolyard green schoolyards, stormwater mgmt. & rainwater collection    ✔  
Materials CalGreen, CA Section 01350 & CA Buy Clean  ✔    
Renewables Onsite solar PV, storage    ✔  
Zero Energy Ready roof solar readiness  ✔    



Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

11   

FACILITIES PROJECTS 
 
The Facilities Department is an integral part of the district’s efforts to care for and improve its 
building stock, tackle deferred maintenance, and achieve energy and carbon goals. Typical 
work includes lighting retrofits, control upgrades, window retrofits, roofing replacement, 
installation of information technology, security or fire alarm systems, and replacement of boilers 
or other aging equipment.  
 
Facilities projects shall adhere to the following overarching decision-making processes in order 
for those projects to align with the district’s goals and project processes:  

• The energy champion shall be consulted and provide guidance on incorporating energy 
efficiency and carbon emission reduction into the design of retrofits and replacements.  

• Specifications for new equipment will match those for new construction unless prohibited 
by Division of State Architect’s Interpretation of Regulations (IR) A-22 or this change 
requires significant and costly expansion of electricity infrastructure. This will avoid like 
for like replacements and ensure that replacement equipment will be more energy 
efficient.  

• New fossil fuel burning equipment will not be installed.  
  
The District Technical Standards and Specifications are to be consulted for all Facilities projects 
so architects working on these projects continue to work to achieve the District’s energy and 
carbon goals.   
 
  



Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

12   

DISTRICT ENERGY AND CARBON GUIDELINES 
 
In order to adhere to the goals set forth by the District, design teams will consult the Advanced 
Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings (AEDG): Achieving Zero Energy (ASHRAE) and 
follow the Energy and Carbon Guidelines below. While these guidelines are most easily 
implemented in new construction, they should also be utilized where applicable in other 
projects. For reference, Sacramento County is in ASHRAE Climate Zone 3B: Warm Dry. All 
requirements below reflect the modeled capabilities of this climate zone. 
 
ENERGY 
New buildings should be designed to achieve a modeled site energy use intensity (EUI) of 19 
kBtu/sf/year for primary schools and 19.4 kBtu/sf/year for secondary schools including plug 
loads, security cameras, IT & fire alarm systems, and kitchen equipment. Building systems 
should be “designed for off”, meaning that they will shut down without user intervention. Energy 
modeling during design should confirm that site EUI targets are achieved.  
Reference: Table 3-1 of the Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings 

  
FORM & SITING 
Buildings should be simple and compact, integrated into the landscape, oriented to allow for 
daylighting while managing solar gain, minimizing glare and maximizing renewable energy 
production. Building form should consider exterior circulation to minimize the need for 
conditioned common areas and stacking functions to promote energy efficiency.  
  
ENVELOPE 
Roof, wall, slab edge, and door insulation will be continuous and optimized via building 
modeling to comply with the EUI target above. In general, a roof U-factor of 0.039 and wall U-
factor of 0.064 should be specified. Exterior insulation should be specified over cavity insulation 
and fiberglass batts should be limited in certain circumstances due to poor thermal performance 
in the field. Double swinging doors without a center post or rolling overhead doors without 
insulated panels are discouraged due to poor air sealing properties.  
Reference: Table 5-3 of the Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings 
 
If PV panels will be mounted to the roof, the roofing system must be able to handle uplift from 
the panels. Attachments for PV panels need to minimize thermal bridging (see section EN35 in 
the Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings).  

  
AIR & MOISTURE CONTROL 
Moisture and air control layers will be continuous and reside on the warm side of exterior 
insulation, and architects will design and specify airtight construction practices (.25 CFM/SF @ 
75 Pa). 
Reference: As noted in section EN2 of the Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings  
 
INSULATION 
Roof, wall, slab edge, and door insulation will be continuous and optimized via energy modeling 
to comply with the EUI target above and to minimize the cooling dominated climate zone. In 
general, R30 roof and R20 wall insulation should be specified. 
 
WINDOWS  
Windows and skylights will have U-values <.30 and thermally-broken frames. Windows size and 
Solar Heat Gain Coefficients (SHGC) will be tuned to building orientation, with north and 

https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy


Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

13   

(shaded) south-facing glass being larger and having a higher SHGC than east or west-facing 
glass. Windows should additionally consider the access to views for building occupants.  
Reference: Table 5-5 of the Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings 
 
SHADING 
The need for glare and heat control (on E/S/W elevations) should be determined through 
daylight modeling and provided via exterior shading devices.  

• Interior shades will be provided in all classrooms and offices.  
• Exterior building shades will be provided, with consideration of solar angled or 

perforated sunshades. 
• Exterior ground shading: 

o Shading must cover at least 50% of the parking area. All parking shade 
structures will have PV arrays.  

o Shade tree plantings will be required over at least 20% of the landscape area 
and 20% of the hardscape area within 15 years, with landscape irrigation 
necessary to establish and maintain tree health (per Title 24). 
 

DAYLIGHTING 
Whenever possible, buildings will utilize natural light to meet lighting needs. Acceptable 
strategies include sloped ceilings, light louvers, clerestories, reflective interior surfaces, sun 
tubes, and skylights along interior walls. 
 
LIGHTING 
In general, lights should run parallel to windows, with the closest bank controlled via daylight 
sensors. Lights in daylit stairs or hallways should be similarly controlled. Skylights, sun tubes, or 
light wells may be considered in permanently occupied spaces without access to natural light 
provided that rooftop solar requirements can be met. 

• Interior lighting will be 100% LED, with manual on/auto off in classrooms/offices, 
occupancy sensors in common areas, and daylighting controls per Title 24. A Lighting 
Power Density (LPD) of 0.4 watts/sf or less shall be achieved. Architects should refer to 
the District’s Technical Standards and Specifications for appropriate light levels, set 
points, and design guidance for each space type. Zoned lighting should be considered 
where appropriate to utilize lighting systems only when needed. 

• Exterior lighting will also be LED, incorporate bi-level control, and astronomical time 
clocks. 

 
ELECTRICAL  
Size of new transformers and switchgear should be right-sized. They will be evaluated based on 
future electric heating and solar loads wherever possible. Often electrical equipment is already 
oversized and with energy efficiency measures in place the increase in size may not be needed. 
This should be carefully evaluated for each project. Electrical rooms should provide a spare 
breaker for future PV panels and space for a solar inverter. Plug loads (controlled and 
uncontrolled), electrical systems (cameras, fire alarm, IT), lighting, heating/cooling, ventilation, 
kitchen equipment, and DHW should be monitored and may be separately sub-metered if cost 
effective and appropriate in new buildings and when subpanels are replaced in existing ones. 
Electric vehicle and bus infrastructure should be considered where appropriate. 
 
An energy monitor and comprehensive energy dashboard are to be installed in all new and 
modernized buildings to maintain the engagement of students, staff, and the larger community. 
The energy dashboard is an unparalleled source of data about how the building is performing. 

https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy


Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

14   

 
PLUG LOADS  
Staff refrigerators and microwaves should be provided to discourage individual units. Outlets 
wired for receptacle control (as per Title 24) shall be clearly labeled. Efficient kitchen equipment 
is required. The CA Energy Wise website provides and equipment recommendations for kitchen 
appliances, walk-ins, and cooking hoods. The Food Service Technology Center provides best 
practices on all-electric kitchens. 
 
HEATING & COOLING  
Heating and cooling shall be provided by HFC-free (when available), centralized, all-electric 
systems that meet CEE Tier 2 levels of efficiency. Projects should prioritize the removal of gas 
heating systems in existing buildings and NO gas heating systems are allowed in new 
construction. 
 
VENTILATION 
Mechanical ventilation should incorporate dedicated outside air systems (DOAS) with 
occupancy and/or CO2-based controls, a 15-minute delay, and MERV-13 final filters throughout. 
Fresh air should originate from a shaded/cool part of the building exterior and be delivered low 
in each space. Ceiling fans may be used to expand the comfort range and to allow for an 
increased cooling set point. Kitchen hoods should incorporate heat recovery and variable flow 
control and be designed according to CA Energy Wise Design Guides. Ventilation in single-
occupancy restrooms should be tied into the local occupancy sensor.  
 
Design teams should additionally consult the CDC recommendations for ventilation best 
practices to increase the delivery of clean air and dilute potential contaminants. 
 
CONTROLS 
Space conditioning controls should be tied into the District EMS systems and separate controls 
provided for each zone. Occupied hours vary depending on room (7AM-3PM for classrooms; 
7AM-3PM for offices, etc.). The system should be off after hours, on weekends, and over 
unoccupied holidays (with the possibility of limited duration and zone-specific overrides).  

• Set points should be 68 +/- 3 degrees F in heating mode and 78 +/- 3 degrees F in 
cooling mode for all new/modernized buildings 

• Set points should be 68 degrees F in heating mode and 74 degrees F in cooling mode 
for all non-modernized buildings.  

 
HOT WATER 
Refer to the Advanced Energy Design Guide for K-12 School Buildings for domestic and service 
hot water. In addition, large kitchens with walk-in coolers/freezers should be outfitted with heat 
recovery systems that preheat hot water. All pipes shall be insulated, and water temps set at 
<120 degrees F, except for commercial kitchen water temps. . 
 
RENEWABLES  
Appropriately sized breakers, panel and conduit will be included in the base bid.  Renewable 
energy system panels and equipment will be considered as an add alternate in new construction 
and major modernization construction projects. Projects will use the PV Watts Calculator to 
calculate the solar capacity for your project location and compare against the modeled energy 
use to correctly size the PV array. 
 
ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

https://caenergywise.com/rebates/
https://fishnick.com/
https://library.cee1.org/content/consortium-energy-efficiency-cee-high-efficiency-commercial-air-conditioning-and-heat-pump-0/
https://caenergywise.com/design-guides/
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/ventilation.html
https://www.ashrae.org/about/news/2018/new-advanced-energy-design-guide-available-to-help-k-12-schools-achieve-zero-energy
https://pvwatts.nrel.gov/


Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

15   

 
WATER & IRRIGATION  
Urinals shall use no more than one pint per flush and be installed with partitions in all male 
restrooms. Other fixtures shall meet the latest CalGreen requirements. Remodeled restrooms 
shall contain shut-off valves to aid in the identification and repair of plumbing leaks. Multi-fixture 
restrooms should be pre-plumbed to receive rainwater for toilet flushing. Drought-tolerant plants 
should be used (outside of food gardens), hose bibbs provided around the perimeter of 
buildings, and natural grass replaced with turf on athletic fields. 
 
STORM & RAINWATER  
Playground matting shall be permeable, and schoolyards should be graded to allow perimeter 
infiltration.  
 
It shall be the goal of all new projects to capture and retain all stormwater runoff on site. To that 
end, all roofs shall be rainwater-harvesting friendly (TPO, metal) and incorporate external 
downspouts. Backflow devices are required at the point of collection and at the street. Finally, 
toilets at frequently used multi-stall restrooms should be pre-plumbed as follows (or retrofitted 
during gut modernizations): 

• Toilets should be served by a dedicated water line that is labeled as a rainwater line 
(inside walls only). 

• That water line should be connected to the local domestic water system. 
• Design teams should create an accessible tie-in point where future rainwater can be 

routed into the toilet water line and a three-way valve added. 
• Low impact development, like rain gardens, porous pavement, and bioswales shall be 

considered when appropriate. 
 
MATERIALS  
Finishes and other materials shall be durable, contain recycled/bio-based content, lead and 
PVC-free, recyclable at end-of-life, and meet low emissions criteria outlined in CalGreen and CA 
Section 01350. This applies to paints, coatings, adhesives, sealants, flooring/carpet, composite 
wood/panels, acoustical ceilings, insulation, and furniture. 
 
EV and FLEET 
EV charging capability shall be incorporated for a minimum of Level 2 Charging Infrastructure 
for 10% of the current parking spaces for staff and visitors. Additionally, the District plan to 
transition EV Fleet to Electric Bus should be made available to the design team to be able to 
appropriately incorporate bus charging infrastructure for future charging.  
 
ACTIVE COMMUTE 
Walking and biking routes on the school campus shall be planned to improve safety and 
encourage active commutes. Design teams will provide one bike rack (4-loops) for schools on 
hills and two bike racks or enough to meet demand (whichever is greater) at all other locations. 
Design teams will engage with external partners, including the city, to ensure active 
transportation friendly crosswalks and sidewalks are either maintained or included in the design.  



Sacramento City Unified Energy and Carbon Requirements  
 

16   

 
SCHOOLYARD 
Incorporate drought tolerant and biophilic landscaping wherever possible. Ensure the 
design is student and maintenance friendly.  

• Shade tree plantings will cover at least 30% of each school property in the areas 
used by children and youth during the school day. 

• Per Title 24, shade tree plantings will be required over at least 20% of the landscape 
area and 20% of the hardscape area within 15 years, with landscape irrigation 
necessary to establish and maintain tree health. 

• Interactive gardens and outdoor classrooms should be considered at all elementary 
schools. The design should be student and maintenance friendly. 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 10.2 
 

 
Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023  
 
Subject:  Revision to Board Policies 0420, 0420.1, 0420.2, 0420.3 (Charter 
School Authorization, Oversight, Renewal, Revocation).  
 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Deputy Superintendent’s Office 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve revised administrative regulation AR 0420.4 (Charter 
School Authorization), revised board policy BP 0420.1 (Charter School Authorization), 
revised board policy BP 0420.41 (Charter School Oversight), revised board policy BP 
0420.42 (Charter School Renewal), and revised board policy BP 0420.43 (Charter 
School Revocation). 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  California Assembly Bill 1505 was signed into law in 2019.  It 
significantly updated legal standards for charter oversight in the state.  To date, SCUSD 
has not adopted revised board policies or administrative regulations consistent with this 
legal standard.  These revised board policies are based on models from the California 
School Board Association (CSBA).  Similar policies are in place in many surrounding 
districts and counties. 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  There are no financial impacts. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Goal 8: Basic Services and Districtwide Operations/Supports 
 

Page 1 of 2 



 
Documents Attached:   

1. Executive Summary 
2. Administrative Regulation 0420.4 (clean) 
3. Administrative Regulation 0420.4 (redline) 
4. Board Policy 0420.4 – Charter Authorization (clean) 
5. Board Policy 0420.4 – Charter Authorization (redline) 
6. Board Policy 0420.41 – Charter Oversight (clean) 
7. Board Policy 0420.41 – Charter Oversight (redline) 
8. Board Policy 0420.42 – Charter Renewal (clean) 
9. Board Policy 0420.42 – Charter Renewal (redline) 
10. Board Policy 0420.43 – Charter Revocation (clean) 
11. Board Policy 0420.43 – Charter Revocation (redline) 

 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 3 minutes 
Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Deputy Superintendent 
  Amanda Goldman, Director II, Innovative Schools 
Approved by:   Jorge Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 2 of 2 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Deputy Superintendent’s Office 
Revision to Board Policies 0420.4, 0420.41, 0420.42, 0420.43 
(Charter School Authorization, Oversight, Renewal, Revocation).  
May 18, 2023  

  
 

 
Deputy Superintendent’s Office 

 
I.   OVERVIEW / HISTORY  
In 2019, California Assembly Bill (AB) 1505 was signed into law.  This law significantly updated 
the legal standards for charter school authorization, oversight, renewal, and revocation in the 
state of California.  SCUSD board policies and administrative regulations have not yet been 
updated to reflect these changes to law and practice. 
 
In creating these revised policies, the previous Director of Innovative Schools (Jesse Ramos), 
started with the model policies drafted by the California School Board Association (CSBA).  
These policies were circulated and reviewed by SCUSD cabinet, SCUSD legal counsel, and 
stakeholders from the charter schools’ community.  Upon taking office in March, the current 
Director of Innovative Schools (Amanda Goldman) reviewed the policies and compared them 
with similar policies from surrounding districts and policies.  The policies being submitted today 
are consistent with policies from San Juan Unified School District, Elk Grove Unified School 
District, Alameda County Office of Education, and Oakland Unified School District. 
 
II.   DRIVING GOVERNANCE 
Compliance with California State Assembly Bill 1505 
 
III.   BUDGET  
There is no financial impact. 
 
IV.   GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND MEASURES  
The goal is to adopt board policies and administrative regulations aligned with state law to 
ensure the ability to provide strong, consistent oversight of SCUSD’s authorized charter schools.  
 
V.   MAJOR INITIATIVES  
Keeping SCUSD up to date and compliant with state law. 
 
VI.   RESULTS  
Approval and implementation of AR 0420.4, BP 0420.4, BP 0420.41, BP 0420.42, and BP 
0420.43. 
 
VII.   LESSONS LEARNED / NEXT STEPS  
Once our SCUSD’s board policies are up to date with legal requirements, the Director of 
Innovative schools will update staff and board members on charter renewal and oversight 
status. 

 



 

1 
 

Sacramento City USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Charter School Authorization 
 
AR 0420.4  
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 
Petition Signatures 
 
A petition for the establishment of a start-up charter school must be signed by either of the 
following:  (Education Code 47605) 
 
1. A number of parents/guardians equivalent to at least one-half of the number of students 
that the charter school estimates will enroll in the school for its first year of operation 
 
2. A number of teachers equivalent to at least one-half of the total number of teachers that 
the charter school estimates will be employed at the school during its first year of operation 
 
A petition that proposes to convert an existing public school to a charter school must be signed 
by at least 50 percent of the permanent status teachers currently employed at the school.  
(Education Code 47605) 
 
(cf. 4116 - Probationary/Permanent Status) 
 
Any petition circulated to collect signatures shall include a prominent statement explaining that a 
parent/guardian's signature means that the parent/guardian is meaningfully interested in having 
their child attend the charter school, or a teacher's signature means that the teacher is 
meaningfully interested in teaching at the charter school.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Staff Advisory Committee 
 
The Superintendent or designee may establish a staff advisory committee to evaluate the 
completeness of a charter petition based on the requirements in Education Code 47605 and to 
identify any concerns that should be addressed by the petitioners. 
 
(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups) 
 
Components of Charter Petition 
 
All charter petitions shall comply with the applicable requirements of Education Code 47605, 
other state and federal laws, and district policies. 
 
The charter petition shall include affirmations that the charter school will be nonsectarian in its 
programs, admission policies, employment practices, and operations; will not charge tuition; and 
will not discriminate against a student on the basis of characteristics listed in Education Code 



 

2 
 

220.  The petition shall also contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of:  (Education 
Code 47605) 
 
1. The educational program of the proposed school, designed, among other things, to 
identify those whom the school is attempting to educate, what it means to be an "educated 
person" in the 21st century, and how learning best occurs. The goals identified in that program 
shall include the objective of enabling students to become self-motivated, competent, and 
lifelong learners. 
 
The petition shall include a description of the charter school's annual goals for all students and 
for each numerically significant subgroup of students identified pursuant to Education Code 
52052, including ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, 
students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students. These goals shall be aligned with 
the state priorities listed in Education Code 52060 that apply to the grade levels served. The 
petition also shall describe specific annual actions to achieve those goals. The petition may 
identify additional priorities established for the proposed school, goals aligned with those 
priorities, and specific annual actions to achieve those goals. 
 
(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
If the proposed charter school will serve high school students, the petition shall describe the 
manner in which the school will inform parents/guardians about the transferability of courses to 
other public high schools and the eligibility of courses to meet college entrance requirements. 
Courses offered by the charter school that are accredited by the Western Association of Schools 
and Colleges may be considered transferable, and courses approved by the University of 
California or the California State University as creditable under the "a-g" admissions criteria may 
be considered to meet college entrance requirements. 
 
2. The measurable student outcomes identified for use by the charter school. Student 
outcomes means the extent to which all students of the school demonstrate that they have 
attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes specified as goals in the school's educational 
program, including outcomes that address increases in student academic achievement both 
school wide and for each numerically significant subgroup of students served by the charter 
school. The student outcomes shall align with the state priorities identified in Education Code 
52060 that apply for the grade levels served by the charter school. 
 
3. The method by which student progress in meeting the identified student outcomes is to be 
measured. To the extent practicable, the method for measuring student outcomes for state 
priorities shall be consistent with the way information is reported on a school accountability 
report card. 
 
(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card) 
 
4. The governance structure of the charter school, including, but not limited to, the process 
to be followed by the school to ensure parent/guardian involvement. 



 

3 
 

 
5. The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the charter school. 
 
6. The procedures that the charter school will follow to ensure the health and safety of 
students and staff, including the following requirements: 
 
a. Each charter school employee shall furnish the school with a criminal record summary as 
described in Education Code 44237. 
 
b. The charter school shall develop a school safety plan which includes the topics listed in 
Education Code 32282(a)(2)(A)-(J). 
 
c. That the charter school's safety plan shall be reviewed and updated by March 1 each year. 
 
7. The means by which the charter school will achieve a balance of racial and ethnic 
students, special education students, and English learner students, including redesignated fluent 
English proficient students, which is reflective of the general population residing within the 
district's territorial jurisdiction. 
 
8. The charter school's student admission policy. The petition shall, in accordance with 
Education Code 47605(e), specify procedures for determining enrollment when the number of 
applicants exceeds the school's capacity, including requirements for the use of a public random 
drawing, admission preferences, and priority order of preferences as required by law and subject 
to Governing Board approval. 
 
9. The manner in which annual, independent financial audits shall be conducted, which shall 
employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in which audit exceptions and 
deficiencies shall be resolved to the Board's satisfaction. 
 
10. The procedures by which students can be suspended or expelled for disciplinary reasons 
or otherwise involuntarily removed for any reason, including an explanation of how the charter 
school will comply with federal and state constitutional procedural and substantive due process 
requirements as specified in Education Code 47605 and a statement that the suspension 
procedures will include requirements pertaining to the provision of homework assignments to 
suspended students as specified in Education Code 47606.2. 
 
Such procedures shall also include processes by which the charter school will notify the 
superintendent of a district, and by which the charter school may be notified by the 
superintendent of a district, when a student or former student of the charter school is expelled or 
subject to any of the circumstances specified in Education Code 47605(e)(3). 
 
11. The manner by which staff members of the charter school will be covered by the State 
Teachers' Retirement System, the Public Employees' Retirement System, or federal social 
security. 
 
12. The public school attendance alternatives for students residing within the district who 



 

4 
 

choose to not attend the charter school. 
 
13. A description of the rights of any district employee upon leaving district employment to 
work in the charter school and of any rights of return to the district after employment at the 
charter school. 
 
14. The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the Board to resolve disputes 
relating to charter provisions. 
 
15. A declaration as to whether or not the charter school will be deemed the exclusive public 
school employer of the school's employees for purposes of collective bargaining under 
Government Code 3540-3549.3. 
 
16. Consistent with 5 CCR 11962, the procedures to be used if the charter school closes, 
including, but not limited to: 
 
a. Designation of a responsible entity to conduct closure-related activities 
 
b. Notification to parents/guardians, the Board, the county office of education, the special 
education local plan area in which the charter school participates, the retirement systems in 
which the school's employees participate, and the California Department of Education, providing 
at least the following information: 
 
(1) The effective date of the closure 
 
(2) The name(s) and contact information of the person(s) to whom reasonable inquiries may 
be made regarding the closure 
 
(3) The students' districts of residence 
 
(4) The manner in which parents/guardians may obtain copies of student records, including 
specific information on completed courses and credits that meet graduation requirements 
 
c. Provision of a list of students at each grade level, the classes they have completed, and 
their districts of residence to the responsible entity designated in accordance with item #16a 
above 
 
d. Transfer and maintenance of all student records, all state assessment results, and any 
special education records to the custody of the responsible entity designated in accordance with 
item #16a above, except for records and/or assessment results that the charter may require to be 
transferred to a different entity 
 
e. Transfer and maintenance of personnel records in accordance with applicable law 
 
f. Completion of an independent final audit within six months after the closure of the 
charter school that includes an accounting of all financial assets and liabilities pursuant to 5 CCR 



 

5 
 

11962 and an assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received by or due to the 
school 
 
g. Disposal of any net assets remaining after all liabilities of the charter school have been 
paid or otherwise addressed pursuant to 5 CCR 11962 
 
h. Completion and filing of any annual reports required pursuant to Education Code 
47604.33 
 
i. Identification of funding for the activities identified in item #16a-h above 
 
Charter school petitioners shall provide information to the Board regarding the proposed 
operation and potential effects of the school, including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 
47605) 
 
1. The facilities to be used by the charter school, including where the school intends to 
locate 
 
(cf. 7160 - Charter School Facilities) 
 
2. The manner in which administrative services of the charter school are to be provided 
 
3. Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon the charter school and district 
 
4. Financial statements that include a proposed first-year operational budget, including start-
up costs and cash-flow and financial projections for the first three years of operation 
 
5. If the charter school is to be operated by or as a nonprofit public benefit corporation, the 
names and relevant qualifications of all persons whom the petitioner nominates to serve on the 
governing body of the charter school 
 
Location of Charter School 
 
Unless otherwise exempted by law, the charter petition shall identify a single charter school that 
will operate within the geographic boundaries of the district. A charter school may propose to 
operate at multiple sites within the district as long as each location is identified in the petition.  
(Education Code 47605, 47605.1) 
 
A charter school may establish a resource center, meeting space, or other satellite facility within 
the jurisdiction of the school district where the charter school is physically located if both of the 
following conditions are met:  (Education Code 47605.1) 
 
1. The facility is used exclusively for the educational support of students who are enrolled 
in nonclassroom-based independent study of the charter school. 
 
2. The charter school provides its primary educational services in, and a majority of the 



 

6 
 

students it serves are residents of, the county in which the school is authorized. 
 
 (6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
 
Proposition 39 Facilities Requests 
 
(A)  In processing requests for facilities submitted by charter schools pursuant to Proposition 
39, the district will adhere to Education Code 47614 (Proposition 39) and applicable regulations 
adopted thereunder, as such are amended from time to time. 
 
(B)  Each charter school must report actual ADA to the district every time that the charter 
school reports ADA for Proposition 39 apportionment purposes. The reports must include in-
district and total ADA and in-district and total classroom-based ADA. The charter school must 
maintain records documenting the data contained in the reports. These records shall be available 
upon request by the district. 
 
 
 
 
Amendments to Charter Schools Act 
 
In the event the Charter Schools Act or other applicable laws are amended or interpreted by 
appellate court decision binding on the district after the effective date of this Administrative 
Regulation so that this regulation is inconsistent with such applicable law, this regulation shall be 
deemed amended to accord with such amendment(s) or appellate decision(s). 
 
 
 
Regulation  SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
approved:  November 17, 2003  Sacramento, California 
revised:  September 12, 2008 
revised:  August 20, 2015 
revised:  May 4, 2023 



 

1 
 

Sacramento City USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Charter School Authorization 
 
AR 0420.4  
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 
Petition Signatures 
 
A petition for the establishment of a start-up charter school must be signed by either of the 
following:  (Education Code 47605) 
 
1. A number of parents/guardians equivalent to at least one-half of the number of students 
that the charter school estimates will enroll in the school for its first year of operation 
 
2. A number of teachers equivalent to at least one-half of the total number of teachers that 
the charter school estimates will be employed at the school during its first year of operation 
 
A petition that proposes to convert an existing public school to a charter school must be signed 
by at least 50 percent of the permanent status teachers currently employed at the school.  
(Education Code 47605) 
 
(cf. 4116 - Probationary/Permanent Status) 
 
Any petition circulated to collect signatures shall include a prominent statement explaining that a 
parent/guardian's signature means that the parent/guardian is meaningfully interested in having 
their child attend the charter school, or a teacher's signature means that the teacher is 
meaningfully interested in teaching at the charter school.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Staff Advisory Committee 
 
The Superintendent or designee may establish a staff advisory committee to evaluate the 
completeness of a charter petition based on the requirements in Education Code 47605 and to 
identify any concerns that should be addressed by the petitioners. 
 
(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups) 
 
Components of Charter Petition 
 
All charter petitions shall comply with the applicable requirements of Education Code 47605, 
other state and federal laws, and district policies. 
 
The charter petition shall include affirmations that the charter school will be nonsectarian in its 
programs, admission policies, employment practices, and operations; will not charge tuition; and 
will not discriminate against a student on the basis of characteristics listed in Education Code 



 

2 
 

220.  The petition shall also contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of:  (Education 
Code 47605) 
 
1. The educational program of the proposed school, designed, among other things, to 
identify those whom the school is attempting to educate, what it means to be an "educated 
person" in the 21st century, and how learning best occurs. The goals identified in that program 
shall include the objective of enabling students to become self-motivated, competent, and 
lifelong learners. 
 
The petition shall include a description of the charter school's annual goals for all students and 
for each numerically significant subgroup of students identified pursuant to Education Code 
52052, including ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, 
students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students. These goals shall be aligned with 
the state priorities listed in Education Code 52060 that apply to the grade levels served. The 
petition also shall describe specific annual actions to achieve those goals. The petition may 
identify additional priorities established for the proposed school, goals aligned with those 
priorities, and specific annual actions to achieve those goals. 
 
(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
If the proposed charter school will serve high school students, the petition shall describe the 
manner in which the school will inform parents/guardians about the transferability of courses to 
other public high schools and the eligibility of courses to meet college entrance requirements. 
Courses offered by the charter school that are accredited by the Western Association of Schools 
and Colleges may be considered transferable, and courses approved by the University of 
California or the California State University as creditable under the "a-g" admissions criteria may 
be considered to meet college entrance requirements. 
 
2. The measurable student outcomes identified for use by the charter school. Student 
outcomes means the extent to which all students of the school demonstrate that they have 
attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes specified as goals in the school's educational 
program, including outcomes that address increases in student academic achievement both 
school wide and for each numerically significant subgroup of students served by the charter 
school. The student outcomes shall align with the state priorities identified in Education Code 
52060 that apply for the grade levels served by the charter school. 
 
3. The method by which student progress in meeting the identified student outcomes is to be 
measured. To the extent practicable, the method for measuring student outcomes for state 
priorities shall be consistent with the way information is reported on a school accountability 
report card. 
 
(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card) 
 
4. The governance structure of the charter school, including, but not limited to, the process 
to be followed by the school to ensure parent/guardian involvement. 



 

3 
 

 
5. The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the charter school. 
 
6. The procedures that the charter school will follow to ensure the health and safety of 
students and staff, including the following requirements: 
 
a. Each charter school employee shall furnish the school with a criminal record summary as 
described in Education Code 44237. 
 
b. The charter school shall develop a school safety plan which includes the topics listed in 
Education Code 32282(a)(2)(A)-(J). 
 
c. That the charter school's safety plan shall be reviewed and updated by March 1 each year. 
 
7. The means by which the charter school will achieve a balance of racial and ethnic 
students, special education students, and English learner students, including redesignated fluent 
English proficient students, which is reflective of the general population residing within the 
district's territorial jurisdiction. 
 
8. The charter school's student admission policy. The petition shall, in accordance with 
Education Code 47605(e), specify procedures for determining enrollment when the number of 
applicants exceeds the school's capacity, including requirements for the use of a public random 
drawing, admission preferences, and priority order of preferences as required by law and subject 
to Governing Board approval. 
 
9. The manner in which annual, independent financial audits shall be conducted, which shall 
employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in which audit exceptions and 
deficiencies shall be resolved to the Board's satisfaction. 
 
10. The procedures by which students can be suspended or expelled for disciplinary reasons 
or otherwise involuntarily removed for any reason, including an explanation of how the charter 
school will comply with federal and state constitutional procedural and substantive due process 
requirements as specified in Education Code 47605 and a statement that the suspension 
procedures will include requirements pertaining to the provision of homework assignments to 
suspended students as specified in Education Code 47606.2. 
 
Such procedures shall also include processes by which the charter school will notify the 
superintendent of a district, and by which the charter school may be notified by the 
superintendent of a district, when a student or former student of the charter school is expelled or 
subject to any of the circumstances specified in Education Code 47605(e)(3). 
 
11. The manner by which staff members of the charter school will be covered by the State 
Teachers' Retirement System, the Public Employees' Retirement System, or federal social 
security. 
 
12. The public school attendance alternatives for students residing within the district who 



 

4 
 

choose to not attend the charter school. 
 
13. A description of the rights of any district employee upon leaving district employment to 
work in the charter school and of any rights of return to the district after employment at the 
charter school. 
 
14. The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the Board to resolve disputes 
relating to charter provisions. 
 
15. A declaration as to whether or not the charter school will be deemed the exclusive public 
school employer of the school's employees for purposes of collective bargaining under 
Government Code 3540-3549.3. 
 
16. Consistent with 5 CCR 11962, the procedures to be used if the charter school closes, 
including, but not limited to: 
 
a. Designation of a responsible entity to conduct closure-related activities 
 
b. Notification to parents/guardians, the Board, the county office of education, the special 
education local plan area in which the charter school participates, the retirement systems in 
which the school's employees participate, and the California Department of Education, providing 
at least the following information: 
 
(1) The effective date of the closure 
 
(2) The name(s) and contact information of the person(s) to whom reasonable inquiries may 
be made regarding the closure 
 
(3) The students' districts of residence 
 
(4) The manner in which parents/guardians may obtain copies of student records, including 
specific information on completed courses and credits that meet graduation requirements 
 
c. Provision of a list of students at each grade level, the classes they have completed, and 
their districts of residence to the responsible entity designated in accordance with item #16a 
above 
 
d. Transfer and maintenance of all student records, all state assessment results, and any 
special education records to the custody of the responsible entity designated in accordance with 
item #16a above, except for records and/or assessment results that the charter may require to be 
transferred to a different entity 
 
e. Transfer and maintenance of personnel records in accordance with applicable law 
 
f. Completion of an independent final audit within six months after the closure of the 
charter school that includes an accounting of all financial assets and liabilities pursuant to 5 CCR 



 

5 
 

11962 and an assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received by or due to the 
school 
 
g. Disposal of any net assets remaining after all liabilities of the charter school have been 
paid or otherwise addressed pursuant to 5 CCR 11962 
 
h. Completion and filing of any annual reports required pursuant to Education Code 
47604.33 
 
i. Identification of funding for the activities identified in item #16a-h above 
 
Charter school petitioners shall provide information to the Board regarding the proposed 
operation and potential effects of the school, including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 
47605) 
 
1. The facilities to be used by the charter school, including where the school intends to 
locate 
 
(cf. 7160 - Charter School Facilities) 
 
2. The manner in which administrative services of the charter school are to be provided 
 
3. Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon the charter school and district 
 
4. Financial statements that include a proposed first-year operational budget, including start-
up costs and cash-flow and financial projections for the first three years of operation 
 
5. If the charter school is to be operated by or as a nonprofit public benefit corporation, the 
names and relevant qualifications of all persons whom the petitioner nominates to serve on the 
governing body of the charter school 
 
Location of Charter School 
 
Unless otherwise exempted by law, the charter petition shall identify a single charter school that 
will operate within the geographic boundaries of the district. A charter school may propose to 
operate at multiple sites within the district as long as each location is identified in the petition.  
(Education Code 47605, 47605.1) 
 
A charter school may establish a resource center, meeting space, or other satellite facility within 
the jurisdiction of the school district where the charter school is physically located if both of the 
following conditions are met:  (Education Code 47605.1) 
 
1. The facility is used exclusively for the educational support of students who are enrolled 
in nonclassroom-based independent study of the charter school. 
 
2. The charter school provides its primary educational services in, and a majority of the 



 

6 
 

students it serves are residents of, the county in which the school is authorized. 
 
 (6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
 
Proposition 39 Facilities Requests 
 
(A)  In processing requests for facilities submitted by charter schools pursuant to Proposition 
39, the district will adhere to Education Code 47614 (Proposition 39) and applicable regulations 
adopted thereunder, as such are amended from time to time. 
 
(B)  Each charter school must report actual ADA to the district every time that the charter 
school reports ADA for apportionment Proposition 39 apportionment purposes. The reports must 
include in-district and total ADA and in-district and total classroom-based ADA. The charter 
school must maintain records documenting the data contained in the reports. These records shall 
be available upon request by the district. 
 
V. Charter Revisions 
 
(A)  Material revisions to a charter may be made only with the approval of the Board. Material 
revision shall be governed by the standards and criteria that apply to new charter petitions as set 
forth in Education Code 47605 and shall include, but not be limited to, a reasonably 
comprehensive description of any new requirement of charter schools enacted into law or this 
Administrative Regulation after the charter was originally granted or last renewed. 
 
(B)  If, after receiving approval of its petition, a charter school proposes to establish 
operations at one or more additional sites within the district's boundaries, the charter school shall 
request a material revision to its charter and shall notify the Board of those proposed additional 
locations. The Board shall consider approval of the additional locations at an open meeting. 
 
VI. Charter Renewals 
 
(A)  A charter school seeking renewal of its charter shall submit a written request to the Board 
at least 120 days before the term of the charter is due to expire, but no earlier than September 1 
before the term of the charter is set to expire . Upon receipt of notice that a charter school wants 
to renew its charter and at least 90 days before the expiration date of the charter, the Board shall 
conduct a public hearing to receive input on whether or not to extend the charter. At least 30 
days before the expiration date, the Board shall either grant or deny the request for renewal. 
 
(B)  Charter renewals shall be governed by the standards and criteria that apply to new charter 
petitions as set forth in Education Code section 47605 and the district Administrative Regulation 
governing Charter Schools. Petition for renewal shall include, but not be limited to, a reasonably 
comprehensive description of any new requirement of charter schools enacted into law or 
District Administrative Regulation after the charter was originally granted or last renewed. 
 
(C)  Charter schools must submit written information to the district regarding the charter 
school's compliance with all of the required elements prescribed by Education Code 47605 and 



 

7 
 

47607. Renewal shall be subject to the school's ability to demonstrate that it meets at least one of 
the criteria specified in section 47607(b) and has made  reasonable progress toward the goals 
specified in its charter, including but not limited to: evidence of student achievement and other 
student outcomes; compliance with legal requirements; fiscal management; parent/guardian, 
student and staff satisfaction with the program; and the ability of the school's governance 
structure to provide access and accountability to the public. The Board shall consider pupil 
academic achievement as the most important factor to determining whether to grant a charter 
renewal.  The Board may require that the school amend its charter to address any new issues 
before granting renewal. 
 
VII. Charter School Monitoring 
 
(A)  As required by law, the district has oversight responsibilities over each charter school that 
has been approved for operation by the Board. 
 
(B)  A charter school shall promptly respond to all reasonable inquiries, including but not 
limited to, inquiries regarding its financial records, staff qualifications, student progress towards 
charter school goals and objectives, student progress on state mandated assessments, school 
safety and compliance with No Child Left Behind requirements, compliance with and 
implementation of federal and state laws regarding health and safety, and complaints (as set forth 
in section VII(G) below). In most cases, an initial response shall be made within five business 
days of the inquiry, and depending on the nature of the inquiry, a complete response shall be 
made within a reasonable period of time thereafter. 
 
(C)  Each charter school shall annually prepare and submit the following reports to the district 
and the Sacramento County Office of Education: 
 
(1)  On or before July 1, a preliminary budget. For a charter school in its first year of 
operation, the information submitted pursuant to subdivision (g) of Section 47605 satisfies this 
requirement. Preliminary budgets shall reflect appropriate financial reserves. Charter schools 
with a projected ADA of 300 or less shall maintain a monetary reserve in a restricted account 
equal to 5% of the charter school's total expenditures and other financing uses or $55,000, 
whichever is greater. 
 
(2)  On or before December 15, an interim financial report. The report shall reflect changes 
through October 31. With this report, the governing board of the charter school shall comply 
with Education Code 42131 and certify, in writing, whether the charter school is able to meet its 
financial obligations for the remainder of the fiscal year and, based on current forecasts, for the 
subsequent fiscal year. 
 
(3)  On or before March 15, a second interim financial report. This report shall reflect 
changes through January 31. With this report, the governing board of the charter school shall 
comply with Education Code 42131 and certify, in writing, whether the charter school is able to 
meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the fiscal year and, based on current forecasts, 
for the subsequent fiscal year. 
 



 

8 
 

(4)  On or before September 15, a final unaudited report for the preceding fiscal year. 
 
(5)  On or before December 15, an annual independent, financial audit report for the 
preceding fiscal year. 
 
(6)  In order to monitor the fiscal condition of each charter school, the district may at any 
time require that a charter school provide back-up data or information with regard to any of 
above reports. The district may also, on a case by case basis, require that a charter school make 
financial reports more frequently (such as further interim reports or monthly reports). 
 
(7)  By June 30 each year the district will prepare and mail to each charter school its annual 
certification form. Each charter school shall complete the district's annual certification by August 
1 each year or, if the certification is mailed after June 30, within thirty calendar days of the 
district's mailing of the annual certification form. Such annual certification form is attached as 
Appendix A. 
 
(D)  The principal or other officer of each charter school shall on at least an annual basis (and 
more often if requested by the district) provide to the district a declaration that, to the best of the 
officer's knowledge after due diligence and reasonable inquiry and under penalty of perjury, sets 
forth the number of employee criminal background  checks performed by the charter school 
during the prior year and states whether any employees with a criminal record were hired by the 
charter school during the year and if so, the circumstances. This declaration may be included 
with the charter school's annual certification to the district. If the district determines that any 
charter school may have hired an employee under circumstances that are contrary to applicable 
law or the interests of student safety, the district shall have the right to investigate and review the 
matter. (See Education Code 47605 (b)(5)(F), 44237, 47604.3 and 47604.32.) 
 
(E)  The principal or other officer of each charter school shall on at least an annual basis (and 
more often if requested by the district) provide to the district a report regarding all staff training 
carried out over the course of the year on sexual harassment prevention, the mandated reporter 
requirements of the Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act, antidiscrimination laws applicable 
to charter schools, and the uniform complaint procedure (UCP). Included with such report shall 
be a list of staff attending such training (such as a sign-in sheet). This report may be included 
with the charter school's annual certification to the district. Records of all such training, 
including sign-in sheets, shall be maintained by the charter school for a minimum of three years 
and shall be available for inspection by the district upon request. 
 
(F)  Upon the hiring of any teacher, each charter school shall provide a copy of that teacher's 
credentials documentation to the district. Each charter school shall also maintain on file a copy of 
the credentials of each of its teachers, including the Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that which a teacher in other public schools 
would be required to hold. These documents are subject to periodic inspection by the district and 
may be inspected without prior notice during any visit to the charter school by the district. (See 
Education Code 47605 (l), 47604.3, and 47604.32.) 
 
(G)  Each charter school must timely (as defined below) notify the district in writing, directed 



 

9 
 

to the attention of the Superintendent, of any complaints received from parents, students or staff 
under the uniform complaint procedure (UCP), any complaints filed with the Department of Fair 
Employment and Housing (DFEH), complaints filed with the Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission (EEOC), or other complaints received by the charter school or filed with the charter 
school or another public agency pursuant to state or federal law, including any legal action filed 
against the charter school, its officers, or employees in their official capacity at the charter 
school. Timely notification shall occur no later than thirty (30) calendar days following the 
charter school's receipt of such a complaint or service of legal process. Upon notification to the 
district of any such complaint, the charter school shall respond to all reasonable inquiries by the 
district (see Education Code 47604). 
 
(H)  Each charter school must timely notify the district of any changes in the leadership of the 
charter school and, if applicable, the nonprofit corporation that operates the charter school. 
Significant changes in leadership include the election or appointment of a new governing board 
member or members and the employment of a new principal or head of school or a new chief 
executive officer of the organization that operates the charter school. 
 
 Timely notification of such changes shall occur no later than 30 calendar days following 
such change. 
 
(I)  Each charter school must timely notify the district of any amendments to charter school 
policies and procedures (however described, including without limitation regulations, handbooks 
or guidelines) and, if applicable, bylaws or articles of incorporation for the nonprofit that 
operates the charter school. Timely notification of such amendments shall occur no later than 30 
calendar days following adoption or implementation of such amendment. 
 
(J)  All information and any notices to be provided by a charter school under this 
Administrative Regulation, including without limitation this section VII, shall be mailed to the 
attention of the district's Superintendent at the Serna Center, 5735 47th Avenue, Sacramento, CA 
95824. 
 
IX. Charter Revocations 
 
Approval or renewal of a charter petition does not constitute a contract between the district and 
the charter school, and the district retains at all times the power to revoke a charter petition in 
accordance with the terms of the Charter Schools Act (as amended from time to time). 
Notwithstanding any language to the contrary in a charter petition, the district is not obligated to 
follow the dispute resolution procedures of a charter prior to revoking that charter, and any 
language to the contrary in any charter petition is null and void and not binding on the district. 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 
 
Amendments to Charter Schools Act 
 



 

10 
 

In the event the Charter Schools Act or other applicable laws are amended or interpreted by 
appellate court decision binding on the district after the effective date of this Administrative 
Regulation so that this regulation is inconsistent with such applicable law, this regulation shall be 
deemed amended to accord with such amendment(s) or appellate decision(s). 
 
 
 
Regulation  SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
approved:  November 17, 2003  Sacramento, California 
revised:  September 12, 2008 
revised:  August 20, 2015 
revised:  May 4, 2023 



 

{SR774263} 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 18 pt,
Bold

Sacramento City USD 

Board Policy 
Charter School Authorization 
 
BP 0420.4  
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 
One or more persons may submit a petition to the Board for a charter school to be established 
within the district or for the conversion of an existing district school to a charter school.  
(Education Code 47605) 
 
Any petition for a charter school shall include all components, signatures, and statements 
required by law, as specified in the accompanying administrative regulation.  (Education Code 
47605, 47611.5.) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall consult with legal counsel, as appropriate, regarding 
compliance of the charter petition with legal requirements. 
 
At the request of the charter school OR upon mutual consent by the charter school and district 
staff, The Superintendent or designee may provide technical assistance to charter school 
petitioners prior to submission of a charter petition in order to ensure the petition’s compliance 
with legal requirements. As needed, the Superintendent or designee may also meet with the 
petitioners to establish workable plans for contracted services which the district may provide to 
the proposed charter school. 
 
The Board shall not require any district student to attend the charter school, nor shall it require 
any district employee to work at the charter school.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Timelines for Board Action 
 
Within 60 days of receiving a charter petition, the Board shall hold a public hearing on the 
charter provisions, at which time the Board shall consider the level of support for the petition by 
teachers employed by the district, other district employees, and parents/guardians.  A petition is 
deemed received on the day the petitioner submits a petition to the district office, along with a 
signed certification that the petitioner deems the petition to be complete.  (Education Code 
47605) 
 
The Board shall either grant or deny the petition at a public hearing held within 90 days of 
receiving the petition. This date may be extended by an additional 30 days with the consent of 
both the petitioner and the Board.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
 
At least 15 days before the public hearing at which the Board will grant or deny the charter, the 
district shall publish all staff recommendations regarding the petition, including any 



 

{SR774263} 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 18 pt,
Bold

recommended findings and, if applicable, certification from the County Superintendent of 
Schools regarding the potential fiscal impact of the charter school on the district.  During the 
public hearing, the petitioners shall have equal time and procedures to present evidence and 
testimony in response to the staff recommendations and findings.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain accurate records, in relation to each charter 
petition, of documents submitted, the Board's proceedings, and the findings upon which the 
Board's decision is made. 
 
Approval of Petition 
 
In determining whether to grant or deny a charter, the Board shall carefully review the proposed 
charter and any supplementary information, consider public and staff input, and determine 
whether the charter petition adequately addresses all the provisions required by law. The Board 
shall not deny a charter school petition unless specific written factual findings are made pursuant 
to law and administrative regulation.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Prior to authorizing any charter, the Board shall verify that the charter includes adequate 
processes and measures for monitoring and holding the school accountable for fulfilling the 
terms of its charter and complying with all applicable laws, including Education Code 
47604.1.Such processes and measures shall include, but are not limited to, fiscal accountability 
systems, multiple measures for evaluating the educational program, inspection and observations 
of any part of the charter school, and regular reports to the Board. 
 
(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight) 
 
The approval or denial of a charter petition shall not be controlled by collective bargaining 
agreements nor subject to review or regulation by the Public Employment Relations Board.  
(Education Code 47611.5) 
 
The Board may approve one or more memoranda of understanding to clarify the financial and 
operational agreements between the district and the charter school. Any such memorandum of 
understanding shall be annually reviewed by the Board and charter school governing body and 
amended as necessary. 
 
The Board may initially grant a charter for a specified term not to exceed five years.  (Education 
Code 47607) 
 
(cf. 0420.42 - Charter School Renewal) 
(cf. 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation) 
 
When a petition is approved by the Board, it shall be the responsibility of the petitioners to 
provide written notice of the Board's approval and a copy of the charter to the County 
Superintendent of Schools, the CDE, and the State Board of Education (SBE).  (Education Code 
47605) 
 



 

{SR774263} 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 18 pt,
Bold

Denial of Petition 
 
The Board shall deny any charter petition that proposes to: 
 
1. Operate a charter school as or by a for-profit corporation, a for-profit educational 
management organization, or a for-profit charter management organization (Education Code 
47604) 
 
2. Convert a private school to a charter school (Education Code 47602) 
 
3. Serve students in a grade level that is not served by the district, unless the petition 
proposes to serve students in all the grade levels served by the district (Education Code 47605) 
 
Regarding all other charter petitions, the Board shall deny a petition only if the Board makes 
written factual findings specific to the petition that one or more of the following conditions exist:  
(Education Code 47605; 5 CCR 11967.5.1) 
 
1. The charter school presents an unsound educational program for the students to be 
enrolled in the charter school. 
 
2. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set 
forth in the petition. 
 
3. The petition does not contain the number of signatures required. 
 
4. The petition does not contain a clear, unequivocal statement described in Education Code 
47605(e), including that the charter school will be nonsectarian and that the school shall not 
charge tuition or discriminate against any student based on the characteristics specified in 
Education Code 220. 
 
5. The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of the charter 
provisions in Education Code 47605(c). 
 
6. The petition does not contain a declaration as to whether or not the charter school shall be 
deemed the exclusive public employer of the school's employees for purposes of collective 
bargaining pursuant to Government Code 3540-3549.3. 
 
7. The charter school is demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire community 
in which the school is proposing to locate. Analysis of this finding shall include consideration of 
the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school. A written factual finding shall detail specific 
facts and circumstances regarding: 
 
a. The extent to which the proposed charter school would substantially undermine existing 
services, academic offerings, or programmatic offerings 
 
b. Whether the proposed charter school would duplicate a program currently offered within 



 

{SR774263} 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 18 pt,
Bold

the district, when the existing program has sufficient capacity for the students proposed to be 
served within reasonable proximity to where the charter school intends to locate 
 
8. The district is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school. 
The district meets this criterion if it has a negative interim certification pursuant to Education 
Code 42131, has a qualified interim certification and the County Superintendent certifies that 
approving the charter school would result in the district having a negative interim certification, 
or is under state receivership. Charter schools proposed in a school district satisfying one of these 
conditions shall be subject to a rebuttable presumption of denial. 
 
The Board shall not deny a petition based on the actual or potential costs of serving students with 
exceptional needs as defined by Education Code 56026, nor shall it deny a petition solely 
because the charter school might enroll students with disabilities who reside outside the special 
education local plan area in which the district participates.  (Education Code 47605.7, 47647) 
 
(cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education) 
 
Appeals 
 
If the Board denies a petition, the petitioner may choose to submit the petition to the County 
Board of Education and, if then denied by the County Board, to SBE.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
At the request of the petitioner, the Board shall prepare the documentary record, including a 
transcript of the public hearing at which the Board denied the charter, no later than 10 business 
days after the petitioner makes the request.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Within 30 days of receipt of an appeal submitted to SBE, the Board may submit a written 
opposition to SBE detailing, with specific citations to the documentary record, how the Board 
did not abuse its discretion in denying the petition.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
If either the County Board or SBE remands the petition to the Board because the petition on 
appeal contains new or different material terms, the Board shall reconsider the petition and grant 
or deny the petition within 30 days.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
200  Equal rights and opportunities in state educational institutions 
220  Nondiscrimination 
1240  Duties of County Superintendent 
17078.52-17078.66  Charter schools facility funding; state bond proceeds 
17280-17317  Field Act 
17365-17374  Field Act, fitness for occupancy 
32280-32289.5  Comprehensive safety plan 
33126  School Accountability Report Card 
41365  Charter school revolving loan fund 
42131  Interim certification 



 

{SR774263} 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 18 pt,
Bold

42238.51-42238.52  Funding for charter districts 
44237  Criminal record summary 
44830.1  Certificated employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 
45122.1  Classified employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 
46201  Instructional minutes 
47600-47663  Charter Schools Act of 1992 
47640-47647  Special education funding for charter schools 
47650-47655  Funding of charter schools 
49011  Student fees 
51744-51749.6  Independent study 
52052  Accountability:  numerically significant student subgroups 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
56026  Special education 
56145-56146  Special education services in charter schools 
CORPORATIONS CODE 
5110-6910  Nonprofit public benefit corporations 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
1090-1099  Prohibitions applicable to specified officers 
3540-3549.3  Educational Employment Relations Act 
6250-6276.50  California Public Records Act 
54950-54963  Ralph M. Brown Act 
81000-91014  Political Reform Act of 1974 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
11700-11705  Independent study 
11960-11969.11  Charter schools 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
7221-7221j  Charter schools 
COURT DECISIONS 
Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District, (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 986 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
101 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 92 (2018) 
89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006) 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997) 
78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995) 
 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Uncharted Waters:  Recommendations for Prioritizing Student Achievement and Effective 
Governance in California's Charter Schools, September 2018 
Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 1:  Managing the Petition Review Process, Governance Brief, 
November 2016 
Charter Schools and Board Member Responsibilities, Education Insights Legal Update Webcast, 
March 2016 
Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. February 2016 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Dear Colleague Letter:  Guidance Regarding the Oversight of Charter Schools Program and 



 

{SR774263} 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 18 pt,
Bold

Regulatory Requirements, including the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, August 2016 
Charter Schools Program:  Title V, Part B of the ESEA, Nonregulatory Guidance, January 2014 
Guidance on the Voluntary Use of Race to Achieve Diversity and Avoid Racial Isolation in 
Elementary and Secondary Schools, December 2011 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Charter Schools Association:  http://www.ccsa.org 
California Department of Education, Charter Schools:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/ch 
National Association of Charter School Authorizers:  http://qualitycharters.org 
U.S. Department of Education:  http://ed.gov 
 
 
 
Policy SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
adopted: November 17, 2003 Sacramento, California 
revised: March 1, 2007 
revised: May 4, 2023 



 

{SR774263} 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 18 pt,
Bold

Sacramento City USD 

Board Policy 
Charter School Authorization 
 
BP 0420.4  
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that charter schools may assist the district in offering diverse 
learning opportunities for students. In considering any petition to establish a charter school 
within the district, the Board shall give thoughtful consideration to the potential of the charter 
school to provide students with a high-quality education that enables them to achieve to their 
fullest potential. 
 
One or more persons may submit a petition to the Board for a charter school to be established 
within the district or for the conversion of an existing district school to a charter school.  
(Education Code 47605) 
 
Any petition for a charter school shall include all components, signatures, and statements 
required by law, as specified in the accompanying administrative regulation. The proposed 
charter shall be attached to the petition.  (Education Code 47605, 47611.5.) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall consult with legal counsel, as appropriate, regarding 
compliance of the charter petition with legal requirements. 
 
At the request of the charter school OR Upon mutual consent by the charter school and district 
staff, The Superintendent or designee may provide technical assistance to charter school 
petitioners prior to the formal submission of the a charter petition in order to ensure the petition’s 
compliance of the petition with legal requirements. As needed, the Superintendent or designee 
may also meet with the petitioners to to establish workable plans for contracted services which 
the district may provide to the proposed charter school. 
 
The Board shall not require any district student to attend the charter school nor shall it require 
any district employee to work at the charter school.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Timelines for Board Action 
 
Within 60 days of receiving a charter petition, the Board shall hold a public hearing on the 
charter provisions, at which time the Board shall consider the level of support for the petition by 
teachers employed by the district, other district employees, and parents/guardians.  A petition is 
deemed received on the day the petitioner submits a petition to the district office, along with a 
signed certification that the petitioner deems the petition to be complete.  (Education Code 
47605) 
 
The Board shall either grant or deny the petition at a public hearing held within 90 days of 
receiving the petition. This date may be extended by an additional 30 days with the consent of 



 

{SR774263} 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 18 pt,
Bold

both the petitioner and the Board.The Board shall either grant or deny the petition at a public 
hearing held within 90 days of receiving the petition, or within 120 days with the consent of both 
the petitioner and the Board.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
 
At least 15 days before the public hearing at which the Board will grant or deny the charter, the 
district shall publish all staff recommendations regarding the petition, including any 
recommended findings and, if applicable, certification from the County Superintendent of 
Schools regarding the potential fiscal impact of the charter school on the district.  During the 
public hearing, the petitioners shall have equal time and opportunity procedures to present 
evidence and testimony in response to the staff recommendations and findings.  (Education 
Code 47605) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain accurate records, in relation to each charter 
petition, of documents submitted, the Board's proceedings, and the findings upon which the 
Board's decision is made. 
 
Approval of Petition 
 
In determining whether to grant or deny a charter, the Board shall carefully review the proposed 
charter and any supplementary information, consider public and staff input, and determine 
whether the charter petition adequately addresses all the provisions required by law. The Board 
shall not deny a charter school petition unless specific written factual findings are made pursuant 
to law and administrative regulation.  A charter petition shall be granted only if the Board is 
satisfied that doing so is consistent with sound educational practice and the interests of the 
community in which the school is proposing to locate. In granting charters, the Board shall 
consider the academic needs of the students the charter school proposes to serve and shall give 
preference to petitions that demonstrate the capability to provide comprehensive learning 
experiences for students who are identified by the petitioner as academically low-achieving, 
based on standards established by California Department of Education (CDE).  (Education Code 
47605) 
 
Prior to authorizing any charter, the Board shall verify that the charter includes adequate 
processes and measures for monitoring and holding the school accountable for fulfilling the 
terms of its charter and complying with all applicable laws, including Education Code 
47604.1.Such processes and measures shall include, but are not limited to, fiscal accountability 
systems, multiple measures for evaluating the educational program, inspection and observations 
of any part of the charter school, and regular reports to the Board. 
 
(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight) 
 
The approval or denial of a charter petition shall not be controlled by collective bargaining 
agreements nor subject to review or regulation by the Public Employment Relations Board.  
(Education Code 47611.5) 
 



 

{SR774263} 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 18 pt,
Bold

The Board may approve one or more memoranda of understanding to clarify the financial and 
operational agreements between the district and the charter school. Any such memorandum of 
understanding shall be annually reviewed by the Board and charter school governing body and 
amended as necessary. 
 
The Board may initially grant a charter for a specified term not to exceed five years.  (Education 
Code 47607) 
 
(cf. 0420.42 - Charter School Renewal) 
(cf. 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation) 
 
When a petition is approved by the Board, it shall be the responsibility of the petitioners to 
provide written notice of the Board's approval and a copy of the charter to the County 
Superintendent of Schools, the CDE, and the State Board of Education (SBE).  (Education Code 
47605) 
 
Denial of Petition 
 
The Board shall summarily deny any charter petition that proposes to: 
 
1. Operate a charter school as or by a for-profit corporation, a for-profit educational 
management organization, or a for-profit charter management organization   (Education Code 
47604) 
 
2. Convert a private school to a charter school  (Education Code 47602) 
 
3. Serve students in a grade level that is not served by the district, unless the petition 
proposes to serve students in all the grade levels served by the district  (Education Code 47605) 
 
4. Offer nonclassroom-based instruction  (Education Code 47612.7) 
 
Regarding all other charter petitions, the Board shall deny a petition only if the Board makes 
written factual findings specific to the petition that one or more of the following conditions exist:  
(Education Code 47605; 5 CCR 11967.5.1) 
 
1. The charter school presents an unsound educational program that has a likelihood of 
physical, educational, or psychological harm to, or which is not likely to provide an educational 
benefit for,for the students to be enrolled in the charter school. 
 
2. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set 
forth in the petition. 
 
3. The petition does not contain the number of signatures required. 
 
4. The petition does not contain a clear, unequivocal statement described in Education Code 
47605(e), including that the charter school will be nonsectarian and that the school shall not 



 

{SR774263} 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 18 pt,
Bold

charge tuition or discriminate against any student based on the characteristics specified in 
Education Code 220. 
 
5. The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of the charter 
provisions in Education Code 47605(c). 
 
6. The petition does not contain a declaration as to whether or not the charter school shall be 
deemed the exclusive public employer of the school's employees for purposes of collective 
bargaining pursuant to Government Code 3540-3549.3. 
 
 
 
7. The charter school is demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire community 
in which the school is proposing to locate. Analysis of this finding shall include consideration of 
the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school. A written factual finding shall detail specific 
facts and circumstances regarding: 
 
a. The extent to which the proposed charter school would substantially undermine existing 
services, academic offerings, or programmatic offerings 
 
b. Whether the proposed charter school would duplicate a program currently offered within 
the district, when the existing program has sufficient capacity for the students proposed to be 
served within reasonable proximity to where the charter school intends to locate 
 
8. The district is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school. 
The district meets this criterion if it has a negative interim certification pursuant to Education 
Code 42131, or has a qualified interim certification and the County Superintendent certifies that 
approving the charter school would result in the district having a negative interim certification, 
or is under state receivership. Charter schools proposed in a school district satisfying one of these 
conditions shall be subject to a rebuttable presumption of denial. 
 
The Board shall not deny a petition based on the actual or potential costs of serving students with 
exceptional needs as defined by Education Code 56026disabilities, nor shall it deny a petition 
solely because the charter school might enroll students with disabilities who reside outside the 
special education local plan area in which the district participates.  (Education Code 47605.7, 
47647) 
 
(cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education) 
 
Appeals 
 
If the Board denies a petition, the petitioner may choose to submit the petition to the County 
Board of Education and, if then denied by the County Board, to SBE.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
At the request of the petitioner, the Board shall prepare the documentary record, including a 
transcript of the public hearing at which the Board denied the charter, no later than 10 business 



 

{SR774263} 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 18 pt,
Bold

days after the petitioner makes the request.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Within 30 days of receipt of an appeal submitted to SBE, the Board may submit a written 
opposition to SBE detailing, with specific citations to the documentary record, how the Board 
did not abuse its discretion in denying the petition.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
If either the County Board or SBE remands the petition to the Board because the petition on 
appeal contains new or different material terms, the Board shall reconsider the petition and grant 
shall or or deny the petition within 30 days.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
200  Equal rights and opportunities in state educational institutions 
220  Nondiscrimination 
1240  Duties of County Superintendent 
17078.52-17078.66  Charter schools facility funding; state bond proceeds 
17280-17317  Field Act 
17365-17374  Field Act, fitness for occupancy 
32280-32289.52  Comprehensive safety plan 
33126  School Accountability Report Card 
41365  Charter school revolving loan fund 
42131  Interim certification 
42238.51-42238.52  Funding for charter districts 
44237  Criminal record summary 
44830.1  Certificated employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 
45122.1  Classified employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 
46201  Instructional minutes 
47600-4766316.7  Charter Schools Act of 1992 
47640-47647  Special education funding for charter schools 
47650-476552  Funding of charter schools 
49011  Student fees 
517445-51749.6  Independent study 
52052  Accountability:  numerically significant student subgroups 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
56026  Special education 
56145-56146  Special education services in charter schools 
CORPORATIONS CODE 
5110-6910  Nonprofit public benefit corporations 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
1090-1099  Prohibitions applicable to specified officers 
3540-3549.3  Educational Employment Relations Act 
6250-6276.500  California Public Records Act 
54950-54963  Ralph M. Brown Act 
81000-91014  Political Reform Act of 1974 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
11700.1-11705  Independent study 



 

{SR774263} 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 18 pt,
Bold

11960-11969.118.5.5  Charter schools 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
7221-7221j23-7225  Charter schools 
COURT DECISIONS 
Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District, (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 986 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
Opinion No. 11-201101 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 92 (2018) 
89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006) 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997) 
78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995) 
 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Uncharted Waters:  Recommendations for Prioritizing Student Achievement and Effective 
Governance in California's Charter Schools, September 2018 
Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 1:  Managing the Petition Review Process, Governance Brief, 
November 2016 
Charter Schools and Board Member Responsibilities, Education Insights Legal Update Webcast, 
March 2016 
Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. February 2016 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Sample Copy of a Memorandum of Understanding 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Dear Colleague Letter:  Guidance Regarding the Oversight of Charter Schools Program and 
Regulatory Requirements, including the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, August 2016 
Charter Schools Program:  Title V, Part B of the ESEA, Nonregulatory Guidance, January 2014 
Guidance on the Voluntary Use of Race to Achieve Diversity and Avoid Racial Isolation in 
Elementary and Secondary Schools, December 2011 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Charter Schools Association:  http://www.ccsa.org 
California Department of Education, Charter Schools:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/chs 
National Association of Charter School Authorizers:  http://www.qualitycharters.org 
U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 
 
 
 
Policy SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
adopted: November 17, 2003 Sacramento, California 
revised: March 1, 2007 
revised: May 4, 2023 



 

{SR774270} 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Policy 0420.41: Charter School Oversight Status: ADOPTED 

Original Adopted Date: 10/01/2013 | Last Revised Date: 06/01/2022 | Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2022  

 
The Governing Board recognizes its ongoing responsibility to oversee that any charter school authorized by the 
Board is successfully fulfilling the terms of its charter and is providing a high-quality educational program for 
students enrolled in the charter school.  
   
The Superintendent or designee shall identify at least one staff member to serve as a contact person for each 
charter school authorized by the Board.  (Education Code 47604.32)  
 
The Superintendent or designee shall visit each charter school at least annually and may inspect or observe any 
part of a charter school at any time.  (Education Code 47604.32, 47607)  
  
The Superintendent or designated charter school shall periodically meet and communicate with a representative 
of the charter school.  
 
Waivers 
 
If the charter school wishes to request a general waiver of any state law or regulation applicable to it, it shall 
request that the district submit a general waiver request to the State Board of Education (SBE) on its 
behalf.  Upon approval of the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall submit such a waiver request to SBE on 
behalf of the charter school.  
 
Provision of District Services  
 
The charter school may purchase administrative or other services from the district or any other 
source.  (Education Code 47613)  
 
Whenever the district agrees to provide administrative or support services to a charter school, the district and the 
charter school shall develop a memorandum of understanding (MOU) which clarifies the financial and operational 
agreements between them.  
 
At the request of a charter school, the Superintendent or designee shall create and submit any reports required 
by the State Teachers' Retirement System or Public Employees' Retirement System on behalf of the charter 
school. The district may charge the charter school for the actual costs of the reporting services, but shall not 
require the charter school to purchase payroll processing services from the district as a condition for creating and 
submitting these reports.  (Education Code 47611.3)  
 
Material Revisions to Charter  
 
Material revisions to a charter may only be made with Board approval.  Material revisions shall be governed by 
the same standards and criteria that apply to petitions for the authorization of charter schools as set forth in 
Education Code 47605 and shall include, but not be limited to, a reasonably comprehensive description of any 
new requirement for charter schools enacted into law after the charter was originally granted or last 
renewed.  (Education Code 47607) 
 
If an approved charter school proposes to expand operations to one or more additional sites or grade levels, 



 

{SR774270} 

whether concurrently with or unrelated to a renewal, the charter school shall request a material revision to its 
charter and shall notify the Board of those additional locations or grade levels. The Board shall consider approval 
of the additional locations or grade levels at an open meeting.  (Education Code 47605, 47607)  
 

A proposed change in charter school operations shall be considered a material revision of the approved charter 
and require approval from the Board when the proposed change represents a substantial difference to the 
charter including: 

a) Expansion of educational services to include service of additional grade levels 
b) Expansion of facilities to additional sites 
c) Fundamental changes to instructional or pedagogical model 

 
Monitoring Charter School Performance 
 
Any charter school authorized by the Board shall be monitored by the Superintendent or designee to 
determine whether the charter school complies with all legal requirements applicable to charter 
schools, including all reports required of charter schools by law, as specified in Education Code 
47604.32. Any violations of law shall be reported to the Board.  
 
The Board shall monitor each charter school to determine whether it is achieving the measurable 
student outcomes set forth in the charter, both schoolwide and for each numerically significant 
student subgroup served by the school as defined in Education Code 52052. This determination shall 
be based on the measures specified in the approved charter and any applicable MOU, and on the 
charter school's annual review and assessment of its progress toward the goals and actions identified 
in its local control and accountability plan (LCAP), as reported in the California School Dashboard.  
 
The Board shall monitor the fiscal condition of the charter school based on any financial report or 
information obtained from the charter school, including, but not limited to, the charter school's 
preliminary budget, LCAP and annual update of the charter school's LCAP, first and second interim 
financial reports, and final unaudited report for the full prior year.  (Education Code 47604.32, 
47604.33, 47606.5)  
 
Additional Charter School Monitoring Provisions 

A.  A charter school shall promptly respond to all reasonable inquiries, including but not limited to, inquiries 
regarding its financial records, staff qualifications, student progress towards charter school goals and objectives, 
student progress on state mandated assessments, compliance with and implementation of federal and state laws 
regarding health and safety, and complaints. In most cases, an initial response shall be made within five business 
days of the inquiry, and depending on the nature of the inquiry, a complete response shall be made within a 
reasonable period of time thereafter. 

B.  Each charter school shall annually prepare and submit the following reports to the district and the 
Sacramento County Office of Education: 

 

(1)  On or before July 1, a preliminary budget. For a charter school in its first year of operation, the 
information submitted pursuant to subdivision (h) of Section 47605 satisfies this requirement.  

(2)  On or before December 15, an interim financial report. The report shall reflect changes through 
October 31.  



 

{SR774270} 

(3)  On or before March 15, a second interim financial report. This report shall reflect changes 
through January 31.  

(4)  On or before September 15, a final unaudited report for the preceding fiscal year. 

(5)  On or before December 15, an annual independent, financial audit report for the preceding fiscal 
year. 

(6)  In order to monitor the fiscal condition of each charter school, the district may at any time 
require that a charter school provide back-up data or information with regard to any of above reports. 
The district may also, on a case by case basis, require that a charter school make financial reports more 
frequently (such as further interim reports or monthly reports). 

(7)  By June 30 each year the district will prepare and mail to each charter school its annual 
certification form. Each charter school shall complete the district's annual certification by August 1 each 
year or, if the certification is mailed after June 30, within thirty calendar days of the district's mailing of 
the annual certification form. Such annual certification form is attached as Appendix A. 

C.  The principal or other officer of each charter school shall on at least an annual basis (and more often if 
requested by the district) provide to the district a declaration that, to the best of the officer's knowledge after 
due diligence and reasonable inquiry and under penalty of perjury, sets forth the number of employee criminal 
background  checks performed by the charter school during the prior year and states whether any employees 
with a criminal record were hired by the charter school during the year and if so, the circumstances. This 
declaration may be included with the charter school's annual certification to the district. If the district determines 
that any charter school may have hired an employee under circumstances that are contrary to applicable law or 
the interests of student safety, the district shall have the right to investigate and review the matter. (See 
Education Code 47605 (c)(5)(F), 44237, 47604.3 and 47604.32.) 

D. The principal or other officer of each charter school shall on at least an annual basis (and more often if 
requested by the district) provide to the district a report regarding all staff training carried out over the course of 
the year on sexual harassment prevention, the mandated reporter requirements of the Child Abuse and Neglect 
Reporting Act, antidiscrimination laws applicable to charter schools, and the uniform complaint procedure (UCP). 
Included with such report shall be a list of staff attending such training (such as a sign-in sheet). This report may 
be included with the charter school's annual certification to the district. Records of all such training, including 
sign-in sheets, shall be maintained by the charter school for a minimum of three years and shall be available for 
inspection by the district upon request. 

 

E. The principal or other officer of each charter school shall on at least an annual basis (and more often if 
requested by the district) provide to the district a report regarding teachers’ credentials documentation. Each 
charter school shall also maintain on file a copy of the credentials of each of its teachers, including the 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that which a teacher in 
other public schools would be required to hold. These documents are subject to periodic inspection by the district 
and may be inspected without prior notice during any visit to the charter school by the district. (See Education 
Code 47605 (l), 47604.3, and 47604.32.) 

F. Each charter school must timely (as defined below) notify the district in writing, directed to the attention 
of the Superintendent, of any complaints received from parents, students or staff under the uniform complaint 
procedure (UCP), any complaints filed with the Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH), complaints 
filed with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC), or other complaints received by the charter 
school or filed with the charter school or another public agency pursuant to state or federal law, including any 
legal action filed against the charter school, its officers, or employees in their official capacity at the charter 
school. Timely notification shall occur no later than thirty (30) calendar days following the charter school's receipt 



 

{SR774270} 

of such a complaint or service of legal process. Upon notification to the district of any such complaint, the charter 
school shall respond to all reasonable inquiries by the district (see Education Code 47604). 

G.  Each charter school must timely notify the district of any changes in the leadership of the charter school 
and, if applicable, the nonprofit corporation that operates the charter school. Significant changes in leadership 
include the election or appointment of a new governing board member or members and the employment of a 
new principal or head of school or a new chief executive officer of the organization that operates the charter 
school. 

 Timely notification of such changes shall occur no later than 30 calendar days following such change. 

H.  Each charter school must timely notify the district of any amendments to charter school policies and 
procedures (however described, including without limitation regulations, handbooks, or guidelines) and, if 
applicable, bylaws or articles of incorporation for the nonprofit that operates the charter school. Timely 
notification of such amendments shall occur no later than 30 calendar days following adoption or implementation 
of such amendment. 

 

All information and any notices to be provided by a charter school under this Board Policy shall be mailed to the 
attention of the district's Superintendent at the Serna Center, 5735 47th Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95824. 

Fees/Charges for Supervisorial Oversight 
 
The district may charge for district supervisorial oversight as follows:  (Education Code 47613; 5 CCR 11969.7)  

1. Actual costs up to one percent of the charter school's revenue if the district provides the charter school 
with facilities under Education Code 47614 and charges the charter school a pro-rata share of the 
facilities cost  
  

2. Actual costs up to three percent of the charter school's revenue if the district provides the charter school 
substantially rent-free facilities 
  

3. Actual costs if the district is assigned supervisorial oversight responsibility for the charter school by SBE 
when authorized on appeal  

Technical Assistance/Intervention  
 
Whenever a charter school is identified for technical assistance based on the performance of one or more 
numerically significant student subgroups on SBE-established criteria, the charter school shall receive technical 
assistance from the County Superintendent of Schools. Such technical assistance shall be focused on building the 
charter school's capacity to develop and implement actions and services responsive to student and community 
needs, including, but not limited to, any of the following:  (Education Code  47607.3)  

1. Assisting the charter school to identify its strengths and weaknesses in regard to the state priorities 
applicable to the charter school pursuant to Education Code 47605. This shall include working 
collaboratively with the charter school to review performance data on the state and local indicators 
included in the California School Dashboard and other relevant local data and to identify effective, 
evidence-based programs or practices that address any areas of weakness.  
  

2.  Working collaboratively with the charter school to secure assistance from an academic, programmatic, or 
fiscal expert or team of experts to identify and implement effective programs and practices that are 
designed to improve performance in any areas of weakness identified by the charter school. Another 
service provider, including, but not limited to, a school district, county office of education, or charter 



 

{SR774270} 

school, may be solicited to act as a partner to the charter school in need of technical assistance.  
  

3.  Obtaining from the charter school timely documentation demonstrating that it has completed the 
activities described in Items #1 and 2 or substantially similar activities, or has selected another service 
provider to work with the charter school to complete the activities described in Items #1 and 2 or 
substantially similar activities, and ongoing communication with the Board to assess the charter school's 
progress in improving student outcomes. 

In addition, if, in three out of four consecutive school years, a charter school fails to improve outcomes for three 
or more numerically significant student subgroups, or for all of the student subgroups if the school has fewer than 
three subgroups, in regard to one or more state or school priorities identified in the charter, the County 
Superintendent may request that the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI), with SBE approval, assign the 
California Collaborative for Educational Excellence to provide advice and assistance to the charter school pursuant 
to Education Code 52074.  (Education Code 47607.3; 52072)  
 
In accordance with law, the Board may deny a charter school's renewal petition or may revoke a charter based on 
the charter school's poor performance, especially with regard to inadequate academic achievement of all 
numerically significant subgroups of students served by the charter school.  
 
Complaints  
 
Each charter school shall establish and maintain policies and procedures in accordance with the uniform 
complaint procedures as specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 to enable any person alleging the school's noncompliance 
with Education Code 47606.5 or 47607.3 to file a complaint with the charter school.  (Education Code 52075)  
 
A complaint may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence or information leading to evidence to 
support an allegation of noncompliance.  A complainant who is not satisfied with the decision may appeal the 
decision to the SPI.  (Education Code 52075)  
 
If the charter school finds merit in the complaint or the SPI finds merit in an appeal, a remedy shall be provided to 
all affected students and parents/guardians.  (Education Code 52075)  
 
School Closure  
 
In the event that the Board revokes or denies renewal of a charter or the charter school ceases operation for any 
reason, the Superintendent or designee shall, when applicable in accordance with the charter and/or an MOU, 
provide assistance to facilitate the transfer of the charter school's former students and to finalize financial 
reporting and close-out of the charter school.  
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide notification to the California Department of Education, within 10 
calendar days of the Board's action, if renewal of a charter is denied, a charter is revoked, or a charter school will 
cease operation for any reason.  
 
Such notification shall include, but not be limited to, a description of the circumstances of the closure, the 
effective date of the closure, and the location of student and personnel records.  (Education Code 47604.32; 5 
CCR 11962.1)  
 

Policy Reference Disclaimer: 
These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the board to 
enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.  



 

{SR774270} 

State Description 
5 CCR 11700-11705 Independent study 

5 CCR 11960-11969.10 Charter schools 

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures 

Bus. Code 7583.45 Training for security officers 

CA Constitution Article 16, Section 8.5 Public finance; school accountability report card 

CA Constitution Article 9, Section 5 Common school system 

Corp. Code 5110-6910 Nonprofit public benefit corporations 

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on county 
board of education 

Ed. Code 17070.10-17079.30 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act 

Ed. Code 17280-17317 Field Act; approval of plans and supervision of construction 

Ed. Code 17365-17374 Field Act; fitness for occupancy; liability of board members 

Ed. Code 215 Suicide prevention policies 

Ed. Code 215.5 Student identification cards; inclusion of safety hotlines 

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination 

Ed. Code 221.61 Posting of Title IX information on web site 

Ed. Code 221.9 Sex equity in competitive athletics 

Ed. Code 222 Reasonable accommodations; lactating students 

Ed. Code 222.5 Pregnant and parenting students; notification of rights 

Ed. Code 231.5-231.6 Sexual harassment policy 

Ed. Code 234.4 Mandated policy on bullying prevention 

Ed. Code 234.6 Bullying and harassment prevention information 

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 

Ed. Code 32282 School safety plans 

Ed. Code 32283.5 Bullying; online training 

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act 

Ed. Code 35179.4-35179.6 Interscholastic athletic programs, safety; swimming pool safety 
that is not part of interscholastic athletic program 

Ed. Code 35183.1 Graduation ceremonies; tribal regalia or recognized object of 
religious/cultural significance 

Ed. Code 35292.6 Stocking of menstrual products 

Ed. Code 35330 Field trips and excursions; student fees 

Ed. Code 38001.5 Training for security officers 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC.%208.5.&article=XVI#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC.%205.&article=IX#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=CORP&division=2.&title=1.&part=2.&chapter=1.&article=&goUp=Y#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1006.&lawCode=EDC#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1006.&lawCode=EDC#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=12.5.&part=10.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.#


 

{SR774270} 

Ed. Code 38080-38086 School meals 

Ed. Code 39831.3 Transportation safety plan 

Ed. Code 39843 Disciplinary action against bus driver; report to Department of 
Motor Vehicles 

Ed. Code 41024 Report of expenditure of state facility funds 

Ed. Code 42100 Annual statement of receipts and expenditures 

Ed. Code 44030.5 Reporting change in employment status due to alleged 
misconduct 

Ed. Code 44237 Criminal record summary 

Ed. Code 44258.9 Monitoring of teacher assignments 

Ed. Code 44691 Information on detection of child abuse; annual training 

Ed. Code 44830.1 Certificated employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony 

Ed. Code 45122.1 Classified employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony 

Ed. Code 45125.1 Criminal records summary; employees of contracting entity 

Ed. Code 46015 Accommodations for pregnant and parenting students; parental 
leave 

Ed. Code 46390-46393 Emergency average daily attendance 

Ed. Code 47600-47616.7 Charter Schools Act of 1992 

Ed. Code 47634.2 Nonclassroom-based instruction 

Ed. Code 47640-47647 Special education funding for charter schools 

Ed. Code 47651 Apportionment of funds; charter schools 

Ed. Code 48000 Minimum age of admission for kindergarten; transitional 
kindergarten 

Ed. Code 48010-48011 Minimum age of admission (first grade) 

Ed. Code 48206.3-48208 Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction 

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students 

Ed. Code 48901.1 Suspension and expulsion; willful defiance 

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place and manner rules and 
regulations 

Ed. Code 48913.5 Suspended students; homework assignments 

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication 

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English 

Ed. Code 49005-49006.4 Seclusion and restraint 

Ed. Code 49011 Student fees 



 

{SR774270} 

Ed. Code 49014 Public School Fair Debt Collection Act 

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions, directory information 

Ed. Code 49062.5 Student records, name or gender change 

Ed. Code 49070 Challenging student records 

Ed. Code 49073.2 Privacy of student and parent/guardian personal information; 
minutes of board meeting 

Ed. Code 49076.7 Student records; data privacy; social security numbers 

Ed. Code 49110 Authority to issue work permits 

Ed. Code 49381 Human trafficking prevention 

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors 

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist 

Ed. Code 49428 Notification of mental health services 

Ed. Code 49430-49434 The Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001 

Ed. Code 49431.9 Prohibition of advertisement of non-nutritious foods 

Ed. Code 49475 Health and safety; concussions and head injuries 

Ed. Code 49501.5 Free breakfast and lunch to all students 

Ed. Code 49557.5 Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017 

Ed. Code 49564 Meals for needy students 

Ed. Code 49564.3 Provision of federal universal meal service 

Ed. Code 49700-49701 Education of children of military families 

Ed. Code 51224.7 Mathematics placement policy 

Ed. Code 51225.1-51225.2 Exemption from local graduation requirements; acceptance of 
coursework 

Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation requirements 

Ed. Code 51225.6 Instruction in cardiopulmonary resuscitation; districts that require 
health education for graduation 

Ed. Code 51225.7-51225.8 Completion and submission of the Free Application for Federal 
Student Aid and California Dream Act Application 

Ed. Code 51413 Diploma of graduation without passage of high school exit 
examination 

Ed. Code 51744-51749.6 Independent study 

Ed. Code 51925-51929 Mandatory mental health education 

Ed. Code 51930-51939 California Healthy Youth Act 

Ed. Code 52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups 



 

{SR774270} 

Ed. Code 52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan 

Ed. Code 52075 Uniform complaint procedures 

Ed. Code 56026 Special education 

Ed. Code 56040.3 Availability of assistive technology device 

Ed. Code 56145-56146 Special education services in charter schools 

Ed. Code 56365-56366.12 Nonpublic, nonsectarian schools 

Ed. Code 60600-60648.5 Assessment of academic achievement 

Ed. Code 64000 Categorical programs included in consolidated application 

Ed. Code 64001 School plan for student achievement; consolidated application 
programs 

Ed. Code 65000-65001 School site councils 

Ed. Code 69432.9-69432.92 Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average and high 
school graduation 

Gov. Code 1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers 

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3 Educational Employment Relations Act 

Gov. Code 3555-3559 Public employee communication, information and orientation 

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act 

Gov. Code 7920.000 - 7930.170 California Public Records Act 

Gov. Code 81000-91014 Political Reform Act of 1974 

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco Use Prevention Education grant program 

H&S Code 104559 Tobacco-free schools 

Lab. Code 1198.5 Personnel records related to performance and grievance 

Lab. Code 3074.2 College and career fairs; notice to apprenticeship programs 

Pen. Code 1192.7 Definition of serious felony 

Pen. Code 667.5 Definition of violent felony 

Veh. Code 28160 Child safety alert system 

Federal Description 
20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination 

based on sex 

20 USC 6311 State plan 

20 USC 7221-7221j Charter schools 

34 CFR 200.1-200.78 Accountability 

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 

Management Resources Description 



 

{SR774270} 

Attorney General Opinion 104 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 66 (2021) 

Attorney General Opinion 101 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 92 (2018) 

Attorney General Opinion 78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995) 

Attorney General Opinion 89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006) 

Attorney General Opinion 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997) 

CA Department of Education Publication California School Accounting Manual 

CA Office of Administrative Hearings 
Decisions 

Student v. Horizon Instructional Systems Charter School, (2012) 
OAH Case No. 2011060763 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management 
Advisory 20-01, July 23, 2020 

California Dept. of Pesticide Reg. Publication School District Integrated Pest Management Plan Template 

California Interscholastic Federation 
Publication 

Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999 

Court Decision Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District, 
(2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 986 

CSBA Publication Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. 2016 

CSBA Publication Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 2: Ensuring Effective Oversight, 
Governance Brief, October 2017 

CSBA Publication Uncharted Waters: Recommendations for Prioritizing Student 
Achievement and Effective Governance in California's Charter 
Schools, September 2018 

U.S.  DOE Guidance Charter Schools Program: Title V, Part B of the ESEA, 
Nonregulatory Guidance, January 2014 

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services 

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Website National Suicide Prevention Lifeline 

Website National Domestic Violence Hotline 

Website California State Teachers Retirement System 

Website California Public Employees Retirement System 

Website California Department of General Services, Office of 
Administrative Hearings 

Website California Commission on Teacher Credentialing 

Website California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training 

Website California Bureau of Security and Investigative Services 

Website California State Controller 

Website California Department of Pesticide Regulation 

https://legalservices.csba.org/#
https://www.usda.gov/#
https://suicidepreventionlifeline.org/#
https://www.thehotline.org/#
https://www.calstrs.com/#
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/#
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH#
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH#
https://www.ctc.ca.gov/#
https://post.ca.gov/#
https://www.bsis.ca.gov/#
http://www.sco.ca.gov/#
http://www.cdpr.ca.gov/#


 

{SR774270} 

Website California Student Aid Commission 

Website National Association of Charter School Authorizers 

Website California Charter Schools Association 

Website California Department of Education, Charter Schools 

Website California Interscholastic Federation 

Website California Office of the Attorney General 

Website CSBA 

Website U.S. Department of Education 

Cross References 

Code Description 
0420.4 Charter School Authorization 

0420.4 Charter School Authorization 

0420.42 Charter School Renewal 

0420.43 Charter School Revocation 

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan 

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan 

0500 Accountability 

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures 

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures 

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures 

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures 

1431 Waivers 

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests 

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests 

7160 Charter School Facilities 

7160 Charter School Facilities 

 

http://www.csac.ca.gov/#
http://www.qualitycharters.org/#
http://www.ccsa.org/#
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/ch/#
http://www.cifstate.org/#
http://oag.ca.gov/#
http://www.csba.org/#
http://www.ed.gov/#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Gkdo9plusDt6Vyplusttm90K5WHg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=reI1K7XIeObnehrNUMDz6w==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=DNWrslshOPplusslshAJVCuKn68Yslsh0Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=eGu5b5433isbW0vuGq8SFg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=eTTKhAGZDUZ5bldHQfXllg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=sTN7HQJDOPoMtU4jkkplusy6Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=qec3Iw1WslshtHfJqvplusOlraHQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=RYxiOFK5nN2LUZW4a1mtoA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Lt72smippwYQWgcj9Ykpluscw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=dplJmkH8UXCJgPsxmvfLNw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=7uOdhMplus7PbAqDslshYgslshdun2A==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=DYtN4QkUY0bsLh5O0ZfBwg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=4tVagLqFnUH7UplusEXB5g44g==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=1CCoun1Bnvfcc9MJVDsj8g==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=slshtcvg1S2WZEqM2ioA7nbAQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=mva6OqXRAdiOBfWtCzl1MQ==#


 

{SR774270} 

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual 
Sacramento City Unified School District 

Policy 0420.41: Charter School Oversight Status: ADOPTED 

Original Adopted Date: 10/01/2013 | Last Revised Date: 06/01/2022 | Last Reviewed Date: 06/01/2022  

 
The Governing Board recognizes its ongoing responsibility to oversee that any charter school authorized by the 
Board is successfully fulfilling the terms of its charter and is providing a high-quality educational program for 
students enrolled in the charter school.  
   
The Superintendent or designee shall identify at least one staff member to serve as a contact person for each 
charter school authorized by the Board.  (Education Code 47604.32)  
 
The Superintendent or designee shall visit each charter school at least annually and may inspect or observe any 
part of a charter school at any time.  (Education Code 47604.32, 47607)  
  
The Superintendent or designated charter school contact shall attend meetings of the charter school governing 
body whenever possible and shall periodically meet and communicate with a representative of the charter 
school.  
 
Waivers 
 
If the charter school wishes to request a general waiver of any state law or regulation applicable to it, it shall 
request that the district submit a general waiver request to the State Board of Education (SBE) on its 
behalf.  Upon approval of the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall submit such a waiver request to SBE on 
behalf of the charter school.  
 
Provision of District Services  
 
The charter school may purchase administrative or other services from the district or any other 
source.  (Education Code 47613)  
 
Whenever the district agrees to provide administrative or support services to a charter school, the district and the 
charter school shall develop a memorandum of understanding (MOU) which clarifies the financial and operational 
agreements between them.  
 
At the request of a charter school, the Superintendent or designee shall create and submit any reports required 
by the State Teachers' Retirement System or Public Employees' Retirement System on behalf of the charter 
school. The district may charge the charter school for the actual costs of the reporting services, but shall not 
require the charter school to purchase payroll processing services from the district as a condition for creating and 
submitting these reports.  (Education Code 47611.3)  
 
Material Revisions to Charter  
 
Material revisions to a charter may only be made with Board approval.  Material revisions shall be governed by 
the same standards and criteria that apply to petitions for the authorization of charter schools as set forth in 
Education Code 47605 and shall include, but not be limited to, a reasonably comprehensive description of any 
new requirement for charter schools enacted into law after the charter was originally granted or last 
renewed.  (Education Code 47607) 

Formatted: Heading 1, Left



 

{SR774270} 

 
If an approved charter school proposes to expand operations to one or more additional sites or grade levels, 
whether concurrently with or unrelated to a renewal, the charter school shall request a material revision to its 
charter and shall notify the Board of those additional locations or grade levels. The Board shall consider approval 
of the additional locations or grade levels at an open meeting.  (Education Code 47605, 47607)  
 
The Board shall have the authority to determine whether a proposed change in charter school operations 
constitutes a material revision of the approved charter.  

A proposed change in charter school operations shall be considered a material revision of the approved charter 
and require approval from the Board when the proposed change represents a substantial difference to the 
charter including: 

a) Expansion of educational services to include service of additional grade levels 
b) Expansion of facilities to additional sites 
c) Fundamental changes to instructional or pedagogical model 

 
Monitoring Charter School Performance 
 
Any charter school authorized by the Board shall be monitored by the Superintendent or designee to 
determine whether the charter school complies with all legal requirements applicable to charter 
schools, including all reports required of charter schools by law, as specified in Education Code 
47604.32. Any violations of law shall be reported to the Board.  
 
The Board shall monitor each charter school to determine whether it is achieving the measurable 
student outcomes set forth in the charter, both schoolwide and for each numerically significant 
student subgroup served by the school as defined in Education Code 52052. This determination shall 
be based on the measures specified in the approved charter and any applicable MOU, and on the 
charter school's annual review and assessment of its progress toward the goals and actions identified 
in its local control and accountability plan (LCAP), as reported in the California School Dashboard.  
 
The Board shall monitor the fiscal condition of the charter school based on any financial report or 
information obtained from the charter school, including, but not limited to, the charter school's 
preliminary budget, LCAP and annual update of the charter school's LCAP, first and second interim 
financial reports, and final unaudited report for the full prior year.  (Education Code 47604.32, 
47604.33, 47606.5)  
 
Additional Charter School Monitoring Provisions 

A.  A charter school shall promptly respond to all reasonable inquiries, including but not limited to, inquiries 
regarding its financial records, staff qualifications, student progress towards charter school goals and objectives, 
student progress on state mandated assessments, compliance with and implementation of federal and state laws 
regarding health and safety, and complaints. In most cases, an initial response shall be made within five business 
days of the inquiry, and depending on the nature of the inquiry, a complete response shall be made within a 
reasonable period of time thereafter. 

B.  Each charter school shall annually prepare and submit the following reports to the district and the 
Sacramento County Office of Education: 

 

(1)  On or before July 1, a preliminary budget. For a charter school in its first year of operation, the 
information submitted pursuant to subdivision (h) of Section 47605 satisfies this requirement. Preliminary 

Formatted: Font: Lato

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Indent at:  0.75"

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Lato

Formatted: Font: Lato



 

{SR774270} 

budgets shall reflect appropriate financial reserves. Charter schools with a projected ADA of 300 or less 
shall maintain a monetary reserve in a restricted account equal to 5% of the charter school's total 
expenditures and other financing uses or $55,000, whichever is greater. 

(2)  On or before December 15, an interim financial report. The report shall reflect changes through 
October 31. With this report, the governing board of the charter school shall comply with Education Code 
42131 and certify, in writing, whether the charter school is able to meet its financial obligations for the 
remainder of the fiscal year and, based on current forecasts, for the subsequent fiscal year. 

(3)  On or before March 15, a second interim financial report. This report shall reflect changes 
through January 31. With this report, the governing board of the charter school shall comply with 
Education Code 42131 and certify, in writing, whether the charter school is able to meet its financial 
obligations for the remainder of the fiscal year and, based on current forecasts, for the subsequent fiscal 
year. 

(4)  On or before September 15, a final unaudited report for the preceding fiscal year. 

(5)  On or before December 15, an annual independent, financial audit report for the preceding fiscal 
year. 

(6)  In order to monitor the fiscal condition of each charter school, the district may at any time 
require that a charter school provide back-up data or information with regard to any of above reports. 
The district may also, on a case by case basis, require that a charter school make financial reports more 
frequently (such as further interim reports or monthly reports). 

(7)  By June 30 each year the district will prepare and mail to each charter school its annual 
certification form. Each charter school shall complete the district's annual certification by August 1 each 
year or, if the certification is mailed after June 30, within thirty calendar days of the district's mailing of 
the annual certification form. Such annual certification form is attached as Appendix A. 

C.  The principal or other officer of each charter school shall on at least an annual basis (and more often if 
requested by the district) provide to the district a declaration that, to the best of the officer's knowledge after 
due diligence and reasonable inquiry and under penalty of perjury, sets forth the number of employee criminal 
background  checks performed by the charter school during the prior year and states whether any employees 
with a criminal record were hired by the charter school during the year and if so, the circumstances. This 
declaration may be included with the charter school's annual certification to the district. If the district determines 
that any charter school may have hired an employee under circumstances that are contrary to applicable law or 
the interests of student safety, the district shall have the right to investigate and review the matter. (See 
Education Code 47605 (cb)(5)(F), 44237, 47604.3 and 47604.32.) 

D. The principal or other officer of each charter school shall on at least an annual basis (and more often if 
requested by the district) provide to the district a report regarding all staff training carried out over the course of 
the year on sexual harassment prevention, the mandated reporter requirements of the Child Abuse and Neglect 
Reporting Act, antidiscrimination laws applicable to charter schools, and the uniform complaint procedure (UCP). 
Included with such report shall be a list of staff attending such training (such as a sign-in sheet). This report may 
be included with the charter school's annual certification to the district. Records of all such training, including 
sign-in sheets, shall be maintained by the charter school for a minimum of three years and shall be available for 
inspection by the district upon request. 

 

E. The principal or other officer of each charter school shall on at least an annual basis (and more often if 
requested by the district) provide to the district a report regarding Upon the hiring of any teacher, each charter 
school shall provide a copy of that  teacher's’ credentials documentation to the district. Each charter school shall 
also maintain on file a copy of the credentials of each of its teachers, including the Commission on Teacher 

Formatted: No underline



 

{SR774270} 

Credentialing certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that which a teacher in other public schools 
would be required to hold. These documents are subject to periodic inspection by the district and may be 
inspected without prior notice during any visit to the charter school by the district. (See Education Code 47605 (l), 
47604.3, and 47604.32.) 

F. Each charter school must timely (as defined below) notify the district in writing, directed to the attention 
of the Superintendent, of any complaints received from parents, students or staff under the uniform complaint 
procedure (UCP), any complaints filed with the Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH), complaints 
filed with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC), or other complaints received by the charter 
school or filed with the charter school or another public agency pursuant to state or federal law, including any 
legal action filed against the charter school, its officers, or employees in their official capacity at the charter 
school. Timely notification shall occur no later than thirty (30) calendar days following the charter school's receipt 
of such a complaint or service of legal process. Upon notification to the district of any such complaint, the charter 
school shall respond to all reasonable inquiries by the district (see Education Code 47604). 

G.  Each charter school must timely notify the district of any changes in the leadership of the charter school 
and, if applicable, the nonprofit corporation that operates the charter school. Significant changes in leadership 
include the election or appointment of a new governing board member or members and the employment of a 
new principal or head of school or a new chief executive officer of the organization that operates the charter 
school. 

 Timely notification of such changes shall occur no later than 30 calendar days following such change. 

H.  Each charter school must timely notify the district of any amendments to charter school policies and 
procedures (however described, including without limitation regulations, handbooks, or guidelines) and, if 
applicable, bylaws or articles of incorporation for the nonprofit that operates the charter school. Timely 
notification of such amendments shall occur no later than 30 calendar days following adoption or implementation 
of such amendment. 

 

All information and any notices to be provided by a charter school under this Administrative RegulationBoard 
Policy, including without limitation this section VII, shall be mailed to the attention of the district's 
Superintendent at the Serna Center, 5735 47th Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95824. 

Fees/Charges for Supervisorial Oversight 
 
The district may charge for district supervisorial oversight as follows:  (Education Code 47613; 5 CCR 11969.7)  

1. Actual costs up to one percent of the charter school's revenue if the district provides the charter school 
with facilities under Education Code 47614 and charges the charter school a pro-rata share of the 
facilities cost  
  

2. Actual costs up to three percent of the charter school's revenue if the district provides the charter school 
substantially rent-free facilities 
  

3. Actual costs if the district is assigned supervisorial oversight responsibility for the charter school by SBE 
when authorized on appeal  

Technical Assistance/Intervention  
 
Whenever a charter school is identified for technical assistance based on the performance of one or more 
numerically significant student subgroups on SBE-established criteria, the charter school shall receive technical 
assistance from the County Superintendent of Schools. Such technical assistance shall be focused on building the 

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Lato



 

{SR774270} 

charter school's capacity to develop and implement actions and services responsive to student and community 
needs, including, but not limited to, any of the following:  (Education Code  47607.3)  

1. Assisting the charter school to identify its strengths and weaknesses in regard to the state priorities 
applicable to the charter school pursuant to Education Code 47605. This shall include working 
collaboratively with the charter school to review performance data on the state and local indicators 
included in the California School Dashboard and other relevant local data and to identify effective, 
evidence-based programs or practices that address any areas of weakness.  
  

2.  Working collaboratively with the charter school to secure assistance from an academic, programmatic, or 
fiscal expert or team of experts to identify and implement effective programs and practices that are 
designed to improve performance in any areas of weakness identified by the charter school. Another 
service provider, including, but not limited to, a school district, county office of education, or charter 
school, may be solicited to act as a partner to the charter school in need of technical assistance.  
  

3.  Obtaining from the charter school timely documentation demonstrating that it has completed the 
activities described in Items #1 and 2 or substantially similar activities, or has selected another service 
provider to work with the charter school to complete the activities described in Items #1 and 2 or 
substantially similar activities, and ongoing communication with the Board to assess the charter school's 
progress in improving student outcomes. 

In addition, if, in three out of four consecutive school years, a charter school fails to improve outcomes for three 
or more numerically significant student subgroups, or for all of the student subgroups if the school has fewer than 
three subgroups, in regard to one or more state or school priorities identified in the charter, the County 
Superintendent may request that the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI), with SBE approval, assign the 
California Collaborative for Educational Excellence to provide advice and assistance to the charter school pursuant 
to Education Code 52074.  (Education Code 47607.3; 52072)  
 
In accordance with law, the Board may deny a charter school's renewal petition or may revoke a charter based on 
the charter school's poor performance, especially with regard to inadequate academic achievement of all 
numerically significant subgroups of students served by the charter school.  
 
Complaints  
 
Each charter school shall establish and maintain policies and procedures in accordance with the uniform 
complaint procedures as specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 to enable any person alleging the school's noncompliance 
with Education Code 47606.5 or 47607.3 to file a complaint with the charter school.  (Education Code 52075)  
 
A complaint may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence or information leading to evidence to 
support an allegation of noncompliance.  A complainant who is not satisfied with the decision may appeal the 
decision to the SPI.  (Education Code 52075)  
 
If the charter school finds merit in the complaint or the SPI finds merit in an appeal, a remedy shall be provided to 
all affected students and parents/guardians.  (Education Code 52075)  
 
School Closure  
 
In the event that the Board revokes or denies renewal of a charter or the charter school ceases operation for any 
reason, the Superintendent or designee shall, when applicable in accordance with the charter and/or an MOU, 
provide assistance to facilitate the transfer of the charter school's former students and to finalize financial 
reporting and close-out of the charter school.  
 



 

{SR774270} 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide notification to the California Department of Education, within 10 
calendar days of the Board's action, if renewal of a charter is denied, a charter is revoked, or a charter school will 
cease operation for any reason.  
 
Such notification shall include, but not be limited to, a description of the circumstances of the closure, the 
effective date of the closure, and the location of student and personnel records.  (Education Code 47604.32; 5 
CCR 11962.1)  
 

Policy Reference Disclaimer: 
These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the board to 
enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.  

State Description 
5 CCR 11700-11705 Independent study 

5 CCR 11960-11969.10 Charter schools 

5 CCR 4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures 

Bus. Code 7583.45 Training for security officers 

CA Constitution Article 16, Section 8.5 Public finance; school accountability report card 

CA Constitution Article 9, Section 5 Common school system 

Corp. Code 5110-6910 Nonprofit public benefit corporations 

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on county 
board of education 

Ed. Code 17070.10-17079.30 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act 

Ed. Code 17280-17317 Field Act; approval of plans and supervision of construction 

Ed. Code 17365-17374 Field Act; fitness for occupancy; liability of board members 

Ed. Code 215 Suicide prevention policies 

Ed. Code 215.5 Student identification cards; inclusion of safety hotlines 

Ed. Code 220 Prohibition of discrimination 

Ed. Code 221.61 Posting of Title IX information on web site 

Ed. Code 221.9 Sex equity in competitive athletics 

Ed. Code 222 Reasonable accommodations; lactating students 

Ed. Code 222.5 Pregnant and parenting students; notification of rights 

Ed. Code 231.5-231.6 Sexual harassment policy 

Ed. Code 234.4 Mandated policy on bullying prevention 

Ed. Code 234.6 Bullying and harassment prevention information 

Ed. Code 234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 

Ed. Code 32282 School safety plans 

Ed. Code 32283.5 Bullying; online training 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC.%208.5.&article=XVI#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&sectionNum=SEC.%205.&article=IX#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=CORP&division=2.&title=1.&part=2.&chapter=1.&article=&goUp=Y#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1006.&lawCode=EDC#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1006.&lawCode=EDC#
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=1.&chapter=12.5.&part=10.&lawCode=EDC&title=1.&article=1.#


 

{SR774270} 

Ed. Code 33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act 

Ed. Code 35179.4-35179.6 Interscholastic athletic programs, safety; swimming pool safety 
that is not part of interscholastic athletic program 

Ed. Code 35183.1 Graduation ceremonies; tribal regalia or recognized object of 
religious/cultural significance 

Ed. Code 35292.6 Stocking of menstrual products 

Ed. Code 35330 Field trips and excursions; student fees 

Ed. Code 38001.5 Training for security officers 

Ed. Code 38080-38086 School meals 

Ed. Code 39831.3 Transportation safety plan 

Ed. Code 39843 Disciplinary action against bus driver; report to Department of 
Motor Vehicles 

Ed. Code 41024 Report of expenditure of state facility funds 

Ed. Code 42100 Annual statement of receipts and expenditures 

Ed. Code 44030.5 Reporting change in employment status due to alleged 
misconduct 

Ed. Code 44237 Criminal record summary 

Ed. Code 44258.9 Monitoring of teacher assignments 

Ed. Code 44691 Information on detection of child abuse; annual training 

Ed. Code 44830.1 Certificated employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony 

Ed. Code 45122.1 Classified employees; conviction of a violent or serious felony 

Ed. Code 45125.1 Criminal records summary; employees of contracting entity 

Ed. Code 46015 Accommodations for pregnant and parenting students; parental 
leave 

Ed. Code 46390-46393 Emergency average daily attendance 

Ed. Code 47600-47616.7 Charter Schools Act of 1992 

Ed. Code 47634.2 Nonclassroom-based instruction 

Ed. Code 47640-47647 Special education funding for charter schools 

Ed. Code 47651 Apportionment of funds; charter schools 

Ed. Code 48000 Minimum age of admission for kindergarten; transitional 
kindergarten 

Ed. Code 48010-48011 Minimum age of admission (first grade) 

Ed. Code 48206.3-48208 Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction 

Ed. Code 48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students 

Ed. Code 48901.1 Suspension and expulsion; willful defiance 



 

{SR774270} 

Ed. Code 48907 Exercise of free expression; time, place and manner rules and 
regulations 

Ed. Code 48913.5 Suspended students; homework assignments 

Ed. Code 48950 Speech and other communication 

Ed. Code 48985 Notices to parents in language other than English 

Ed. Code 49005-49006.4 Seclusion and restraint 

Ed. Code 49011 Student fees 

Ed. Code 49014 Public School Fair Debt Collection Act 

Ed. Code 49061 Definitions, directory information 

Ed. Code 49062.5 Student records, name or gender change 

Ed. Code 49070 Challenging student records 

Ed. Code 49073.2 Privacy of student and parent/guardian personal information; 
minutes of board meeting 

Ed. Code 49076.7 Student records; data privacy; social security numbers 

Ed. Code 49110 Authority to issue work permits 

Ed. Code 49381 Human trafficking prevention 

Ed. Code 49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors 

Ed. Code 49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist 

Ed. Code 49428 Notification of mental health services 

Ed. Code 49430-49434 The Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001 

Ed. Code 49431.9 Prohibition of advertisement of non-nutritious foods 

Ed. Code 49475 Health and safety; concussions and head injuries 

Ed. Code 49501.5 Free breakfast and lunch to all students 

Ed. Code 49557.5 Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017 

Ed. Code 49564 Meals for needy students 

Ed. Code 49564.3 Provision of federal universal meal service 

Ed. Code 49700-49701 Education of children of military families 

Ed. Code 51224.7 Mathematics placement policy 

Ed. Code 51225.1-51225.2 Exemption from local graduation requirements; acceptance of 
coursework 

Ed. Code 51225.3 High school graduation requirements 

Ed. Code 51225.6 Instruction in cardiopulmonary resuscitation; districts that require 
health education for graduation 



 

{SR774270} 

Ed. Code 51225.7-51225.8 Completion and submission of the Free Application for Federal 
Student Aid and California Dream Act Application 

Ed. Code 51413 Diploma of graduation without passage of high school exit 
examination 

Ed. Code 51744-51749.6 Independent study 

Ed. Code 51925-51929 Mandatory mental health education 

Ed. Code 51930-51939 California Healthy Youth Act 

Ed. Code 52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups 

Ed. Code 52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan 

Ed. Code 52075 Uniform complaint procedures 

Ed. Code 56026 Special education 

Ed. Code 56040.3 Availability of assistive technology device 

Ed. Code 56145-56146 Special education services in charter schools 

Ed. Code 56365-56366.12 Nonpublic, nonsectarian schools 

Ed. Code 60600-60648.5 Assessment of academic achievement 

Ed. Code 64000 Categorical programs included in consolidated application 

Ed. Code 64001 School plan for student achievement; consolidated application 
programs 

Ed. Code 65000-65001 School site councils 

Ed. Code 69432.9-69432.92 Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average and high 
school graduation 

Gov. Code 1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers 

Gov. Code 3540-3549.3 Educational Employment Relations Act 

Gov. Code 3555-3559 Public employee communication, information and orientation 

Gov. Code 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act 

Gov. Code 7920.000 - 7930.170 California Public Records Act 

Gov. Code 81000-91014 Political Reform Act of 1974 

H&S Code 104420 Tobacco Use Prevention Education grant program 

H&S Code 104559 Tobacco-free schools 

Lab. Code 1198.5 Personnel records related to performance and grievance 

Lab. Code 3074.2 College and career fairs; notice to apprenticeship programs 

Pen. Code 1192.7 Definition of serious felony 

Pen. Code 667.5 Definition of violent felony 

Veh. Code 28160 Child safety alert system 



 

{SR774270} 

Federal Description 
20 USC 1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination 

based on sex 

20 USC 6311 State plan 

20 USC 7221-7221j Charter schools 

34 CFR 200.1-200.78 Accountability 

42 USC 11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 

Management Resources Description 
Attorney General Opinion 104 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 66 (2021) 

Attorney General Opinion 101 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 92 (2018) 

Attorney General Opinion 78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995) 

Attorney General Opinion 89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006) 

Attorney General Opinion 80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997) 

CA Department of Education Publication California School Accounting Manual 

CA Office of Administrative Hearings 
Decisions 

Student v. Horizon Instructional Systems Charter School, (2012) 
OAH Case No. 2011060763 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management 
Advisory 20-01, July 23, 2020 

California Dept. of Pesticide Reg. Publication School District Integrated Pest Management Plan Template 

California Interscholastic Federation 
Publication 

Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999 

Court Decision Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District, 
(2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 986 

CSBA Publication Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. 2016 

CSBA Publication Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 2: Ensuring Effective Oversight, 
Governance Brief, October 2017 

CSBA Publication Uncharted Waters: Recommendations for Prioritizing Student 
Achievement and Effective Governance in California's Charter 
Schools, September 2018 

U.S.  DOE Guidance Charter Schools Program: Title V, Part B of the ESEA, 
Nonregulatory Guidance, January 2014 

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services 

Website U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Website National Suicide Prevention Lifeline 

Website National Domestic Violence Hotline 

Website California State Teachers Retirement System 

Website California Public Employees Retirement System 

https://legalservices.csba.org/#
https://www.usda.gov/#
https://suicidepreventionlifeline.org/#
https://www.thehotline.org/#
https://www.calstrs.com/#
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/#


 

{SR774270} 

Website California Department of General Services, Office of 
Administrative Hearings 

Website California Commission on Teacher Credentialing 

Website California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training 

Website California Bureau of Security and Investigative Services 

Website California State Controller 

Website California Department of Pesticide Regulation 

Website California Student Aid Commission 

Website National Association of Charter School Authorizers 

Website California Charter Schools Association 

Website California Department of Education, Charter Schools 

Website California Interscholastic Federation 

Website California Office of the Attorney General 

Website CSBA 

Website U.S. Department of Education 

Cross References 

Code Description 
0420.4 Charter School Authorization 

0420.4 Charter School Authorization 

0420.42 Charter School Renewal 

0420.43 Charter School Revocation 

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan 

0460 Local Control And Accountability Plan 

0500 Accountability 

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures 

1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures 

1312.3-E(1) Uniform Complaint Procedures 

1312.3-E(2) Uniform Complaint Procedures 

1431 Waivers 

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests 

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests 

7160 Charter School Facilities 

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH#
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH#
https://www.ctc.ca.gov/#
https://post.ca.gov/#
https://www.bsis.ca.gov/#
http://www.sco.ca.gov/#
http://www.cdpr.ca.gov/#
http://www.csac.ca.gov/#
http://www.qualitycharters.org/#
http://www.ccsa.org/#
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/ch/#
http://www.cifstate.org/#
http://oag.ca.gov/#
http://www.csba.org/#
http://www.ed.gov/#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Gkdo9plusDt6Vyplusttm90K5WHg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=reI1K7XIeObnehrNUMDz6w==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=DNWrslshOPplusslshAJVCuKn68Yslsh0Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=eGu5b5433isbW0vuGq8SFg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=eTTKhAGZDUZ5bldHQfXllg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=sTN7HQJDOPoMtU4jkkplusy6Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=qec3Iw1WslshtHfJqvplusOlraHQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=RYxiOFK5nN2LUZW4a1mtoA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Lt72smippwYQWgcj9Ykpluscw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=dplJmkH8UXCJgPsxmvfLNw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=7uOdhMplus7PbAqDslshYgslshdun2A==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=DYtN4QkUY0bsLh5O0ZfBwg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=4tVagLqFnUH7UplusEXB5g44g==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=1CCoun1Bnvfcc9MJVDsj8g==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=slshtcvg1S2WZEqM2ioA7nbAQ==#


 

{SR774270} 

7160 Charter School Facilities 

 

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=mva6OqXRAdiOBfWtCzl1MQ==#


 

{SR774272} 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Policy 0420.42: Charter School Renewal Status: ADOPTED 

Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2012 | Last Revised Date: 12/01/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 05/04/2023  

 
Whenever a charter school submits a petition for renewal of its charter, the Board shall review the petition 
thoroughly and in a timely manner, consistent with the timelines set out in the Education Code. The Board shall 
consider renewal petitions only of charters originally authorized by the Board itself or by the State Board of 
Education (SBE) on appeal after initial denial by the Board. 
 
The Board shall deny the renewal petition of any charter school operated as or by a for-profit corporation, a for-
profit educational management organization, or a for-profit charter management organization.  (Education Code 
47604) 
 
When a charter school, concurrently with its renewal petition, proposes to expand operations to one or more 
additional sites or grade levels, the charter school shall request a material revision to its charter. The material 
revision may be made only with the approval of the Board and in accordance with the standards and criteria in 
Education Code 47605 for material revisions.  (Education Code 47607) 
 
The Board recommends that a charter school submit its petition for renewal to the Board sufficiently early before 
the expiration of the term of the charter to allow the Board's deliberations and decision on the renewal petition 
to be completed with minimal disruption to the charter school's educational program in the renewal year. 
 
The petition for renewal shall include a reasonably comprehensive description of how the charter school has met 
all new charter school requirements enacted into law after the charter was originally granted or last 
renewed.  (Education Code 47607; 5 CCR 11966.4) 
 
Criteria for Granting or Denying Renewal 
 
Renewals shall be governed by the same standards and criteria that apply to new charter petitions as set forth in 
Education Code 47605.  However, a charter renewal shall not be denied based on the fiscal impact of the charter 
school on the district or a finding that the charter school is demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the 
entire community in which the school is located, as described in Education Code 47605.  (Education Code 47607) 
 
The signature requirement for charter authorization petitions is not applicable to petitions for 
renewal.  (Education Code 47607; 5 CCR 11966.4) 
 
In determining whether to grant a charter renewal, the Board shall review both schoolwide performance and the 
performance of numerically significant student subgroups on the state and local indicators included in the 
California School Dashboard, giving greater weight to performance on measurements of academic performance. 
If the Dashboard indicators are not yet available for the most recently completed academic year before renewal, 
the Board shall consider verifiable data provided by the charter school related to the Dashboard indicators, such 
as data from the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress, or any successor system, for the 
most recent academic year. The Board shall only consider data from sources adopted by SBE.  (Education Code 
47607, 47607.2) 
 
Following the Board's review, a renewal of the charter petition may be granted in accordance with a three-tiered 
system based on school performance, as follows: 



 

{SR774272} 

 
 

1. Renewal of Five to Seven Years 
   

a. A charter school that is not eligible for technical assistance pursuant to Education Code 47607.3 
shall be granted renewal for a period of five to seven years when, for two consecutive years 
immediately preceding the renewal, or for two of the most recent years for which state data is 
available preceding the renewal if the two consecutive years immediately preceding the renewal 
decision include the 2019-20 or 2020-21 school year, the charter school achieved either of the 
following:  (Education Code 47607) 
   

1. Received the two highest performance levels schoolwide on all the state indicators 
included in the Dashboard for which the charter school receives performance levels, 
provided the charter school has schoolwide performance levels on at least two 
measurements of academic performance per year in each of the two years 
  

2. For all measurements of academic performance, received performance levels schoolwide 
that are the same or higher than the state average and, for a majority of numerically 
significant student subgroups performing statewide below the state average in each 
respective year, received performance levels that are higher than the state average, 
provided that the charter school has performance levels on at least two measurements of 
academic performance for at least two subgroups 
  

b. If the charter school satisfies the above criteria, it shall only be required to update the renewal 
petition to include a reasonably comprehensive description of any new requirement of charter 
schools enacted into law after the charter was originally granted or last renewed and, as 
necessary, to reflect the current program offered by the charter school.  (Education Code 47607) 
  

2. Renewal of Five Years 
   

a. A renewal shall be granted for five years if clear and convincing evidence, demonstrated by state 
indicators included in the Dashboard, and optionally supported by verified data, , shows either of 
the following:  (Education Code 47607.2) 
   

1. Measurable increases in academic achievement, as defined by at least one year's 
progress for each year in school 
  

2. Strong postsecondary outcomes, as defined by college enrollment, persistence, and 
completion rates equal to similar peers 

3.  For renewal purposes, data is considered verified if it is included on the list of verified 
data sources adopted by the California State Board of Education 
  

b. For any such charter school, the Board may deny the renewal petition only upon making written 
factual findings that the charter school failed to meet or make sufficient progress toward meeting 
standards that provide a benefit to students at the school, that the closure of the charter school 
is in the best interest of students, and that the Board's decision provided greater weight to 
performance on measurements of academic performance.  (Education Code 47607.2) 
  

3. Denial/Two-Year Renewal 
   

a. The Board shall generally not renew a charter if, for two consecutive years immediately preceding 
the renewal decision, or for two of the most recent years for which state data is available 
immediately preceding the renewal if the two consecutive years immediately preceding the 
renewal decision include the 2019-20 or 2020-21 school year, either of the following 



 

{SR774272} 

applies:  (Education Code 47607.2) 
   

1. The charter school has received the two lowest performance levels schoolwide on all the 
state indicators included in the Dashboard for which it receives performance levels, 
provided the charter school has schoolwide performance levels on at least two 
measurements of academic performance per year in each of the two years 
  

2. For all measurements of academic performance, the charter school has received 
performance levels schoolwide that are the same or lower than the state average and, for 
a majority of numerically significant student subgroups performing statewide below the 
state average in each respective year, received performance levels that are lower than 
the state average, provided that the charter school has performance levels on at least 
two measurements of academic performance for at least two subgroups 
  

b. However, the Board may grant a two-year renewal to any such charter school if the Board makes 
written factual findings, setting forth specific facts to support the findings, that:  (Education Code 
47607.2) 
   

1. The charter school is taking meaningful steps to address the underlying cause(s) of low 
performance, and those steps are reflected, or will be reflected, in a written plan adopted 
by the governing body of the charter school. 
  

2. There is clear and convincing evidence, demonstrated by verified data, showing 
achievement of the criteria specified in item #2a above.  For renewal purposes, data is 
considered verified if it is included on the list of verified data sources adopted by the 
California State Board of Education 

In addition to all the grounds stated above for denial of a charter renewal, the Board may deny renewal of a 
charter upon a finding that the school is demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set forth in 
the petition due to substantial fiscal or governance factors or a finding that the school is not serving all students 
who wish to attend. When denying a charter renewal for either of these reasons, the Board shall provide the 
charter school at least 30 days' notice of the alleged violation and a reasonable opportunity to cure the violation, 
including the submission of a proposed corrective action plan. The Board may deny the renewal for these reasons 
only upon a finding that either the corrective action proposed by the charter school has been unsuccessful or that 
the violations are sufficiently severe and pervasive as to render a corrective action plan unviable. Any finding that 
a school is not serving all students who wish to attend shall specifically identify the evidence supporting the 
finding.  (Education Code 47607) 
 
A charter school that qualifies for the state's Dashboard Alternative School Status shall not be subject to any of 
the above criteria. Instead, in determining whether to grant a charter renewal for such a charter school, the 
Board shall consider, in addition to the charter school's performance on the state and local indicators included in 
the Dashboard, the charter school's performance on alternative metrics applicable to the charter school based on 
the student population served. The Board shall meet with the charter school during the first year of the charter 
school's term to mutually agree to discuss alternative metrics to be considered and shall notify the charter school 
of the alternative metrics to be used within 30 days of this meeting. The Board may deny a charter renewal only 
upon making written findings, setting forth specific facts to support the findings, that the closure of the charter 
school is in the best interest of students.  (Education Code 47607) 
 
Timelines for Board Action 
 
Within 60 days of receiving the renewal petition, the Board shall hold a public hearing to review documentation 
submitted by the charter school, determine the level of support for the petition, and obtain public input. A 
petition is deemed received on the day the petitioner submits a petition to the district office, along with a signed 



 

{SR774272} 

certification that the petitioner deems the petition to be complete.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
The Board shall either grant or deny the charter renewal within 90 days of receiving the petition. The date may be 
extended by an additional 30 days if both the petitioner and the Board agree to the extension.  (Education Code 
47605) 
 
At least 15 days before the public hearing at which the Board will grant or deny the charter petition, the Board 
shall publish all staff recommendations and recommended findings regarding the petition.  During the public 
hearing, petitioners shall have equal time and opportunity to present evidence and testimony to respond to the 
staff recommendations and findings.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
If the Board fails to make a written factual finding when required for denial of the petition pursuant to the section 
"Criteria for Granting or Denying Renewal" above within the required time period, the absence of a written 
factual finding shall be deemed an approval of the renewal petition. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide notification to the California Department of Education, within 10 
calendar days of the Board's action, whenever a renewal of the charter is granted or denied.  (Education Code 
47604.32; 5 CCR 11962.1) 
 
If the Board denies a renewal petition, the charter school may submit its application for renewal to the County 
Board of Education within 30 days of the Board's written factual findings supporting the denial.  (Education Code 
47605, 47607.5) 
 
School Closure 
 
If a charter is not renewed and the charter school ceases operation, the school closure procedures specified in the 
charter in accordance with Education Code 47605 and 5 CCR 11962 shall be implemented.  (Education Code 
47604.32, 47605) 
   
 

Policy Reference Disclaimer: 
These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the board to 
enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.  

State Description 
5 CCR 11962-11962.1 Definitions 

5 CCR 11966.4 Submission of charter renewal petition 

5 CCR 11966.5 Charter petitions that have not been renewed; submission to 
county board of education 

Ed. Code 47600-47616.7 Charter Schools Act of 1992 

Ed. Code 52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups 

Ed. Code 56145-56146 Special education services in charter schools 

Ed. Code 60600-60648.5 Assessment of academic achievement 

Federal Description 
20 USC 7221-7221j Expanding opportunity through quality charter schools 

Management Resources Description 



 

{SR774272} 

CSBA Publication Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. June 2021  

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services 

Website California Charter Authorizing Professionals 

Website California Charter Schools Association 

Website California Department of Education, Charter Schools 

Website National Association of Charter School Authorizers 

Website U.S. Department of Education 

Website CSBA 

Cross References 

Code Description 
0420.4 Charter School Authorization 

0420.4 Charter School Authorization 

0420.41 Charter School Oversight 

0420.41-E(1) Charter School Oversight 

0420.43 Charter School Revocation 

0500 Accountability 

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests 

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests 

 

https://legalservices.csba.org/#
https://calauthorizers.org/#
http://www.ccsa.org/#
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/ch/#
http://www.qualitycharters.org/#
http://www.ed.gov/#
http://www.csba.org/#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Gkdo9plusDt6Vyplusttm90K5WHg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=reI1K7XIeObnehrNUMDz6w==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=GPlxSslshk7lktMSplusmOc1ZKXg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=2vV16Tb38sN0NKW30feebg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=eGu5b5433isbW0vuGq8SFg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=qec3Iw1WslshtHfJqvplusOlraHQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=4tVagLqFnUH7UplusEXB5g44g==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=1CCoun1Bnvfcc9MJVDsj8g==#


 

{SR774272} 

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual 
Sacramento City Unified School District 

Policy 0420.42: Charter School Renewal Status: ADOPTED 

Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2012 | Last Revised Date: 12/01/2021 | Last Reviewed Date: 
12/01/202105/04/2023 

 

 
The Governing Board believes that the ongoing operation of a charter school should be dependent on the 
school's effectiveness in achieving its mission and goals for student learning and other student outcomes. 
Whenever a charter school submits a petition for renewal of its charter, the Board shall review the petition 
thoroughly and in a timely manner, consistent with the timelines set out in the Education Code. The Board shall 
consider renewal petitions only of charters originally authorized by the Board itself or by the State Board of 
Education (SBE) on appeal after initial denial by the Board. 
 
The Board shall deny the renewal petition of any charter school operated as or by a for-profit corporation, a for-
profit educational management organization, or a for-profit charter management organization.  (Education Code 
47604) 
 
When a charter school, concurrently with its renewal petition, proposes to expand operations to one or more 
additional sites or grade levels, the charter school shall request a material revision to its charter. The material 
revision may be made only with the approval of the Board and in accordance with the standards and criteria in 
Education Code 47605 for material revisions.  (Education Code 47607) 
 
The Board recommends that a charter school submit its petition for renewal to the Board sufficiently early before 
the expiration of the term of the charter to allow the Board's deliberations and decision on the renewal petition 
to be completed with minimal disruption to the charter school's educational program in the renewal year. 
 
The petition for renewal shall include a reasonably comprehensive description of how the charter school has met 
all new charter school requirements enacted into law after the charter was originally granted or last 
renewed.  (Education Code 47607; 5 CCR 11966.4) 
 
Criteria for Granting or Denying Renewal 
 
Renewals shall be governed by the same standards and criteria that apply to new charter petitions as set forth in 
Education Code 47605.  However, a charter renewal shall not be denied based on the fiscal impact of the charter 
school on the district or a finding that the charter school is demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the 
entire community in which the school is located, as described in Education Code 47605.  (Education Code 47607) 
 
The signature requirement for charter authorization petitions is not applicable to petitions for 
renewal.  (Education Code 47607; 5 CCR 11966.4) 
 
In determining whether to grant a charter renewal, the Board shall review both schoolwide performance and the 
performance of numerically significant student subgroups on the state and local indicators included in the 
California School Dashboard, giving greater weight to performance on measurements of academic performance. 
If the Dashboard indicators are not yet available for the most recently completed academic year before renewal, 
the Board shall consider verifiable data provided by the charter school related to the Dashboard indicators, such 
as data from the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress, or any successor system, for the 
most recent academic year. The Board shall only consider data from sources adopted by SBE.  (Education Code 
47607, 47607.2) 
 



 

{SR774272} 

Following the Board's review, a renewal of the charter petition may be granted in accordance with a three-tiered 
system based on school performance, as follows: 
 
 

1. Renewal of Five to Seven Years 
   

a. A charter school that is not eligible for technical assistance pursuant to Education Code 47607.3 
shall be granted renewal for a period of five to seven years when, for two consecutive years 
immediately preceding the renewal, or for two of the most recent years for which state data is 
available preceding the renewal if the two consecutive years immediately preceding the renewal 
decision include the 2019-20 or 2020-21 school year, the charter school achieved either of the 
following:  (Education Code 47607) 
   

1. Received the two highest performance levels schoolwide on all the state indicators 
included in the Dashboard for which the charter school receives performance levels, 
provided the charter school has schoolwide performance levels on at least two 
measurements of academic performance per year in each of the two years 
  

2. For all measurements of academic performance, received performance levels schoolwide 
that are the same or higher than the state average and, for a majority of numerically 
significant student subgroups performing statewide below the state average in each 
respective year, received performance levels that are higher than the state average, 
provided that the charter school has performance levels on at least two measurements of 
academic performance for at least two subgroups 
  

b. If the charter school satisfies the above criteria, it shall only be required to update the renewal 
petition to include a reasonably comprehensive description of any new requirement of charter 
schools enacted into law after the charter was originally granted or last renewed and, as 
necessary, to reflect the current program offered by the charter school.  (Education Code 47607) 
  

2. Renewal of Five Years 
   

a. A renewal shall be granted for five years if clear and convincing evidence, demonstrated by state 
indicators included in the Dashboard, and optionally supported by verified data, by verified data, 
shows either of the following:  (Education Code 47607.2) 
   

1. Measurable increases in academic achievement, as defined by at least one year's 
progress for each year in school 
  

2. Strong postsecondary outcomes, as defined by college enrollment, persistence, and 
completion rates equal to similar peers 

2.3.  For renewal purposes, data is considered verified if it is included on the list of verified 
data sources adopted by the California State Board of Education 
  

b. For any such charter school, the Board may deny the renewal petition only upon making written 
factual findings that the charter school failed to meet or make sufficient progress toward meeting 
standards that provide a benefit to students at the school, that the closure of the charter school 
is in the best interest of students, and that the Board's decision provided greater weight to 
performance on measurements of academic performance.  (Education Code 47607.2) 
  

3. Denial/Two-Year Renewal 
   



 

{SR774272} 

a. The Board shall generally not renew a charter if, for two consecutive years immediately preceding 
the renewal decision, or for two of the most recent years for which state data is available 
immediately preceding the renewal if the two consecutive years immediately preceding the 
renewal decision include the 2019-20 or 2020-21 school year, either of the following 
applies:  (Education Code 47607.2) 
   

1. The charter school has received the two lowest performance levels schoolwide on all the 
state indicators included in the Dashboard for which it receives performance levels, 
provided the charter school has schoolwide performance levels on at least two 
measurements of academic performance per year in each of the two years 
  

2. For all measurements of academic performance, the charter school has received 
performance levels schoolwide that are the same or lower than the state average and, for 
a majority of numerically significant student subgroups performing statewide below the 
state average in each respective year, received performance levels that are lower than 
the state average, provided that the charter school has performance levels on at least 
two measurements of academic performance for at least two subgroups 
  

b. However, the Board may grant a two-year renewal to any such charter school if the Board makes 
written factual findings, setting forth specific facts to support the findings, that:  (Education Code 
47607.2) 
   

1. The charter school is taking meaningful steps to address the underlying cause(s) of low 
performance, and those steps are reflected, or will be reflected, in a written plan adopted 
by the governing body of the charter school. 
  

2. There is clear and convincing evidence, demonstrated by verified data, showing 
achievement of the criteria specified in item #2a above.  For renewal purposes, data is 
considered verified if it is included on the list of verified data sources adopted by the 
California State Board of Education 

In addition to all the grounds stated above for denial of a charter renewal, the Board may deny renewal of a 
charter upon a finding that the school is demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set forth in 
the petition due to substantial fiscal or governance factors or a finding that the school is not serving all students 
who wish to attend. When denying a charter renewal for either of these reasons, the Board shall provide the 
charter school at least 30 days' notice of the alleged violation and a reasonable opportunity to cure the violation, 
including the submission of a proposed corrective action plan. The Board may deny the renewal for these reasons 
only upon a finding that either the corrective action proposed by the charter school has been unsuccessful or that 
the violations are sufficiently severe and pervasive as to render a corrective action plan unviable. Any finding that 
a school is not serving all students who wish to attend shall specifically identify the evidence supporting the 
finding.  (Education Code 47607) 
 
A charter school that qualifies for the state's Dashboard Alternative School Status shall not be subject to any of 
the above criteria. Instead, in determining whether to grant a charter renewal for such a charter school, the 
Board shall consider, in addition to the charter school's performance on the state and local indicators included in 
the Dashboard, the charter school's performance on alternative metrics applicable to the charter school based on 
the student population served. The Board shall meet with the charter school during the first year of the charter 
school's term to mutually agree to discuss alternative metrics to be considered and shall notify the charter school 
of the alternative metrics to be used within 30 days of this meeting. The Board may deny a charter renewal only 
upon making written findings, setting forth specific facts to support the findings, that the closure of the charter 
school is in the best interest of students.  (Education Code 47607) 
 
Timelines for Board Action 



 

{SR774272} 

 
Within 60 days of receiving the renewal petition, the Board shall hold a public hearing to review documentation 
submitted by the charter school, determine the level of support for the petition, and obtain public input. A 
petition is deemed received on the day the petitioner submits a petition to the district office, along with a signed 
certification that the petitioner deems the petition to be complete.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
The Board shall either grant or deny the charter renewal within 90 days of receiving the petition. The date may be 
extended by an additional 30 days if both the petitioner and the Board agree to the extension.  (Education Code 
47605) 
 
At least 15 days before the public hearing at which the Board will grant or deny the charter petition, the Board 
shall publish all staff recommendations and recommended findings regarding the petition.  During the public 
hearing, petitioners shall have equal time and opportunity to present evidence and testimony to respond to the 
staff recommendations and findings.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
If the Board fails to make a written factual finding when required for denial of the petition pursuant to the section 
"Criteria for Granting or Denying Renewal" above within the required time period, the absence of a written 
factual finding shall be deemed an approval of the renewal petition. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide notification to the California Department of Education, within 10 
calendar days of the Board's action, whenever a renewal of the charter is granted or denied.  (Education Code 
47604.32; 5 CCR 11962.1) 
 
If the Board denies a renewal petition, the charter school may submit its application for renewal to the County 
Board of Education within 30 days of the Board's written factual findings supporting the denial.  (Education Code 
47605, 47607.5) 
 
School Closure 
 
If a charter is not renewed and the charter school ceases operation, the school closure procedures specified in the 
charter in accordance with Education Code 47605 and 5 CCR 11962 shall be implemented.  (Education Code 
47604.32, 47605) 
   
 

Policy Reference Disclaimer: 
These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the board to 
enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.  

State Description 
5 CCR 11962-11962.1 Definitions 

5 CCR 11966.4 Submission of charter renewal petition 

5 CCR 11966.5 Charter petitions that have not been renewed; submission to 
county board of education 

Ed. Code 47600-47616.7 Charter Schools Act of 1992 

Ed. Code 52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups 

Ed. Code 56145-56146 Special education services in charter schools 

Ed. Code 60600-60648.5 Assessment of academic achievement 



 

{SR774272} 

Federal Description 
20 USC 7221-7221j Expanding opportunity through quality charter schools 

Management Resources Description 
CSBA Publication Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. June 2021  

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services 

Website California Charter Authorizing Professionals 

Website California Charter Schools Association 

Website California Department of Education, Charter Schools 

Website National Association of Charter School Authorizers 

Website U.S. Department of Education 

Website CSBA 

Cross References 

Code Description 
0420.4 Charter School Authorization 

0420.4 Charter School Authorization 

0420.41 Charter School Oversight 

0420.41-E(1) Charter School Oversight 

0420.43 Charter School Revocation 

0500 Accountability 

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests 

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests 

 

https://legalservices.csba.org/#
https://calauthorizers.org/#
http://www.ccsa.org/#
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/ch/#
http://www.qualitycharters.org/#
http://www.ed.gov/#
http://www.csba.org/#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Gkdo9plusDt6Vyplusttm90K5WHg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=reI1K7XIeObnehrNUMDz6w==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=GPlxSslshk7lktMSplusmOc1ZKXg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=2vV16Tb38sN0NKW30feebg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=eGu5b5433isbW0vuGq8SFg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=qec3Iw1WslshtHfJqvplusOlraHQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=4tVagLqFnUH7UplusEXB5g44g==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=1CCoun1Bnvfcc9MJVDsj8g==#


 

{SR774275} 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Policy 0420.43: Charter School Revocation Status: ADOPTED 

Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2012 | Last Revised Date: 03/01/2020 | Last Reviewed Date: 12/01/2013  

 
The Governing Board expects any charter school it authorizes to provide a sound educational program that 
promotes student learning and to carry out its operations in a manner that complies with law and the terms of its 
charter.  The Board may revoke a charter in accordance with law.   
 
When the Board determines, in writing, that any violation under Education Code 47607 constitutes a severe and 
imminent threat to the health or safety of students, the Board may immediately revoke the school's charter. 
When such a determination is made, the Board shall approve and deliver to the charter school's governing body, 
the County Board of Education, and the California Department of Education (CDE) a Notice of Revocation by 
Determination of a Severe and Imminent Threat to Pupil Health or Safety.  (Education Code 47607; 5 CCR 
11968.5.3)  
 
In all other circumstances, the Board may revoke a charter after providing due process and using the procedures 
described below.  The Board may revoke a charter if it makes a written factual finding specific to that charter 
school and supported by substantial evidence that the charter school has done any of the following:  (Education 
Code 47607)   

1. Committed a material violation of any of the conditions, standards, or procedures set forth in the charter  
  

2. Failed to meet or pursue any of the student outcomes identified in the charter  
  

3. Failed to meet generally accepted accounting principles or engaged in fiscal mismanagement  
  

4. Violated any law  

The Board shall also consider revoking the charter of any charter school for which the California Collaborative for 
Educational Excellence (CCEE) has provided advice and assistance pursuant to Education Code 47607.3 if CCEE has 
issued either of the following findings:  (Education Code 47607.3)   

1. That the charter school has failed or is unable to implement the recommendations of the CCEE  
  

2. That the inadequate performance of the charter school, as based on the California School Dashboard, is 
so persistent or acute as to require revocation of the charter  

In determining whether to revoke a charter, the Board shall consider increases in student academic achievement 
for all numerically significant groups of students served by the charter school, as defined in Education Code 
52052.  (Education Code 47607, 47607.3)  
 
Revocation Procedures  
 
If the Board is considering a revocation of a charter school, it shall take action to approve and deliver a Notice of 
Violation to the charter school's governing body.  The Notice of Violation shall identify: (Education Code 47607; 5 
CCR 11965, 11968.5.2)   

1. The charter school's alleged violation(s).  
  



 

{SR774275} 

2. All evidence relied upon by the Board in determining that the charter school committed the alleged 
violation(s), including the date and duration of the alleged violation(s).  The Notice shall show that each 
alleged violation is both material and uncured and that it occurred within a reasonable period of time 
before the Notice of Violation is issued.  
  

3. The period of time that the Board has concluded is a reasonable period of time for the charter school to 
remedy or refute the identified violation(s).  In identifying this time period, the Board shall consider the 
amount of time reasonably necessary to remedy each identified violation, which may include the charter 
school's estimation as to the anticipated remediation time.  

At least 72 hours prior to any meeting at which the Board will consider issuing a Notice of Violation, the Board 
shall provide the charter school with notice and all relevant documents related to the proposed action.  (5 CCR 
11968.5.2)   
 
By the end of the remedy period identified in the Notice of Violation, the charter school's governing body may 
submit to the Board a detailed written response and supporting evidence addressing each identified violation, 
including, as applicable, a refutation, remedial action taken, or proposed remedial action.  (5 CCR 11968.5.2)  
 
At the conclusion of the remedy period specified in the Notice of Violation, the Board shall evaluate any response 
and supporting evidence provided by the charter school's governing body and shall take one of the following 
actions:  (5 CCR 11968.5.2)   

1. Discontinue revocation of the charter and provide timely written notice of such action to the charter 
school's governing body  
 
 

2. Continue revocation of the charter, by issuing a Notice of Intent to Revoke to the charter school's 
governing body within 60 calendar days of the conclusion of the remedy period, if there is substantial 
evidence that the charter school has failed to remedy a violation identified in the Notice of Violation or to 
refute a violation to the Board's satisfaction. All evidence relied upon by the Board for the decision shall 
be included in the Notice of Intent to Revoke.  

If the Board issues a Notice of Intent to Revoke, it shall hold a public hearing concerning the revocation on the 
date specified in the notice, which shall be no later than 30 days after providing the notice.  Within 30 calendar 
days after the public hearing, or within 60 calendar days if extended by written mutual agreement of the Board 
and the charter school, the Board shall issue a final decision on the revocation of the charter.  (Education Code 
47607; 5 CCR 11968.5.2)  
 
If the Board fails to meet the timelines specified above for issuing a Notice of Intent to Revoke or a final decision, 
the revocation process shall be deemed terminated.  (5 CCR 11968.5.2)  
 
Within 10 calendar days of the Board's final decision, the Superintendent or designee shall provide a copy of the 
final decision to CDE and the County Board.  (Education Code 47604.32; 5 CCR 11968.5.2)  
Notwithstanding any language to the contrary in a charter petition, the district is not obligated to follow the 
dispute resolution procedures of a charter prior to revoking that charter, and any language to the contrary in any 
charter petition is null and void and not binding on the district. 
 
Appeals 
 
If the Board revokes a charter, the charter school may, within 30 days of the Board's final decision, appeal the 
revocation to the County Board.  The County Board's decision may subsequently be appealed to the State Board 
of Education by either the charter school or the district.  However, a revocation based upon the findings of CCEE 



 

{SR774275} 

pursuant to Education Code 47607.3 may not be appealed.  (Education Code 47607, 47607.3; 5 CCR 11968.5.3-
11968.5.5)  
 
School Closure  
 
If a charter school ceases operation due to revocation, the Board and/or the charter school shall implement the 
school closure procedures specified in the charter in accordance with Education Code 47605 and 5 CCR 
11962.  (Education Code 47603.32)   
 

Policy Reference Disclaimer: 
These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the board to 
enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.  

State Description 
5 CCR 11960-11969.10 Charter schools 

5 CCR 11968.5.1-11968.5.5 Charter revocations 

Ed. Code 47600-47616.7 Charter Schools Act of 1992 

Ed. Code 47607 Charter renewals and revocations 

Ed. Code 52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups 

Management Resources Description 
Court Decision Today's Fresh Start, Inc. v. Los Angeles County Office of Education, 

(2013) 57 Cal.4th 197 

CSBA Publication Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. June 2021  

CSBA Publication The Role of the Charter School Authorizer, Online Course 

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services 

Website National Association of Charter School Authorizers 

Website California Charter Schools Association 

Website California Department of Education, Charter Schools 

Website CSBA 

Website U.S. Department of Education 

Cross References 

Code Description 
0420.4 Charter School Authorization 

0420.4 Charter School Authorization 

0420.41 Charter School Oversight 

0420.41-E(1) Charter School Oversight 

0420.42 Charter School Renewal 

0500 Accountability 

https://legalservices.csba.org/#
http://www.qualitycharters.org/#
http://www.ccsa.org/#
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/ch/#
http://www.csba.org/#
http://www.ed.gov/#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Gkdo9plusDt6Vyplusttm90K5WHg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=reI1K7XIeObnehrNUMDz6w==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=GPlxSslshk7lktMSplusmOc1ZKXg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=2vV16Tb38sN0NKW30feebg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=DNWrslshOPplusslshAJVCuKn68Yslsh0Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=qec3Iw1WslshtHfJqvplusOlraHQ==#


 

{SR774275} 

9320 Meetings And Notices 

 

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=6Fu4yQLBRZxTqW3v8pbl0A==#


 

{SR774275} 

CSBA Sample District Policy Manual 
Sacramento City Unified School District 

Policy 0420.43: Charter School Revocation Status: ADOPTED 

Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2012 | Last Revised Date: 03/01/2020 | Last Reviewed Date: 12/01/2013  

 
The Governing Board expects any charter school it authorizes to provide a sound educational program that 
promotes student learning and to carry out its operations in a manner that complies with law and the terms of its 
charter.  The Board may revoke a charter in accordance with law.   
 
When the Board determines, in writing, that any violation under Education Code 47607 constitutes a severe and 
imminent threat to the health or safety of students, the Board may immediately revoke the school's charter. 
When such a determination is made, the Board shall approve and deliver to the charter school's governing body, 
the County Board of Education, and the California Department of Education (CDE) a Notice of Revocation by 
Determination of a Severe and Imminent Threat to Pupil Health or Safety.  (Education Code 47607; 5 CCR 
11968.5.3)  
 
In all other circumstances, the Board may revoke a charter after providing due process and using the procedures 
described below.  The Board may revoke a charter if it makes a written factual finding specific to that charter 
school and supported by substantial evidence that the charter school has done any of the following:  (Education 
Code 47607)   

1. Committed a material violation of any of the conditions, standards, or procedures set forth in the charter  
  

2. Failed to meet or pursue any of the student outcomes identified in the charter  
  

3. Failed to meet generally accepted accounting principles or engaged in fiscal mismanagement  
  

4. Violated any law  

The Board shall also consider revoking the charter of any charter school for which the California Collaborative for 
Educational Excellence (CCEE) has provided advice and assistance pursuant to Education Code 47607.3 if CCEE has 
issued either of the following findings:  (Education Code 47607.3)   

1. That the charter school has failed or is unable to implement the recommendations of the CCEE  
  

2. That the inadequate performance of the charter school, as based on the California School Dashboard, is 
so persistent or acute as to require revocation of the charter  

In determining whether to revoke a charter, the Board shall consider increases in student academic achievement 
for all numerically significant groups of students served by the charter school, as defined in Education Code 
52052.  (Education Code 47607, 47607.3)  
 
Revocation Procedures  
 
If the Board is considering a revocation of a charter school, it shall take action to approve and deliver a Notice of 
Violation to the charter school's governing body.  The Notice of Violation shall identify: (Education Code 47607; 5 
CCR 11965, 11968.5.2)   

1. The charter school's alleged violation(s).  
  



 

{SR774275} 

2. All evidence relied upon by the Board in determining that the charter school committed the alleged 
violation(s), including the date and duration of the alleged violation(s).  The Notice shall show that each 
alleged violation is both material and uncured and that it occurred within a reasonable period of time 
before the Notice of Violation is issued.  
  

3. The period of time that the Board has concluded is a reasonable period of time for the charter school to 
remedy or refute the identified violation(s).  In identifying this time period, the Board shall consider the 
amount of time reasonably necessary to remedy each identified violation, which may include the charter 
school's estimation as to the anticipated remediation time.  

At least 72 hours prior to any  meetingany meeting at which the Board will consider issuing a Notice of Violation, 
the Board shall provide the charter school with notice and all relevant documents related to the proposed 
action.  (5 CCR 11968.5.2)   
 
By the end of the remedy period identified in the Notice of Violation, the charter school's governing body may 
submit to the Board a detailed written response and supporting evidence addressing each identified violation, 
including, as applicable, a refutation, remedial action taken, or proposed remedial action.  (5 CCR 11968.5.2)  
 
At the conclusion of the remedy period specified in the Notice of Violation, the Board shall evaluate any response 
and supporting evidence provided by the charter school's governing body and shall take one of the following 
actions:  (5 CCR 11968.5.2)   

1. Discontinue revocation of the charter and provide timely written notice of such action to the charter 
school's governing body  
 
 

2. Continue revocation of the charter, by issuing a Notice of Intent to Revoke to the charter school's 
governing body within 60 calendar days of the conclusion of the remedy period, if there is substantial 
evidence that the charter school has failed to remedy a violation identified in the Notice of Violation or to 
refute a violation to the Board's satisfaction. All evidence relied upon by the Board for the decision shall 
be included in the Notice of Intent to Revoke.  

If the Board issues a Notice of Intent to Revoke, it shall hold a public hearing concerning the revocation on the 
date specified in the notice, which shall be no later than 30 days after providing the notice.  Within 30 calendar 
days after the public hearing, or within 60 calendar days if extended by written mutual agreement of the Board 
and the charter school, the Board shall issue a final decision on the revocation of the charter.  (Education Code 
47607; 5 CCR 11968.5.2)  
 
If the Board fails to meet the timelines specified above for issuing a Notice of Intent to Revoke or a final decision, 
the revocation process shall be deemed terminated.  (5 CCR 11968.5.2)  
 
Within 10 calendar days of the Board's final decision, the Superintendent or designee shall provide a copy of the 
final decision to CDE and the County Board.  (Education Code 47604.32; 5 CCR 11968.5.2)  
Notwithstanding any language to the contrary in a charter petition, the district is not obligated to follow the 
dispute resolution procedures of a charter prior to revoking that charter, and any language to the contrary in any 
charter petition is null and void and not binding on the district. 
 
Appeals 
 
If the Board revokes a charter, the charter school may, within 30 days of the Board's final decision, appeal the 
revocation to the County Board.  The County Board's decision may subsequently be appealed to the State Board 
of Education by either the charter school or the district.  However, a revocation based upon the findings of CCEE 



 

{SR774275} 

pursuant to Education Code 47607.3 may not be appealed.  (Education Code 47607, 47607.3; 5 CCR 11968.5.3-
11968.5.5)  
 
School Closure  
 
If a charter school ceases operation due to revocation, the Board and/or the charter school shall implement the 
school closure procedures specified in the charter in accordance with Education Code 47605 and 5 CCR 
11962.  (Education Code 47603.32)   
 

Policy Reference Disclaimer: 
These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the board to 
enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy.  

State Description 
5 CCR 11960-11969.10 Charter schools 

5 CCR 11968.5.1-11968.5.5 Charter revocations 

Ed. Code 47600-47616.7 Charter Schools Act of 1992 

Ed. Code 47607 Charter renewals and revocations 

Ed. Code 52052 Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups 

Management Resources Description 
Court Decision Today's Fresh Start, Inc. v. Los Angeles County Office of Education, 

(2013) 57 Cal.4th 197 

CSBA Publication Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. June 2021  

CSBA Publication The Role of the Charter School Authorizer, Online Course 

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services 

Website National Association of Charter School Authorizers 

Website California Charter Schools Association 

Website California Department of Education, Charter Schools 

Website CSBA 

Website U.S. Department of Education 

Cross References 

Code Description 
0420.4 Charter School Authorization 

0420.4 Charter School Authorization 

0420.41 Charter School Oversight 

0420.41-E(1) Charter School Oversight 

0420.42 Charter School Renewal 

0500 Accountability 

https://legalservices.csba.org/#
http://www.qualitycharters.org/#
http://www.ccsa.org/#
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/ch/#
http://www.csba.org/#
http://www.ed.gov/#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Gkdo9plusDt6Vyplusttm90K5WHg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=reI1K7XIeObnehrNUMDz6w==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=GPlxSslshk7lktMSplusmOc1ZKXg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=2vV16Tb38sN0NKW30feebg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=DNWrslshOPplusslshAJVCuKn68Yslsh0Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=qec3Iw1WslshtHfJqvplusOlraHQ==#


 

{SR774275} 

9320 Meetings And Notices 

 

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=6Fu4yQLBRZxTqW3v8pbl0A==#


Page 1 of 2 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 12.1a 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023 
 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3320: Chavez-Kemble Elementary School Rebuild 

Project Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND)  
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: _____)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 

Division:  Facilities Support Services 
 
Recommendation:  Receive for review the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND), 
including the public comments received, and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
(MMRP) for the Chavez-Kemble Elementary School Rebuild Project. The California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires the adoption of such a resolution for this project. 
Resolution No. 3320 is attached which approves the MND and mitigation measures included in 
the MMRP.  
 
Background/Rationale: The Chavez-Kemble Elementary School Rebuild Project is one of the 
three initial large projects using Measure H bond funds. Proposed work will include interim 
housing on site while a new school site is constructed that will house both the Cesar Chavez 
and Edward Kemble schools. Those two schools currently share one impacted property that 
does not allow staff the adequate space needed for a proper level of educational opportunities 
and outdoor field access. Combining the two schools within one facility will allow for the 
development of a larger multipurpose room that can more easily house indoor recess in 
inclement weather, provide adequate play yard and outdoor physical activity space, and address 
all six of the petals outlined within the District’s Educational Specifications as part of the 
Facilities Master Plan.  
   
The proposed project is subject to review under CEQA. For every non-exempt public project, 
CEQA generally requires the Lead Agency to prepare an Initial Study in order to determine the 
level of environmental review that is required for CEQA compliance. If the Initial Study indicates 
that the project will not result in significant environmental impacts, the Lead Agency may adopt a 
“negative declaration” rather than preparing a full Environmental Impact Report (Pub. Res. Code 
Section 21080 (c)). If the Initial Study reveals substantial evidence that significant environmental 



Page 2 of 2 

impacts might occur, but also identifies mitigation measures that reduce those impacts to a level 
of less than significant, the lead agency may satisfy CEQA obligations with a “Mitigated 
Negative Declaration” (Pub. Res. Code Section 21064.5 & Section 21080 (d)). 
 
Consistent with this process, an Initial Study was prepared which determined that the proposed 
project may result in significant environmental impacts, but that the mitigation measures would 
reduce those impacts to a level of less than significant. Therefore, a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND) was prepared. In compliance with CEQA Guidelines 15072 & 15073, the 
District provided notice of and circulated the MND for public review. The Notice of Availability 
was published in the Sacramento Bee and mailed to residents immediately adjacent to the 
Chavez-Kemble property. 
   
The District received four (2) letters of comment which are included in the attached Summary of 
Comments for the Board’s review. Of these, one (1) letter was received from the Central Valley 
Regional Water Quality Control Board, and one (1) letter was received from the Sacramento 
Metropolitan Air Quality Management District. None of these letters raised an issue related to 
the adequacy of the MND under CEQA.  
 
The MND, the Appendices, and the MMRP represents the proposed final environmental 
document for the Project. The approval of Resolution No. 3320 will approve the MND, and adopt 
the MMRP which will satisfy the District’s obligation under CEQA and is a prerequisite to final 
District approval of the Project.  
 
Financial Considerations:  None.   
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:  

1. Resolution No. 3320 
2. Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Chavez-Kemble Elementary School Rebuild 

Project and Technical Appendix for MND Link: https://www.scusd.edu/mnd-chavez-kemble-
rebuild-project  

3. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
4. Public Comments and Responses 

 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 

Submitted by:  Rose F. Ramos, Chief Business & Operations Officer 

  Nathaniel Browning, Director of Facilities  

Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

https://www.scusd.edu/mnd-chavez-kemble-rebuild-project
https://www.scusd.edu/mnd-chavez-kemble-rebuild-project


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION RESOLUTION NO. 3320 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADOPTING THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND APPROVING THE 
MITIGATION REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE TRANSPORTATION FACILITY 

RELOCATION PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education (“Board”) of the Sacramento City Unified School 
District (the "District") has received an initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (“MND”) 
dated April 2023, prepared for the Chavez-Kemble Elementary School Rebuild Project 
(“Project”) in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) (Public 
Resources Code [PRC] Section 21000 et seq.) and the State CEQA Guidelines (14 California 
Code of Regulations [CCR] Section 15000 et seq.);  

WHEREAS, the Project consists of rebuilding the Cesar Chavez and Edward Kemble 
School (“Chavez-Kemble”) site;  

WHEREAS, on the basis of the initial study (“IS”), the District has determined that there 
will not be significant environmental effects in this case because revisions in the proposed 
Project, in the form of mitigation measures, were made by the project proponent (the District) 
prior to the release of the document for public review, and will avoid the effects or mitigate the 
effects to a less than significant level making the preparation of a MND appropriate; 

WHEREAS, on April 4, 2023, the District published the Notice of Availability and 
Intent to Adopt the MND in The Daily Recorder; 

WHEREAS, on April 4, 2023, the District posted the Notice of Availability and Intent to 
Adopt the MND and the MND in its entirety on the District’s website; 

WHEREAS, on April 4, 2023, the District also filed a Notice of Completion with the 
State Clearinghouse allowing the State to circulate copies of the MND to any affected State 
agencies for comment; 

WHEREAS, the public comment period on the MND commenced on April 4, 2023, and 
ended on May 4, 2023, following said notice to the public and all public agencies; 

WHEREAS, the District received two (2) written comments on the MND from the 
public and reviewing public agencies during the public review period and any comment that 
raised an issue related to the adequacy of the environmental document was responded to; 

WHEREAS, such comments and responses thereto have been incorporated into the 
MND through a Summary of Comments; 

WHEREAS, all actions required to be taken by applicable law relating to the 
preparation, circulation, and review of the MND have been taken; 



WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed and considered the MND (including the 
Appendices, the Summary of Comments and Responses) and has evaluated and considered the 
comments received from persons who have reviewed the MND and any written responses 
thereto;  

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed and considered the mitigation measures identified 
in the MND and listed in the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (“MMRP”) set forth 
in Exhibit A; and  

WHEREAS, the facts and findings regarding the Project set forth in this Resolution are 
supported by substantial evidence in the administrative record and by the MND; and 

WHEREAS, the MND has identified all significant environmental effects of the Project 
and all significant and known potentially significant impacts; and  

WHEREAS, the MND has described reasonable mitigation measures that will reduce 
potentially significant impacts to less than significant; and  

WHEREAS, the MND reflects the Board’s independent judgment and analysis on the 
potential for environmental impacts from the Project.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sacramento City Unified School 
District Board of Education at the meeting held on May 18, 2023 the following:  

SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals are true and correct and made part of this Resolution.  

SECTION 2: For every non-exempt public project, the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) generally requires the lead agency to prepare an initial study in order to determine the 
level of environmental review required for CEQA compliance. If the initial study indicates that 
the project will not result in significant adverse environmental impacts, the lead agency may 
adopt a “negative declaration” (Pub. Res. Code § 21080(c)). If the initial study reveals 
substantial evidence that significant environmental impacts might occur, but also identifies 
mitigation measures that reduce those impacts to a level of less than significant, the lead agency 
may satisfy CEQA obligations with a “Mitigated Negative Declaration” (Pub. Res. Code §§ 
21064.5 & 21080(d)). 

SECTION 3: As set forth in the Recitals, in compliance with CEQA, the District prepared the 
MND and circulated it for public review. 

SECTION 4: The Board hereby certifies that all comments received in response to the MND and 
responses thereto have been considered by the Board, which comments and responses are 
included in the Summary of Public Comment.  Further, for the purposes of CEQA and the 
findings set forth herein, the record of proceedings for the District decision on the Project 
includes, but is not limited to all information in the administrative record including but not 
limited to the MND, all public notices related to the Project; all comments submitted by any 
agencies and members of the public; all reports, studies memoranda (excluding confidential 
memoranda) and other documents relevant to the Project prepared by the District; the District’s 
consultants, or responsible or trustee agencies with respect to the District compliance with the 



requirements of CEQA and with respect to the District’s action on the Project; any documentary 
or other evidence submitted to the District at public meetings or hearings related to the Project; 
and matters of common knowledge to the District.  The materials in the record are located at and 
available upon request at the District office.  

SECTION 5: The MND for the Project has been completed and is in compliance with the 
provisions of CEQA, with State and local Guidelines implementing CEQA, and all other 
applicable laws and regulations.  

SECTION 6: In accordance with CEQA, the Board determines that the findings made in the 
MND with respect to the potential environmental impacts of the Project and the proposed 
mitigation measures are complete and accurate and hereby incorporates such findings of the 
MND by reference. 

SECTION 7: The Board finds and declares that the MND for the Project was presented to the 
Board and the Board independently reviewed and considered the information contained in the 
MND prior to approving the Project, as the Project is defined in the MND.  

SECTION 8: Based on its review of the MND, the Board finds that the MND for the Project is 
an adequate assessment of the potentially significant environmental impacts of the Project, as 
described in the MND.  

SECTION 9: The Board has reviewed the findings of the Project, comments regarding the 
Project, and other relevant Project records. Based on the evidence contained therein, the Board 
finds and determines that, following implementation of the mitigation measures set forth in the 
MND, there is no substantial evidence of a significant, unmitigated environmental impact caused 
by the Project.  

SECTION 10: The Board hereby adopts the Mitigated Negative Declaration as complete and 
adequate under CEQA, and certifies that the MND represents the independent judgment of the 
Board.  

SECTION 11: The MMRP has been prepared to meet the requirements of Public Resources 
Code Section 21081.6. This program is designed to ensure compliance with Project changes and 
mitigation measures imposed to avoid or substantially lessen the significant effects identified in 
the MND. The Board hereby adopts the Mitigation Reporting Program and incorporates the 
Mitigation Reporting Program into the Project.  

SECTION 12: The MND and the MMRP are on file and available at the administrative office of 
the Sacramento City Unified School District.  The custodian of the documents and records 
referred to herein shall be the Director of Capital Projects, Facilities, and Resource Management, 
Facility Support Services and shall be located at 425 1st Avenue, Sacramento, CA.    

SECTION 13.  The Board approves the Project as specifically described in the Final MND. 

SECTION 14.  The Board directs the Superintendent and/or his/her designee to take any and all 
required or appropriate actions necessary to proceed with the Project.  



SECTION 15.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of 
Education on this date May 18, 2023, by the following vote:  

AYES: ____ 

NOES: ____ 

ABSTAIN: ____ 

ABSENT: ____ 

 

ATTESTED TO: 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Chinua Rhodes     Jorge A. Aguilar 
President of the Board of Education   Superintendent 



 

May 2023 | Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
State Clearinghouse No. 2023040030 

CHAVEZ-KEMBLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
REBUILD PROJECT 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Prepared for: 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
Contact: Nathaniel Browning, Facilities Director 

Facilities Support Services 
425 1st Avenue, 

Sacramento, California 95818 
916.257.9640 

 
Prepared by: 

PlaceWorks 
Contact: Dwayne Mears, Principal 

3 MacArthur Place, Suite 1100 
Santa Ana, California 92707 

714.966.9220 
info@placeworks.com 
www.placeworks.com 



 

 

May 2023 Page 1 of  6 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

Chavez-Kemble Elementary School Rebuild Project 
 
 

CEQA ACTION. Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) 

PROJECT LOCATION:  The 8.71-acre site encompasses two schools, Kemble Elementary School on 7495 
29th Street and Chavez Elementary School at 7500 32nd Street, both in the City of Sacramento. The Assessor’s 
Parcel Number (APN) for Kemble Elementary School is 049-0183-002 and the APN for Chavez Elementary 
School is 049-0176-002. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  The Sacramento City Unified School District plans to fully redesign and 
reconstruct the project site and combine Chavez Elementary School and Kemble Elementary School into one 
school building––the new school is yet to be formally renamed. The capacity of the proposed school would 
decrease from 1,338 students to 850 students; buildings would be limited to two stories; and access to the site 
would be via driveways on 32nd Street, 29th Street, and Torrance Avenue.  

The construction would be phased to accommodate students remaining onsite during construction. The 
District submitted plans to California Division of the State Architect (DSA) in November 2022 for interim 
housing and plans to submit to DSA in May 2023 for the site work and July 2023 for the buildings/final site 
plan. Construction is estimated to start approximately June 2023 and construction activities would end 
approximately August 2025. School opening would be planned for Fall 2025.  

Terms and Definitions 

1. Property Owner: Sacramento City Unified School District 

2. Timing: This is the point where a mitigation measure must be monitored for compliance. When multiple 
action items are indicated, it is the first point where compliance associated with the mitigation measure 
must be monitored.  

3. Responsibility for Monitoring: Shall mean that compliance with the mitigation measures shall be 
reviewed and determined adequate by all parties listed in the table for each mitigation measure. Outside 
public agency review is limited to those public agencies specified in the Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program which have permit authority in conjunction with the mitigation measure. 

4. Ongoing Mitigation Measures: The mitigation measures that are designated to occur on an “ongoing 
basis” as part of this Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program will be monitored in the form of an 
annual letter from the District or contractor in January of each year demonstrating how compliance with 
the measures has been achieved. When compliance with a measure has been demonstrated for a period of 
one year, monitoring of the measure will be deemed to be satisfied and no further monitoring will occur. 
For measures that are to be monitored "Ongoing During Construction," the annual letter will review those 
measures only while construction is occurring; monitoring will be discontinued after construction is 
complete. A final letter will be provided at the close of construction. 

  



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

 

May 2023  Page 2 of  6 

Table 1.  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation Measures 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Implementation Phase 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 
BIO-1 The project shall implement the following development standards for the four 

remaining trees (tag numbers 8, 12, 13, and 14) during construction activities: 
• Avoid grade cuts greater than 1 foot within the driplines of preserved 

trees and within 5 feet of their trunks. 
• Avoid fill greater than 1 foot within the driplines of preserved trees and 

any placement of fill within 5 feet of their trunks. 
• Avoid trenching within the driplines of preserved trees. If it is absolutely 

necessary to install underground utilities within the driplines of a 
preserved tree, then the trench shall either be bored or drilled. 

• Avoid installing irrigation systems within the driplines of preserved 
tree(s) as it may be detrimental to the long-term survival of the 
preserved tree(s). 

• Limit landscaping beneath preserved trees be limited to nonplant 
materials such as boulders, cobbles, wood chips, etc., or plant species 
tolerant of the natural semi-arid environs of the trees. Drip irrigation 
shall be limited to approximately twice per summer for the understory 
plants. 

Sacramento City 
Unified School District 

During Construction 
Activities 

District Staff, 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

BIO-2 The project shall implement the following development standards for the four 
remaining trees (tag numbers 8, 12, ,13, and 14) during grading activities: 

• Major roots 2 inches or greater in diameter or encountered within the 
tree’s dripline in the course of excavation from beneath trees that are 
not to be removed shall be kept moist and covered with earth as soon 
as feasible. Roots 1 inch to 2 inches in diameter that are severed shall 
be trimmed, treated with pruning compound, and covered with earth as 
soon as possible. 

• Support roots that are inside the dripline of the tree should be 
protected to the extent feasible. Hand-digging is recommended is the 
vicinity of major trees to prevent root cutting and mangling by heavy 
equipment.  

Sacramento City 
Unified School District 

During Grading 
Activities 

District Staff, 
Construction 
Contractor 

 
CULTURAL RESOURCES 
CUL-1 Prior to grading activities, a qualified archaeological monitor shall be identified to 

be on call during ground-disturbing activities. If archeological resources are 
discovered during excavation and/or construction activities, construction shall stop 
within 100 feet of the find, and the qualified archaeologist shall be consulted to 

Sacramento City 
Unified School District 

Prior to Grading 
Activities 

District Staff with 
Qualified 
Archaeologist, 
Wilton Rancheria 

 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

 

May 2023  Page 3 of  6 

Table 1.  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation Measures 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Implementation Phase 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

determine whether the resource requires further study. The archaeologist shall 
make recommendations to the District to protect the discovered resources. 

If the resources are deemed to be non-tribal, the archaeological resources 
recovered shall be provided to the North Central Information Center and California 
State University, Sacramento Natural History Museums, or any other local 
museum or repository willing and able to accept and house the resource to 
preserve for future scientific study. 

If the resources are deemed to be tribal-related, the Wilton Rancheria will be 
contacted to assess the significance of any find as well, in order to obtain 
recommendations on how best to proceed. Tribal-related archaeological 
resources discovered will be left in place in order to minimize handling until 
consultation with the qualified archaeological monitor and the Wilton Rancheria 
can be arranged in order to determine the appropriate next steps. Continued work 
in the area of the archaeological find will only proceed after authorization from the 
District in coordination with the Wilton Rancheria and the qualified archaeological 
monitor. The Wilton Rancheria contact information is as follows: 

  Wilton Rancheria – Cultural Preservation Department 
Tel: 916.683.6000 
cpd@wiltonrancheria-nsn.gov 

Tribal Monitor, if 
Warranted 

GEOLOGY AND SOILS 
GEO-1 Prior to construction, the District shall identify a qualified paleontologist to be on-

call. If unique paleontological resources are discovered during excavation and/or 
construction activities, construction shall stop within 50 feet of the find, and the 
qualified paleontologist shall be consulted to determine whether the resource 
requires further study. The paleontologist shall make recommendations to the 
District to protect the discovered resources. Any paleontological resources 
recovered shall be provided to the North Central Information Center and California 
State University, Sacramento Natural History Museums, or repository willing and 
able to accept and house the resource to preserve for future scientific study. 

 

 

 

 

Sacramento City 
Unified School District 

During Construction 
Activities 

District Staff with 
Qualified 
Paleontologist, if 
Warranted 

 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

 

May 2023  Page 4 of  6 

Table 1.  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation Measures 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Implementation Phase 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 
GHG-1 The project shall comply with the 2019 California Green Building Standards Code 

(CALGreen) Tier 2 standards which are a requirement under the Sacramento 
Metropolitan Air Quality Management District (SMAQMD) Greenhouse Gas (GHG) 
Best Management Practices (BMPs). Plans shall identify the number of EV parking 
spaces with chargers that meet the 2019 CALGreen Tier 2 standards. 

Sacramento City 
Unified School District 

During Design Phase District Staff, 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

Noise 
N-1 The Sacramento City Unified School District shall adopt a Construction Noise 

Control Plan, including, but not be limited to the following: 
• Limit construction to the hours allowed by the City of Sacramento (7:00 

AM to 6:00 PM, Monday through Saturday and between the hours of 
9:00 AM to 6:00 PM on Sundays) and prohibit construction on federal 
holidays. 

• At least 30 days prior to the start of construction activities, all off-site 
businesses and residents within 300 feet of the project site shall be 
notified of the planned construction activities. The notification shall 
include a brief description of the project, the activities that would occur, 
the hours when construction would occur, and the construction period’s 
overall duration. The notification shall include the telephone numbers of 
the Sacramento City Unified School District’s and contractor’s 
authorized representatives that are assigned to respond in the event of 
a noise or vibration complaint. 

• At least 10 days prior to the start of construction activities, a sign shall 
be posted at the entrance(s) to the job site, clearly visible to the public, 
that includes permitted construction days and hours, as well as the 
Sacramento City Unified School District Facility Department’s project 
hotline number and contractor’s authorized representatives contact 
information that are assigned to respond in the event of a noise or 
vibration complaint. If the authorized contractor’s representative 
receives a complaint, he/she shall investigate, take appropriate 
corrective action, and report the action to the Sacramento City Unified 
School District.  

• During the entire active construction period, equipment and trucks used 
for project construction shall utilize the best available noise control 
techniques (e.g., improved mufflers, equipment re-design, use of intake 
silencers, ducts, engine enclosures, and acoustically attenuating shields 
or shrouds). 

Sacramento City 
Unified School District 

Prior to Construction 
Activities 

District Staff, 
Construction 
Contractor 

 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

 

May 2023  Page 5 of  6 

Table 1.  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation Measures 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Implementation Phase 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

• Require the contractor to use impact tools (e.g., jack hammers and hoe 
rams) that are hydraulically or electrically powered wherever possible. 
Where the use of pneumatic tools is unavoidable, an exhaust muffler on 
the compressed air exhaust shall be used along with external noise 
jackets on the tools. 

• During the entire active construction period, stationary noise sources 
shall be located as far from sensitive receptors as possible, and they 
shall be muffled.  

• During the entire active construction period, noisy operations shall be 
combined so that they occur in the same time period as the total noise 
level produced would not be significantly greater than the level produced 
if the operations were performed separately (and the noise would be of 
shorter duration). 

• Select haul routes that avoid the greatest amount of sensitive use areas. 
• Signs shall be posted at the job site entrance(s), within the on-site 

construction zones, and along queueing lanes (if any) to reinforce the 
prohibition of unnecessary engine idling. All other equipment shall be 
turned off if not in use for more than 5 minutes.  

• During the entire active construction period and to the extent feasible, 
the use of noise-producing signals, including horns, whistles, alarms, 
and bells, shall be for safety warning purposes only. The construction 
manager shall use smart back-up alarms, which automatically adjust the 
alarm level based on the background noise level or switch off back-up 
alarms and replace with human spotters in compliance with all safety 
requirements and laws.  

TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES 
TCR-1 Prior to any ground disturbing construction activities, a Wilton Rancheria Native 

American monitor shall be identified to be on call.  
 
Upon discovery of any tribal cultural resources, construction activities shall cease 
within 100 feet of the find until the tribal monitor can assess the find and provide 
recommendations. The evaluation of all tribal cultural resources unearthed by 
project construction activities shall be evaluated by the tribal monitor. If the 
resources are Native American in origin, the tribal monitor shall coordinate with 
the District regarding treatment of these resources as well as notifying local tribes 
of the find. Typically, the tribe(s) will request reburial, preservation in place within 
the landscape, the minimization of handling of the objects, construction monitoring 

Sacramento City 
Unified School District 

Prior to Ground-
Disturbing Activities 

District staff with a 
Wilton Rancheria 
Tribal Monitor 

 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

 

May 2023  Page 6 of  6 

Table 1.  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation Measures 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Implementation Phase 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

of any further activities, or returning objects to a location within the project area 
where they will not be subject to future impacts. The District may continue work on 
other parts of the project site while evaluation and, if necessary, mitigation takes 
place (CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5[f]). Work in the area(s) of the cultural 
find may only proceed after all necessary investigation and evaluation of the 
discovery under the requirements of CEQA, including AB 52, have been satisfied, 
as well as with authorization from the District in coordination with the Tribe. If the 
tribal monitor determines a resource to constitute a “historical resource” or “unique 
archaeological resource,” time and funding sufficient to allow for implementation of 
avoidance measures or appropriate mitigation must be available. The treatment 
plan established for the resources shall be in accordance with CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15064.5(f) for historical resources and Public Resources Code Section 
21083.2(b) for unique archaeological resources.  
 
 The project contractor shall implement any measures deemed by the District to be 
necessary and feasible to preserve in place, avoid, or minimize impacts to the 
resource, including but not limited to, facilitating the appropriate tribal treatment of 
the find, as necessary. Treatment that preserves or restores the cultural character 
and integrity of a tribal cultural resource may include tribal monitoring, culturally 
appropriate recovery of cultural objects, and reburial of cultural objects or cultural 
soil. 
 
If preservation in place is not feasible, treatment may include implementation of 
archaeological data recovery excavations to remove the resource along with 
subsequent laboratory processing and analysis for curation, only if specifically 
requested by the Tribe. The District shall be responsible for ensuring that a public, 
nonprofit institution with a research interest in the materials, such as the North 
Central Information Center and California State University, Sacramento Natural 
History Museums, curate any historic archaeological material that is not Native 
American in origin if such an institution agrees to accept the material. If no 
institution accepts the archaeological material, the District shall offer it to a local 
historical society for educational purposes or retain the material and use it for 
educational purposes. The Wilton Rancheria contact information is as follows: 
  Wilton Rancheria – Cultural Preservation Department 

Tel: 916.683.6000 
cpd@wiltonrancheria-nsn.gov 

 
 



 

May 2023 | Response to Comments 
State Clearinghouse No. 2023040030 

CHAVEZ-KEMBLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
REBUILD PROJECT 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Prepared for: 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
Contact: Nathaniel Browning, Facilities Director 

Facilities Support Services 
425 1st Avenue, 

Sacramento, California 95818 
916.257.9640 

 
 

Prepared by: 

PlaceWorks 
Dwayne Mears, Principal 

3 MacArthur Place, suite 1100 
Santa Ana, California 92707 

info@placeworks.com 
www.placeworks.com 

  



 
 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

Table of Contents 

May 2023 Page i 

W 

SECTION PAGE 
1. INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................................. 1 

1.1 BACKGROUND .................................................................................................................................................... 1 
1.2 DOCUMENT FORMAT ..................................................................................................................................... 1 
1.3 CEQA REQUIREMENTS REGARDING COMMENTS AND RESPONSES .................................... 1 

2. RESPONSE TO COMMENTS ......................................................................................................... 3 

 
 
 

 

 
  



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

Table of Contents 

Page ii PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank.  



 

May 2023 Page 1 

1. Introduction 
1.1 BACKGROUND 
This document includes a compilation of  the public comments received on the Chavez-Kemble Elementary 
School Rebuild Project Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration (collectively, IS/MND; State 
Clearinghouse No. 2023040030) and the Sacramento City Unified School District’s (District’s) responses to 
those comments.  

Under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), a lead agency is not required to prepare formal 
responses to comments on an IS/MND. However, CEQA requires the District to have adequate information 
on the record explaining why the comments do not affect the conclusion of  the IS/MND that there are no 
potentially significant environmental effects. In the spirit of  public disclosure and engagement, the District, as 
the lead agency, has responded to all written comments submitted on the IS/MND during the 30-day public 
review period, which began April 4, 2023, and ended May 4, 2023.  

1.2 DOCUMENT FORMAT  
Section 1, Introduction. This section describes CEQA requirements and the content of  this document.  

Section 2, Response to Comments. This section provides a list of  agencies and persons commenting on the 
IS/MND, copies of  comment letters received during the public review period, and individual responses to 
written comments. To facilitate review of  the responses, each comment letter has been reproduced and assigned 
a letter. Individual comments within each letter have been numbered, and the letter is followed by responses 
with references to the corresponding comment number. 

1.3 CEQA REQUIREMENTS REGARDING COMMENTS AND RESPONSES 
CEQA Guidelines, Section 15204(b), outlines parameters for submitting comments on negative declarations, 
and reminds persons and public agencies that the focus of  review and comment of  IS/MNDs should be on 
the proposed findings that the project will not have a significant effect on the environment. If  the commenter 
believes that the project may have a significant effect, they should: (1) Identify the specific effect, (2) Explain 
why they believe the effect would occur, and (3) Explain why they believe the effect would be significant. 

CEQA Guidelines, Section 15204(c), further advises, “Reviewers should explain the basis for their comments, 
and should submit data or references offering facts, reasonable assumptions based on facts, or expert opinion 
supported by facts in support of  the comments. Pursuant to Section 15064, an effect shall not be considered 
significant in the absence of  substantial evidence.”  

Section 15204(d) also states, “Each responsible agency and trustee agency shall focus its comments on 
environmental information germane to that agency’s statutory responsibility.” Section 15204 (e) states, “This 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

1. Introduction 

Page 2 PlaceWorks 

section shall not be used to restrict the ability of  reviewers to comment on the general adequacy of  a document 
or of  the lead agency to reject comments not focused as recommended by this section.” 

Finally, CEQA does not require a lead agency to conduct every test or perform all research, study, and 
experimentation recommended or demanded by commenters. When responding to comments, lead agencies 
need only respond to potentially significant environmental issues and do not need to provide all information 
requested by reviewers, as long as a good-faith effort at full disclosure is made in the environmental document.  



 

May 2023 Page 3 

2. Response to Comments 
This section provides all written comments received on the circulated IS/MND and the District’s response to 
each comment.  

Comment letters and specific comments within those letters are assigned an alphanumeric designation for 
reference purposes. Where sections of  the IS/MND are excerpted in this document, they are indented. The 
following is a list of  all comment letters received on the circulated IS/MND during the 30-day public review 
period, which began April 4, 2023, and ended May 4, 2023. 
 

Letter 
Reference Commenting Person/Agency Date of Comment Page No. 

Agencies 

A Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board, Peter Minkel, 
Engineering Geologist May 4, 2023 4 

B Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District, Molly Wright, 
AICP, Air Quality Planner/Analyst May 4, 2023 12 

  



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

2. Response to Comments 

Page 4 PlaceWorks 

LETTER A – Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board, Peter Minkel, Engineering Geologist (5 
pages)



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

2. Response to Comments 

May 2023 Page 5 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

2. Response to Comments 

Page 6 PlaceWorks 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

2. Response to Comments 

May 2023 Page 7 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

2. Response to Comments 

Page 8 PlaceWorks 

  



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

2. Response to Comments 

May 2023 Page 9 

A. Response to Comments from Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board, Peter 
Minkel, Engineering Geologist, dated May 4, 2023. 

A-1 The commenter provides background information on the Basin Plan and the 
Antidegradation policy contained in the Basin Plan. 

 As indicated in the IS/MND, all construction activities would be required to comply with 
the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) program, which regulates 
pollutant discharges. The proposed project would also implement best management 
practices (BMPs) to control erosion and prevent any discharge of  sediments from the site. 
As the antidegradation analysis is a mandatory element in the NPDES, the proposed 
project would conduct such analysis at the time the NPDES is prepared. As indicated in 
Section 3.10(a), of  the IS/MND, the proposed project would result in a less than 
significant impact in regard to surface and ground water quality. 

A-2 The commenter states that dischargers whose project disturb one or more acres of  soil 
are required to obtain coverage under the General Permit for Storm Water Discharges 
Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (Construction General 
Permit). The commenter states that the Construction General Permit requires the 
development and implementation of  a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). 

 As the proposed project would disturb more than one acre of  land, the proposed project 
would be required to be constructed in accordance with the SWPPP which includes BMPs 
to reduce or eliminate pollutants in stormwater discharges, as indicated in Section 3.9(b) 
of  the IS/MND. 

A-3 The commenter states that if  the project involves the discharge of  dredged or fill material 
in navigable waters or wetlands, a permit pursuant to Section 404 of  the Clean Water Act 
may be required. 

 As indicated in Section 3.4(c) of  the IS/MND, there are no wetlands onsite. The project 
site is currently developed with the existing Kemble Elementary School and Chavez 
Elementary School and is located in an urbanized portion of  the City. The proposed 
project would consist of  rebuilding and consolidating the two schools into one elementary 
school. As the proposed project would not involve the discharge of  fill material in 
navigable waters or wetlands, the proposed project is not subject to the requirements of  
the 404 Permit.  

A-4 The commenter states that if  a United States Army Corps of  Engineers (USACE) permit, 
or any other federal permit, is required for the proposed project due to disturbance of  
waters of  the United States, then a Water Quality Certification must be obtained from the 
Central Valley Water Board prior to initiation of  project activities. 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

2. Response to Comments 

Page 10 PlaceWorks 

 The proposed project would not discharge surface waters to a stream or creek or other 
waters of  the State. All surface water not collected and retained onsite in accordance with 
State and local regulations will be collected and discharged into a Municipal drainage 
system operated by the City of  Sacramento. Therefore, the proposed project is not subject 
to a federal 401 Permit.  

A-5 The commenter states that if  USACE determined that only non-jurisdictional waters of  
the State are present onsite, the proposed project may require a Waste Discharge 
Requirement permit to be issued by the Central Valley Water Board. The commenter states 
for projects involving excavation or fill activities impacting less than 0.2-acre or 400 linear 
feet of  non-jurisdictional waters of  the state and projects involving dredging activities 
impacting less than 50 cubic yards of  non-jurisdictional waters may be eligible for 
coverage under the State Water Resources Control Board Water Quality Order No. 2004-
0004-DWQ. 

 The proposed project would not discharge surface waters to non-jurisdictional waters. All 
surface waters not collected and retained onsite in accordance with State and local 
regulations, will be collected and discharged into a Municipal drainage system operated by 
the City of  Sacramento. Therefore, the proposed project is not subject to the waste 
discharge requirements and permit. 

A-6 The commenter states that if  the proposed project includes construction or groundwater 
dewatering to be discharged to land, the proponent may apply for coverage under State 
Water Board General Water Quality Order (Low Threat General Order) 2003-0003 or the 
Central Water Board’s Waiver of  Report of  Waste Discharge and Waste Discharge 
Requirements (Low Threat Waiver) R5-2018-0085. 

 Dewatering is not anticipated for the proposed project as the seasonal high groundwater 
elevation is estimated to be at least 20 feet below grade and no excavations are planned 
anywhere near that depth by the proposed project. The project site is currently developed 
with the existing Kemble Elementary School and Chavez Elementary School and is 
located in an urbanized portion of  the City. The proposed project would consist of  
rebuilding and consolidating the two schools into one elementary school. However, if  
dewatering activities are needed to construct the proposed project, the District will apply 
for all applicable permits. 

A-7 The commenter states that if  the proposed project includes construction dewatering and 
it is necessary to discharge the groundwater to waters of  the United States, the proposed 
project will require coverage under a NPDES permit, and a Notice of  Intent must be 
submitted to the Central Valley Water Board to obtain coverage under the Limited Threat 
General Order. 

 See response to comment A-6. 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

2. Response to Comments 

May 2023 Page 11 

A-8 The commenter states that if  the proposed project discharges waste that could affect the 
quality of  surface waters of  the State, other than into a community sewer system, then a 
NPDES permit is required, and a Report of  Waste Discharge must be submitted to the 
Central Valley Water Board to obtain a NPDES permit. 

 The proposed project does not discharge waste that could affect the quality of  surface 
waters. All waste is discharged into a community (Municipal) sewage system operated by 
the City of  Sacramento. Therefore, coverage under the NPDES permit would not apply. 

 

  



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

2. Response to Comments 

Page 12 PlaceWorks 

LETTER B – Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District, Molly Wright, AICP, Air Quality 
Planner/Analyst (3 pages)  

 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

2. Response to Comments 

May 2023 Page 13 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

2. Response to Comments 

Page 14 PlaceWorks 

  



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

2. Response to Comments 

May 2023 Page 15 

B. Response to Comments from Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District, 
Molly Wright, AICP, Air Quality Planner/Analyst, dated May 4, 2023. 

B-1 The commenter provides a summary of  the project description and offers the following 
recommendations on air quality and climate considerations for project implementation. 

 See responses to comments B-2 through B-8. 

B-2 The commenter states that the IS/MND uses Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality 
Management District’s (Sac Metro Air District) non-zero thresholds of  significance for 
particulate matter emissions, and use of  the non-zero thresholds requires implementation 
of  Sac Metro Air District’s Basic Construction Emission Control Practices. The 
commenter recommends the explicit inclusion of  the Basic Construction Emission 
Control Practices as mitigation measures in the IS/MND. The commenter states that all 
projects are subject to Sac Metro Air District’s rules and regulations. 

 As the commenter states, the proposed project would be subject to Sac Metro Air District 
rules and regulations, including Rule 403, Fugitive Dust, that would require the project to 
water the site to reduce the generation of  non-combustion fugitive dust. The proposed 
project would also be subject to applicable rules and regulations contained in the 
California Code of  Regulations, including Title 13, Sections 2449 and 2485, that would 
require the project to limit vehicle idling to no greater than 5 minutes to reduce the 
generation of  combustion fugitive dust. As such, the air quality analysis utilized the Sac 
Metro Air District’s non-zero particulate matter significance threshold because the 
proposed project would be subject to rules and regulations that would require the 
incorporation of  best management practices contained in the Sac Metro Air District’s 
Basic Construction Emission Control Practices. This comment is noted. 

B-3 The commenter states that the Sac Metro Air District thresholds of  significance pertain 
to maximum daily emissions, not average emissions, as shown in Table 3, Average Daily 
Regional Construction Emissions, of  the IS/MND. The commenter states that the IS/MND 
should use maximum daily emissions from the CalEEMod runs, and if  construction 
phases overlap, the IS/MND should use the combined maximum emissions. The 
commenter recommends that the IS/MND evaluate maximum daily emissions from the 
CalEEMod runs against the Sac Metro Air District’s thresholds. 

 As shown in Appendix A of  the IS/MND, no phases of  the project would overlap and 
the maximum daily emissions generated during each phase of  project construction would 
not exceed the Sac Metro Air District’s significance thresholds of  85 pounds per day of  
NOX, 80 pounds per day of  PM10, and 82 pounds per day of  PM2.5. This comment is 
noted. 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

2. Response to Comments 

Page 16 PlaceWorks 

B-4 The commenter states that the IS/MND does not quantify the proposed emissions from 
project operations, and recommends operational emissions be included in the IS/MND 
and appendices. 

 As stated in Section 1.5, Project Description, of  the IS/MND, the proposed project would 
result in the decrease of  both student enrollment—and subsequent vehicle activity—and 
building square footage from existing conditions. As a result, the proposed project would 
fall below the Sac Metro Air District’s applicable screening threshold of  365,000 new 
square feet or 4,350 new students for ozone precursors emissions and 760,000 new square 
feet or 9,100 new students for particulate matter emissions. As such, the proposed project 
would result in less than significant criteria air pollutant and ozone precursor emissions, 
and the reduction in student enrollment and building square footage would result in a net 
reduction in emissions from existing conditions. This comment is noted. 

B-5 The commenter states that demolition and renovation of  existing buildings is subject to 
Sac Metro Air District Rule 902 to limit asbestos exposure during these activities.  

 This comment is noted. 

B-6 The commenter states that Sac Metro Air District has stopped asking for amortization of  
construction greenhouse gas emissions since 2020, and uses a threshold of  1,100 metric 
tons/year. The commenter states that Table 5, Project-Related Construction Emissions, of  the 
IS/MND, should be revised to remove amortization. 

 As displayed in Table 5 of  the IS/MND, the proposed project would result in an estimated 
232 MT CO2e in 2023, 364 MT CO2e in 2024, and 247 MT CO2e in 2025. Therefore, 
construction emissions would be below the Sac Metro Air District’s construction GHG 
emissions significance threshold of  1,100 MT CO2e per year. This comment is noted. 

B-7 The commenter commends the IS/MND’s inclusion of  Tier 1 BMPs from Sac Metro Air 
District’s greenhouse gas thresholds as mitigation measures. The commenter recommends 
that Mitigation Measure GHG-1 in the IS/MND be revised to include both Tier 1 BMPs, 
and specify that the BMP pertaining to electric vehicle (EV) spaces stipulates “EV Ready” 
spaces instead of  “EV Capable” spaces.  

 As stated in Section 3.8.a of  the IS/MND, the proposed project would satisfy BMP 1 (No 
Natural Gas: Project shall be designed and constructed without natural gas) by design. As 
such, BMP 1 does not need to be included in Mitigation Measure GHG-1. Moreover, the 
proposed project would implement Mitigation Measure GHG-1 to ensure that EV 
charging infrastructure would comply with Tier 2 CALGreen standards. According to 
Chapter 2 of  Part 11 of  Title 24, an EV capable space is defined as “A vehicle space with 
electrical panel space and load capacity to support a branch circuit and necessary raceways, 
both underground and/or surface mounted, to support EV charging.” Chapter 2 of  Part 
11 of  Title 24 also defines an EV ready space as “a vehicle space whit his provided with 



C H A V E Z - K E M B L E  E L E M E N T A R Y  S C H O O L  R E B U I L D  P R O J E C T  I N I T I A L  S T U D Y  
S A C R A M E N T O  C I T Y  U N I F I E D  S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  

2. Response to Comments 

May 2023 Page 17 

a branch circuit; any necessary raceways, both underground and/or surface mounted; to 
accommodate EV charging, terminating in a receptable or a charger.” Because neither EV 
ready spaces nor EV capable spaces explicitly require the installation of  a charging station, 
the Sacramento City Unified School District as the lead agency has determined that 
meeting CALGreen Tier 2 standards for EV charging infrastructure is sufficient to 
support the long-term adoption of  EVs that is the underlying goal of  Sac Metro Air 
District’s EV-related Tier 1 BMP and the impact determination of  less than significant for 
greenhouse gas emissions. This comment is noted. 

B-8 The commenter states that the IS/MND should include quantification of  the proposed 
project’s operational greenhouse gas emissions and include the CalEEMod run in the 
appendices. 

 As stated in Section 1.5, Project Description, of  the IS/MND, the proposed project would 
result in the decrease of  both student enrollment—and subsequent vehicle activity—and 
building square footage from existing conditions. As a result, the proposed project would 
fall below the Sac Metro Air District’s applicable screening threshold of  57,000 new square 
feet or 676 new students for greenhouse gas emissions. As such, the proposed project 
would result in less than significant greenhouse gas emissions, combined with all-electric 
building designs and compliance with CALGreen Tier 2 EV charging, and the reduction 
in student enrollment and building square footage would result in a net reduction in 
emissions from existing conditions. This comment is noted. 



 Page 1 of 1  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 12.1b 

 
Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023 
 
 
Subject: Approval/Ratification of Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 

Approval/Ratification of Other Agreements 
Approval of Bid Awards 
Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment 
Change Notices 
Notices of Completion 

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Recommend approval of items submitted. 
 
Background/Rationale:   
 
Financial Considerations:  See attached. 
 
LCAP Goal(s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy, 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence    
 
Documents Attached:  
1. Expenditure and Other Agreements 
2. Recommended Bid Awards – Facilities Projects 
3. Change Notices – Facilities Projects 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer 

  Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contract Analyst 

Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent



 Page 1 of 5  

EXPENDITURE AND OTHER AGREEMENTS 

Restricted Funds 

Contractor Description Amount 

FACILITIES DEPARTMENT 
 
Lionakis Architects 
SA23-00543 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

2/1/23 – 10/31/23: Architectural and engineering services 
for the Luther Burbank New Softball Field / Baseball Field 
Improvement project. Project consists of complete 
replacement of the varsity softball and baseball fields; 
evaluate six (6) tennis courts to either repair or replace in 
kind. 
 
Lionakis was selected for this project from the District’s 
pool of architects qualified through a Request for 
Qualification process on February 20, 2020. 

$429,000 
Measure H 

Funds 

   
   
Lionakis Architects 
SA23-00545 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

1/13/22 – 12/31/22: Architectural and engineering services 
for the C.K. McClatchy High School Softball Field and 
Baseball Field Improvement project. 
 
Lionakis was selected for this project from the District’s 
pool of architects qualified through a Request for 
Qualification process on February 20, 2020. 

$399,000 
Measure H 

Funds 
 

   
   
Astroturf Corp 
R23-03325 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

Replacement of artificial field surface at Rosemont High 
School.  The cost included a prorated warranty settlement 
as the field was in the last year of warranty status. 

$444,000 
Measure Q 

Funds 

   
   
Otto Construction 
R23-04575 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

Due to the storms in December 2022/January 2023, Luther 
Burbank High School received storm damage to two (2) 
classrooms (Classroom J1 and J2) and a fallen eucalyptus 
tree. 

$185,106.90 
Measure Q 

Funds 

   
   
Jay Shimansky dba 
Shimansky 
Enterprises 
SA23-00620 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

4/26/23 – 12/31/25: Inspector and construction 
administration services for the Cesar Chavez / Edward 
Kemble Elementary School New Construction and 
Modernization project. 
 
Shimansky Enterprises was selected for this project from 
the District’s pool of DSA-Inspector of Record through a 
Request for Qualification process on October 31, 2022. 

$489,500 
Measure H 

Funds 
 

  



 Page 2 of 5  

   
Matt Fabian dba MCF 
Construction 
SA23-00685 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

6/8/23 – 12/31/25: Inspector and construction 
administration services for the Nicholas Elementary School 
New Construction project. 
 
MCF Construction was selected for this project from the 
District’s pool of DSA-Inspector of Record through a 
Request for Qualification process on October 31, 2022. 

$467,000 
Measure H 

Funds 
 

   
   
Gerald Freeman dba 
Freeman Inspections 
SA23-00617 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

5/18/23 – 6/30/25: Inspector and construction 
administration services for the Cesar Chavez / Edward 
Kemble Elementary School New Construction and 
Modernization, Increment 1project. 
 
Freeman Inspections was selected for this project from 
the District’s pool of DSA-Inspector of Record through a 
Request for Qualification process on October 31, 2022. 

$159,390 
Measure H 

Funds 
 

   
   
Innovative 
Construction Services 
SA23-00553 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

5/18/23 – 12/31/24: Project and construction management 
services for the Albert Einstein Core Academic Renovation 
project.  Project will include Re-roof, exterior paint, HVAC 
and landscape. 
 
Innovative Construction Services was selected for this 
project from the District’s pool of construction managers 
qualified through an RFQ process in December 2021. 
 

$158,750 
Measure Q 

Funds 
 

   
SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 
 
Creative Bus Sales 
Inc. 
R23-05711 
 
Utilizing South County 
Support Services 
Agency Bid #2122-
SC-11-01  
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

The Special Education Department is seeking to purchase 
two (2) vans that will be wheelchair accessible for Adult 
Transition Special Education Classes. 
 
During COVID-19, the students experienced learning loss 
because they had limited access to pursue their 
community-based instruction and get established at their 
work sites to support their independent transition plans 
written to assist with their post-secondary goals in college, 
career, and independent living. Despite their mobility 
limitations, the vans will help all students access 
transitional programs related to their post-secondary 
goals.  Action Item C1 

$217,084.46 
ESSER III Funds 

   
  



 Page 3 of 5  

   
ACADEMIC OFFICE DEPARTMENT 
 

 

Iris Taylor 
SA23-00434  
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

 
 
Approve Amendment No. 2 for additional services and 
hours leading the planning and organization for the 2023 
Summer School program that begins in June 2023. 

Total Contract 
Amount:  
$52,800 

General Funds 
 

$56,499 
Child 

Development: 
CA Universal 

Pre-K Planning 
Grant Funds 

 
 

Increase 
Amount: 
$35,000 

Expanded 
Learning 

Opportunities 
Program  

Funds 
 

New Total 
Contract 
Amount: 

$144,299 
   

 
  



 Page 4 of 5  

 
RECOMMENDED BID AWARDS – FACILITIES PROJECTS 

Bid No:    0029-401 Bret Harte Playground 
  
Bids received: April 24, 2023; 2:00 pm 

Recommendation: Award to Lamon Construction 

Funding Source:  Measure Q 

 
BIDDER BIDDER LOCATION AMOUNT 
   
Lamon Construction Yuba City, CA $2,996,000 
McGuire Hester Sacramento, CA $3,540,000 
Martin Brothers Sacramento, CA 

 
$3,634,985 

   
 
Bid No:    0530-434 Luther Burbank Core Academic Renovation Phase 2 
  
Bids received: April 27, 2023; 2:00 pm 

Recommendation: Award to Hankins Group 

Funding Source:  Measure Q 

 
BIDDER BIDDER LOCATION AMOUNT 
   
Hankins Group Chico, CA $2,672,639 
Landmark Construction Rocklin, CA $3,824,485 
   

 
  



 Page 5 of 5  

 
CHANGE NOTICES – FACILITIES PROJECTS 
The following change notice is submitted for approval. 

Project: Cesar Chavez / Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization  
 
Recommendation: Balfour Beatty / Clark & Sullivan, a joint venture was awarded preconstruction 

services at the December 15, 2022 Board of Education Meeting to authorize 
staff to pursue a lease-leaseback contract with Balfour Beatty / Clark & 
Sullivan. Once plans are finalized, approved by Division of State Architect and 
the guaranteed maximum price (GMP) for the project is developed, the 
construction contract will be submitted to the Board for approval. This request 
for proposal was publicly advertised on September 26, 2022 and October 3, 
2022. 

 
 Original Pre-Construction Amount: $74,810; Measure H Funds 
 
 Amendment No. 1 Amount: $76,836; Measure H Funds (long lead material 

procurement for Interim Housing); board approved March 2, 2203 
 
 Amendment No. 2 Amount: $535,166; Measure H Funds (long lead material 

procurement for Interim Housing); board approved May 4, 2023.  Approve 
Amendment No. 2 for $535,166; Measure H Funds to Balfour Beatty / Clark & 
Sullivan, a joint venture.  Amendment No. 2 is for securing long lead items on 
materials as part of this summer’s interim housing project including carpet, 
portable foundation systems, and site utilities pipe and fittings.  All work as part 
of a Lease Leaseback (LLB), including amendments, have bids completed at 
the sub-contractor level by the LLB entity. 

 
 Amendment No. 3 Amount: $11,246,889; Measure H Funds.  Approve 

Amendment No. 3 for $11,246,889; Measure H Funds to Balfour Beatty / Clark 
& Sullivan, a joint venture.  Amendment No. 3 is for Increment 1 of construction 
for the Portable Relocation including twenty-two (22) portable classrooms, two 
(2) restrooms and Admin Office.  

 
 New Total Contract Amount: $11,933,701; Measure H Funds 
 
 The cost of construction is currently estimated at $72,000,000.   
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement for Architectural Services 

between 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

and 

Lionakis 

 
 

Luther Burbank New Softball Field and Baseball Field 
Improvement Project 

 
 

Dated: May 18, 2023 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page i 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Article 1  Definitions ................................................................................................................................................. 1 

Article 2  Scope, Responsibilities and Services of Architect ...................................................................... 3 

Article 3  Architect Staff .......................................................................................................................................... 7 

Article 4  Schedule of Services ............................................................................................................................. 9 

Article 5  Construction Cost Budget ................................................................................................................... 9 

Article 6  Fee and Method of Payment .......................................................................................................... 10 

Article 7  Payment for Extra Services or Changes ...................................................................................... 11 

Article 8  Ownership of Data .............................................................................................................................. 11 

Article 9  Termination of Contract ................................................................................................................... 12 

Article 10 Indemnity / Architect Liability ........................................................................................................ 14 

Article 11 Fingerprinting and Conduct on Project Site ............................................................................. 15 

Article 12 Responsibilities of the District ........................................................................................................ 15 

Article 13 Liability of District ............................................................................................................................... 16 

Article 14 Nondiscrimination .............................................................................................................................. 16 

Article 15 Insurance ................................................................................................................................................ 17 

Article 16 Covenant against Contingent Fees .............................................................................................. 17 

Article 17 Entire Agreement/Modification ..................................................................................................... 18 

Article 18 Non-Assignment of Agreement .................................................................................................... 18 

Article 19 Law, Venue ............................................................................................................................................. 18 

Article 20 Alternative Dispute Resolution ...................................................................................................... 18 

Article 21 Tolling of Claims .................................................................................................................................. 19 

Article 22 Attorneys’ Fees ..................................................................................................................................... 19 

Article 23 Severability ............................................................................................................................................ 19 

Article 24 Employment Status ............................................................................................................................ 20 

Article 25 Certificate of Architect ...................................................................................................................... 21 

Article 26 Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports ............................................................... 21 

Article 27 Notice & Communications .............................................................................................................. 21 

Article 28 Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation ............................................................... 22 

Article 29 District’s Right to Audit ..................................................................................................................... 22 

Article 30 Other Provisions .................................................................................................................................. 23 

Article 31 Exhibits ”A” through "E" .................................................................................................................... 24 

  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page ii 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

EXHIBIT “A” – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT A-1 
EXHIBIT “B” – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES B-1 
EXHIBIT “C” – SCHEDULE OF SERVICES C-1 
EXHIBIT “D” – PAYMENT SCHEDULE D-1 
EXHIBIT “E” – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS E-1 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 1 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

 This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of May 18, 2023, between the 
Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (“District”), and Lionakis 
(“Architect”) (collectively “Parties”), for the following project (“Project”):  

New Softball Field and Baseball Field Improvements on the campus of Luther Burbank High 
School, 3500 Florin Road, Sacramento, CA 95823 

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

Article 1. Definitions 

1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or 
phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits: 

1.1.1. Agreement:  The Agreement consists exclusively of this 
document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated 
by reference. 

1.1.2. Architect:  The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this 
Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect.  The term 
Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible 
Charge on this Project. 

1.1.3. As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”):  Any document prepared and 
submitted by District’s Contractor(s) that details on a 
Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the 
Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change 
Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District’s 
construction contractor(s) on a Conforming Set.   

1.1.4. Bid Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of 
the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State 
Architect (“DSA”) has approved and that the District can use to 
go out to bid for construction of the Project. 

1.1.5. Conforming Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the 
end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, 
issued during the Bidding Phase.  The Architect shall ensure that 
DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that are 
incorporated onto the Conforming Set and for which DSA 
approval is required. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 2 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

1.1.6. Construction Budget:  The total amount of funds indicated by 
the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including 
design, construction, administration, and financing. 

1.1.7. Construction Change Documents (“CCD”):  The 
documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction 
documents. 

1.1.8. Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all 
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, 
as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with 
this Agreement.  The Construction Cost Budget does not include 
the compensation of the Architect and the Architect’s 
Consultants, the cost of land, rights-of-way, financing or other 
costs which are the responsibility of the District, including 
construction management. 

1.1.9. Construction Manager:  The District’s representative on the 
Project if the District retains a construction manager, project 
manager, or owner’s representative. 

1.1.10. Contractor:  One or more licensed contractors under contract 
with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project. 

1.1.11. Consultant(s):  Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), 
subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect. 

1.1.12. District:  The Sacramento City Unified School District.  

1.1.13. DSA:  The Division of the State Architect. 

1.1.14. Extra Services:  District-authorized services outside of the 
scope in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursables not 
included in Architect’s Fee. 

1.1.15. Laboratory of Record: The District-designated laboratory(ies) 
for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required 
testing. 

1.1.16. Project:  District’s Luther Burbank New Softball Field and 
Baseball Field Improvements Project at 3500 Florin Road, 
Sacramento, CA 95823.  

1.1.17. Record Drawings:  A final set of drawings prepared by the 
Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, 
sketches, details, and clarifications. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 3 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

1.1.18. Service(s):  All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and 
work that the Architect is required to perform and that are 
required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and 
that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.  

1.1.19. Visually Verify: To verify to the fullest extent possible by 
physical observation and reasonable investigation and without 
any destructive action. 

Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect 

2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in Exhibit “A,” commencing 
with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District 
representative.  Architect’s Services will be completed in accordance with 
the schedule attached as Exhibit “C.” 

2.2. Architect and its Consultants shall provide Services for a Project: (i) using 
its professional skill and judgment; (ii) acting with due care and in 
accordance with respective applicable standards of care under California 
law for those providing similar services for projects of the size, scope and 
complexity of the Project for California school districts in or around the 
same geographic area of the District; (iii) the terms of this Agreement; and 
(iv) in accordance with said standards regarding application and 
interpretation of applicable law, code, rule or regulation at the time the 
Services are rendered (“Standard of Care”). All persons providing 
professional services hereunder shall be properly licensed as required 
under California law. 

2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a 
competitive bid process.  District reserves its right to use alternative delivery 
methods and the Architect’s scope of work may be adjusted accordingly. 

2.4. Architect acknowledges that all California public school districts are 
obligated to develop and implement the following storm water 
requirements for the discharge of storm water to surface waters from its 
construction and land disturbance activities where the project disturbs one 
(1) or more acres of land and is not part of a larger common plan of 
development or sale, the project disturbs one acre or more of land, or the 
project disturbs less than one (1) acre of land but is part of a larger common 
plan of development or sale, or where the District engages in maintenance 
(e.g., fueling, cleaning, repairing) or transportation activities. 

2.4.1. Architect shall provide the design for the Project, without limitation: 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 4 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

2.4.1.1. A municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (“MS4”).  An MS4 
is a system of conveyances used to collect and/or convey 
storm water, including, without limitation, catch basins, 
curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and storm 
drains. 

2.4.1.2. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (“SWPPP”) that 
contains specific best management practices (“BMPs”) and 
establishes numeric effluent limitations. 

2.4.2. Architect shall conform its design work to the District’s storm water 
requirements indicated above, that are approved by the District and 
applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District.  In 
addition, as required Architect shall develop a grading and drainage 
plan and a site plan from architectural information showing a final 
development of the site.  This drawing will also include a horizontal 
and vertical control plan and a utility infrastructure plan.  The 
Services described in this subparagraph shall be provided by a 
professional civil engineer who contracts with or is an employee of 
the Architect.   

2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect’s expense, Consultant(s) 
to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, 
but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil 
engineers; landscapers; and interior designers, licensed as such by the State 
of California as part of the Basic Services under this Agreement.  The names 
of Consultant(s) shall be submitted to the District for approval prior to 
commencement of Services, as indicated below.  The District reserves the 
right to reject Architect’s use of any particular Consultant.  Nothing in the 
foregoing procedure shall create any contractual relationship between the 
District and any Consultant employed by the Architect under terms of the 
Agreement.  Architect shall require each of the Consultants retained by it 
to execute agreements with standard of care and indemnity provisions 
commensurate with this Agreement, but Architect shall remain solely 
responsible and liable to District for all matters covered by this Agreement. 

2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated 
representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other 
professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or 
management of other work related to the Project.  This shall include, 
without limitation, coordination with State labor compliance, if any.  If the 
Architect employs Consultant(s), the Architect shall ensure that its 
contract(s) with its Consultant(s) include language notifying the 
Consultant(s) of State labor compliance, if any. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 5 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

2.7. Architect shall identify the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over 
essential building and design elements and coordinate with and implement 
the requirements of the regulatory agencies, including, without limitation, 
the California Department of Education, the Office of Public School 
Construction, the Department of General Services, DSA, including DSA 
Fire/Life Safety, DSA Access Compliance Section, DSA Structural Safety 
Section, the State Fire Marshal and any regulatory office or agency that has 
authority for review and supervision of school district construction projects. 

2.7.1. If the Project is subject to DSA jurisdiction, then Architect, and its 
Consultants, if any, shall comply with all the DSA requirements, 
including without limitation, all the requirements included and/or 
referenced in the following forms, bulletins (“BU”), interpretations 
of regulations (“IR”), policies (“PL”), or procedures (“PR”): 

2.7.1.1. DSA IR A-6, Construction Change Document Submittal 
and Approval Process. 

2.7.1.2. DSA IR A-18, Use of Construction Documents Prepared by 
Other Professionals. 

2.7.1.3. DSA IR A-24, Construction Phase Duties of the School 
District, Contractor and Design Professional. 

2.7.1.4. DSA PR 07-01: Pre-Check Approval Process. 

2.7.1.5. DSA PR 07-02: Over-The-Counter Review of Projects Using 
Pre-Check Approved Design. 

2.7.1.6. DSA PR 18-04.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Design 
Professionals of Record Using Bluebeam 2018. 

2.7.1.7. DSA PR 18-09.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Over-the-
Counter (“OTC”) Projects Using Bluebeam 2018. 

2.7.1.8. Form DSA PR 13-01, Construction Oversight Process. 

2.7.1.8.1. Each of Architect’s duties as provided in the 
DIR Construction Oversight Process shall be 
performed timely so as not to result in any 
delay to the Project. 

2.7.1.9. Form DSA PR 13-02, Project Certification Process. 

2.7.2. Notwithstanding the DSA forms, BUs, IRs, PLs, or PRs referenced 
anywhere in this Agreement, each of which is current as of the 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 6 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Effective Date, all Projects subject to DSA’s jurisdiction shall be 
submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic 
plan review process (“EPR process”), rather than paper submission, 
for all projects submitted to DSA.  Architect, and its Consultants, if 
any, shall comply with the EPR process and related DSA procedures, 
including, without limitation, DSA PR 18-04.BB18 and DSA PR 18-
09.BB18, and any subsequent or replacement procedures relating 
to the EPR process promulgated by DSA. Any reference herein to a 
particular DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, shall mean and include the 
then-current DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, respectively, and, to the 
extent that the EPR process has superceded such form or paper 
submission process, the EPR process then in effect shall control. 

2.8. Architect shall provide Services as required to obtain any local, state and/or 
federal agencies’ approval for on-site and off-site work related to the 
Project including review by regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the 
Project. 

2.9. Architect shall coordinate the work of the District’s DSA project inspector(s) 
(“Project Inspector(s)”) and the Laboratory of Record.  Architect shall 
provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided by the 
Laboratory of Record. 

2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its professional 
skill and attention.  Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract 
documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions (“Contract 
Documents”) and shall at once report to District, Construction Manager, 
and Contractor, any error, inconsistency, or omission that Architect or its 
employees may discover, in writing, with a copy to District's Project 
Inspector(s).  Architect shall have responsibility for discovery of errors, 
inconsistencies, or omissions in its own Contract Documents and that of its 
Subconsultants, but shall have no responsibility for District hired 
consultants. 

2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a 
Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain 
coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests 
for Information (“RFI”), providing RFI responses, and leading all 
coordination meetings between the District, Project Inspectors, and 
Contractors on the Project.  The District reserves the right to retain the 
services of a Construction Manager at any time.  The Construction Manager, 
if any, shall be authorized to give Architect Services authorizations and 
issue written approvals and notices to proceed on behalf of District.  The 
District reserves the right to designate a different Construction Manager at 
any time.  Any task, including, but not limited to, reviews or approvals that 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 7 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

the District may perform pursuant to this Agreement may be performed by 
the Construction Manager, unless that task indicates it shall be performed 
by the Governing Board of the District.  In addition, the District may have a 
constructability review of Architect’s design documents.  Architect shall 
conform any design documents to the constructability review as part of the 
Services under this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any 
compensation as Extra Services for this activity. 

2.12. Architect shall provide computer-generated pictures downloaded to 
computer files, updated as requested by the District, that the District may 
use on its website. 

2.13. As part of the basic Services pursuant to this Agreement, Architect is not 
responsible for: 

2.13.1. Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis.  

2.13.2. Any asbestos and/or lead testing, design or abatement; however, 
it shall coordinate and integrate its work with any such 
information provided by District. 

2.13.3. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”), except that Architect agrees to coordinate its work with 
that of any CEQA consultants retained by the District, to provide 
current elevations and schematic drawings for use in CEQA 
compliance documents, and to incorporate any mitigation 
measures adopted by the District into the Project design at no 
additional cost to the District.   

2.13.4. Historical significance report.  

2.13.5. Soils investigation. 

2.13.6. Geotechnical hazard report, except as indicated in Exhibit “A.” 

2.13.7. Topographic surveys of existing conditions. 

2.13.8. State and local agency fees. 

2.13.9. Testing and inspection. 

Article 3. Architect Staff 

3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the 
skills and expertise of key individuals. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 8 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect’s firm shall be 
associated with the Project in the following capacities:  

Principal In Charge:  Laura Knauss 

Project Director:  Brian Bell 

Project Architect(s):       

Project Architect(s):       

Other:          

Major Consultants: 

Electrical/Data Eng: The Engineering Enterprise 

Structural:  Lionakis 

Specifications:  Lionakis 

Civil:   Warren Consulting Engineers 

Landscape Architect: ANLA 

Cost Estimator: Sierra West 

 

3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without 
prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be 
employed by Architect.  In either case, the District shall be allowed to 
interview and approve replacement personnel.  

3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of 
the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar 
days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with 
one acceptable to the District.  All lead or key personnel for any Consultant 
must also be designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions 
stated in this paragraph. 

3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not 
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner 
or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement 
and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Architect. 

3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees 
that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be 
prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed 
personnel shall be in “responsible charge” of persons who observe the 
construction. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 9 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Article 4. Schedule of Services 

Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written 
Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in 
Exhibit “A,” so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with 
the schedule in Exhibit “C.”  Time is of the essence and failure of Architect to 
perform Services on time as specified in this Agreement is a material breach of this 
Agreement.  It shall not be a material breach if a delay is beyond the Architect’s or 
its Consultant(s)’ reasonable control. 

Article 5. Construction Cost Budget 

5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District’s established Construction Cost 
Budget and Project scope.  In accordance with Exhibit “A,” the Architect 
shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget for the District at the beginning of the Project 
and at the completion of each design phase.  The District and Construction 
Manager shall also have responsibility to develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget with the Architect. 

5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in Exhibit “A,” including 
all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, 
so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not 
exceed the Construction Cost Budget, as adjusted subsequently with the 
District’s written approval.  Architect shall maintain cost controls 
throughout the Project to deliver the Project within the Construction Cost 
Budget.   

5.3. The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the 
following if any of the events in Article 5.4 occur: 

5.3.1. Give Architect written approval on an agreed adjustment to the 
Construction Cost Budget. 

5.3.2. Authorize Architect to re-negotiate, when appropriate, and/or re-
bid the Project within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids 
(exclusive of District and other agencies’ review time) at no 
additional cost to the District. 

5.3.3. Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the 
District, without further obligation by either party. 

5.3.4. Within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids, instruct Architect 
to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as 
approved by the District) to bring the Project within the 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 10 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding at no additional cost to the 
District.   

5.4. If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or 
any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 5.3 above: 

5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent 
(5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or  

5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in 
ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or  

5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to 
the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes 
in the condition of the construction market in the county in which 
the District is located, in so far as these have not been caused by 
Acts of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to 
uncontrollable events in the world economy. 

Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment 

6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this 
Agreement an amount equal to the following (“Fee”): 

An amount not to exceed Three Hundred Ninety Thousand Dollars 
($390,000) based on the rates set forth in Exhibit “D.” Reimbursable 
expenses are not expected to exceed $390,000.  Reimbursable expenses 
are not expected to exceed $19,500. 

6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit 
“D.” 

6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in 
accordance with Exhibit “D.”  

6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated 
during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect’s error or 
omission.   

6.5. The Architect’s Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation 
for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as 
indicated in Exhibit “D.” 

6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect’s Fee, the Architect’s Fee may be 
adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced 
by the District in accordance with this Agreement. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 11 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

6.7. Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the 
Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a 
waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable 
to the District in accordance with this Agreement for direct damages to the 
District caused by Architect’s failure to perform any of the Services 
furnished under this Agreement to the standard of care under California 
law for architects performing similar work for California school districts in 
or around the same geographic area as the District. 

Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes 

Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in Exhibit 
“B” only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as 
indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed.  If 
any service is done by Architect without prior written authorization by the 
Construction Manager or the District’s authorized representative, the District will 
not be obligated to pay for such service.  The foregoing provision notwithstanding, 
Architect will be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” for Extra Services 
that the Construction Manager or the District’s authorized representative verbally 
requests, provided that Architect confirms such request in writing pursuant to the 
notice requirements of this Agreement, and proceeds with such Extra Services not 
earlier than two (2) business days after the District receives confirmation of the 
request from the Architect. 

Article 8. Ownership of Data 

8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a non-
exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all 
plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, 
estimates and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or 
cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.  

8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other 
intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, 
estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare 
or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.  

8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this 
Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting 
Technology (“CADD”) (e.g., AutoCAD).  Architect shall deliver to District all 
drawings in DWG format.  As to any drawings that Architect provides in a 
CADD file format, the District acknowledges that anomalies and errors may 
be introduced into data when it is transferred or used in a computer 
environment, and that the District should rely on hard copies of all 
documents. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 12 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the 
District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a “hard” copy of 
reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect 
produces the CADD information.  The District agrees to release Architect 
from all liability, damages, and/or claims that arise due to any changes 
made to this information by anyone other than Architect or its Consultant(s) 
subsequent to it being given to the District. 

8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, 
Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at 
no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter “Instruments of 
Service”), which the District shall have the right to utilize in any way 
permitted by statute: 

8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding 
requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the 
Project, in hard copy, reproducible format. 

8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings 
that are part of the Contract Documents. 

8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG 
or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, 
structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and 
exterior elevations of the Project. 

8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, 
drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports 
prepared by the Architect under this Agreement. 

8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.  

8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed 
documents without Architect’s knowledge or participation or both, the 
District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and 
shall hold Architect harmless from and against any and all claims on 
account of any damages or losses to property or persons, or economic 
losses, arising out of that change or use, unless Architect is found to be 
liable in a forum of competent jurisdiction.  In the event that the District 
uses any fully or partially completed documents without the Architect’s full 
involvement, the District shall remove all title blocks and other information 
that might identify Architect and its Consultants.  

Article 9. Termination of Contract  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 13 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

9.1. District’s Request for Assurances:  If District at any time reasonably believes 
that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in 
its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances 
from Architect of performance of Services and a written plan from Architect 
to remedy any potential default under the terms this Agreement that the 
District may advise Architect of in writing.  Architect shall, within ten (10) 
days of District’s request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the 
requirements of the District’s request for assurances. Architect’s failure to 
provide such written assurances of performance and the required written 
plan, within ten (10) days of request, will constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement sufficient to justify termination for cause. 

9.2. District’s Termination of Architect for Cause:  If Architect fails to perform 
Architect’s duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to 
fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect’s material obligations 
under this Agreement, or if Architect shall violate any of the material terms 
or provisions of this Agreement, the District shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, effective immediately upon 
the District giving written notice thereof to the Architect.  In the event of a 
termination pursuant to this subdivision, Architect may invoice the District 
for all Services performed until the notice of termination, but the District 
shall have the right to withhold payment and deduct any amounts equal to 
the District’s costs because of Architect’s actions, errors, or omissions. 
District may, at its discretion, provide the Architect time to cure its default 
or breach. 

9.3. District’s Termination of Architect for Convenience:  District shall have the 
right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own 
convenience.  In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may 
invoice District and District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services 
performed until the District’s notice of termination for convenience. 

9.4. Architect’s Termination of Agreement for Cause:  Architect has the right to 
terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material 
obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default 
within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice of said defaults, or if the 
default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days, commence to cure such 
default, diligently pursue such cure, and complete the cure within a 
reasonable time following written notice and demand from Architect.  Such 
termination shall be effective thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice 
from Architect to the District.  Architect may invoice the District and the 
District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until 
Architect’s notice of termination. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 14 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

9.5. Effect on Pre-Termination Services:  Except as indicated in this Article, 
termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of 
the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective 
date of such termination. 

9.6. Ceasing Services upon Termination:  If, at any time in the progress of the 
Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that 
the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the 
District of such termination, shall immediately cease Services on the Project.  
The District shall pay Architect only the fee associated with the Services 
provided since the last invoice that has been paid and up to the notice of 
termination. 

9.7. Project Suspension:  If the District suspends the Project for more than one 
hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for 
Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is 
resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and Architect’s compensation shall 
be equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption 
of the Architect’s Services.  Architect shall make every effort to maintain the 
same Project personnel after suspension.  If the District suspends the 
Project for more than two (2) years, Architect may terminate this Agreement 
by giving written notice.  

Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability  

10.1. To the fullest extent permitted by California law and in accordance with 
California Civil Code section 2782.8, Architect shall indemnify and hold 
free and harmless the District, its Governing Board, agents, 
representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees and members 
(“Indemnified Parties”) from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, 
costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity 
(“Claim(s)”), to the extent that the Claim(s) arises out of, pertains to, or 
relates to, the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Architect, 
its directors, officers, employees, subcontractors, consultants, or agents 
arising out of, connected with, or resulting from the performance of the 
Services, the Project, or this Agreement. Architect also has the duty to 
defend the Indemnified Parties from all Claims at Architect’s own expense, 
including attorneys’ fees and costs; however, in no event shall the cost to 
defend charged to the Architect exceed the Architect’s proportionate 
percentage of fault. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, in the event 
one or more defendants is unable to pay its share of defense costs due to 
bankruptcy or dissolution of the business, the design professional shall 
meet and confer with other parties regarding unpaid defense costs. If a 
Claim arises out of, or relates in any way to the Services provided under 
this Agreement, upon the District’s or the Architect’s request, the District 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 15 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

and the Architect agree to undertake good faith measures to allow the 
Architect to assist the District in resolving the dispute or litigation.  The 
Architect’s assistance, described as “Mandatory Assistance” in Exhibit A, 
Section B.8, shall be provided at Architect’s own expense and excluded 
from any reimbursement calculation. At the commencement of the 
Mandatory Assistance Phase, District and Architect shall also negotiate in 
good faith as to the scope and extent of further assistance, including 
consideration of a joint defense agreement if appropriate.  During the 
Mandatory Assistance Phase, each Party shall be responsible for their own 
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred; however, each Party reserves its rights 
pursuant to Civil Code section 2782.8.   
 

10.2. Architect shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may 
be rendered against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim as defined in 
Article 10.1.  These amounts may be paid by Architect to District or the 
District may in reasonable good faith withhold those costs from amounts 
owing to Architect, pending resolution of the dispute. 

 

10.3. Architect’s duty to indemnify under this Agreement shall apply during the 
term of this Agreement and shall survive any expiration or termination of 
this Agreement until any such Claim(s) are barred by the applicable statute 
of limitations and is in addition to any other rights or remedies that the 
District may have under the law or under this Agreement. 

Article 11. Fingerprinting and Other On-Site Requirements 

11.1. The District has determined that Architect, its Consultants and their 
employees shall not interact with pupils, except under the immediate 
supervision and control of the pupil’s parent or guardian or a school 
employee, so that the fingerprinting and criminal background investigation 
requirements of Education Code section 45125.2 shall not apply.  

11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19.  Further, 
except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and 
Architect’s personnel shall continue to comply with all other applicable 
terms in the CDPH’s State Public Health Officer Orders.  

Article 12. Responsibilities of the District  

12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and 
shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of 
the Architect’s Services. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 16 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District 
becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, 
omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s documents.  Failure to 
provide such notice shall not relieve Architect of its responsibility therefore, 
if any. 

12.3. The District shall furnish the services of a hazardous material consultant or 
other consultants when such services are requested in writing by Architect 
and deemed necessary by the District or are requested by the District. These 
services shall include: asbestos and lead paint survey; abatement 
documentation; and specifications related to said matters, which are to be 
incorporated into bid documents prepared by Architect. If the hazardous 
materials consultant is furnished by the District and is not a Consultant of 
the Architect, the specifications shall include a note to the effect that the 
hazardous materials consultant’s specifications are included in the 
Architect’s bid documents for the District’s convenience and have not been 
prepared or reviewed by the Architect. The note shall also direct questions 
about the hazardous materials consultant’s specifications related to 
asbestos and lead paint survey and/or abatement documentation to the 
preparer of the hazardous materials consultant’s specifications.    

12.4. The District shall timely provide to the Architect all relevant information in 
its possession regarding the project that is necessary for performance of 
Architect’s services. 

Article 13. Liability of District  

13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial obligations 
under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation 
provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any 
claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or 
incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, 
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services 
performed in connection with this Agreement. 

13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as 
a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or 
by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to 
Architect by District.  

Article 14. Nondiscrimination  

Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment 
and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 17 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set 
forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; 
and all administrative rules and regulations found to be applicable to Architect and 
all of its subcontractors. In addition, Consultant agrees to require like compliance 
by all of its subcontractor(s). 

Article 15. Insurance  

15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, 
set forth in Exhibit “E.”  

15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to 
District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required 
in Exhibit “E.” 

Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees  

Architect warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, 
other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, to solicit or 
secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent 
on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or 
violation of this warranty, the District shall have the right to annul this Agreement 
without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or 
consideration or to recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage 
fee, gift, or contingency. 

  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 18 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification  

This Agreement, including the Exhibits attached hereto, supersedes all previous 
contracts and constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto.  Architect 
shall be entitled to no other benefits than those specified herein.  No changes, 
amendments or alterations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both 
Parties.  Architect specifically acknowledges that in entering this Agreement, 
Architect relies solely upon the provisions contained in this Agreement and no 
others. 

Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement 

In as much as this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized Services of the 
Architect, Architect may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein 
without the prior written consent of District and any such assignment, transfer, 
delegation or sublease without the District’s prior written consent shall be 
considered null and void.  Likewise, District may not assign, transfer, delegate or 
sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of Architect and any 
such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without Architect’s prior written 
consent shall be considered null and void. If an assignment is approved, this 
Agreement shall be binding on the successors and assign of the parties.  

Article 19. Law, Venue 

19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California 
and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of 
this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State 
of California. 

19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the 
District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or 
proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by 
reason of this Agreement. 

Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution 

20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the 
interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be 
decided through mediation as the first method of resolution.  Notice of the 
demand for mediation of a dispute shall be filed in writing with the other 
party to the Agreement.  The demand for mediation shall be made within 
a reasonable time after written notice of the dispute has been provided to 
the other party, but in no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial 
written notice.  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 19 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all 
applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with 
all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing 
with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 
of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to 
the Architect’s right to bring a civil action against the District.  For purposes 
of those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be 
presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Architect submits 
its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time 
utilized by any applicable meet and confer process. 

20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind 
the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.   

Article 21. Tolling of Claims 

Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District’s assertion of claims 
against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors’ or 
subcontractors’ claims against District involving Architect’s work, until the 
Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims are finally resolved. 

Article 22. Attorneys’ Fees 

In the event either party shall bring any action or legal proceeding for damages for 
any alleged breach of any provision of or performance under this Agreement, to 
terminate this Agreement, or to enforce, protect or establish any term or covenant 
of this Agreement or right or remedy of either party, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover, as a part of the action or proceeding, reasonable attorneys' fees 
and court costs, including consultants’ fees, attorneys' fees and costs for appeal, as 
may be fixed by the court.  The term “prevailing party” shall mean the party who 
received substantially the relief requested, whether by settlement, dismissal, 
summary judgment, judgment, or otherwise.   

Article 23. Severability 

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the 
provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be 
affected, impaired or invalidated thereby. 

  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 20 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Article 24. Employment Status 

24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent 
contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be 
construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture 
relationship, or to allow the District to exercise discretion or control over 
the professional manner in which Architect performs the Services that are 
the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the 
Services to be provided by Architect shall be provided in a manner 
consistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such 
Services. 

24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect’s personnel are not and 
will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District 
group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in 
any District retirement program or for paid vacation, paid sick leave or other 
leave, with or without pay or for other benefits which accrue to a District 
employee.  

24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as 
the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development 
Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or 
Consultant of Architect, is an employee of the District for purposes of 
collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable under this 
Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the employee and 
employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for amounts 
already paid by Architect which can be applied against this liability).  The 
District shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority.  

24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services 
performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the 
District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the 
District to have the amount due withheld from future payments to Architect 
under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts already paid by 
Architect which can be applied as a credit against such liability). 

24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) 
paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, 
and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be 
considered an employee of the District.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
should any court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determine that 
Architect is an employee for any other purpose, then Architect agrees to a 
reduction in District’s liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to 
principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the 
total expenses of District under this Agreement shall not be greater than 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 21 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

they would have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority 
determined that Architect or its employees of Consultants was not an 
employee.  

24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on 
persons or entities not a party to this Agreement. 

Article 25. Certificate of Architect 

25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under 
the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the 
professional services that it has herein agreed to perform. 

25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor 
Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers 
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of that code, and it certifies that it will comply with those 
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services of this 
Agreement. 

25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code 
and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing 
wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public 
works” and “maintenance” projects (“Prevailing Wage Laws”).  Architect 
agrees to fully comply with and to require its Consultant(s) to fully comply 
with all requirements of the Prevailing Wage Laws, if applicable to Architect 
and its Consultants’ professional services to be provided under this 
Agreement. 

Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports 

Architect shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code 
section 7550, if the total cost of the Contract is over five thousand dollars ($5,000). 

Article 27. Notice & Communications 

Notices and communications between the Parties to this Agreement may be sent 
to the following addresses: 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 22 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

District: 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
ATTN:  Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contracts 
EMAIL: tina-alvarez-bevens@scusd.edu  

With a Copy to: 
Dannis Woliver Kelley 
200 California Street #400  
San Francisco, CA 94111 
ATTN:  Deidree Sakai, Esq. 

Architect: 
 
Lionakis 
1919 19th Street 
Sacramento, CA 95811 
ATTN:  Laura Knauss 
EMAIL: laura.knauss@lionakis.com  

  
Any notice personally given shall be effective upon receipt.  Any notice sent by 
electronic mail shall be effective the day after transmission.  Any notice sent by 
overnight delivery service shall be effective the day after delivery.  Any notice given 
by mail shall be effective five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail. 

Article 28. Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation 

Pursuant to section 17076.11 of the Education Code, the District has a participation 
goal for disabled veteran business enterprises (“DVBEs”) of at least three percent 
(3%), per year, of funds expended each year by the District on projects that use funds 
allocated by the State Allocation Board pursuant to the Leroy F.  Greene School 
Facilities Act (the “Act”).  This Project may use funds allocated under the Act.  
Therefore, to the extent feasible and pertaining to future hirings, Architect, before it 
executes the Agreement, shall provide to the District certification of compliance with 
the procedures for implementation of DVBE contracting goals, appropriate 
documentation identifying the amount(s) intended to be paid to DVBEs in 
conjunction with the contract, and documentation demonstrating Architect’s good 
faith efforts to meet these goals. 

Article 29. District’s Right to Audit 

29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of 
access to Architect’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the 
Architect’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s 
Right”). The District’s Right includes the right to inspect, photocopy, and to 
retain copies, outside of Architect’s premises, of any and all Project-related 
records and other information with appropriate safeguards, if such 
retention is deemed necessary by the District in its sole discretion. The 
District shall keep this information confidential, as allowed by applicable 
law. 

mailto:laura.knauss@lionakis.com


 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 23 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

29.2. The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, 
documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the 
District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is 
in compliance with all requirements of this Agreement. 

29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the 
District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, 
and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices 
that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify all direct and 
indirect costs, of whatever nature, which are claimed to have been incurred, 
or anticipated to be incurred. 

29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall 
make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related 
accounting records and documents and any other financial data. Upon 
District’s request, Architect shall submit exact duplicates of originals of all 
requested records to the District. 

29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, 
and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants. 

29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the 
District’s written request to review and audit any or all of Architect’s Project-
related records and information. 

Article 30. Other Provisions 

30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and 
understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of 
executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this 
Agreement was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of 
this Agreement, and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any 
party as the drafter of the Agreement. 

30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants 
and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and 
bind the CM to all terms hereof. 

30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall 
be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 24 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

counterparts so executed shall constitute one Agreement binding all the 
Parties hereto.  

30.4. Architect shall issue a credit to the District as an offset to the Architect’s 
Fee, an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the actual tax benefit derived 
by the Architect or its shareholders, after deducting associated tax 
consulting fees based on the Project per Internal Revenue Code section 
179D (the Energy Efficient Commercial Buildings deduction).  

Article 31. Exhibits “A” through “E” attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this 
reference and made a part of this Agreement. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) 
indicated below. 

 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 
 

By:       
Rose Ramos 
Chief Business Officer 

Date:     

LIONAKIS 
 
 

By:       
Laura Knauss 
Principal-in-Charge 

Date:     April 26, 2023



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

A. SCOPE OF PROJECT ....................................................................................................................................... 1 
B. BASIC SERVICES .............................................................................................................................................. 1 
C. SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE ..................................................................................................................... 4 
D. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE .............................................................................................................. 8 
E. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE ............................................................................................ 12 
F. BIDDING PHASE .......................................................................................................................................... 15 
G. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE ....................................................... 16 
H. CLOSE OUT PHASE ..................................................................................................................................... 21 
I. MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS ........................................................................................ 22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT 
 
Architect shall provide all professional services necessary for completing the following: 
 
SCOPE OF PROJECT 

Project Name:  Luther Burbank High School New Softball Field and Baseball Field Improvements 

 Construction Cost Budget:  $6,000,000 (budget)   

• Complete replacement of the varsity baseball and softball fields; including the following: 

o Grading and complete irrigation system and sod/infield dirt; note no subsurface 
drainage (irrigation booster pump was recently installed) 

o New fencing for entire fields; use of mow curb all fence locations 

o New dugouts; note CMU (use of color block or paint) develop space for storage 
(TBD) at end of one dugout each field 

o New scoreboard for each field (power / wireless) 

o Two (2) Bullpens needed for home; one (1) for visitors - both fields 

o Baseball and Softball batting cages are needed with lighting 

o 5 row bleacher units each field and scorer’s table 

o ADA path of travel will be required; use of nearby stadium restrooms, parking 

• Evaluate tennis courts to either repair or replace in kind – 6 courts (surfacing, fencing, 
nets, etc.) 

o If need to replace, evaluate alternate location (possible move towards new fields, 
stadium for more of athletic complex). 

• Additional notes – no lighting, if budget allows new fence / infield for JV fields 

   

B. BASIC SERVICES  

Architect agrees to provide the Services described below:   
 

1. Architect shall be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of all 
studies, reports, projections, master plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

services furnished by Architect under the Agreement as well as coordination with all 
master plans, studies, reports and other information provided by District.  Architect shall, 
without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or omissions in its studies, 
reports, projections, master plans, design, drawings, specifications and other Services.   

 
2. Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications 

and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders 
discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have 
an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance.  Architect shall advise the District of 
the most effective methods of identifying and securing such information as part of each 
stage of design.  Architect shall track for District's benefit all such suggested and 
disclosed information. 

 
3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information 

relates to Architect’s scope of work.  This information shall include, if available,  
 

a. As-builts;  
 

b. Physical characteristics;  
 

c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);  
 

d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);  
 

e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;  
 

f. Adjacent drainage;  
 

g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and 
boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);  

 
h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other 

improvements and trees;  
 
i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other 

services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;   
 

j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and 
 

k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings. 
 

Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including 
capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 3 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent determinable by the 
documents provided by the District.   
 
If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is 
insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires:  a topographical survey; a 
geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests for air and/or 
water pollution; test borings; test pits; determinations of soil bearing values; percolation 
tests; ground corrosion tests; resistivity tests; tests for hazardous materials; tests for 
anticipating subsoil conditions; and/or other information that the District has not 
provided, then, at the soonest possible time after Architect has become aware that this 
additional information is needed, the Architect shall request that the District acquire that 
information.  If the Parties mutually agree in writing, this additional information and service 
shall be procured through the Architect, who may invoice the District for those services as 
Extra Services.  

 
4. Mandatory Assistance.  If a third party dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or 

relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's 
request, the Architect, its agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the 
dispute or litigation. Architect's assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing 
professional consultations, attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any 
event related to the dispute resolution and/or litigation (“Mandatory Assistance”). 

 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 4 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

C. SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
 

Architect shall prepare for the District’s review a Schematic Design Study, containing the 
following items as applicable to the Project scope, as follows: 

 
1. Prepare and review with District staff a scope of work list and work plan identifying specific 

tasks including, but not limited to: interviews, data collection, analysis, report preparation, 
planning, architectural programming, concepts and schematic design preparation and 
estimating that are part of the work of the Project.  Also identified will be milestone 
activities or dates, specific task responsibilities of the Architect, required completion times 
necessary for the review and approval by the District and by pertinent regulatory agencies 
and additional definition of deliverables. 

 
2. Review the developed work plan with the District and its representatives to familiarize 

them with the proposed tasks and schedule and develop necessary modifications. 
 

3. Architectural 
 

a. Scaled floor plans showing overall dimensions, identifying the various major areas and 
their relationship.  Include circulation and room-by-room tabulation of all net usable 
floor areas and a summary of gross floor area.  Also, provide typical layouts of major 
equipment or operational layout. 

 
b. Preliminary building exterior elevations and sections in sufficient detail to demonstrate 

design concept indicating location and size of fenestration. 
 

c. Preliminary Building Code Analysis and Plumbing Fixture County identifying ADA 
requirements that will influence the design. 

 
d. Identify minimum finish requirements, including ceiling, floors, walls, doors, windows, 

and types of hardware. 
 

e. Identify code requirements, include occupancy classification(s) and type of 
construction. 

 
4. Mechanical 

 
a. Show selected system on drawings as follows: 

 
(i) Single line drawing(s) of all mechanical equipment spaces, ductwork and pipe 

chases. 
 
(ii) Location and preliminary sizing of all major equipment and duct work in allocated 

spaces. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 5 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(iii) Schematic piping. 
 
(iv) Temperature control zoning. 

 
b. Provide design criteria to include the intent base of design for the Project. 

 
c. Evaluate and confirm the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact 

of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to 
accommodate the increase. 

 
5. Electrical 

 
a. Calculate overall approximate electrical loads. 

 
b. Identify proposed electrical system for service, power, lighting, low voltage and 

communication loads, including proposed or planned additional buildings or other 
facilities on the Project site. 

 
c. Show system(s) selected on drawings as follows: 

 
(i) Single line drawing(s) showing major distribution system. 
 
(ii) Location and preliminary sizing of all major electrical systems and components 

including: 
 

(A) Load centers. 

(B) Main panels. 

(C) Switch gear. 
 

d. Provide design criteria to include the intent base of design for the Project.  
 

e. Evaluate and confirm the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact 
of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to 
accommodate the increase. 

 
6. Civil 

 
a. Develop on site utility systems such as sewer, water, storm drain, firewater lines and 

fire hydrants. 
 

b. Identify surface improvements including walkways, preliminary finish grades and 
drainage. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 6 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
c. Coordinate finish floor elevations with architectural site plan. 

 
7. Specifications 

 
Prepare outline specifications of proposed architectural, structural, mechanical and 
electrical materials, systems and equipment and their criteria and quality standards.  
Architect is to use District’s standardized equipment/material list for new construction and 
modernization in development of the Project design and specifications.   Architect shall 
review and comment on District’s construction bid contracts and contract documents (the 
“Division 0” and “Division 1” documents) as part of its Services under the Agreement. 

 
8.  Construction Cost Budget 

 
Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions identified 
in the preceding Phase, the following conditions apply to the revised Construction Cost 
Budget: 

 
a. Schematic Estimates: This estimate consists of unit cost applied to the major items and 

quantities of work.  The unit cost shall reflect the complete direct current cost of work.  
Complete cost includes labor, material, waste allowance, sales tax and subcontractor's 
mark-up.   

 
(i) General conditions shall be applied separately.  This estimate shall be prepared by 

specification section and summarized by the CSI categories.   
 

b. The estimate shall separate the Project's building cost from site and utilities cost.  
Architect shall submit to the District the cost estimating format for prior review and 
approval. 

 
c. Escalation: all estimates shall be priced out at current market conditions.  The estimates 

shall incorporate all adjustments as appropriate, relating to mid-point construction, 
contingency, and cost index (i.e. Lee Saylor Index). 

 
d. The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect; however, the priorities will be established at the 
completion of the Schematic Design phase by the District should the requested scope 
as determined in this phase exceed the original budget. 

 
e. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the 

Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall coordinate 
with the District and Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile 
the Construction Cost Budget.   



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 7 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

f. At the end of this Phase, the Construction Cost Budget may include design 
contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates. 

 
9. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Breakdown of Construction Cost Budget as prepared for this Phase; 
 
b. Meeting reports/minutes; 
 
c. Schematic Design Package with alternatives; 
 
d. Statement indicating changes made to the Architectural Program and Schedule; 

and 
 
e. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or 

notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA. 
 

10. Presentation 
 

a. Architect shall present and review with the District the detailed Schematic Design. 
 

b. The Schematic Design shall be revised within the accepted program parameters until 
a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been accepted and 
approved by the District at no additional cost to the District. 

 
11. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J. 

 
 
 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 8 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

D. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE  
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted 
deliverables from the Schematic Design Phase, the Design Development Phase documents 
consisting of the following for each proposed system within Architect’s scope of services:  

 
1. Architectural 

 
a. Scaled, dimensioned floor plans with final room locations including all openings. 

 
b. 1/8” scale building sections showing dimensional relationships, materials and 

component relationships. 
 
c. Exterior elevations of existing buildings to be renovated and all architectural elements 

of the Project. 
 

d. Identification of all fixed equipment to be installed in Project. 
 
e. Interior finishes identified and located within the rooms of all buildings. 

 
f. Site plan completely drawn with beginning notes and dimensions including grading 

and paving. 
 

g. Preliminary development of details and large scale blow-ups. 
 

h. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 
 

i. Floor plans identifying all fixed and major movable equipment and furniture. 
 

j. Further refinement of Outline Specifications for architectural, structural, mechanical, 
electrical, civil and landscape manuals, systems and equipment. 

 
k. Typical reflected ceiling development including ceiling grid and heights for each 

ceiling to be used, showing: 
 

(i) Light fixtures. 
 
(ii) Ceiling registers or diffusers. 
 
(iii) Access Panels. 

 
  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 9 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

2. Structural 
 

a. Structural drawings with all major members located and sized. 
 

b. Establish final building and floor elevations. 
 

c. Preliminary specifications. 
 
d. Preliminary calculations for the structural systems including lateral force resistive 

systems, foundations, and all structural system components. 
 

e. Identify foundation requirement (including fill requirement, piles) with associated soil 
pressure, water table and seismic center. 

 
3. Mechanical 

 
a. Heating and cooling load calculations as required and major duct or pipe runs sized 

to interface with structural. 
 

b. Major mechanical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity. 
 

c. Ductwork and piping should be substantially located and sized. 
 
d. Plumbing plans for the Project shall indicate numbers and locations of fixtures and be 

in conformance with the code-mandated fixture count requirements of the Project. 
 

e. Devices in ceiling should be located. 
 

f. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 
 

g. More developed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and manufacture. 
 

h. Control Systems identified. 
 

i. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and 
systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase 
these loads to accommodate the increase. 

 
4. Electrical 

 
a. All lighting fixtures should be located and scheduled showing all types and quantities 

of fixtures to be used, including proposed lighting levels for each usable space. 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 10 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

b. All major electrical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity. 
 

c. Complete electrical distribution including a one-line diagram indicating final location 
of switchboards, communications, controls (high and low voltage), motor control 
centers, panels, transformers and emergency generators, if required.  Low-voltage 
system includes fire alarm system, security system, clock and public address system, 
bell system, voice-data system, and telecom/technology system. 

 
d. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 

 
e. More developed and detailed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and 

manufacture. 
 

f. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and 
systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase 
these loads to accommodate the increase. 

 
5. Civil 

 
a. Further refinement of Schematic Design Phase development of on and off site utility 

systems for sewer, electrical, water, storm drain and fire water.  Includes, without 
limitation, pipe sizes, materials, invert elevation location and installation details. 

 
b. Further refinement of Schematic Design Phase walkways, and storm drainage 

improvements.   
 

6. Bid Documents 
 
Architect shall review and comment on District’s construction bid contracts and contract 
documents (the “Division 0” documents and “Division 1” documents) as part of its Services 
under the Agreement. 

 
7. Construction Cost Budget 

 
a. Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions 

identified in the Agreement and the preceding Phases, the following conditions apply 
to the revised Construction Cost Budget: 

 
(i) Design Development Estimate: This further revised estimate shall be prepared by 

specification section, summarized by CSI category and divided by trade and work 
item.  The estimate shall include individual item unit costs of materials, labor and 
equipment.  Sales tax, Contractor's mark-ups, and general conditions shall be listed 
separately.   

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 11 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 
Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
(iii) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget may include design 

contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates. 
 

b. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the 
Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, the Architect shall 
coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, 
and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
8. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this 
phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format: 

 
a. Design Development drawing set from all professional disciplines necessary to deliver 

the Project; 
 

b. Specifications; 
 

c. Revised Construction Cost Budget; and 
 

d. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or 
notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA.  

 
The Design Development deliverables shall be revised within the accepted program 
parameters until a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been 
accepted and approved by the District at no additional cost to the District. 

 
9. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J. 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 12 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

E. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District 
has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted 
deliverables from the Design Development Phase the Construction Documents consisting 
of the following for each proposed system within Architect’s scope of work.  All Projects 
subject to DSA’s jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under 
the electronic plan review process (“EPR process”), rather than paper submission. 

 
1. Construction Documents (“CD”) 100% Stage: 

 
a. General 

 
Endeavor to determine lead times and availability of all Project equipment, materials, 
and supplies and ensure that all of these will be available to the Contractor in a timely 
fashion so as not to delay the Project. 

 
b. Architectural 

 
(i) Completed site plan. 
 
(ii) Completed floor plans, elevations, and sections. 
 
(iii) Architectural details and large blow-ups completed. 
 
(iv) Finish, door, and hardware schedules completed, including all details. 
 
(v) Fixed equipment details and identification completed. 
 
(vi) Reflected ceiling plans completed. 
 

c. Structural 
 

(i) Structural floor plans and sections with detailing completed. 
 
(ii) Structural calculations completed. 

 
d. Mechanical 

 
(i) Large scale mechanical details complete. 
 
(ii) Mechanical schedules for equipment completed. 
 
(iii) Completed electrical schematic for environmental cooling and exhaust equipment. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 13 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
(iv) Complete energy conservation calculations and report. 

 
e. Electrical 

 
(i) Lighting and power plan showing all switching and controls.  Fixture schedule and 

lighting details completed. 
 
(ii) Distribution information on all power consuming equipment, including lighting, 

power, signal and communication device(s) branch wiring completed. 
 
(iii) All electrical equipment schedules completed. 
 
(iv) Special system components plans completed. 
 
(v) Electrical load calculations completed.  

 
f. Civil 

 
All site plans, site utilities, and drainage systems completed. 

 
g. Construction Cost Budget 

 
(i) Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions 

identified in the preceding phases, Architect shall update and refine the Design 
Development Phase revisions to the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
(ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
(iii) Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and 

the Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall 
coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, 
review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
(iv) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget shall not include any 

design contingencies in excess of the cost estimates. 
 
 
 
 
 

h. Specifications 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 14 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
(i) Complete development and preparation of technical specifications describing 

materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and performance criteria 
required for the construction of the Project.   

 
(ii) No part of the specifications shall call for a designated material, product, thing, or 

service by specific brand or trade name unless: 
 

(A) The specification is followed by the words “or equal” so that bidders may 
furnish any equal material, product, thing, or service, as required by Public 
Contract Code section 3400, or 

 
(B) The designation is allowable by specific allowable exemptions or exceptions 

pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400. 
 

(iii) Specifications shall not contain restrictions that will limit competitive bids other 
than those required for maintenance convenience by the District and only with 
District’s prior approval. 

 
(iv) At one hundred percent (100%) review, District shall review the Specifications and 

shall direct Architect to make corrections at no cost to the District. 
 
(v) Coordination of the Specifications with specifications developed by other 

disciplines. 
 
(vi) Specifications shall be in CSI format. 

 
i. Constructability Review 

 
The District and/or its designee, at its sole discretion, shall have the right to conduct a 
constructability review of the Construction Documents.  A report shall be given to the 
Architect who shall make necessary changes along with providing written comments 
for each item listed in the report.  Conducting a constructability review does not excuse 
the Architect’s obligation to provide Services that shall comply with professional 
architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects 
designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and 
local law. 

 
j. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a 
hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of 
each item in electronic format: 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 15 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(i) Working drawings; 
 
(ii) Specifications; 
 
(iii) Engineering calculations; 
(iv) Construction Cost Budgets; 
 
(v) Statement of requirements for testing and inspection of service for compliance 

with Construction Documents and applicable codes; 
 
(vi) Copy of DSA file including all correspondence, meeting, minutes or reports, back-

check comments, checklists to date; and 
 
(vii) Statement indicating any authorized changes made to the design from the last 

Phase and the cost impact of each change on the previously approved 
Construction Cost Budget.  If no design changes occur but shifts of costs occur 
between disciplines, identify for District review.   

 
2. Construction Documents Final Back-Check Stage: 

 
a. The Construction Documents final back-check stage shall be for the purpose of the 

Architect incorporating all regulatory agencies' comments into the drawings, 
specifications, and estimate.  All changes made by the Architect during this stage shall 
be at no additional cost to the District. 

 
b. The final contract documents delivered to the District upon completion of the 

Architect’s work shall be the Bid Set and shall consist of the following: 
 

(i) Drawings: Original tracings of all drawings on Architect’s tracing paper with each 
Architect/Consultant’s State license stamp. 

 
(ii) Specifications: Original word-processed technical specifications on reproducible 

masters in CSI format.  
 

c. Architect shall update and refine the Consultants’ completed Contract Documents.  

d. Conclusion of Construction Document Phase requires final stamp-out by DSA. 
 

3. Meetings 
 

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J. 

 
F. BIDDING PHASE 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 16 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Bidding Phase services for 
District as follows:  

 
1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project. 

 
2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract 

Documents with the District. 
 

3. The development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents 
shall be the joint responsibility of the District and Architect.  Nevertheless, Architect will 
use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other 
information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and 
publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a 
Contractor's cost of performance. 

 
4. While the Project is being advertised for bids, all questions concerning intent shall be 

referred to the District for screening and subsequent processing through Architect. 
 

5. In the event that items requiring interpretation of the drawings or specifications are 
discovered during the bidding period, those items shall be analyzed by the Architect for 
decision by the District as to the proper procedure required.  Corrective action will be in 
the form of an addendum prepared by the Architect and issued by the District.   

 
6. Attend bid opening. 

 
7. Coordinate with Consultants. 

 
8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications. 

 
9. Deliverables and Number of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;  

 
b. Meeting report/minutes from the pre-bid site walk; and 

G. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Construction Contract 
Administration Phase services for the District as follows:  

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 17 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

1. Architect’s responsibility to provide basic services for the Construction Phase under the 
Agreement commences with the award of the contract for construction and terminates 
upon satisfactory performance and completion of all tasks in this phase and 
commencement of the Closeout Phase or upon the District’s terminating the Agreement, 
whichever is earlier. 

 
2. Construction Oversight and Project Certification Process  

a. Architect shall ensure that the Project Inspector is approved by the DSA for the Project 
by submitting the applicable Inspector’s Qualification Record (form DSA 5 or more 
current version) to and by obtaining approval from the DSA prior to commencement 
of construction and prior to requesting issuance of project inspections cards (form DSA 
152 or more current version). 

b. Architect shall request issuance of the proper number of project inspection cards 
(forms DSA 152 or more current version) by electronically submitting form DSA 102-
IC (or more current version) to the DSA after the construction contract has been 
awarded.  Architect shall provide project inspection cards to the Project Inspector prior 
to commencement of construction. 

c. Prior to commencement of construction, Architect shall provide (1) a copy of the DSA 
approved construction documents and (2) the DSA approved Statement of Structural 
Tests and Special Inspections (form DSA 103 or more current version) prepared by 
Architect to the Project Inspector and Laboratory of Record. 

d. Architect shall prepare and submit a Contract Information form (form DSA 102 or more 
current version) for all construction contracts. 

e. Architect shall maintain such personal contact with the Project as is necessary to assure 
themselves of compliance, in every material respect, with the DSA-approved 
construction documents.  Personal contact shall include visits to the Project site by the 
Architect or engineer or their qualified representative to observe construction.   

f. Architect shall notify DSA as to the disposition of materials noted on laboratory testing, 
and/or special inspection, reports as not conforming to the DSA-approved 
construction documents. 

g. Architect shall respond to DSA field trip notes as necessary. 

h. Architect shall submit an interim Verified Report (form DSA 6-AE or more current 
version) to the DSA electronically and a copy to the Project Inspector for each of the 
applicable nine (9) sections of form DSA 152 prior to the Project Inspector signing off 
that section of the project inspection card. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 18 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

i. Architect shall submit a Statement of Final Actual Project Cost (form DSA 168 or more 
current version) to the DSA. 

j. Architect shall submit Verified Reports (form DSA 6-AE or more current form) to the 
DSA and to the Project Inspector if any of the following events occur:  (1) when 
construction is sufficiently complete in accordance with the DSA-approved 
construction documents so that the District can occupy or utilize the Project; (2) work 
on the Project is suspended for a period of more than one month; (3) the services of 
the Architect are terminated for any reason prior to completion of the Project; or (4) 
DSA requests a Verified Report.    

 
3. Change Orders 

 
a. Architect shall review all of Contractor’s change order requests to determine if those 

requests are valid and appropriate.  Architect shall provide a recommendation to 
District as to whether the change should be approved, partially approved, returned to 
the Contractor for clarification, or rejected.  

 
b. Architect shall furnish all necessary Construction Change Documents and additional 

drawings for supplementing, clarifying, and/or correcting purposes and for change 
orders.  The District shall request these Construction Change Documents and drawings 
from the Architect, which shall be provided at no additional cost unless designated as 
Extra Services by the District.  The original drawings and contract wording for change 
orders shall be submitted to the District for duplication and distribution. 

 
4. Submittals 

 
a. Architect shall review and approve or take other appropriate action upon Contractor's 

submittals such as: shop drawings, Project data, samples and Construction Change 
Documents, but only for the purpose of checking for conformance with information 
given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.   

 
b. Architect shall review Contractor’s schedule of submittals and advise the District on 

whether that schedule is complete.  Architect shall provide the District with proposed 
revisions to this schedule and advise the District on whether the District should 
approve this schedule. 

 
c. Architect’s action upon Contractor’s submittals shall be taken as expeditiously as 

possible so as to cause no unreasonable delay in the construction of the Project or in 
the work of Contractor(s), while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional 
judgment to permit adequate review.  In no case shall the review period associated 
with a single, particular submittal exceed twenty-one (21) calendar days from its receipt 
by the Architect.  Architect’s response to each submittal shall be a substantive and 
acceptable response.  This twenty-one (21)-day time period shall not include time 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 19 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

when a submittal is within the District’s control or if the submittal is being reviewed by 
DSA.  In no way does this provision reduce Architect’s liability if it fails to prepare 
acceptable documents. 

 
5. RFIs.  During the course of construction as part of the basic services, Architect must 

respond to all Requests for Information (“RFI”) as expeditiously as possible so as not to 
impact and delay the construction progress.  In no case shall the review period associated 
with an RFI exceed seven (7) calendar days from receipt by the Architect unless the 
complexity of the RFI warrants a longer time period for the review as reasonably agreed 
to by both parties.  Architect’s response to each RFI shall be a substantive and acceptable 
response.  This seven-day time period shall not include time when a submittal is within the 
District’s control or if the submittal is being reviewed by DSA.  In no way does this provision 
reduce the Architect’s liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents.  Architect must 
verify that RFIs are passed through the Project Inspector, if any. 

 
6. Notices of Deficient Work.  On the basis of on-site observations, Architect shall keep the 

District informed of the progress and the quality of the work, and shall endeavor to guard 
the District against defects and deficiencies in the work.  Architect shall timely notify the 
District in writing of any defects or deficiencies in the work by any of the District’s 
Contractors that Architect may observe.  However, Architect shall not be a guarantor of 
the Contractor's performance. Further, the Architect shall not have control over, charge of, 
or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or 
procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the work. These 
are the responsibility of the General Contractor. 

 
7. Record Drawings.  Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, 

details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District.  
The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of drawings, all changes from all 
sketches, details, and clarifications, including, without limitation, all requests for 
information, Construction Change Documents and change orders based upon the 
construction Contractor’s representations of actual construction.  Architect shall deliver 
the Record Drawings to the District at completion of the construction in a format 
acceptable to the District, and it shall be a condition precedent to the District’s approval 
of Architect’s final payment.  Architect may insert the following notice on the Record 
Drawings: 

 
These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based 
on information submitted, in part, by others.  Architect has provided a 
review consistent with its legal standard of care. 
 

8. O&M Manuals and Warranties.  Architect shall review equipment, operation and 
maintenance manuals, and a complete set of warranty documents for all equipment and 
installed systems, to ensure that they meet the requirements of the plans and 
specifications.  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 20 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
9. Start-up.  Architect shall also provide, at the District’s request, architectural/engineering 

advice to the District on start-up, break-in, and debugging of facility systems and 
equipment, and on apparent deficiencies or defects in construction following the 
acceptance of the Contractor's work. 

 
10. Payment Statements.  Recommendations of Payment by Architect constitute Architect’s 

representation to the District that work has progressed to the point indicated to the best 
of Architect’s knowledge, information, and belief, and that the quality of the work is in 
general conformance with the Contract Documents.  

 
11. Deliverables and Number of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;  

 
b. Observation reports; and 

 
c. Weekly meeting reports.  

 
12. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J. 

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 21 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CLOSE-OUT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

H. CLOSE OUT PHASE 
 

1. As the Construction Administration Phase progresses, Architect shall perform the following 
Close Out Phase services for the District as required in a timely manner: 

 
a. Architect shall review the Project and observe the construction as required to 

determine when the Contractor has completed the construction of the Project and 
shall prepare punch lists of items that remain in need of correction or completion. 

 
b. Architect shall collect from the Contractor, review, and forward to the District all written 

warranties, operation manuals, and spare parts with Architect’s recommendation as to 
the adequacy of these items. 

 
c. Architect shall prepare or collect, as applicable, and provide to DSA, all reports required 

by DSA related to the design and construction of the Project. 
 

d. Architect shall respond to the DSA “90-day” letter. 
 

e. Architect shall obtain all required DSA approval of all Construction Change Documents 
and addenda to the Contractor’s contract. 

 
f. Architect shall prepare a set of Record Drawings for the Project, as required by the 

District. 
 

g. Architect shall review all warranty and O&M documentation prepared by the General 
Contractor. 

 
h. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to close-

out the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants. 
 

2. When the design and construction of the Project is complete, the District shall prepare and 
record with the County Recorder a Notice of Completion for the Project. 

 
3. Deliverables and Number of Copies 

 
a. Punch list; and 

 
b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including Record 

Drawings.  These are the sole property of the District. 
 

4. Meetings 
 

During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 22 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

I. MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS 
 

1. Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and 
workshops as indicated below.  Architect shall chair, conduct and take minutes of all 
coordination meetings with its Consultant(s) during the entire design phase.  Architect 
shall invite the District and/or its representative to participate in these meetings.  Architect 
shall keep a separate log to document design/coordination comments generated in these 
meetings.   
 

2. General Meeting, Site Visit, and Workshop Requirements 
 

a. Architect shall always be prepared to answer questions and issues from District staff, 
site staff, potential bidders, and/or Contractors, as applicable.   

 
b. Architect shall maintain a log of all meetings, site visits or site observations held in 

conjunction with the design and construction of the Project, with documentation of 
major discussion points, observations, decisions, questions or comments.  These shall 
be furnished to the District and/or its representative for inclusion in the overall Project 
documentation. 

 
c. As required, Architect shall provide at no additional cost to the District copies of all 

documents or other information needed for each meeting, site visit, and workshop.   
 

d. Each meeting may last up to four hours and shall be held at the District office or at the 
Project site, unless otherwise indicated. 

 
3. Initial Site Visits (One (1) meeting(s)) 

 
a. Architect shall visit the Project site to complete a visual inventory and documentation 

of the existing conditions.  
 

4. Meetings During Schematic Design Phase (Two (2) meeting(s)) 
 

a. Within the first two weeks following the start of the Schematic Design Phase, Architect 
shall conduct one (1) design meeting with the District’s facilities team and site 
personnel to complete a basic design framework with computer-aided design 
equipment (“CADD”).  The District may, at its discretion, allow Architect to proceed 
with this meeting without using CADD.  This meeting shall include the following: 

 
(i) Architect shall designate its team member duties and responsibilities.  
 
(ii) Architect and District shall review District goals and expectations. 
 
(iii) District shall provide input and requirements.  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 23 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
(iv) Architect and District shall review Project scope and budget, including the 

Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.  
 
(v) Prepare and/or revise the scope of work list and general work plan from the Pre-

Design Phase, for documentation in a computer-generated Project schedule. 
 
(vi) Establish methods to facilitate the communication and coordination efforts for 

the Project. 
 

b. Architect shall participate in One (1) additional meeting to review the schematic design 
package and opinion of probable cost and confirm any design alternates that may be 
required.  
 

5. Meetings During Design Development Phase (Two (2) meeting(s)) 
 

a. At approximately mid-point of the Design Development phase, Architect shall conduct 
One (1) meeting with District personnel and applicable engineering sub-consultants to 
confirm District standards and preferred systems. 
 

b. At the time designated for completion of the Design Development package, Architect 
shall conduct One (1) meeting, per package or submittal, with the District to review the 
following:  

 
(i) Present the Design Development package for review and comment to proceed with 

preparation of final plans and specification.   
 
(ii) Architect and District shall review Project scope and budget, including the 

Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget. At this time, proposed 
design alternates that may be required to ensure compliance with the District’s 
Construction Budget will be determined. 

 
6. Meetings During Construction Documents Phase (Two (2) meeting(s)) 

 
a. At approximately the time designated for completion of the fifty percent (50%) 

submittal package, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or 
submittal, with the District to review the following: 

 
(i) Present progress on the Construction Documents submittal package for review and 

comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.   
 
(ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, 

including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.  
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 24 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

b. At the time designated for completion of the one hundred percent (100%) 
Construction Document package, concurrent with review by the Division of the State 
Architect, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with 
the District to review the following: 

 
(i) Present the hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package for review 

and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.   
 
(ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, 

including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget. 
 

7. Meetings During Bidding Phase (Two (2) meeting(s)) 
 

a. Attend and take part in One (1) pre-bid meeting(s), per package or submittal, with all 
potential bidders, District staff, and Construction Manager. 

 
b. Conduct One (1) kick-off meeting(s) with the successful bidder, District staff, and 

Construction Manager to finalize the roles and responsibilities of each party and 
provide protocols and processes to follow during construction.   

 
8. Meetings During Construction Administration Phase (weekly Project meetings until 

entire Project is complete, (6-month construction schedule assumed)) 
 

a. Architect shall visit the Project site as necessary or when requested, and in no case less 
than once per week, sufficient to determine that the Project is being constructed in 
accordance with the plans and specifications, and to resolve discrepancies in the 
Contract Documents and to monitor the progress of the construction of the Project.   

 
b. Conduct weekly Project meetings with District staff to review with District staff the 

progress of the work.  Architect agrees to attend weekly Project meetings, at no 
additional cost to the District, until the work of the Project is complete.  

 
c. Architect shall ensure that Consultant(s) visit the site in conformance with their 

agreement(s) and that Consultant agreements shall reference District requirements for 
Construction Phase services. 

 
END OF EXHIBIT



 

EXHIBIT B Page B - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “B” 

CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES 

The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if 
authorized or requested by the District: 

A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this 
Agreement, or otherwise included within Exhibit “A.”    

B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit “A.”  
Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall 
inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of the number indicated 
in Exhibit “A,” so that the District can procure the additional deliverables itself or direct 
Architect to procure the deliverables at the District’s expense or on the District’s account 
at a specific vendor. 

C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are 
required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the 
preparation of the Conforming Set.  

D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause 
during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of 
that work. 

E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s). 

F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing 
services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) 
and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under the Agreement. 

G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, 
arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way 
cause the dispute that is being adjudicated. 

H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be 
utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of 
the Agreement. 

Job Title Hourly Rate 
Principal In Charge: $255 
Associate Principal: $240 
Project Manager (Senior): $200 
Designer: $130 - $150 
Assistant Project Manager: $190 
Architect: $165 - $190 



 

EXHIBIT B Page B - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Contract Administrator:  
Other  
Other   

I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five 
percent (5%).  

1. The following items are approved for mark-up: 

a. Sub-consultant Invoices. 

2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be 
marked-up. 

J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only) 

Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect’s invoices to include detailed 
explanations of the Services performed.  For example, a six hour charge for “RFIs and CORs” 
is unacceptable and will not be payable.  A more detailed explanation, with specificity, is 
required.  This includes a separate entry for each RFI, PCO, CCD and change order.  For 
example, the following descriptions, in addition to complying with all other terms of this 
Agreement, would be payable.  The times indicated below are just placeholders: 

Review RFI 23; review plans and specifications for response to 
same; prepare responses to same and forward to contractor, 
district, construction manager, and project inspector.   

0.8 hours 

Review COR 8; review scope of same and plans and specifications 
for appropriateness of same; prepare draft change order and 
language for same. 

0.7 hours 

Review COR 11; review scope of same and plans and 
specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare rejection of 
COR 11 for review by district, CM, IOR. 

1.2 hours 

 

END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT C Page C - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “C” 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for 
approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect 
proposes to carry out Architect's Services (“Schedule of Services”).  The Schedule of Services 
shall apply to the completion of all Services listed hereunder within the times established by 
this Agreement.  The Schedule of Services shall be in the form of a progress chart clearly 
delineating all important increments and review dates.   

B. Architect shall complete Services required under the Schematic Design Phase within 30 
calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed (March 1 – March 30, 
2023). 

C. Architect shall complete Services required under the Design Development Phase within 30 
calendar days after receipt of a written authorization from District to proceed (April 1-April 
30, 2023). 

D. Architect shall complete Services required under Construction Documents Phase within 60 
calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed, and as more specifically 
indicated below (May 1-June 30, 2023).  Excluded from this duration is the time associated 
with DSA review the Construction Documents back-check stage. 

1. 100% Submittal Package 30 calendar days 
2. 100% Design Development Package 30 calendar days 
3. 100% Construction Documents 60 calendar days 
4. Final Contract Documents after Final Back-Check Stage Anticipated approval 

dates: October 2023 

E. The durations stated above include the review periods of 10 calendar days required by the 
District. 

F. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the 
Agreement.  If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District’s 
inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Architect shall maintain the right to 
request an adjustment in the Schedule of Services if deemed necessary to meet the 
deadlines set forth in this Exhibit.  If approved, those extensions shall be authorized in 
writing by the District. 

 

END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES   
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “D” 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

A. Compensation 

1. The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full 
compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof, 
including, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in Exhibit 
“A,”. Except as expressly set forth in the Agreement and Exhibit “B,” there shall be 
no payment for extra costs or expenses. 

2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement. 

3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this 
Agreement: 

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL FEE PER PHASE 
      Phase Phase Amount 
Schematic Design Phase 10% 
Design Development Phase 15% 
Construction Documents Phase-Submittal to DSA 30% 
Approval by DSA 10% 
Bidding Phase 5% 
Construction Contract Administration Phase 25% 
Close Out Phase 5% 
 Generate Punch List 1%  
 Sign Off On Punch List 1%  
 Receive and Review All M&O Documents 1%  
 Filing All DSA Required Close Out Documents 1%  
 Receiving DSA Close Out, including DSA 
    approval of the final set of Record Drawings 1% 

 

TOTAL BASE COMPENSATION 100% 

Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional 
Services and will be billed at a multiple of 1.10% the expenses incurred.  These 
charges include, but are not limited to, expenses incurred which are directly 
related to the Project, such as reproductions, plans and plots for owner, agency 
or contractor’s use, standard form documents, postage, handling and delivery of 
Instruments of Service, and mileage. Reimbursable expenses are not expected to 
exceed $19,500. 

 

 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES   
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

B. Method of Payment 

1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the 
District via the District’s authorized representative. 

2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof 
that payments were made to its Consultant(s). 

3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect’s monthly 
pay request format. 

4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect’s invoices, the District agrees to make 
payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as 
follows: 

a. For Schematic Design Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Schematic Design Phase by 
the District. 

b. For Design Development Phase:  

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Design Development Phase 
by the District. 

c. For Construction Documents Phase: 

Monthly payments for percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five 
percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Construction Documents 
Phase by the District.  

d. For Bidding Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon the District’s award of the bid. 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 3 

AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

e. For Construction Contract Administration Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon the District’s notice of completion. 

f. For Close Out: 

Lump sum payment no sooner than thirty-five (35) days and no later than 
forty-five (45) days after completion of all items in this Phase. 

 
END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 4 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “E” 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and maintain 
for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages 
to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services 
hereunder by the Architect, his agents, representatives, employees and Consultant(s).  
Architect’s liabilities, including but not limited to Architect’s indemnity or defense obligations, 
under this Agreement shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage 
required herein. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this 
Agreement and Architect’s failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of 
renewal during the term of this Agreement, as required or when requested, may be treated by 
the District as a material breach of contract. 

B. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as the 
following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the need 
for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability coverages that at least follow form 
over the underlying insurance requirements where necessary for Commercial General Liability, 
Commercial Automobile Liability, Employers’ Liability, and other liability coverage (except 
Professional Liability) designated under this Section B – Insurance Requirements.” Minimum 
Scope of Insurance. 

1. Commercial General Liability. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for 
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability or 
other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit 
shall apply separately to each project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be 
twice the required occurrence limit.  

2. Commercial Automobile Liability. One million dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury 
and property damage. 

 
3. Workers' Compensation Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject 

to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, 
Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation policy.   
 

4. Employers’ Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this 
Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employment Practices 
Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per 
occurrence.   

 
5. Professional Liability.  This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and 

his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) 
aggregate limit subject to no more than Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000) per 
claim deductible, coverage to continue through completion of construction plus two (2) 
years thereafter. 



 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 5 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate 
credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.  

D. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention:  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any 
deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000).  At 
the option of the District, either:  

1. The District can accept the higher deductible; or 

2. Architect’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as 
respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.  

E. Other Insurance Provisions:  The general liability and automobile liability policies are to 
contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  

1. The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, 
agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as additional insureds 
as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Architect; 
Instruments of Service and completed operations of the Architect; premises owned, 
occupied or used by the Architect; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by 
the Architect.  The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of 
protection afforded to the Additional Insureds.  

 
2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect’s insurance coverage shall be primary 

insurance as respects the Additional Insureds.  Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it.  

 
3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation 

against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers. 

 
4. Architect’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made 

or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.  

5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including 
breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.  

 
6. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage 

shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after 
thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been 
given to the District.  

 
7. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of 

subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to maintain 



 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 6 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and retain amount 
of premium from any sums due Architect under the Agreement. 

8. Architect shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect 
deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s scope of the Work unless otherwise 
indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the subconsultants to furnish proof 
thereof to District within ten (10) days of District’s request. Should Architect not require 
subconsultants to provide the same level of insurance as is required of Architect, as 
provided in this Agreement, Architect is not relieved of its indemnity obligations to 
District or fulfilling its insurance requirements as provided in this Agreement. 

F. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a 
current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII.  Architect shall inform the District in writing if 
any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating less than A:VII.  At the option of the District, the 
District may either:  

1. Accept the lower rating; or 

2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer. 

G. Verification of Coverage:  Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this 
Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:  

1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; and 
 
2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage.  The 

endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 
coverages on its behalf.  All endorsements are to be received and approved by the 
District before Services commence.  

H. Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, Architect will furnish District with a 
copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement. 

 
END OF EXHIBIT 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement for Architectural Services 

between 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

and 

Lionakis 

 
 

C.K. McClatchy New Softball Field and Baseball Field 
Improvement Project 

 
 

Dated: May 18, 2023 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page i 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Article 1  Definitions ................................................................................................................................................. 1 

Article 2  Scope, Responsibilities and Services of Architect ...................................................................... 3 

Article 3  Architect Staff .......................................................................................................................................... 7 

Article 4  Schedule of Services ............................................................................................................................. 9 

Article 5  Construction Cost Budget ................................................................................................................... 9 

Article 6  Fee and Method of Payment .......................................................................................................... 10 

Article 7  Payment for Extra Services or Changes ...................................................................................... 11 

Article 8  Ownership of Data .............................................................................................................................. 11 

Article 9  Termination of Contract ................................................................................................................... 13 

Article 10 Indemnity / Architect Liability ........................................................................................................ 14 

Article 11 Fingerprinting and Conduct on Project Site ............................................................................. 15 

Article 12 Responsibilities of the District ........................................................................................................ 15 

Article 13 Liability of District ............................................................................................................................... 16 

Article 14 Nondiscrimination .............................................................................................................................. 17 

Article 15 Insurance ................................................................................................................................................ 17 

Article 16 Covenant against Contingent Fees .............................................................................................. 17 

Article 17 Entire Agreement/Modification ..................................................................................................... 18 

Article 18 Non-Assignment of Agreement .................................................................................................... 18 

Article 19 Law, Venue ............................................................................................................................................. 18 

Article 20 Alternative Dispute Resolution ...................................................................................................... 18 

Article 21 Tolling of Claims .................................................................................................................................. 19 

Article 22 Attorneys’ Fees ..................................................................................................................................... 19 

Article 23 Severability ............................................................................................................................................ 19 

Article 24 Employment Status ............................................................................................................................ 20 

Article 25 Certificate of Architect ...................................................................................................................... 21 

Article 26 Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports ............................................................... 21 

Article 27 Notice & Communications .............................................................................................................. 21 

Article 28 [RESERVED] ............................................................................................................................................ 22 

Article 29 District’s Right to Audit ..................................................................................................................... 22 

Article 30 Other Provisions .................................................................................................................................. 23 

Article 31 Exhibits ”A” through "E" .................................................................................................................... 23 

  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page ii 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

EXHIBIT “A” – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT A-1 
EXHIBIT “B” – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES B-1 
EXHIBIT “C” – SCHEDULE OF SERVICES C-1 
EXHIBIT “D” – PAYMENT SCHEDULE D-1 
EXHIBIT “E” – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS E-1 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 1 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

 This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of May 18, 2023, between the 
Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (“District”), and Lionakis 
(“Architect”) (collectively “Parties”), for the following project (“Project”):  

New Softball Field and Baseball Field Improvements on the campus of C.K. McClatchy High 
School, 3066 Freeport Boulevard, Sacramento, CA 95818 

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

Article 1. Definitions 

1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or 
phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits: 

1.1.1. Agreement:  The Agreement consists exclusively of this 
document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated 
by reference. 

1.1.2. Architect:  The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this 
Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect.  The term 
Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible 
Charge on this Project. 

1.1.3. As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”):  Any document prepared and 
submitted by District’s Contractor(s) that details on a 
Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the 
Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change 
Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District’s 
construction contractor(s) on a Conforming Set.   

1.1.4. Bid Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of 
the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State 
Architect (“DSA”) has approved and that the District can use to 
go out to bid for construction of the Project. 

1.1.5. Conforming Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the 
end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, 
issued during the Bidding Phase.  The Architect shall ensure that 
DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that are 
incorporated onto the Conforming Set and for which DSA 
approval is required. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 2 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

1.1.6. Construction Budget:  The total amount of funds indicated by 
the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including 
design, construction, administration, and financing. 

1.1.7. Construction Change Documents (“CCD”):  The 
documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction 
documents. 

1.1.8. Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all 
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, 
as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with 
this Agreement.  The Construction Cost Budget does not include 
the compensation of the Architect and the Architect’s 
Consultants, the cost of land, rights-of-way, financing or other 
costs which are the responsibility of the District, including 
construction management. 

1.1.9. Construction Manager:  The District’s representative on the 
Project if the District retains a construction manager, project 
manager, or owner’s representative. 

1.1.10. Contractor:  One or more licensed contractors under contract 
with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project. 

1.1.11. Consultant(s):  Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), 
subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect. 

1.1.12. District:  The Sacramento City Unified School District.  

1.1.13. DSA:  The Division of the State Architect. 

1.1.14. Extra Services:  District-authorized services outside of the 
scope in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursables not 
included in Architect’s Fee. 

1.1.15. Laboratory of Record: The District-designated laboratory(ies) 
for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required 
testing. 

1.1.16. Project:  District’s C.K. McClatchy New Softball Field and 
Baseball Field Improvements Project at 3066 Freeport 
Boulevard, Sacramento, CA 95818.  

1.1.17. Record Drawings:  A final set of drawings prepared by the 
Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, 
sketches, details, and clarifications. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 3 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

1.1.18. Service(s):  All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and 
work that the Architect is required to perform and that are 
required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and 
that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.  

1.1.19. Visually Verify: To verify to the fullest extent possible by 
physical observation and reasonable investigation and without 
any destructive action. 

Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect 

2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in Exhibit “A,” commencing 
with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District 
representative.  Architect’s Services will be completed in accordance with 
the schedule attached as Exhibit “C.” 

2.2. Architect and its Consultants shall provide Services for a Project: (i) using 
its professional skill and judgment; (ii) acting with due care and in 
accordance with respective applicable standards of care under California 
law for those providing similar services for projects of the size, scope and 
complexity of the Project for California school districts in or around the 
same geographic area of the District; (iii) the terms of this Agreement; and 
(iv) in accordance with said standards regarding application and 
interpretation of applicable law, code, rule or regulation at the time the 
Services are rendered (“Standard of Care”). All persons providing 
professional services hereunder shall be properly licensed as required 
under California law. 

2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a 
competitive bid process.  District reserves its right to use alternative delivery 
methods and the Architect’s scope of work may be adjusted accordingly. 

2.4. Architect acknowledges that all California public school districts are 
obligated to develop and implement the following storm water 
requirements for the discharge of storm water to surface waters from its 
construction and land disturbance activities where the project disturbs one 
(1) or more acres of land and is not part of a larger common plan of 
development or sale, the project disturbs one acre or more of land, or the 
project disturbs less than one (1) acre of land but is part of a larger common 
plan of development or sale, or where the District engages in maintenance 
(e.g., fueling, cleaning, repairing) or transportation activities. 

2.4.1. Architect shall provide the design for the Project, without limitation: 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 4 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

2.4.1.1. A municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (“MS4”).  An MS4 
is a system of conveyances used to collect and/or convey 
storm water, including, without limitation, catch basins, 
curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and storm 
drains. 

2.4.1.2. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (“SWPPP”) that 
contains specific best management practices (“BMPs”) and 
establishes numeric effluent limitations. 

2.4.2. Architect shall conform its design work to the District’s storm water 
requirements indicated above, that are approved by the District and 
applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District.  In 
addition, as required Architect shall develop a grading and drainage 
plan and a site plan from architectural information showing a final 
development of the site.  This drawing will also include a horizontal 
and vertical control plan and a utility infrastructure plan.  The 
Services described in this subparagraph shall be provided by a 
professional civil engineer who contracts with or is an employee of 
the Architect.   

2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect’s expense, Consultant(s) 
to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, 
but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil 
engineers; landscapers; and interior designers, licensed as such by the State 
of California as part of the Basic Services under this Agreement.  The names 
of Consultant(s) shall be submitted to the District for approval prior to 
commencement of Services, as indicated below.  The District reserves the 
right to reject Architect’s use of any particular Consultant.  Nothing in the 
foregoing procedure shall create any contractual relationship between the 
District and any Consultant employed by the Architect under terms of the 
Agreement.  Architect shall require each of the Consultants retained by it 
to execute agreements with standard of care and indemnity provisions 
commensurate with this Agreement, but Architect shall remain solely 
responsible and liable to District for all matters covered by this Agreement. 

2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated 
representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other 
professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or 
management of other work related to the Project.  This shall include, 
without limitation, coordination with State labor compliance, if any.  If the 
Architect employs Consultant(s), the Architect shall ensure that its 
contract(s) with its Consultant(s) include language notifying the 
Consultant(s) of State labor compliance, if any. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 5 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

2.7. Architect shall identify the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over 
essential building and design elements and coordinate with and implement 
the requirements of the regulatory agencies, including, without limitation, 
the California Department of Education, the Office of Public School 
Construction, the Department of General Services, DSA, including DSA 
Fire/Life Safety, DSA Access Compliance Section, DSA Structural Safety 
Section, the State Fire Marshal and any regulatory office or agency that has 
authority for review and supervision of school district construction projects. 

2.7.1. If the Project is subject to DSA jurisdiction, then Architect, and its 
Consultants, if any, shall comply with all the DSA requirements, 
including without limitation, all the requirements included and/or 
referenced in the following forms, bulletins (“BU”), interpretations 
of regulations (“IR”), policies (“PL”), or procedures (“PR”): 

2.7.1.1. DSA IR A-6, Construction Change Document Submittal 
and Approval Process. 

2.7.1.2. DSA IR A-18, Use of Construction Documents Prepared by 
Other Professionals. 

2.7.1.3. DSA IR A-24, Construction Phase Duties of the School 
District, Contractor and Design Professional. 

2.7.1.4. DSA PR 07-01: Pre-Check Approval Process. 

2.7.1.5. DSA PR 07-02: Over-The-Counter Review of Projects Using 
Pre-Check Approved Design. 

2.7.1.6. DSA PR 18-04.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Design 
Professionals of Record Using Bluebeam 2018. 

2.7.1.7. DSA PR 18-09.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Over-the-
Counter (“OTC”) Projects Using Bluebeam 2018. 

2.7.1.8. Form DSA PR 13-01, Construction Oversight Process. 

2.7.1.8.1. Each of Architect’s duties as provided in the 
DIR Construction Oversight Process shall be 
performed timely so as not to result in any 
delay to the Project. 

2.7.1.9. Form DSA PR 13-02, Project Certification Process. 

2.7.2. Notwithstanding the DSA forms, BUs, IRs, PLs, or PRs referenced 
anywhere in this Agreement, each of which is current as of the 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 6 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Effective Date, all Projects subject to DSA’s jurisdiction shall be 
submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic 
plan review process (“EPR process”), rather than paper submission, 
for all projects submitted to DSA.  Architect, and its Consultants, if 
any, shall comply with the EPR process and related DSA procedures, 
including, without limitation, DSA PR 18-04.BB18 and DSA PR 18-
09.BB18, and any subsequent or replacement procedures relating 
to the EPR process promulgated by DSA. Any reference herein to a 
particular DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, shall mean and include the 
then-current DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, respectively, and, to the 
extent that the EPR process has superceded such form or paper 
submission process, the EPR process then in effect shall control. 

2.8. Architect shall provide Services as required to obtain any local, state and/or 
federal agencies’ approval for on-site and off-site work related to the 
Project including review by regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the 
Project. 

2.9. Architect shall coordinate the work of the District’s DSA project inspector(s) 
(“Project Inspector(s)”) and the Laboratory of Record.  Architect shall 
provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided by the 
Laboratory of Record. 

2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its professional 
skill and attention.  Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract 
documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions (“Contract 
Documents”) and shall at once report to District, Construction Manager, 
and Contractor, any error, inconsistency, or omission that Architect or its 
employees may discover, in writing, with a copy to District's Project 
Inspector(s).  Architect shall have responsibility for discovery of errors, 
inconsistencies, or omissions in its own Contract Documents and that of its 
Subconsultants, but shall have no responsibility for District hired 
consultants. 

2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a 
Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain 
coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests 
for Information (“RFI”), providing RFI responses, and leading all 
coordination meetings between the District, Project Inspectors, and 
Contractors on the Project.  The District reserves the right to retain the 
services of a Construction Manager at any time.  The Construction Manager, 
if any, shall be authorized to give Architect Services authorizations and 
issue written approvals and notices to proceed on behalf of District.  The 
District reserves the right to designate a different Construction Manager at 
any time.  Any task, including, but not limited to, reviews or approvals that 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 7 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

the District may perform pursuant to this Agreement may be performed by 
the Construction Manager, unless that task indicates it shall be performed 
by the Governing Board of the District.  In addition, the District may have a 
constructability review of Architect’s design documents.  Architect shall 
conform any design documents to the constructability review as part of the 
Services under this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any 
compensation as Extra Services for this activity. 

2.12. Architect shall provide computer-generated pictures downloaded to 
computer files, updated as requested by the District, that the District may 
use on its website. 

2.13. As part of the basic Services pursuant to this Agreement, Architect is not 
responsible for: 

2.13.1. Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis.  

2.13.2. Any asbestos and/or lead testing, design or abatement; however, 
it shall coordinate and integrate its work with any such 
information provided by District. 

2.13.3. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”), except that Architect agrees to coordinate its work with 
that of any CEQA consultants retained by the District, to provide 
current elevations and schematic drawings for use in CEQA 
compliance documents, and to incorporate any mitigation 
measures adopted by the District into the Project design at no 
additional cost to the District.   

2.13.4. Historical significance report.  

2.13.5. Soils investigation. 

2.13.6. Geotechnical hazard report, except as indicated in Exhibit “A.” 

2.13.7. Topographic surveys of existing conditions. 

2.13.8. State and local agency fees. 

2.13.9. Testing and inspection. 

Article 3. Architect Staff 

3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the 
skills and expertise of key individuals. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 8 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect’s firm shall be 
associated with the Project in the following capacities:  

Principal In Charge:  Laura Knauss 

Project Director:  Brian Bell 

Project Architect(s):       

Project Architect(s):       

Other:          

Major Consultants: 

Electrical/Data Eng: The Engineering Enterprise 

Structural:  Lionakis 

Specifications:  Lionakis 

Civil:   Warren Consulting Engineers 

Landscape Architect: ANLA 

Mechanical/Plumbing: Capital Engineering 

Cost Estimator: Sierra West 

Door Hardware:  Opening Consultants 

3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without 
prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be 
employed by Architect.  In either case, the District shall be allowed to 
interview and approve replacement personnel.  

3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of 
the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar 
days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with 
one acceptable to the District.  All lead or key personnel for any Consultant 
must also be designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions 
stated in this paragraph. 

3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not 
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner 
or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement 
and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Architect. 

3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees 
that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be 
prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 9 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

personnel shall be in “responsible charge” of persons who observe the 
construction. 

Article 4. Schedule of Services 

Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written 
Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in 
Exhibit “A,” so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with 
the schedule in Exhibit “C.”  Time is of the essence and failure of Architect to 
perform Services on time as specified in this Agreement is a material breach of this 
Agreement.  It shall not be a material breach if a delay is beyond the Architect’s or 
its Consultant(s)’ reasonable control. 

Article 5. Construction Cost Budget 

5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District’s established Construction Cost 
Budget and Project scope.  In accordance with Exhibit “A,” the Architect 
shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget for the District at the beginning of the Project 
and at the completion of each design phase.  The District and Construction 
Manager shall also have responsibility to develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget with the Architect. 

5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in Exhibit “A,” including 
all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, 
so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not 
exceed the Construction Cost Budget, as adjusted subsequently with the 
District’s written approval.  Architect shall maintain cost controls 
throughout the Project to deliver the Project within the Construction Cost 
Budget.   

5.3. The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the 
following if any of the events in Article 5.4 occur: 

5.3.1. Give Architect written approval on an agreed adjustment to the 
Construction Cost Budget. 

5.3.2. Authorize Architect to re-negotiate, when appropriate, and/or re-
bid the Project within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids 
(exclusive of District and other agencies’ review time) at no 
additional cost to the District. 

5.3.3. Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the 
District, without further obligation by either party. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 10 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

5.3.4. Within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids, instruct Architect 
to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as 
approved by the District) to bring the Project within the 
Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding at no additional cost to the 
District.   

5.4. If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or 
any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 5.3 above: 

5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent 
(5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or  

5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in 
ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or  

5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to 
the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes 
in the condition of the construction market in the county in which 
the District is located, in so far as these have not been caused by 
Acts of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to 
uncontrollable events in the world economy. 

Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment 

6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this 
Agreement an amount equal to the following (“Fee”): 

An amount not to exceed Three Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollars 
($380,000) based on the rates set forth in Exhibit “D.” Reimbursable 
expenses are not expected to exceed $19,000. 

6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit 
“D.” 

6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in 
accordance with Exhibit “D.”  

6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated 
during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect’s error or 
omission.   

6.5. The Architect’s Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation 
for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as 
indicated in Exhibit “D.” 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 11 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect’s Fee, the Architect’s Fee may be 
adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced 
by the District in accordance with this Agreement. 

6.7. Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the 
Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a 
waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable 
to the District in accordance with this Agreement for direct damages to the 
District caused by Architect’s failure to perform any of the Services 
furnished under this Agreement to the standard of care under California 
law for architects performing similar work for California school districts in 
or around the same geographic area as the District. 

Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes 

Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in Exhibit 
“B” only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as 
indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed.  If 
any service is done by Architect without prior written authorization by the 
Construction Manager or the District’s authorized representative, the District will 
not be obligated to pay for such service.  The foregoing provision notwithstanding, 
Architect will be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” for Extra Services 
that the Construction Manager or the District’s authorized representative verbally 
requests, provided that Architect confirms such request in writing pursuant to the 
notice requirements of this Agreement, and proceeds with such Extra Services not 
earlier than two (2) business days after the District receives confirmation of the 
request from the Architect. 

Article 8. Ownership of Data 

8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a non-
exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all 
plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, 
estimates and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or 
cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.  

8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other 
intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, 
estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare 
or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.  

8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this 
Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting 
Technology (“CADD”) (e.g., AutoCAD).  Architect shall deliver to District all 
drawings in DWG format.  As to any drawings that Architect provides in a 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 12 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

CADD file format, the District acknowledges that anomalies and errors may 
be introduced into data when it is transferred or used in a computer 
environment, and that the District should rely on hard copies of all 
documents. 

8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the 
District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a “hard” copy of 
reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect 
produces the CADD information.  The District agrees to release Architect 
from all liability, damages, and/or claims that arise due to any changes 
made to this information by anyone other than Architect or its Consultant(s) 
subsequent to it being given to the District. 

8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, 
Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at 
no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter “Instruments of 
Service”), which the District shall have the right to utilize in any way 
permitted by statute: 

8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding 
requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the 
Project, in hard copy, reproducible format. 

8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings 
that are part of the Contract Documents. 

8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG 
or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, 
structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and 
exterior elevations of the Project. 

8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, 
drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports 
prepared by the Architect under this Agreement. 

8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.  

8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed 
documents without Architect’s knowledge or participation or both, the 
District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and 
shall hold Architect harmless from and against any and all claims on 
account of any damages or losses to property or persons, or economic 
losses, arising out of that change or use, unless Architect is found to be 
liable in a forum of competent jurisdiction.  In the event that the District 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 13 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

uses any fully or partially completed documents without the Architect’s full 
involvement, the District shall remove all title blocks and other information 
that might identify Architect and its Consultants.  

Article 9. Termination of Contract  

9.1. District’s Request for Assurances:  If District at any time reasonably believes 
that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in 
its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances 
from Architect of performance of Services and a written plan from Architect 
to remedy any potential default under the terms this Agreement that the 
District may advise Architect of in writing.  Architect shall, within ten (10) 
days of District’s request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the 
requirements of the District’s request for assurances. Architect’s failure to 
provide such written assurances of performance and the required written 
plan, within ten (10) days of request, will constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement sufficient to justify termination for cause. 

9.2. District’s Termination of Architect for Cause:  If Architect fails to perform 
Architect’s duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to 
fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect’s material obligations 
under this Agreement, or if Architect shall violate any of the material terms 
or provisions of this Agreement, the District shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, effective immediately upon 
the District giving written notice thereof to the Architect.  In the event of a 
termination pursuant to this subdivision, Architect may invoice the District 
for all Services performed until the notice of termination, but the District 
shall have the right to withhold payment and deduct any amounts equal to 
the District’s costs because of Architect’s actions, errors, or omissions. 
District may, at its discretion, provide the Architect time to cure its default 
or breach. 

9.3. District’s Termination of Architect for Convenience:  District shall have the 
right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own 
convenience.  In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may 
invoice District and District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services 
performed until the District’s notice of termination for convenience. 

9.4. Architect’s Termination of Agreement for Cause:  Architect has the right to 
terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material 
obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default 
within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice of said defaults, or if the 
default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days, commence to cure such 
default, diligently pursue such cure, and complete the cure within a 
reasonable time following written notice and demand from Architect.  Such 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 14 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

termination shall be effective thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice 
from Architect to the District.  Architect may invoice the District and the 
District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until 
Architect’s notice of termination. 

9.5. Effect on Pre-Termination Services:  Except as indicated in this Article, 
termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of 
the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective 
date of such termination. 

9.6. Ceasing Services upon Termination:  If, at any time in the progress of the 
Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that 
the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the 
District of such termination, shall immediately cease Services on the Project.  
The District shall pay Architect only the fee associated with the Services 
provided since the last invoice that has been paid and up to the notice of 
termination. 

9.7. Project Suspension:  If the District suspends the Project for more than one 
hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for 
Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is 
resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and Architect’s compensation shall 
be equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption 
of the Architect’s Services.  Architect shall make every effort to maintain the 
same Project personnel after suspension.  If the District suspends the 
Project for more than two (2) years, Architect may terminate this Agreement 
by giving written notice.  

Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability  

10.1. To the fullest extent permitted by California law and in accordance with 
California Civil Code section 2782.8, Architect shall indemnify and hold 
free and harmless the District, its Governing Board, agents, 
representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees and members 
(“Indemnified Parties”) from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, 
costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity 
(“Claim(s)”), to the extent that the Claim(s) arises out of, pertains to, or 
relates to, the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Architect, 
its directors, officers, employees, subcontractors, consultants, or agents 
arising out of, connected with, or resulting from the performance of the 
Services, the Project, or this Agreement. Architect also has the duty to 
defend the Indemnified Parties from all Claims at Architect’s own expense, 
including attorneys’ fees and costs; however, in no event shall the cost to 
defend charged to the Architect exceed the Architect’s proportionate 
percentage of fault. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, in the event 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 15 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

one or more defendants is unable to pay its share of defense costs due to 
bankruptcy or dissolution of the business, the design professional shall 
meet and confer with other parties regarding unpaid defense costs. If a 
Claim arises out of, or relates in any way to the Services provided under 
this Agreement, upon the District’s or the Architect’s request, the District 
and the Architect agree to undertake good faith measures to allow the 
Architect to assist the District in resolving the dispute or litigation.  The 
Architect’s assistance, described as “Mandatory Assistance” in Exhibit A, 
Section B.8, shall be provided at Architect’s own expense and excluded 
from any reimbursement calculation. At the commencement of the 
Mandatory Assistance Phase, District and Architect shall also negotiate in 
good faith as to the scope and extent of further assistance, including 
consideration of a joint defense agreement if appropriate.  During the 
Mandatory Assistance Phase, each Party shall be responsible for their own 
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred; however, each Party reserves its rights 
pursuant to Civil Code section 2782.8.   
 

10.2. Architect shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may 
be rendered against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim as defined in 
Article 10.1.  These amounts may be paid by Architect to District or the 
District may in reasonable good faith withhold those costs from amounts 
owing to Architect, pending resolution of the dispute. 

 

10.3. Architect’s duty to indemnify under this Agreement shall apply during the 
term of this Agreement and shall survive any expiration or termination of 
this Agreement until any such Claim(s) are barred by the applicable statute 
of limitations and is in addition to any other rights or remedies that the 
District may have under the law or under this Agreement. 

Article 11. Fingerprinting and Other On-Site Requirements 

11.1. The District has determined that Architect, its Consultants and their 
employees shall not interact with pupils, except under the immediate 
supervision and control of the pupil’s parent or guardian or a school 
employee, so that the fingerprinting and criminal background investigation 
requirements of Education Code section 45125.2 shall not apply.  

11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19.  Further, 
except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and 
Architect’s personnel shall continue to comply with all other applicable 
terms in the CDPH’s State Public Health Officer Orders.  

Article 12. Responsibilities of the District  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 16 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and 
shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of 
the Architect’s Services. 

12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District 
becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, 
omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s documents.  Failure to 
provide such notice shall not relieve Architect of its responsibility therefore, 
if any. 

12.3. The District shall furnish the services of a hazardous material consultant or 
other consultants when such services are requested in writing by Architect 
and deemed necessary by the District or are requested by the District. These 
services shall include: asbestos and lead paint survey; abatement 
documentation; and specifications related to said matters, which are to be 
incorporated into bid documents prepared by Architect. If the hazardous 
materials consultant is furnished by the District and is not a Consultant of 
the Architect, the specifications shall include a note to the effect that the 
hazardous materials consultant’s specifications are included in the 
Architect’s bid documents for the District’s convenience and have not been 
prepared or reviewed by the Architect. The note shall also direct questions 
about the hazardous materials consultant’s specifications related to 
asbestos and lead paint survey and/or abatement documentation to the 
preparer of the hazardous materials consultant’s specifications.    

12.4. The District shall timely provide to the Architect all relevant information in 
its possession regarding the project that is necessary for performance of 
Architect’s services. 

Article 13. Liability of District  

13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial obligations 
under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation 
provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any 
claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or 
incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, 
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services 
performed in connection with this Agreement. 

13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as 
a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or 
by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to 
Architect by District.  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 17 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Article 14. Nondiscrimination  

Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment 
and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government 
Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set 
forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; 
and all administrative rules and regulations found to be applicable to Architect and 
all of its subcontractors. In addition, Consultant agrees to require like compliance 
by all of its subcontractor(s). 

Article 15. Insurance  

15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, 
set forth in Exhibit “E.”  

15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to 
District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required 
in Exhibit “E.” 

Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees  

Architect warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, 
other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, to solicit or 
secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent 
on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or 
violation of this warranty, the District shall have the right to annul this Agreement 
without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or 
consideration or to recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage 
fee, gift, or contingency. 

  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 18 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification  

This Agreement, including the Exhibits attached hereto, supersedes all previous 
contracts and constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto.  Architect 
shall be entitled to no other benefits than those specified herein.  No changes, 
amendments or alterations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both 
Parties.  Architect specifically acknowledges that in entering this Agreement, 
Architect relies solely upon the provisions contained in this Agreement and no 
others. 

Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement 

In as much as this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized Services of the 
Architect, Architect may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein 
without the prior written consent of District and any such assignment, transfer, 
delegation or sublease without the District’s prior written consent shall be 
considered null and void.  Likewise, District may not assign, transfer, delegate or 
sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of Architect and any 
such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without Architect’s prior written 
consent shall be considered null and void. If an assignment is approved, this 
Agreement shall be binding on the successors and assign of the parties.  

Article 19. Law, Venue 

19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California 
and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of 
this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State 
of California. 

19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the 
District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or 
proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by 
reason of this Agreement. 

Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution 

20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the 
interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be 
decided through mediation as the first method of resolution.  Notice of the 
demand for mediation of a dispute shall be filed in writing with the other 
party to the Agreement.  The demand for mediation shall be made within 
a reasonable time after written notice of the dispute has been provided to 
the other party, but in no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial 
written notice.  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 19 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all 
applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with 
all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing 
with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 
of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to 
the Architect’s right to bring a civil action against the District.  For purposes 
of those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be 
presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Architect submits 
its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time 
utilized by any applicable meet and confer process. 

20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind 
the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.   

Article 21. Tolling of Claims 

Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District’s assertion of claims 
against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors’ or 
subcontractors’ claims against District involving Architect’s work, until the 
Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims are finally resolved. 

Article 22. Attorneys’ Fees 

In the event either party shall bring any action or legal proceeding for damages for 
any alleged breach of any provision of or performance under this Agreement, to 
terminate this Agreement, or to enforce, protect or establish any term or covenant 
of this Agreement or right or remedy of either party, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover, as a part of the action or proceeding, reasonable attorneys' fees 
and court costs, including consultants’ fees, attorneys' fees and costs for appeal, as 
may be fixed by the court.  The term “prevailing party” shall mean the party who 
received substantially the relief requested, whether by settlement, dismissal, 
summary judgment, judgment, or otherwise.   

Article 23. Severability 

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the 
provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be 
affected, impaired or invalidated thereby. 

  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 20 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Article 24. Employment Status 

24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent 
contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be 
construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture 
relationship, or to allow the District to exercise discretion or control over 
the professional manner in which Architect performs the Services that are 
the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the 
Services to be provided by Architect shall be provided in a manner 
consistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such 
Services. 

24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect’s personnel are not and 
will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District 
group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in 
any District retirement program or for paid vacation, paid sick leave or other 
leave, with or without pay or for other benefits which accrue to a District 
employee.  

24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as 
the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development 
Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or 
Consultant of Architect, is an employee of the District for purposes of 
collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable under this 
Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the employee and 
employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for amounts 
already paid by Architect which can be applied against this liability).  The 
District shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority.  

24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services 
performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the 
District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the 
District to have the amount due withheld from future payments to Architect 
under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts already paid by 
Architect which can be applied as a credit against such liability). 

24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) 
paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, 
and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be 
considered an employee of the District.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
should any court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determine that 
Architect is an employee for any other purpose, then Architect agrees to a 
reduction in District’s liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to 
principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the 
total expenses of District under this Agreement shall not be greater than 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 21 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

they would have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority 
determined that Architect or its employees of Consultants was not an 
employee.  

24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on 
persons or entities not a party to this Agreement. 

Article 25. Certificate of Architect 

25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under 
the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the 
professional services that it has herein agreed to perform. 

25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor 
Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers 
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of that code, and it certifies that it will comply with those 
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services of this 
Agreement. 

25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code 
and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing 
wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public 
works” and “maintenance” projects (“Prevailing Wage Laws”).  Architect 
agrees to fully comply with and to require its Consultant(s) to fully comply 
with all requirements of the Prevailing Wage Laws, if applicable to Architect 
and its Consultants’ professional services to be provided under this 
Agreement. 

Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports 

Architect shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code 
section 7550, if the total cost of the Contract is over five thousand dollars ($5,000). 

Article 27. Notice & Communications 

Notices and communications between the Parties to this Agreement may be sent 
to the following addresses: 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 22 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

District: 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
ATTN:  Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contracts 
EMAIL: tina-alvarez-bevens@scusd.edu  

With a Copy to: 
Dannis Woliver Kelley 
200 California Street #400  
San Francisco, CA 94111 
ATTN:  Deidree Sakai, Esq. 

Architect: 
 
Lionakis 
1919 19th Street 
Sacramento, CA 95811 
ATTN:  Laura Knauss 
EMAIL: laura.knauss@lionakis.com  

  
Any notice personally given shall be effective upon receipt.  Any notice sent by 
electronic mail shall be effective the day after transmission.  Any notice sent by 
overnight delivery service shall be effective the day after delivery.  Any notice given 
by mail shall be effective five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail. 

Article 28. [RESERVED] 

Article 29. District’s Right to Audit 

29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of 
access to Architect’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the 
Architect’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s 
Right”). The District’s Right includes the right to inspect, photocopy, and to 
retain copies, outside of Architect’s premises, of any and all Project-related 
records and other information with appropriate safeguards, if such 
retention is deemed necessary by the District in its sole discretion. The 
District shall keep this information confidential, as allowed by applicable 
law. 

29.2. The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, 
documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the 
District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is 
in compliance with all requirements of this Agreement. 

29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the 
District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, 
and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices 
that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify all direct and 
indirect costs, of whatever nature, which are claimed to have been incurred, 
or anticipated to be incurred. 

mailto:laura.knauss@lionakis.com


 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 23 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall 
make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related 
accounting records and documents and any other financial data. Upon 
District’s request, Architect shall submit exact duplicates of originals of all 
requested records to the District. 

29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, 
and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants. 

29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the 
District’s written request to review and audit any or all of Architect’s Project-
related records and information. 

Article 30. Other Provisions 

30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and 
understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of 
executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this 
Agreement was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of 
this Agreement, and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any 
party as the drafter of the Agreement. 

30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants 
and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and 
bind the CM to all terms hereof. 

30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall 
be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All 
counterparts so executed shall constitute one Agreement binding all the 
Parties hereto.  

30.4. Architect shall issue a credit to the District as an offset to the Architect’s 
Fee, an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the actual tax benefit derived 
by the Architect or its shareholders, after deducting associated tax 
consulting fees based on the Project per Internal Revenue Code section 
179D (the Energy Efficient Commercial Buildings deduction).  

Article 31. Exhibits “A” through “E” attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this 
reference and made a part of this Agreement. 

 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 24 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) 
indicated below. 

 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 
 

By:       
Rose Ramos 
Chief Business Officer 

Date:     

LIONAKIS 
 
 

By:       
Laura Knauss 
Principal-in-Charge 

Date:     April 26, 2023



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

A. SCOPE OF PROJECT ....................................................................................................................................... 1 
B. BASIC SERVICES .............................................................................................................................................. 2 
C. SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE ..................................................................................................................... 4 
D. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE .............................................................................................................. 8 
E. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE ............................................................................................ 12 
F. BIDDING PHASE .......................................................................................................................................... 15 
G. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE ....................................................... 16 
H. CLOSE OUT PHASE ..................................................................................................................................... 21 
I. MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS ........................................................................................ 22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT 
 
Architect shall provide all professional services necessary for completing the following: 
 
SCOPE OF PROJECT 

Project Name:  C.K. McClatchy High School New Softball Field and Baseball Field Improvements 

 Construction Cost Budget:  $5,000,000 (budget)   

• Complete replacement of the varsity baseball and softball fields; including the following: 

o Grading and complete irrigation system and sod/infield dirt; note no subsurface 
drainage 

o New fencing for entire fields; use of mow curb all fence locations (explore if 
existing 4’h softball fencing that was recently installed can be salvaged – re-used) 

o New dugouts; note CMU (use of color block or paint) develop space for storage 
(TBD) at end of one dugout each field 

o New scoreboard for each field (power / wireless) 

o Two (2) Bullpens needed for home; one (1) for visitors - both fields 

o Baseball batting cages is to remain, add lighting 

o Softball hitting cage is needed with lighting 

o 5 row bleacher units each field and scorer’s table 

o ADA path of travel will be required from campus, new restrooms 

• New restroom facility with storage space, centrally located amongst track, fields, tennis, 
etc. with ADA drinking fountain / bottle filler 

• Ideally baseball field shifts to the south and east to have more separation between track 
and field for bleachers 

• WIFI upgrade is needed, run fiber out to track area when fields torn up 

• Explore if existing storage containers on south end of track can be organized with 
concrete pad, paint – use of decomposed granite as surface material in “unusable area” 
between baseball / softball fencing (budget dependent) 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

• Additional notes: 

o Tennis courts – possible resurface (cracks – seal), new fencing 

o Existing CMU storage building to remain; current storage for lawn equipment, 
etc. – possible paint, new roof 

B. BASIC SERVICES  

Architect agrees to provide the Services described below:   
 

1. Architect shall be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of all 
studies, reports, projections, master plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other 
services furnished by Architect under the Agreement as well as coordination with all 
master plans, studies, reports and other information provided by District.  Architect shall, 
without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or omissions in its studies, 
reports, projections, master plans, design, drawings, specifications and other Services.   

 
2. Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications 

and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders 
discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have 
an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance.  Architect shall advise the District of 
the most effective methods of identifying and securing such information as part of each 
stage of design.  Architect shall track for District's benefit all such suggested and 
disclosed information. 

 
3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information 

relates to Architect’s scope of work.  This information shall include, if available,  
 

a. As-builts;  
 

b. Physical characteristics;  
 

c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);  
 

d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);  
 

e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;  
 

f. Adjacent drainage;  
 

g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and 
boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);  

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 3 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other 
improvements and trees;  

 
i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other 

services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;   
 

j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and 
 

k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings. 
 

Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including 
capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, 
storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent determinable by the 
documents provided by the District.   
 
If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is 
insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires:  a topographical survey; a 
geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests for air and/or 
water pollution; test borings; test pits; determinations of soil bearing values; percolation 
tests; ground corrosion tests; resistivity tests; tests for hazardous materials; tests for 
anticipating subsoil conditions; and/or other information that the District has not 
provided, then, at the soonest possible time after Architect has become aware that this 
additional information is needed, the Architect shall request that the District acquire that 
information.  If the Parties mutually agree in writing, this additional information and service 
shall be procured through the Architect, who may invoice the District for those services as 
Extra Services.  

 
4. Mandatory Assistance.  If a third party dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or 

relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's 
request, the Architect, its agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the 
dispute or litigation. Architect's assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing 
professional consultations, attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any 
event related to the dispute resolution and/or litigation (“Mandatory Assistance”). 

 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 4 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

C. SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
 

Architect shall prepare for the District’s review a Schematic Design Study, containing the 
following items as applicable to the Project scope, as follows: 

 
1. Prepare and review with District staff a scope of work list and work plan identifying specific 

tasks including, but not limited to: interviews, data collection, analysis, report preparation, 
planning, architectural programming, concepts and schematic design preparation and 
estimating that are part of the work of the Project.  Also identified will be milestone 
activities or dates, specific task responsibilities of the Architect, required completion times 
necessary for the review and approval by the District and by pertinent regulatory agencies 
and additional definition of deliverables. 

 
2. Review the developed work plan with the District and its representatives to familiarize 

them with the proposed tasks and schedule and develop necessary modifications. 
 

3. Architectural 
 

a. Scaled floor plans showing overall dimensions, identifying the various major areas and 
their relationship.  Include circulation and room-by-room tabulation of all net usable 
floor areas and a summary of gross floor area.  Also, provide typical layouts of major 
equipment or operational layout. 

 
b. Preliminary building exterior elevations and sections in sufficient detail to demonstrate 

design concept indicating location and size of fenestration. 
 

c. Preliminary Building Code Analysis and Plumbing Fixture County identifying ADA 
requirements that will influence the design. 

 
d. Identify minimum finish requirements, including ceiling, floors, walls, doors, windows, 

and types of hardware. 
 

e. Identify code requirements, include occupancy classification(s) and type of 
construction. 

 
4. Mechanical 

 
a. Show selected system on drawings as follows: 

 
(i) Single line drawing(s) of all mechanical equipment spaces, ductwork and pipe 

chases. 
 
(ii) Location and preliminary sizing of all major equipment and duct work in allocated 

spaces. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 5 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(iii) Schematic piping. 
 
(iv) Temperature control zoning. 

 
b. Provide design criteria to include the intent base of design for the Project. 

 
c. Evaluate and confirm the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact 

of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to 
accommodate the increase. 

 
5. Electrical 

 
a. Calculate overall approximate electrical loads. 

 
b. Identify proposed electrical system for service, power, lighting, low voltage and 

communication loads, including proposed or planned additional buildings or other 
facilities on the Project site. 

 
c. Show system(s) selected on drawings as follows: 

 
(i) Single line drawing(s) showing major distribution system. 
 
(ii) Location and preliminary sizing of all major electrical systems and components 

including: 
 

(A) Load centers. 

(B) Main panels. 

(C) Switch gear. 
 

d. Provide design criteria to include the intent base of design for the Project.  
 

e. Evaluate and confirm the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact 
of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to 
accommodate the increase. 

 
6. Civil 

 
a. Develop on site utility systems such as sewer, water, storm drain, firewater lines and 

fire hydrants. 
 

b. Identify surface improvements including walkways, preliminary finish grades and 
drainage. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 6 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
c. Coordinate finish floor elevations with architectural site plan. 

 
7. Specifications 

 
Prepare outline specifications of proposed architectural, structural, mechanical and 
electrical materials, systems and equipment and their criteria and quality standards.  
Architect is to use District’s standardized equipment/material list for new construction and 
modernization in development of the Project design and specifications.   Architect shall 
review and comment on District’s construction bid contracts and contract documents (the 
“Division 0” and “Division 1” documents) as part of its Services under the Agreement. 

 
8.  Construction Cost Budget 

 
Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions identified 
in the preceding Phase, the following conditions apply to the revised Construction Cost 
Budget: 

 
a. Schematic Estimates: This estimate consists of unit cost applied to the major items and 

quantities of work.  The unit cost shall reflect the complete direct current cost of work.  
Complete cost includes labor, material, waste allowance, sales tax and subcontractor's 
mark-up.   

 
(i) General conditions shall be applied separately.  This estimate shall be prepared by 

specification section and summarized by the CSI categories.   
 

b. The estimate shall separate the Project's building cost from site and utilities cost.  
Architect shall submit to the District the cost estimating format for prior review and 
approval. 

 
c. Escalation: all estimates shall be priced out at current market conditions.  The estimates 

shall incorporate all adjustments as appropriate, relating to mid-point construction, 
contingency, and cost index (i.e. Lee Saylor Index). 

 
d. The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect; however, the priorities will be established at the 
completion of the Schematic Design phase by the District should the requested scope 
as determined in this phase exceed the original budget. 

 
e. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the 

Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall coordinate 
with the District and Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile 
the Construction Cost Budget.   



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 7 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

f. At the end of this Phase, the Construction Cost Budget may include design 
contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates. 

 
9. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Breakdown of Construction Cost Budget as prepared for this Phase; 
 
b. Meeting reports/minutes; 
 
c. Schematic Design Package with alternatives; 
 
d. Statement indicating changes made to the Architectural Program and Schedule; 

and 
 
e. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or 

notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA. 
 

10. Presentation 
 

a. Architect shall present and review with the District the detailed Schematic Design. 
 

b. The Schematic Design shall be revised within the accepted program parameters until 
a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been accepted and 
approved by the District at no additional cost to the District. 

 
11. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J. 

 
 
 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 8 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

D. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE  
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted 
deliverables from the Schematic Design Phase, the Design Development Phase documents 
consisting of the following for each proposed system within Architect’s scope of services:  

 
1. Architectural 

 
a. Scaled, dimensioned floor plans with final room locations including all openings. 

 
b. 1/8” scale building sections showing dimensional relationships, materials and 

component relationships. 
 
c. Exterior elevations of existing buildings to be renovated and all architectural elements 

of the Project. 
 

d. Identification of all fixed equipment to be installed in Project. 
 
e. Interior finishes identified and located within the rooms of all buildings. 

 
f. Site plan completely drawn with beginning notes and dimensions including grading 

and paving. 
 

g. Preliminary development of details and large scale blow-ups. 
 

h. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 
 

i. Floor plans identifying all fixed and major movable equipment and furniture. 
 

j. Further refinement of Outline Specifications for architectural, structural, mechanical, 
electrical, civil and landscape manuals, systems and equipment. 

 
k. Typical reflected ceiling development including ceiling grid and heights for each 

ceiling to be used, showing: 
 

(i) Light fixtures. 
 
(ii) Ceiling registers or diffusers. 
 
(iii) Access Panels. 

 
  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 9 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

2. Structural 
 

a. Structural drawings with all major members located and sized. 
 

b. Establish final building and floor elevations. 
 

c. Preliminary specifications. 
 
d. Preliminary calculations for the structural systems including lateral force resistive 

systems, foundations, and all structural system components. 
 

e. Identify foundation requirement (including fill requirement, piles) with associated soil 
pressure, water table and seismic center. 

 
3. Mechanical 

 
a. Heating and cooling load calculations as required and major duct or pipe runs sized 

to interface with structural. 
 

b. Major mechanical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity. 
 

c. Ductwork and piping should be substantially located and sized. 
 
d. Plumbing plans for the Project shall indicate numbers and locations of fixtures and be 

in conformance with the code-mandated fixture count requirements of the Project. 
 

e. Devices in ceiling should be located. 
 

f. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 
 

g. More developed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and manufacture. 
 

h. Control Systems identified. 
 

i. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and 
systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase 
these loads to accommodate the increase. 

 
4. Electrical 

 
a. All lighting fixtures should be located and scheduled showing all types and quantities 

of fixtures to be used, including proposed lighting levels for each usable space. 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 10 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

b. All major electrical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity. 
 

c. Complete electrical distribution including a one-line diagram indicating final location 
of switchboards, communications, controls (high and low voltage), motor control 
centers, panels, transformers and emergency generators, if required.  Low-voltage 
system includes fire alarm system, security system, clock and public address system, 
bell system, voice-data system, and telecom/technology system. 

 
d. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 

 
e. More developed and detailed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and 

manufacture. 
 

f. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and 
systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase 
these loads to accommodate the increase. 

 
5. Civil 

 
a. Further refinement of Schematic Design Phase development of on and off site utility 

systems for sewer, electrical, water, storm drain and fire water.  Includes, without 
limitation, pipe sizes, materials, invert elevation location and installation details. 

 
b. Further refinement of Schematic Design Phase walkways, and storm drainage 

improvements.   
 

6. Bid Documents 
 
Architect shall review and comment on District’s construction bid contracts and contract 
documents (the “Division 0” documents and “Division 1” documents) as part of its Services 
under the Agreement. 

 
7. Construction Cost Budget 

 
a. Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions 

identified in the Agreement and the preceding Phases, the following conditions apply 
to the revised Construction Cost Budget: 

 
(i) Design Development Estimate: This further revised estimate shall be prepared by 

specification section, summarized by CSI category and divided by trade and work 
item.  The estimate shall include individual item unit costs of materials, labor and 
equipment.  Sales tax, Contractor's mark-ups, and general conditions shall be listed 
separately.   

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 11 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 
Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
(iii) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget may include design 

contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates. 
 

b. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the 
Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, the Architect shall 
coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, 
and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
8. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this 
phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format: 

 
a. Design Development drawing set from all professional disciplines necessary to deliver 

the Project; 
 

b. Specifications; 
 

c. Revised Construction Cost Budget; and 
 

d. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or 
notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA.  

 
The Design Development deliverables shall be revised within the accepted program 
parameters until a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been 
accepted and approved by the District at no additional cost to the District. 

 
9. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J. 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 12 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

E. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District 
has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted 
deliverables from the Design Development Phase the Construction Documents consisting 
of the following for each proposed system within Architect’s scope of work.  All Projects 
subject to DSA’s jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under 
the electronic plan review process (“EPR process”), rather than paper submission. 

 
1. Construction Documents (“CD”) 100% Stage: 

 
a. General 

 
Endeavor to determine lead times and availability of all Project equipment, materials, 
and supplies and ensure that all of these will be available to the Contractor in a timely 
fashion so as not to delay the Project. 

 
b. Architectural 

 
(i) Completed site plan. 
 
(ii) Completed floor plans, elevations, and sections. 
 
(iii) Architectural details and large blow-ups completed. 
 
(iv) Finish, door, and hardware schedules completed, including all details. 
 
(v) Fixed equipment details and identification completed. 
 
(vi) Reflected ceiling plans completed. 
 

c. Structural 
 

(i) Structural floor plans and sections with detailing completed. 
 
(ii) Structural calculations completed. 

 
d. Mechanical 

 
(i) Large scale mechanical details complete. 
 
(ii) Mechanical schedules for equipment completed. 
 
(iii) Completed electrical schematic for environmental cooling and exhaust equipment. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 13 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
(iv) Complete energy conservation calculations and report. 

 
e. Electrical 

 
(i) Lighting and power plan showing all switching and controls.  Fixture schedule and 

lighting details completed. 
 
(ii) Distribution information on all power consuming equipment, including lighting, 

power, signal and communication device(s) branch wiring completed. 
 
(iii) All electrical equipment schedules completed. 
 
(iv) Special system components plans completed. 
 
(v) Electrical load calculations completed.  

 
f. Civil 

 
All site plans, site utilities, and drainage systems completed. 

 
g. Construction Cost Budget 

 
(i) Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions 

identified in the preceding phases, Architect shall update and refine the Design 
Development Phase revisions to the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
(ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
(iii) Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and 

the Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall 
coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, 
review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
(iv) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget shall not include any 

design contingencies in excess of the cost estimates. 
 
 
 
 
 

h. Specifications 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 14 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
(i) Complete development and preparation of technical specifications describing 

materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and performance criteria 
required for the construction of the Project.   

 
(ii) No part of the specifications shall call for a designated material, product, thing, or 

service by specific brand or trade name unless: 
 

(A) The specification is followed by the words “or equal” so that bidders may 
furnish any equal material, product, thing, or service, as required by Public 
Contract Code section 3400, or 

 
(B) The designation is allowable by specific allowable exemptions or exceptions 

pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400. 
 

(iii) Specifications shall not contain restrictions that will limit competitive bids other 
than those required for maintenance convenience by the District and only with 
District’s prior approval. 

 
(iv) At one hundred percent (100%) review, District shall review the Specifications and 

shall direct Architect to make corrections at no cost to the District. 
 
(v) Coordination of the Specifications with specifications developed by other 

disciplines. 
 
(vi) Specifications shall be in CSI format. 

 
i. Constructability Review 

 
The District and/or its designee, at its sole discretion, shall have the right to conduct a 
constructability review of the Construction Documents.  A report shall be given to the 
Architect who shall make necessary changes along with providing written comments 
for each item listed in the report.  Conducting a constructability review does not excuse 
the Architect’s obligation to provide Services that shall comply with professional 
architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects 
designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and 
local law. 

 
j. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a 
hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of 
each item in electronic format: 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 15 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(i) Working drawings; 
 
(ii) Specifications; 
 
(iii) Engineering calculations; 
(iv) Construction Cost Budgets; 
 
(v) Statement of requirements for testing and inspection of service for compliance 

with Construction Documents and applicable codes; 
 
(vi) Copy of DSA file including all correspondence, meeting, minutes or reports, back-

check comments, checklists to date; and 
 
(vii) Statement indicating any authorized changes made to the design from the last 

Phase and the cost impact of each change on the previously approved 
Construction Cost Budget.  If no design changes occur but shifts of costs occur 
between disciplines, identify for District review.   

 
2. Construction Documents Final Back-Check Stage: 

 
a. The Construction Documents final back-check stage shall be for the purpose of the 

Architect incorporating all regulatory agencies' comments into the drawings, 
specifications, and estimate.  All changes made by the Architect during this stage shall 
be at no additional cost to the District. 

 
b. The final contract documents delivered to the District upon completion of the 

Architect’s work shall be the Bid Set and shall consist of the following: 
 

(i) Drawings: Original tracings of all drawings on Architect’s tracing paper with each 
Architect/Consultant’s State license stamp. 

 
(ii) Specifications: Original word-processed technical specifications on reproducible 

masters in CSI format.  
 

c. Architect shall update and refine the Consultants’ completed Contract Documents.  

d. Conclusion of Construction Document Phase requires final stamp-out by DSA. 
 

3. Meetings 
 

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J. 

 
F. BIDDING PHASE 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 16 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Bidding Phase services for 
District as follows:  

 
1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project. 

 
2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract 

Documents with the District. 
 

3. The development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents 
shall be the joint responsibility of the District and Architect.  Nevertheless, Architect will 
use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other 
information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and 
publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a 
Contractor's cost of performance. 

 
4. While the Project is being advertised for bids, all questions concerning intent shall be 

referred to the District for screening and subsequent processing through Architect. 
 

5. In the event that items requiring interpretation of the drawings or specifications are 
discovered during the bidding period, those items shall be analyzed by the Architect for 
decision by the District as to the proper procedure required.  Corrective action will be in 
the form of an addendum prepared by the Architect and issued by the District.   

 
6. Attend bid opening. 

 
7. Coordinate with Consultants. 

 
8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications. 

 
9. Deliverables and Number of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;  

 
b. Meeting report/minutes from the pre-bid site walk; and 

G. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Construction Contract 
Administration Phase services for the District as follows:  

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 17 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

1. Architect’s responsibility to provide basic services for the Construction Phase under the 
Agreement commences with the award of the contract for construction and terminates 
upon satisfactory performance and completion of all tasks in this phase and 
commencement of the Closeout Phase or upon the District’s terminating the Agreement, 
whichever is earlier. 

 
2. Construction Oversight and Project Certification Process  

a. Architect shall ensure that the Project Inspector is approved by the DSA for the Project 
by submitting the applicable Inspector’s Qualification Record (form DSA 5 or more 
current version) to and by obtaining approval from the DSA prior to commencement 
of construction and prior to requesting issuance of project inspections cards (form DSA 
152 or more current version). 

b. Architect shall request issuance of the proper number of project inspection cards 
(forms DSA 152 or more current version) by electronically submitting form DSA 102-
IC (or more current version) to the DSA after the construction contract has been 
awarded.  Architect shall provide project inspection cards to the Project Inspector prior 
to commencement of construction. 

c. Prior to commencement of construction, Architect shall provide (1) a copy of the DSA 
approved construction documents and (2) the DSA approved Statement of Structural 
Tests and Special Inspections (form DSA 103 or more current version) prepared by 
Architect to the Project Inspector and Laboratory of Record. 

d. Architect shall prepare and submit a Contract Information form (form DSA 102 or more 
current version) for all construction contracts. 

e. Architect shall maintain such personal contact with the Project as is necessary to assure 
themselves of compliance, in every material respect, with the DSA-approved 
construction documents.  Personal contact shall include visits to the Project site by the 
Architect or engineer or their qualified representative to observe construction.   

f. Architect shall notify DSA as to the disposition of materials noted on laboratory testing, 
and/or special inspection, reports as not conforming to the DSA-approved 
construction documents. 

g. Architect shall respond to DSA field trip notes as necessary. 

h. Architect shall submit an interim Verified Report (form DSA 6-AE or more current 
version) to the DSA electronically and a copy to the Project Inspector for each of the 
applicable nine (9) sections of form DSA 152 prior to the Project Inspector signing off 
that section of the project inspection card. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 18 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

i. Architect shall submit a Statement of Final Actual Project Cost (form DSA 168 or more 
current version) to the DSA. 

j. Architect shall submit Verified Reports (form DSA 6-AE or more current form) to the 
DSA and to the Project Inspector if any of the following events occur:  (1) when 
construction is sufficiently complete in accordance with the DSA-approved 
construction documents so that the District can occupy or utilize the Project; (2) work 
on the Project is suspended for a period of more than one month; (3) the services of 
the Architect are terminated for any reason prior to completion of the Project; or (4) 
DSA requests a Verified Report.    

 
3. Change Orders 

 
a. Architect shall review all of Contractor’s change order requests to determine if those 

requests are valid and appropriate.  Architect shall provide a recommendation to 
District as to whether the change should be approved, partially approved, returned to 
the Contractor for clarification, or rejected.  

 
b. Architect shall furnish all necessary Construction Change Documents and additional 

drawings for supplementing, clarifying, and/or correcting purposes and for change 
orders.  The District shall request these Construction Change Documents and drawings 
from the Architect, which shall be provided at no additional cost unless designated as 
Extra Services by the District.  The original drawings and contract wording for change 
orders shall be submitted to the District for duplication and distribution. 

 
4. Submittals 

 
a. Architect shall review and approve or take other appropriate action upon Contractor's 

submittals such as: shop drawings, Project data, samples and Construction Change 
Documents, but only for the purpose of checking for conformance with information 
given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.   

 
b. Architect shall review Contractor’s schedule of submittals and advise the District on 

whether that schedule is complete.  Architect shall provide the District with proposed 
revisions to this schedule and advise the District on whether the District should 
approve this schedule. 

 
c. Architect’s action upon Contractor’s submittals shall be taken as expeditiously as 

possible so as to cause no unreasonable delay in the construction of the Project or in 
the work of Contractor(s), while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional 
judgment to permit adequate review.  In no case shall the review period associated 
with a single, particular submittal exceed twenty-one (21) calendar days from its receipt 
by the Architect.  Architect’s response to each submittal shall be a substantive and 
acceptable response.  This twenty-one (21)-day time period shall not include time 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 19 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

when a submittal is within the District’s control or if the submittal is being reviewed by 
DSA.  In no way does this provision reduce Architect’s liability if it fails to prepare 
acceptable documents. 

 
5. RFIs.  During the course of construction as part of the basic services, Architect must 

respond to all Requests for Information (“RFI”) as expeditiously as possible so as not to 
impact and delay the construction progress.  In no case shall the review period associated 
with an RFI exceed seven (7) calendar days from receipt by the Architect unless the 
complexity of the RFI warrants a longer time period for the review as reasonably agreed 
to by both parties.  Architect’s response to each RFI shall be a substantive and acceptable 
response.  This seven-day time period shall not include time when a submittal is within the 
District’s control or if the submittal is being reviewed by DSA.  In no way does this provision 
reduce the Architect’s liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents.  Architect must 
verify that RFIs are passed through the Project Inspector, if any. 

 
6. Notices of Deficient Work.  On the basis of on-site observations, Architect shall keep the 

District informed of the progress and the quality of the work, and shall endeavor to guard 
the District against defects and deficiencies in the work.  Architect shall timely notify the 
District in writing of any defects or deficiencies in the work by any of the District’s 
Contractors that Architect may observe.  However, Architect shall not be a guarantor of 
the Contractor's performance. Further, the Architect shall not have control over, charge of, 
or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or 
procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the work. These 
are the responsibility of the General Contractor. 

 
7. Record Drawings.  Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, 

details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District.  
The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of drawings, all changes from all 
sketches, details, and clarifications, including, without limitation, all requests for 
information, Construction Change Documents and change orders based upon the 
construction Contractor’s representations of actual construction.  Architect shall deliver 
the Record Drawings to the District at completion of the construction in a format 
acceptable to the District, and it shall be a condition precedent to the District’s approval 
of Architect’s final payment.  Architect may insert the following notice on the Record 
Drawings: 

 
These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based 
on information submitted, in part, by others.  Architect has provided a 
review consistent with its legal standard of care. 
 

8. O&M Manuals and Warranties.  Architect shall review equipment, operation and 
maintenance manuals, and a complete set of warranty documents for all equipment and 
installed systems, to ensure that they meet the requirements of the plans and 
specifications.  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 20 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
9. Start-up.  Architect shall also provide, at the District’s request, architectural/engineering 

advice to the District on start-up, break-in, and debugging of facility systems and 
equipment, and on apparent deficiencies or defects in construction following the 
acceptance of the Contractor's work. 

 
10. Payment Statements.  Recommendations of Payment by Architect constitute Architect’s 

representation to the District that work has progressed to the point indicated to the best 
of Architect’s knowledge, information, and belief, and that the quality of the work is in 
general conformance with the Contract Documents.  

 
11. Deliverables and Number of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;  

 
b. Observation reports; and 

 
c. Weekly meeting reports.  

 
12. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J. 

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 21 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CLOSE-OUT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

H. CLOSE OUT PHASE 
 

1. As the Construction Administration Phase progresses, Architect shall perform the following 
Close Out Phase services for the District as required in a timely manner: 

 
a. Architect shall review the Project and observe the construction as required to 

determine when the Contractor has completed the construction of the Project and 
shall prepare punch lists of items that remain in need of correction or completion. 

 
b. Architect shall collect from the Contractor, review, and forward to the District all written 

warranties, operation manuals, and spare parts with Architect’s recommendation as to 
the adequacy of these items. 

 
c. Architect shall prepare or collect, as applicable, and provide to DSA, all reports required 

by DSA related to the design and construction of the Project. 
 

d. Architect shall respond to the DSA “90-day” letter. 
 

e. Architect shall obtain all required DSA approval of all Construction Change Documents 
and addenda to the Contractor’s contract. 

 
f. Architect shall prepare a set of Record Drawings for the Project, as required by the 

District. 
 

g. Architect shall review all warranty and O&M documentation prepared by the General 
Contractor. 

 
h. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to close-

out the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants. 
 

2. When the design and construction of the Project is complete, the District shall prepare and 
record with the County Recorder a Notice of Completion for the Project. 

 
3. Deliverables and Number of Copies 

 
a. Punch list; and 

 
b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including Record 

Drawings.  These are the sole property of the District. 
 

4. Meetings 
 

During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 22 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

I. MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS 
 

1. Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and 
workshops as indicated below.  Architect shall chair, conduct and take minutes of all 
coordination meetings with its Consultant(s) during the entire design phase.  Architect 
shall invite the District and/or its representative to participate in these meetings.  Architect 
shall keep a separate log to document design/coordination comments generated in these 
meetings.   
 

2. General Meeting, Site Visit, and Workshop Requirements 
 

a. Architect shall always be prepared to answer questions and issues from District staff, 
site staff, potential bidders, and/or Contractors, as applicable.   

 
b. Architect shall maintain a log of all meetings, site visits or site observations held in 

conjunction with the design and construction of the Project, with documentation of 
major discussion points, observations, decisions, questions or comments.  These shall 
be furnished to the District and/or its representative for inclusion in the overall Project 
documentation. 

 
c. As required, Architect shall provide at no additional cost to the District copies of all 

documents or other information needed for each meeting, site visit, and workshop.   
 

d. Each meeting may last up to four hours and shall be held at the District office or at the 
Project site, unless otherwise indicated. 

 
3. Initial Site Visits (One (1) meeting(s)) 

 
a. Architect shall visit the Project site to complete a visual inventory and documentation 

of the existing conditions.  
 

4. Meetings During Schematic Design Phase (Two (2) meeting(s)) 
 

a. Within the first two weeks following the start of the Schematic Design Phase, Architect 
shall conduct one (1) design meeting with the District’s facilities team and site 
personnel to complete a basic design framework with computer-aided design 
equipment (“CADD”).  The District may, at its discretion, allow Architect to proceed 
with this meeting without using CADD.  This meeting shall include the following: 

 
(i) Architect shall designate its team member duties and responsibilities.  
 
(ii) Architect and District shall review District goals and expectations. 
 
(iii) District shall provide input and requirements.  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 23 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
(iv) Architect and District shall review Project scope and budget, including the 

Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.  
 
(v) Prepare and/or revise the scope of work list and general work plan from the Pre-

Design Phase, for documentation in a computer-generated Project schedule. 
 
(vi) Establish methods to facilitate the communication and coordination efforts for 

the Project. 
 

b. Architect shall participate in One (1) additional meeting to review the schematic design 
package and opinion of probable cost and confirm any design alternates that may be 
required.  
 

5. Meetings During Design Development Phase (Two (2) meeting(s)) 
 

a. At approximately mid-point of the Design Development phase, Architect shall conduct 
One (1) meeting with District personnel and applicable engineering sub-consultants to 
confirm District standards and preferred systems. 
 

b. At the time designated for completion of the Design Development package, Architect 
shall conduct One (1) meeting, per package or submittal, with the District to review the 
following:  

 
(i) Present the Design Development package for review and comment to proceed with 

preparation of final plans and specification.   
 
(ii) Architect and District shall review Project scope and budget, including the 

Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget. At this time, proposed 
design alternates that may be required to ensure compliance with the District’s 
Construction Budget will be determined. 

 
6. Meetings During Construction Documents Phase (Two (2) meeting(s)) 

 
a. At approximately the time designated for completion of the fifty percent (50%) 

submittal package, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or 
submittal, with the District to review the following: 

 
(i) Present progress on the Construction Documents submittal package for review and 

comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.   
 
(ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, 

including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.  
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 24 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

b. At the time designated for completion of the one hundred percent (100%) 
Construction Document package, concurrent with review by the Division of the State 
Architect, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with 
the District to review the following: 

 
(i) Present the hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package for review 

and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.   
 
(ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, 

including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget. 
 

7. Meetings During Bidding Phase (Two (2) meeting(s)) 
 

a. Attend and take part in One (1) pre-bid meeting(s), per package or submittal, with all 
potential bidders, District staff, and Construction Manager. 

 
b. Conduct One (1) kick-off meeting(s) with the successful bidder, District staff, and 

Construction Manager to finalize the roles and responsibilities of each party and 
provide protocols and processes to follow during construction.   

 
8. Meetings During Construction Administration Phase (weekly Project meetings until 

entire Project is complete, (6-month construction schedule assumed)) 
 

a. Architect shall visit the Project site as necessary or when requested, and in no case less 
than once per week, sufficient to determine that the Project is being constructed in 
accordance with the plans and specifications, and to resolve discrepancies in the 
Contract Documents and to monitor the progress of the construction of the Project.   

 
b. Conduct weekly Project meetings with District staff to review with District staff the 

progress of the work.  Architect agrees to attend weekly Project meetings, at no 
additional cost to the District, until the work of the Project is complete.  

 
c. Architect shall ensure that Consultant(s) visit the site in conformance with their 

agreement(s) and that Consultant agreements shall reference District requirements for 
Construction Phase services. 

 
END OF EXHIBIT



 

EXHIBIT B Page B - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “B” 

CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES 

The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if 
authorized or requested by the District: 

A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this 
Agreement, or otherwise included within Exhibit “A.”    

B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit “A.”  
Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall 
inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of the number indicated 
in Exhibit “A,” so that the District can procure the additional deliverables itself or direct 
Architect to procure the deliverables at the District’s expense or on the District’s account 
at a specific vendor. 

C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are 
required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the 
preparation of the Conforming Set.  

D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause 
during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of 
that work. 

E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s). 

F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing 
services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) 
and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under the Agreement. 

G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, 
arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way 
cause the dispute that is being adjudicated. 

H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be 
utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of 
the Agreement. 

Job Title Hourly Rate 
Principal In Charge: $255 
Associate Principal: $240 
Project Manager (Senior): $200 
Designer: $130 - $150 
Assistant Project Manager: $190 
Architect: $165 - $190 



 

EXHIBIT B Page B - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Contract Administrator:  
Other  
Other   

I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five 
percent (5%).  

1. The following items are approved for mark-up: 

a. Sub-consultant Invoices. 

2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be 
marked-up. 

J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only) 

Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect’s invoices to include detailed 
explanations of the Services performed.  For example, a six hour charge for “RFIs and CORs” 
is unacceptable and will not be payable.  A more detailed explanation, with specificity, is 
required.  This includes a separate entry for each RFI, PCO, CCD and change order.  For 
example, the following descriptions, in addition to complying with all other terms of this 
Agreement, would be payable.  The times indicated below are just placeholders: 

Review RFI 23; review plans and specifications for response to 
same; prepare responses to same and forward to contractor, 
district, construction manager, and project inspector.   

0.8 hours 

Review COR 8; review scope of same and plans and specifications 
for appropriateness of same; prepare draft change order and 
language for same. 

0.7 hours 

Review COR 11; review scope of same and plans and 
specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare rejection of 
COR 11 for review by district, CM, IOR. 

1.2 hours 

 

END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT C Page C - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “C” 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for 
approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect 
proposes to carry out Architect's Services (“Schedule of Services”).  The Schedule of Services 
shall apply to the completion of all Services listed hereunder within the times established by 
this Agreement.  The Schedule of Services shall be in the form of a progress chart clearly 
delineating all important increments and review dates.   

B. Architect shall complete Services required under the Schematic Design Phase within 30 
calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed (March 1 – March 30, 
2023). 

C. Architect shall complete Services required under the Design Development Phase within 30 
calendar days after receipt of a written authorization from District to proceed (April 1-April 
30, 2023). 

D. Architect shall complete Services required under Construction Documents Phase within 60 
calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed, and as more specifically 
indicated below (May 1-June 30, 2023).  Excluded from this duration is the time associated 
with DSA review the Construction Documents back-check stage. 

1. 100% Submittal Package 30 calendar days 
2. 100% Design Development Package 30 calendar days 
3. 100% Construction Documents 60 calendar days 
4. Final Contract Documents after Final Back-Check Stage Anticipated approval 

dates: October 2023 

E. The durations stated above include the review periods of 10 calendar days required by the 
District. 

F. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the 
Agreement.  If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District’s 
inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Architect shall maintain the right to 
request an adjustment in the Schedule of Services if deemed necessary to meet the 
deadlines set forth in this Exhibit.  If approved, those extensions shall be authorized in 
writing by the District. 

 

END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES   
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “D” 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

A. Compensation 

1. The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full 
compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof, 
including, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in Exhibit 
“A,”. Except as expressly set forth in the Agreement and Exhibit “B,” there shall be 
no payment for extra costs or expenses. 

2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement. 

3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this 
Agreement: 

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL FEE PER PHASE 
      Phase Phase Amount 
Schematic Design Phase 10% 
Design Development Phase 15% 
Construction Documents Phase-Submittal to DSA 30% 
Approval by DSA 10% 
Bidding Phase 5% 
Construction Contract Administration Phase 25% 
Close Out Phase 5% 
 Generate Punch List 1%  
 Sign Off On Punch List 1%  
 Receive and Review All M&O Documents 1%  
 Filing All DSA Required Close Out Documents 1%  
 Receiving DSA Close Out, including DSA 
    approval of the final set of Record Drawings 1% 

 

TOTAL BASE COMPENSATION 100% 

Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional 
Services and will be billed at a multiple of 1.10% the expenses incurred.  These 
charges include, but are not limited to, expenses incurred which are directly 
related to the Project, such as reproductions, plans and plots for owner, agency 
or contractor’s use, standard form documents, postage, handling and delivery of 
Instruments of Service, and mileage. Reimbursable expenses are not expected to 
exceed $19,000. 

 

 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES   
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

B. Method of Payment 

1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the 
District via the District’s authorized representative. 

2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof 
that payments were made to its Consultant(s). 

3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect’s monthly 
pay request format. 

4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect’s invoices, the District agrees to make 
payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as 
follows: 

a. For Schematic Design Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Schematic Design Phase by 
the District. 

b. For Design Development Phase:  

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Design Development Phase 
by the District. 

c. For Construction Documents Phase: 

Monthly payments for percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five 
percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Construction Documents 
Phase by the District.  

d. For Bidding Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon the District’s award of the bid. 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 3 

AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

e. For Construction Contract Administration Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon the District’s notice of completion. 

f. For Close Out: 

Lump sum payment no sooner than thirty-five (35) days and no later than 
forty-five (45) days after completion of all items in this Phase. 

 
END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 4 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “E” 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and maintain 
for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages 
to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services 
hereunder by the Architect, his agents, representatives, employees and Consultant(s).  
Architect’s liabilities, including but not limited to Architect’s indemnity or defense obligations, 
under this Agreement shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage 
required herein. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this 
Agreement and Architect’s failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of 
renewal during the term of this Agreement, as required or when requested, may be treated by 
the District as a material breach of contract. 

B. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as the 
following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the need 
for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability coverages that at least follow form 
over the underlying insurance requirements where necessary for Commercial General Liability, 
Commercial Automobile Liability, Employers’ Liability, and other liability coverage (except 
Professional Liability) designated under this Section B – Insurance Requirements.” Minimum 
Scope of Insurance. 

1. Commercial General Liability. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for 
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability or 
other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit 
shall apply separately to each project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be 
twice the required occurrence limit.  

2. Commercial Automobile Liability. One million dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury 
and property damage. 

 
3. Workers' Compensation Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject 

to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, 
Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation policy.   
 

4. Employers’ Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this 
Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employment Practices 
Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per 
occurrence.   

 
5. Professional Liability.  This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and 

his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) 
aggregate limit subject to no more than Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000) per 
claim deductible, coverage to continue through completion of construction plus two (2) 
years thereafter. 



 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 5 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate 
credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.  

D. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention:  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any 
deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000).  At 
the option of the District, either:  

1. The District can accept the higher deductible; or 

2. Architect’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as 
respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.  

E. Other Insurance Provisions:  The general liability and automobile liability policies are to 
contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  

1. The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, 
agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as additional insureds 
as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Architect; 
Instruments of Service and completed operations of the Architect; premises owned, 
occupied or used by the Architect; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by 
the Architect.  The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of 
protection afforded to the Additional Insureds.  

 
2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect’s insurance coverage shall be primary 

insurance as respects the Additional Insureds.  Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it.  

 
3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation 

against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers. 

 
4. Architect’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made 

or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.  

5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including 
breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.  

 
6. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage 

shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after 
thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been 
given to the District.  

 
7. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of 

subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to maintain 



 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 6 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and retain amount 
of premium from any sums due Architect under the Agreement. 

8. Architect shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect 
deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s scope of the Work unless otherwise 
indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the subconsultants to furnish proof 
thereof to District within ten (10) days of District’s request. Should Architect not require 
subconsultants to provide the same level of insurance as is required of Architect, as 
provided in this Agreement, Architect is not relieved of its indemnity obligations to 
District or fulfilling its insurance requirements as provided in this Agreement. 

F. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a 
current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII.  Architect shall inform the District in writing if 
any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating less than A:VII.  At the option of the District, the 
District may either:  

1. Accept the lower rating; or 

2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer. 

G. Verification of Coverage:  Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this 
Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:  

1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; and 
 
2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage.  The 

endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 
coverages on its behalf.  All endorsements are to be received and approved by the 
District before Services commence.  

H. Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, Architect will furnish District with a 
copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement. 

 
END OF EXHIBIT 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 1 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

 This Settlement Agreement (“Agreement” or “Contract”) is made and entered into as 

of the ____ day of ___________, 2022 (“Effective Date”) by and between Sacramento City 

Unified School District (“District”), a California public school district, and AstroTurf 

Corporation (“Contractor”), a Georgia corporation (each a “Party” and, together, “Parties”). 

Recitals 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to an eight-year Warranty on AstroTurf GameDay Grass, 

Contractor warranted the synthetic grass field that was substantially completed on April 25, 

2014, for District’s Rosemont High School Track and Field Project, located at 9594 Kiefer 

Blvd, Sacramento, CA 95827; 

 WHEREAS, in October 2021, District notified Contractor that the synthetic grass field 

was exhibiting certain defects, and demanded that Contractor repair or replace the synthetic 

grass field under Contractor’s warranty; 

 WHEREAS, a dispute arose between District and Contractor concerning the synthetic 

grass field defects and the obligations under the warranty (“Warranty Dispute”); and 

 WHEREAS, as a compromise of contested issues, the Parties have agreed to settle 

their Warranty Dispute by entering into this Contract, subject to and contingent upon 

approval of this Contract by District’s Governing Board. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed between District and Contractor as follows: 

Terms 

1. Contractor shall furnish to District for a total price of Four Hundred Ninety-Nine 

Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($499,000.00) (“Contract Price”), the following services 

(“Services” or “Work”): 

 

Contractor agrees to furnish all tools, equipment, apparatus, facilities, labor, and 

material necessary to perform and complete in a good and workmanlike manner, the 

work of the following project: Full replacement of the Site’s existing synthetic grass 

surface and infill with AstroTurf RootZone® 3D3 Trionic 60 system including, without 

limitation, removal/disposal of the existing field, all installation work, and re-creation of 

exact sports packages, as further described in Exhibit A. A product cut sheet is 

attached hereto as Exhibit B. The Contract includes a 10-year warranty and 10-year 

AstroTurf Rhino Maintenance Package. A sample warranty is attached hereto as Exhibit 

C. The maintenance will be one visit per year. The Contract also includes four AAA 

testing visits over the 10-year period.  

 

2. Payment for the Work shall be made in accordance with the Terms and Conditions. 

3. Contractor shall perform the Work at Rosemont High School, located at 9594 Kiefer 

Blvd, Sacramento, CA 95827 (“Site”). The Project is the scope of Work performed at the 

Site. 

4. Work shall begin upon issuance of District’s Notice to Proceed and shall be completed by 

August 1, 2022 (“Completion Date”).  

 

It is understood and agreed that the Work shall be performed and completed as required 

in the Contract Documents (as defined herein) including, without limitation, the 

1st april



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 2 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

Drawings and Specifications and submission of all documents required to secure funding 

or by the Division of the State Architect (“DSA”) for close-out of the Project, under the 

direction and supervision of, and subject to the approval of, District or its authorized 

representative. 

 

5. Contractor agrees that if the Work is not completed within the Contract Time and/or 

pursuant to the completion schedule, construction schedule, or project milestones 

developed pursuant to provisions of the Contract, it is understood, acknowledged, and 

agreed that District will suffer damage which is not capable of being calculated. Pursuant 

to Government Code section 53069.85, Contractor shall pay to District, as fixed and 

liquidated damages for these incalculable damages, the sum of One Thousand and 

00/100 Dollars ($1,000.00) per day for each and every calendar day of delay beyond the 

Contract Time or beyond any completion schedule, construction schedule, or project 

milestones established pursuant to the Contract. 

 

6. This Contract incorporates by this reference the Terms and Conditions attached hereto. 

Contractor, by executing this Contract, agrees to comply with all the Terms and 

Conditions. 

 

7. This Contract incorporates by this reference the Contract Documents attached hereto. 

Contractor, by executing this Contract, agrees to comply with all obligations set forth in 

the Contract Documents. The Contract Documents include only the following documents, 

as indicated: 

 

_X__ Notice to Proceed 

_X__ Prevailing Wage Certification 

_X__ Workers’ Compensation Certification 

_X__ Criminal Background Investigation / 

Fingerprinting Certification 

_X__ Drug-Free Workplace Certification 

_X__ Tobacco-Free Environment 

Certification 

_X__ Asbestos & Other Hazardous 

Materials Certification 

_X__ Lead-Product(s) Certification 

_X__ Registered Subcontractor List 

 

_X__ Insurance Certificates and 

Endorsements 

_X__ Performance Bond 

_X__ Payment Bond 

____ Specifications 

____ Plans 

_X__ Exhibit “A” (“Scope of Work”) 

_X__ Exhibit “B” (“Cut Sheet”) 

_X__ Exhibit “C” (“Sample Warranty”) 

_X__ COVID-19 Vaccination / Testing 

Certification 

____      [Other]  

____      [Other] 

 

8. Contractor shall not commence the Work under this Contract until Contractor has 

submitted and District has approved the performance bond, payment (labor and 

material) bond, the certificate(s) and the endorsement(s) of insurance required under 

the Terms and Conditions and District has issued a Notice to Proceed. 

 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 3 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

9. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Contract shall be deemed to 

have been given, served, and received if given in writing and either personally delivered 

or deposited in the United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, 

return receipt required, or sent by overnight delivery service, or email, addressed as 

follows: 

 

District 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

ATTN: Chris Ralston, Director III 

Facilities Management, Maintenance and 

Operations, and Resource Management 

5735 47th Avenue, 

Sacramento CA 95824  

Chris-Ralston@scusd.edu  

Contractor 

 

Name: AstroTurf Corporation 

ATTN: ______________________________ 

 

Address: ____________________________ 

___________________________________ 

 

Email: ______________________________ 

 

Any notice personally given or sent by email shall be effective upon receipt. Any notice 

sent by overnight delivery service shall be effective the business day next following 

delivery to the overnight delivery service. Any notice given by mail shall be effective 

three (3) days after deposit in the United States mail.  

 

10. Each party has the full power and authority to enter into and perform this Contract, and 

the person signing this Contract on behalf of each party has been properly authorized 

and empowered to enter into this Contract. 

 

11. By signing this Contract, Contractor certifies, under penalty of perjury, that all the 

information provided in the Contract Documents is true, complete, and correct. 

 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below:  

 
Dated:     , 2022 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Signature:       

Print Name:       

Print Title:       

Address:       

Telephone:       

E-Mail:       

 

Dated:     , 2022 

AstroTurf Corporation 

Signature:       

Print Name:       

Print Title:       

License No.:       

Registration No.:      

Address:       

Telephone:       

E-Mail:       

 

John Currence 

1544 N maple ave Fresno CA 93703

jcurrence@astroturf.com

April 1st

John Currence
Director of Quality Operations

1036156
1000729333

1544 N maple ave Fresno CA 93703
7042016758

jcurrence@astroturf.com



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 4 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

Information regarding Contractor: 

 

Type of Business Entity: 

____ Individual 

____ Sole Proprietorship 

____ Partnership 

____ Limited Partnership 

____ Corporation, State:     _ 

____ Limited Liability Company 

____ Other:        

 

____________________________: 

Employer Identification and/or  

Social Security Number 

 

NOTE: Section 6041 of the Internal 

Revenue Code (26 U.S.C. 6041) and 

Section 1.6041-1 of Title 26 of the 

Code of Federal Regulations (26 

C.F.R. 1.6041-1) requires the 

recipients of $600.00 or more to 

furnish their taxpayer information 

to the payer. In order to comply 

with these requirements, District 

requires Contractor to furnish the 

information requested in this 

section. 

x Georgia

36-4892329



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 5 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS TO CONTRACT 

1. NOTICE TO PROCEED: District shall provide a Notice to Proceed to Contractor pursuant to 
the Contract at which time Contractor shall proceed with the Work. 

2. STANDARD OF CARE: Contractor shall perform, diligently prosecute and complete the Work 

in a good and workmanlike manner within the Contract Time, and in strict conformity with all 
Contract Documents.  

3. SITE EXAMINATION: Contractor has examined the Site and certifies that it accepts all 
measurements, specifications and conditions affecting the Work to be performed at the Site. 
By submitting its quote, Contractor warrants that it has made all Site examination(s) that it 
deems necessary as to the condition of the Site, its accessibility for materials, workers and 
utilities, and Contractor’s ability to protect existing surface and subsurface improvements. No 

claim for allowance of time or money will be allowed as to any other undiscovered condition on 
the Site.  

4. PERMITS, LICENSES AND REGISTRATION: Contractor and all of its employees, agents, 

and subcontractors shall secure and maintain in force, at Contractor’s sole cost and expense, 
all licenses, registration and permits as are required by law, in connection with the furnishing 
of materials, supplies, or services herein listed. 

5. LABOR, MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT: Contractor shall furnish all tools, equipment, 
apparatus, facilities, transportation, labor, and material necessary to furnish the services 
herein described, the services to be performed at such times and places as directed by and 
subject to the approval of the authorized District representative indicated in the Work 
specifications attached hereto. Unless otherwise specified, all materials shall be new and 
previously unused, and of the manufacturer’s latest model or the best of their respective kinds 
and grades as noted or specified, and workmanship shall be of good quality.  

6. SUBSTITUTIONS: No substitutions of material from those specified in the Work Specifications 
shall be made without the prior written approval of District. Contractor shall be responsible for 
any re-design costs occasioned by District’s acceptance and/or approval of any substitute, as 
well as any costs that District incurs for professional services, including DSA fees. District may 

deduct those costs from any amounts owing to Contractor for the review of the request for 
substitution, even if the request for substitution is not approved. Contractor shall, in the event 
that a substitute is less costly than that specified, credit District with one-hundred percent 

(100%) of the net difference between the substitute and the originally specified material.   

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS: While engaged in carrying out the Services of this 
Contract, Contractor is an independent contractor, and not an officer, employee, agent, 
partner, or joint venture of District. Contractor shall be solely responsible for its own Workers’ 
Compensation insurance, taxes, and other similar charges or obligations. Contractor shall be 
liable for its own actions, including its negligence or gross negligence, and shall be liable for 

the acts, omissions, or errors of its agents or employees. 

8. CONTRACTOR SUPERVISION: Contractor shall provide competent supervision of personnel 
employed on the job Site, use of equipment, and quality of workmanship.  

9. WORKERS: Contractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among its 
employees and the employees of its subcontractors and shall not employ or work any unfit 

person or anyone not skilled in work assigned to him or her. Any person in the employ of 
Contractor or a subcontractor whom District may deem incompetent or unfit shall be dismissed 

from the Site and shall not again be employed at Site without written consent from District. 

10. SUBCONTRACTORS: Subcontractors, if any, engaged by Contractor for any Service or Work 
under this Contract shall be subject to the approval of District. Contractor agrees to bind every 
subcontractor by the terms of the Contract as far as such terms are applicable to 
subcontractor’s work, including, without limitation, all registration, indemnification, insurance, 
bond, and warranty requirements. If Contractor shall subcontract any part of this Contract, 
Contractor shall be fully responsible to District for acts and omissions of its subcontractor and 

of persons either directly or indirectly employed by itself. Nothing contained in the Contract 
Documents shall create any contractual relations between any subcontractor and District. 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 6 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

11. SAFETY AND SECURITY: Contractor is responsible for maintaining safety in the performance 

of this Contract. Contractor shall be responsible to ascertain from District the rules and 
regulations pertaining to safety, security, and driving on school grounds, particularly when 
children are present. 

12. LEAD-BASED PAINT: Pursuant to the Lead-Safe Schools Protection Act (Education Code 
section 32240 et seq.) and other applicable law, no lead-based paint, lead plumbing and 
solders, or other potential sources of lead contamination shall be utilized on this Project, and 
only trained and state-certified contractors, inspectors and workers shall undertake any action 
to abate existing risk factors for lead. Pursuant to the Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule 
(title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations part 745 (40 CFR 745)), all contractors who 
disturb lead-based paint in a six-square-foot area or greater indoors or a 20-square-foot area 

or greater outdoors must be trained by an EPA-accredited provider and certified by the EPA. 
Contractor must execute the Lead-Based Paint Certification, if applicable.  

13. CLEAN UP: Debris shall be removed from the Site. The Site shall be in order at all times when 
work is not actually being performed and shall be maintained in a reasonably clean condition. 

14. PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY: Contractor shall erect and properly maintain at 
all times, as required by conditions and progress of the Work, all necessary safeguards, signs, 

barriers, lights, and security persons for protection of workers and the public, and shall post 
danger signs warning against hazards created by the Work. In an emergency affecting life and 
safety of life or of Work or of adjoining property, Contractor, without special instruction or 
authorization from District, is permitted to act at his discretion to prevent such threatened loss 
or injury.  

15. FORCE MAJEURE: Contractor shall be excused from performance hereunder during the time 
and to the extent that it is prevented from obtaining delivery, or performing by act of God, 

fire, strike, loss, or shortage of transportation facilities, lock-out, commandeering of materials, 
products, plants, or facilities by the government, when satisfactory evidence thereof is 
presented to District, provided that it is satisfactorily established that the non-performance is 
not due to the fault or neglect of Contractor. 

16. CORRECTION OF ERRORS: Contractor shall perform, at its own cost and expense and 

without reimbursement from District, any work necessary to correct errors or omissions that 
are caused by Contractor’s failure to comply with the approved plans and specifications and 

the standard of care required herein. Schedule delays resulting from unauthorized work shall 
be Contractor’s responsibility. 

17. NO RELIEF FROM OBLIGATIONS BASED ON REVIEW BY OTHER PERSONS: Contractor 
shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents by act or omission of District, Architect, Construction Manager, Project Inspector, 
or DSA or other entities having jurisdiction including, but not limited to, administration of the 

Contract, review of submittals, or by tests, observation, inspection, or permit/interconnection 
approvals. 

18. DISTRICT’S RIGHT TO PERFORM WORK:  If Contractor should neglect to prosecute the 
Work properly or fail to perform any provisions of this Contract, District, after FORTY-EIGHT 
(48) hours’ written notice to Contractor, may make good such deficiencies, without prejudice 
to any other remedy it may have, including but not limited to District hiring its own forces or 

another contractor to replace Contractor’s nonconforming Work, in which case District shall 

either issue a deductive Change Order, a Construction Change Directive, or invoice Contractor 
for the cost of that work. Contractor shall pay any invoices within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
same or District may withhold those amounts from payment(s) otherwise due to Contractor. 

19. ACCESS TO WORK: District representatives, Architect, and Project Inspector shall at all times 
have access to the Work wherever it is in preparation or in progress. Contractor shall provide 
safe and proper facilities for such access. 

20. OCCUPANCY: District reserves the right to occupy buildings at any time before formal 

Contract completion and such occupancy shall not constitute final acceptance or approval of 
any part of the Work covered by this Contract, nor shall such occupancy extend the date 
specified for completion of the Work. 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 7 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

21. PAYMENT: On a monthly basis, Contractor shall submit an application for payment based 

upon the estimated value for materials delivered or services performed under the Contract as 
of the date of submission (“Application for Payment”). Within thirty (30) days after District’s 
approval of the Application for Payment, Contractor shall be paid a sum equal to ninety-five 

percent (95%) of the value of the Work performed (as verified by Architect and Inspector and 
certified by Contractor) up to the last day of the previous month, less the aggregate of 
previous payments and amount to be withheld. District may withhold or deduct from any 
payment an amount necessary to protect District from loss because of: (1) liquidated damages 
which have accrued as of the date of the application for payment; (2) any sums expended by 
District in performing any of Contractor’s obligations under the Contract which Contractor has 
failed to perform or has performed inadequately; (3) defective Work not remedied; (4) stop 

payment notices as allowed by state law; (5) reasonable doubt that the Work can be 
completed for the unpaid balance of the Total Contract price or by the scheduled completion 
date; (6) unsatisfactory prosecution of the Work by Contractor; (7) unauthorized deviations 
from the Contract; (8) failure of Contractor to maintain or submit on a timely basis proper and 
sufficient documentation as required by the Contract or by District during the prosecution of 

the Work; (9) erroneous or false estimates by Contractor of the value of the Work performed; 

(10) any sums representing expenses, losses, or damages, as determined by District, incurred 
by District for which Contractor is liable under the Contract; and (11) any other sums which 
District is entitled to recover from Contractor under the terms of the Contract or pursuant to 
state law, including section 1727 of the California Labor Code. The failure by District to deduct 
any of these sums from a progress payment shall not constitute a waiver of District’s right to 
such sums. District shall retain five percent (5%) from all amounts owing as retention. 
Retention shall be paid pursuant to Public Contract Code sections 7107, 7200 and 7201.  

22. CHANGE IN SCOPE OF WORK: Any change in the scope of the Work, method of 
performance, nature of materials or price thereof, or any other matter materially affecting the 
performance or nature of the Work shall not be paid for or accepted unless such change, 
addition, or deletion is approved in advance and in writing by a valid change order executed 
by District. Contractor specifically understands, acknowledges, and agrees that District shall 
have the right to request any alterations, deviations, reductions, or additions to the Project or 
Work, and the cost thereof shall be added to or deducted from the amount of the Contract 

Price by fair and reasonable valuations. Contractor also agrees to provide District with all 
information requested to substantiate the cost of the change order and to inform District 
whether the Work will be done by Contractor or a subcontractor. In addition to any other 
information requested, Contractor shall submit, prior to approval of the change order, its 
request for a time extension (if any), as well as all information necessary to substantiate its 
belief that such change will delay the completion of the Work. If Contractor fails to submit its 

request for a time extension or the necessary supporting information, it shall be deemed to 
have waived its right to request such extension.  

23. INDEMNIFICATION:  

23.1 To the furthest extent permitted by California law, Contractor shall indemnify and hold 
harmless District, its agents, representatives, officers, consultants, employees, and 
volunteers (the “Indemnified Parties”) from any and all demands, damages, injuries, 
losses, expenses, liabilities, claims, suits, and actions (the “Claims”) of any kind, 

nature, and description, including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and costs, 

directly or indirectly arising from, arising out of, connected with, or resulting from, in 
whole or in part, the performance of this Contract unless the claims are caused wholly 
by the sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnified Parties and/or 
defects in design furnished by the Architect, as found by a court or arbitrator of 
competent jurisdiction, in which case Contractor’s indemnification and hold harmless 
obligation shall be reduced by the proportion of the Indemnitees’ and/or Architect’s 

liability.  

23.2 Contractor shall also, to the furthest extent permitted by California law, defend the 
Indemnified Parties at Contractor’s own expense, including attorneys’ fees and costs, 
from any and all claims directly or indirectly arising from, arising out of, connected 
with, or resulting from the performance of this Contract unless the claims are caused 
wholly by the sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnified Parties 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 8 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

and/or defects in design furnished by the Architect, as found by a court or arbitrator of 

competent jurisdiction, in which case, without impacting Contractor’s obligation to 
provide an immediate and ongoing defense of the Indemnified Parties, Contractor’s 
defense obligation shall be retroactively reduced by the proportion of the Indemnitees’ 

and/or Architect’s liability. District shall have the right to accept or reject any legal 
representation that Contractor proposes to defend District.  

23.3 Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9201, District shall provide timely notification 
to Contractor of the receipt of any third-party claim relating to this Contract. District 
shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs incurred in providing said notification. 

23.4 If the Indemnitees provide their own defense due to failure to timely respond to 
tender of defense, rejection of tender of defense, or conflict of interest of proposed 

counsel, Contractor shall reimburse Indemnitees for any expenditures, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs.  

23.5 District may retain so much of the moneys due Contractor as shall be considered 

necessary, until disposition of any such suit, claims or actions for damages or until 
District has received written agreement from Contractor that it will unconditionally 
defend the Indemnified Parties, and pay any damages due by reason of settlement or 

judgment. 

23.6 Contractor’s defense and indemnification obligations hereunder shall survive the 
completion of Work, including the warranty/guarantee period, and/or the termination 
of the Contract. 

24. PAYMENT BOND AND PERFORMANCE BOND: Contractor shall not commence the Work 
until it has provided to District, in a form acceptable to District, a Payment (Labor and 
Material) Bond and a Performance Bond, each in an amount equivalent to one hundred percent 

(100%) of the Contract Price issued by a surety admitted to issue bonds in the State of 
California and otherwise acceptable to District. 

25. CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE:  

25.1 Contractor shall procure and maintain at all times it performs any portion of the 
Services the following insurance with minimum limits not less than the amount 
indicated below. If Contractor normally carries insurance in an amount greater than 
the minimum amounts required by District, that greater amount shall become the 

minimum required amount of insurance for purposes of the Contract. Therefore, 
Contractor hereby acknowledges and agrees that all insurance carried by it shall be 
deemed liability coverage for all actions it performs in connection with the Contract. 

Type of Coverage Minimum 
Requirement 

Commercial General Liability Insurance, including Bodily Injury, 
Personal Injury, Property Damage, Advertising Injury, and Medical 
Payments 

Each Occurrence 
General Aggregate 

 
 
 
$ 1,000,000 
$ 2,000,000 

Automobile Liability Insurance - Any Auto 

Each Occurrence 
General Aggregate 

 

$ 1,000,000 
$ 1,000,000 

Workers’ Compensation Statutory Limits 

Employer’s Liability $ 1,000,000 

 
25.1.1 Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

Commercial General Liability Insurance and Any Auto Automobile Liability 
Insurance that shall protect Contractor, District, and the State from all claims 
of bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, death, advertising injury, 

and medical payments arising performing any portion of the Services. (Form 
CG 0001 and CA 0001, or forms substantially similar, if approved by District.) 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 9 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

25.1.2 Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance. Workers’ 

Compensation Insurance and Employers’ Liability Insurance for all of its 
employees performing any portion of the Services. In accordance with 
provisions of section 3700 of the California Labor Code, Contractor shall be 

required to secure workers’ compensation coverage for its employees. If any 
class of employee or employees engaged in performing any portion of the 
Services under this Contract are not protected under the Workers’ 
Compensation Statute, adequate insurance coverage for the protection of any 
employee(s) not otherwise protected must be obtained before any of those 
employee(s) commence performing any portion of the Services. 

25.2 Proof of Insurance. Contractor shall not commence performing any portion of the 

Services until all required insurance has been obtained and certificates indicating the 
required coverage have been delivered in duplicate to District and approved by 
District. Certificates and insurance policies shall include the following:  

25.2.1 A clause stating: “This policy shall not be canceled until notice has been mailed 

to District, stating date of cancellation. Date of cancellation shall not be less 
than thirty (30) days after date of mailing notice.” 

25.2.2 Language stating in particular those insured, extent of insurance, location and 
operation to which insurance applies, expiration date, to whom cancellation 
notice will be sent, and length of notice period. 

25.2.3 An endorsement stating that District and its Governing Board, agents, 
representatives, employees, trustees, officers, consultants, and volunteers are 
named additional insured under all policies except Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance, and Employers’ Liability Insurance.  

25.2.4 All policies except the Workers’ Compensation Insurance, and Employers’ 
Liability Insurance Policies shall be written on an occurrence form. 

25.2.5 An endorsement stating that Contractor’s insurance policies shall be primary to 
any insurance or self-insurance maintained by District.  

25.2.6 An endorsement stating that there shall be a waiver of any subrogation. 

25.2.7 Contractor’s insurance limit shall apply separately to each insured against 
whom a claim is made or suit is brought. 

25.3 Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 
A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A: VII, unless otherwise acceptable to District.  

26. WARRANTY/QUALITY: Unless a longer warranty is called for elsewhere in the Contract 
Documents, Contractor, manufacturer, or their assigned agents shall guarantee the 
workmanship, product or service performed against defective workmanship, defects or failures 
of materials for a minimum period of one (1) year from filing the Notice of Completion with the 

county in which the Site is located. All workmanship and merchandise must be warranted to 
be in compliance with applicable California energy, conservation, environmental, and 
educational standards. 

27. CONFIDENTIALITY: Contractor shall maintain the confidentiality of all information, 

documents, programs, procedures, and all other items that Contractor encounters while 
performing Contractor’s Work to the extent allowed by law. This requirement shall be ongoing 
and shall survive the expiration or termination of this Contract and specifically includes all 

student, parent, and disciplinary information. 

28. LIMITATION OF DISTRICT LIABILITY: District’s financial obligations under this Contract 
shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Contract. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract, in no event shall District be liable, 
regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, 
indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, or lost 
bonding capacity, arising out of or in connection with this Contract for the services performed 

in connection with this Contract. 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 10 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

29. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, 

ordinance, rules and regulations bearing on conduct of the Work as indicated or specified. If 
Contractor observes that any of the Work required by this Contract is at variance with any 
such laws, ordinance, rules or regulations, Contractor shall notify District, in writing, and, at 

the sole option of District, any necessary changes to the scope of the Work shall be made and 
this Contract shall be appropriately amended in writing, or this Contract shall be terminated 
effective upon Contractor’s receipt of a written termination notice from District. If Contractor 
performs any work that is in violation of any laws, ordinances, rules or regulations, without 
first notifying District of the violation, Contractor shall bear all costs arising therefrom.  

30. COVID-19 SAFETY REQUIREMENTS: Contractor shall, at its cost, timely comply with all 
applicable federal, State, and local requirements relating to COVID-19 or other public health 

emergency/epidemic/pandemic. Further, except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, 
Contractor and Contractor’s personnel, subcontractors and suppliers shall continue to comply 
with all applicable terms in the California Department of Public Health’s State Public Health 
Officer Orders. 

31. COVID-19 VACCINATION / TESTING REQUIREMENTS:  

31.1 Vaccination Requirements 

Contractor shall fill out, sign, date and submit to District the COVID-19 
Vaccination/Testing Certification Form, attached hereto. 

According to the August 11, 2021, California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) 
State Public Health Officer Order (“Order”), a person is “fully vaccinated” for COVID-19 
if two weeks or more have passed since they have received the second dose in a 2-
dose series (Pfizer-BioNTech or Moderna or vaccine authorized by the World Health 
Organization), or two weeks or more have passed since they received a single-dose 

vaccine (Johnson and Johnson[J&J]/Janssen).  

Pursuant to the CDPH Guidance for Vaccine Records Guidelines & Standards, 
Contractor shall only accept the following as proof of vaccination: 

(a) COVID-19 Vaccination Record Card (issued by the Department of 
Health and Human Services Centers for Disease Control & Prevention or WHO Yellow 
Card which includes name of person vaccinated, type of vaccine provided and date last 
dose administered);  

(b) a photo of a Vaccination Record Card as a separate document;  

(c) a photo of a Vaccination Record Card stored on a phone or electronic 
device; 

(d) documentation of COVID-19 vaccination from a health care provider;  

(e) digital record that includes a QR code that when scanned by a SMART 
Health Card reader displays to the reader name, date of birth, vaccine dates and 

vaccine type; or 

(f) documentation of vaccination from other contracted employers who 
follow these vaccination records guidelines and standards. 

In the absence of knowledge to the contrary, Contractor may accept the 
documentation presented in (a) through (f) above as valid. 

Contractor shall have a plan in place for tracking verified Contractor personnel 
vaccination status. Records of vaccination verification must be made available, upon 

request, to the local health jurisdiction for purposes of case investigation. 

Contractor personnel, including any and all tiers of subcontractor, supplier, and any 
other personnel entering the Project site, who are not fully vaccinated, or for whom 
vaccine status is unknown or documentation is not provided, must be considered 
unvaccinated. 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 11 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

31.2 Weekly Testing Requirements 

Contractor shall ensure that Contractor personnel, including any and all tiers of 
subcontractor, supplier, and any other worker entering the Project site, who are 
unvaccinated or who are not fully vaccinated are required to undergo diagnostic 

screening testing, as specified below: 

(a) Contractor personnel may be tested with either antigen or molecular 
tests to satisfy this requirement, but unvaccinated or incompletely vaccinated workers 
must be tested at least once weekly with either PCR testing or antigen testing. Any 
PCR (molecular) or antigen test used must either have Emergency Use Authorization 
by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration or be operating per the Laboratory 
Developed Test requirements by the U.S. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. 

(b) Unvaccinated or not fully vaccinated Contractor personnel must also 
observe all other infection control requirements, and are not exempted from the 
testing requirement even if they have a medical contraindication to vaccination, since 

they are still potentially able to spread the illness. Previous history of COVID-19 from 
which the individual recovered more than 90 days earlier, or a previous positive 
antibody test for COVID-19, do not waive this requirement for testing.  

Contractor shall have a plan in place for tracking test results and conducting workplace 
contact tracing, and must report results to local public health departments, if 
applicable. 

32. LABOR CODE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor represents that Contractor and all 
Subcontractors shall not be presently debarred, suspended, proposed for disbarment, declared 
ineligible or excluded pursuant to either Labor Code section 1777.1 or Labor Code section 
1777.7. Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the California Labor Code, 

Division 3, Part 7, Chapter 1, Articles 1 – 5, including, without limitation, the payment of the 
general prevailing per diem wage rates for public work projects of more than one thousand 
dollars ($1,000). Copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file with District or 
available online at http://www.dir.ca.gov/. In addition, Contractor and each subcontractor 
shall comply with Chapter 1 of Division 2, Part 7 of the California Labor Code, beginning with 

Section 1720, and including Section 1735, 1777.5 and 1777.6, forbidding discrimination, and 
Sections 1776, 1777.5 and 1777.6 concerning the employment of apprentices by Contractor or 

subcontractors. Willful failure to comply may result in penalties, including loss of the right to 
bid on or receive public works contracts.  

32.1 Registration: Contractor and its subcontractor(s) shall be registered with the 
Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5 and in 
accordance with Labor Code section 1771.1. 

32.2 Registered Subcontractor List: Within 30 days of the award of contract or prior to 

commencing the Work under this Contract, whichever occurs first, Contractor shall 
provide District all information required by Labor Code section 1773.3, as amended by 
Stats. 2017, Ch. 28, Sec. 21, for Company and all tiers of Subcontractors to enable 
District to provide notice to the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) of the 
Contract (PWC-100 form). Contractor shall submit and maintain an updated 
Registered Subcontractor List including all Subcontractors of any tier furnishing labor, 

material, or equipment to the Project. 

32.3 Certified Payroll Records: Contractor and its subcontractor(s) shall upload certified 
payroll records (“CPR”) electronically using California Department of Industrial 
Relations’ (DIR) eCPR System by uploading the CPRs by electronic XML file or entering 
each record manually using the DIR’s iform (or current form) online directly to the DIR 
on no less than every 30 days while Work is being performed and within 30 days after 
the final day of Work performed on the Project, and within ten (10) days of any 
request by District or Labor Commissioner at http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-

Works/Certified-Payroll-Reporting.html or current application and URL, showing the 
name, address, social security number, work classification, straight time, and overtime 
hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 12 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by Contractor and/or 

each subcontractor in connection with the Work. 

32.4 Labor Compliance: Contractor shall perform the Work of the Project while complying 
with all the applicable regulations, including section 16000, et seq., of Title 8 of the 

California Code of Regulations and is subject to labor compliance monitoring and 
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. 

33. ANTI-DISCRIMINATION: Contractor herein agrees to comply with the provisions of the 
California Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the 
California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 
1964, as set forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; 
and all administrative rules and regulations found to be applicable to Contractor and all of its 

subcontractors. In addition, Contractor agrees to require like compliance by all its 
subcontractor(s). 

34. ANTI-TRUST CLAIM: Contractor and its subcontractor(s) agree to assign to District all rights, 

title, and interest in and to all causes of action they may have under Section 4 of the Clayton 
Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 
16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of 

goods, services, or materials pursuant to the Contract or a subcontract. This assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time District tenders final payment to Contractor, 
without further acknowledgment by the parties. 

35. CONTRACTOR CLAIMS: In the event of any demand by Contractor for (A) a time extension, 
including, without limitation, for relief from damages or penalties for delay assessed by District 
under the Contract, (B) payment by District of money or damages arising from work done by, 
or on behalf of, Contractor pursuant to the Contract and payment of which is not otherwise 

expressly provided for or to which Contractor is not otherwise entitled to, or (C) an amount of 
payment disputed by District, the parties shall attempt to resolve the dispute by those 
procedures set forth in Public Contract Code section 9204 and/or Article 1.5 (commencing with 
section 20104) of Chapter 1, Part, 3, Division 2, of the Public Contract Code, if applicable, the 
provisions of which are each attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. If a 

claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute 
resolution requirements, Contractor shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as 

provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with 
section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent 
to Contractor’s right to bring a civil action against District. For purposes of those provisions, 
the running of the time within which a claim must be presented to District shall be tolled from 
the time Contractor submits its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any 
time utilized by any applicable meet and confer process. Pending resolution of the dispute, 

Contractor and its subcontractors shall continue to perform the Work under the Contract and 
shall not cause a delay of the Work, including the disputed work, during any dispute, claim, 
negotiation, mediation, or arbitration proceeding, except by written agreement of District. 

36. ATTORNEY FEES/COSTS: Should litigation be necessary to enforce any terms or provisions 
of this Contract, then each party shall bear its own litigation and collection expenses, witness 
fees, court costs and attorney’s fees. 

37. TERMINATION: If Contractor fails to perform the Services and Contractor’s duties to the 

satisfaction of District, or if Contractor fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner 
Contractor’s obligations under this Contract, or if Contractor violates any of the terms or 
provisions of this Contract, District shall have the right to terminate this Contract and/or 
Contractor’s right to perform the Work of the Contract for cause effective immediately upon 
District giving written notice thereof to Contractor. Contractor and its performance bond 
surety, if any, shall be liable for all damages caused to District by reason of Contractor’s 
failure to perform and complete the Contract. District shall also have the right in its sole 

discretion to terminate the Contract and/or Contractor’s right to perform the Work of the 
Contract for its own convenience upon District giving three (3) days’ written notice thereof to 
Contractor. In case of a termination for convenience, Contractor shall be paid for the actual 
cost for labor, materials, and services performed including, without limitation, Contractor's and 
its subcontractor(s)’ mobilization and/or demobilization costs, that is unpaid and can be 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 13 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

documented through timesheets, invoices, receipts, or otherwise. Termination shall have no 

effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the parties arising out of any transaction 
occurring prior to the effective date of termination. In the event termination for cause is 
determined to have not been for cause, the termination shall be deemed to have been a 

termination for convenience effective as of the same date as the purported termination for 
cause. 

38. ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT: Contractor shall not assign or transfer in any way any or all of 
its rights, burdens, duties, or obligations under this Contract without the prior written consent 
of District. 

39. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE: Time is of the essence in the performance of and compliance 
with each of the provisions and conditions of this Contract. 

40. CALCULATION OF TIME: For the purposes of this Contract, “days” refers to calendar days 
unless otherwise specified. 

41. GOVERNING LAW: This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 

laws of the State of California with venue of any action in a County in which District 
administration office is located. 

42. BINDING CONTRACT: This Contract shall be binding upon the parties hereto and upon their 

successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of said parties and their successors and 
assigns. 

43. DISTRICT WAIVER: District's waiver of any term, condition, covenant or waiver of a breach 
of any term, condition or covenant shall not constitute the waiver of any other term, condition 
or covenant or the waiver of a breach of any other term, condition or covenant. 

44. CAPTIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS: Paragraph headings in this Contract are used solely 
for convenience, and shall be wholly disregarded in the construction of this Contract. No 

provision of this Contract shall be interpreted for or against a party because that party or its 
legal representative drafted such provision, and this Contract shall be construed as if jointly 
prepared by the parties. 

45. INVALID TERM: If any provision of this Contract is declared or determined by any court of 
competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, the legality, validity or 
enforceability of the remaining parts, terms and provisions shall not be affected thereby, and 
said illegal, unenforceable or invalid part, term or provision will be deemed not to be a part of 

this Contract.  

46. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED: Each and every provision of law 
and clause required by law to be inserted in this Contract shall be deemed to be inserted 
herein and this Contract shall be read and enforced as though it were included therein. 

47. ENTIRE CONTRACT: This Contract sets forth the entire agreement between the parties 
hereto and fully supersedes any and all prior agreements, understandings, written or oral, 

between the parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter thereof. 

48. NO ORAL MODIFICATIONS: No oral agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or 
employee of District, either before or after execution of Contract, shall affect or modify any of 
the terms or obligations contained in any of the documents comprising the Contract.  



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 14 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

Public Contract Code section 9204 

 
(a) The Legislature finds and declares that it is in the best interests of the state and its citizens to ensure that all 
construction business performed on a public works project in the state that is complete and not in dispute is paid in 
full and in a timely manner. 

(b) Notwithstanding any other law, including, but not limited to, Article 7.1 (commencing with Section 10240) of 
Chapter 1 of Part 2, Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 19100) of Part 2, and Article 1.5 (commencing with 
Section 20104) of Chapter 1 of Part 3, this section shall apply to any claim by a contractor in connection with a 
public works project. 

(c) For purposes of this section: 

(1) “Claim” means a separate demand by a contractor sent by registered mail or certified mail with return receipt 
requested, for one or more of the following: 

(A) A time extension, including, without limitation, for relief from damages or penalties for delay assessed by a 
public entity under a contract for a public works project. 

(B) Payment by the public entity of money or damages arising from work done by, or on behalf of, the contractor 
pursuant to the contract for a public works project and payment for which is not otherwise expressly provided or to 
which the claimant is not otherwise entitled. 

(C) Payment of an amount that is disputed by the public entity. 

(2) “Contractor” means any type of contractor within the meaning of Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 7000) of 
Division 3 of the Business and Professions Code who has entered into a direct contract with a public entity for a 
public works project. 

(3) (A) “Public entity” means, without limitation, except as provided in subparagraph (B), a state agency, 
department, office, division, bureau, board, or commission, the California State University, the University of 
California, a city, including a charter city, county, including a charter county, city and county, including a charter 
city and county, district, special district, public authority, political subdivision, public corporation, or nonprofit 
transit corporation wholly owned by a public agency and formed to carry out the purposes of the public agency. 

(B) “Public entity” shall not include the following: 

(i) The Department of Water Resources as to any project under the jurisdiction of that department. 

(ii) The Department of Transportation as to any project under the jurisdiction of that department. 

(iii) The Department of Parks and Recreation as to any project under the jurisdiction of that department. 

(iv) The Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation with respect to any project under its jurisdiction pursuant to 
Chapter 11 (commencing with Section 7000) of Title 7 of Part 3 of the Penal Code. 

(v) The Military Department as to any project under the jurisdiction of that department. 

(vi) The Department of General Services as to all other projects. 

(vii) The High-Speed Rail Authority. 

(4) “Public works project” means the erection, construction, alteration, repair, or improvement of any public 
structure, building, road, or other public improvement of any kind. 

(5) “Subcontractor” means any type of contractor within the meaning of Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 
7000) of Division 3 of the Business and Professions Code who either is in direct contract with a contractor or is a 
lower tier subcontractor. 

(d) (1) (A) Upon receipt of a claim pursuant to this section, the public entity to which the claim applies shall 
conduct a reasonable review of the claim and, within a period not to exceed 45 days, shall provide the claimant a 
written statement identifying what portion of the claim is disputed and what portion is undisputed. Upon receipt of 
a claim, a public entity and a contractor may, by mutual agreement, extend the time period provided in this 
subdivision. 

(B) The claimant shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim. 

(C) If the public entity needs approval from its governing body to provide the claimant a written statement 
identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion of the claim, and the governing body does not meet 
within the 45 days or within the mutually agreed to extension of time following receipt of a claim sent by registered 
mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall have up to three days following the next duly 
publicly noticed meeting of the governing body after the 45-day period, or extension, expires to provide the 
claimant a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion. 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 15 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

(D) Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the 
public entity issues its written statement. If the public entity fails to issue a written statement, paragraph (3) shall 
apply. 

(2) (A) If the claimant disputes the public entity’s written response, or if the public entity fails to respond to a claim 
issued pursuant to this section within the time prescribed, the claimant may demand in writing an informal 
conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon receipt of a demand in writing sent by 
registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall schedule a meet and confer 
conference within 30 days for settlement of the dispute. 

(B) Within 10 business days following the conclusion of the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any portion 
of the claim remains in dispute, the public entity shall provide the claimant a written statement identifying the 
portion of the claim that remains in dispute and the portion that is undisputed. Any payment due on an undisputed 
portion of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the public entity issues its written statement. 
Any disputed portion of the claim, as identified by the contractor in writing, shall be submitted to nonbinding 
mediation, with the public entity and the claimant sharing the associated costs equally. The public entity and 
claimant shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10 business days after the disputed portion of the claim has 
been identified in writing. If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a mediator and those 
mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party to mediate with regard to the disputed portion of the claim. 
Each party shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective mediator in connection with the selection of the 
neutral mediator. If mediation is unsuccessful, the parts of the claim remaining in dispute shall be subject to 
applicable procedures outside this section. 

(C) For purposes of this section, mediation includes any nonbinding process, including, but not limited to, neutral 
evaluation or a dispute review board, in which an independent third party or board assists the parties in dispute 
resolution through negotiation or by issuance of an evaluation. Any mediation utilized shall conform to the 

timeframes in this section. 

(D) Unless otherwise agreed to by the public entity and the contractor in writing, the mediation conducted pursuant 
to this section shall excuse any further obligation under Section 20104.4 to mediate after litigation has been 
commenced. 

(E) This section does not preclude a public entity from requiring arbitration of disputes under private arbitration or 
the Public Works Contract Arbitration Program, if mediation under this section does not resolve the parties’ dispute. 

(3) Failure by the public entity to respond to a claim from a contractor within the time periods described in this 
subdivision or to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section shall result in the claim being deemed 
rejected in its entirety. A claim that is denied by reason of the public entity’s failure to have responded to a claim, 
or its failure to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, shall not constitute an adverse finding with 
regard to the merits of the claim or the responsibility or qualifications of the claimant. 

(4) Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by this section shall bear interest at 7 percent per annum. 

(5) If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to assert a claim against a public entity 
because privity of contract does not exist, the contractor may present to the public entity a claim on behalf of a 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor. A subcontractor may request in writing, either on their own behalf or on 
behalf of a lower tier subcontractor, that the contractor present a claim for work which was performed by the 
subcontractor or by a lower tier subcontractor on behalf of the subcontractor. The subcontractor requesting that 
the claim be presented to the public entity shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim. Within 45 
days of receipt of this written request, the contractor shall notify the subcontractor in writing as to whether the 
contractor presented the claim to the public entity and, if the original contractor did not present the claim, provide 
the subcontractor with a statement of the reasons for not having done so. 

(e) The text of this section or a summary of it shall be set forth in the plans or specifications for any public works 
project that may give rise to a claim under this section. 

(f) A waiver of the rights granted by this section is void and contrary to public policy, provided, however, that (1) 
upon receipt of a claim, the parties may mutually agree to waive, in writing, mediation and proceed directly to the 
commencement of a civil action or binding arbitration, as applicable; and (2) a public entity may prescribe 
reasonable change order, claim, and dispute resolution procedures and requirements in addition to the provisions 
of this section, so long as the contractual provisions do not conflict with or otherwise impair the timeframes and 
procedures set forth in this section. 

(g) This section applies to contracts entered into on or after January 1, 2017. 

(h) Nothing in this section shall impose liability upon a public entity that makes loans or grants available through a 
competitive application process, for the failure of an awardee to meet its contractual obligations. 

(i) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2027, and as of that date is repealed, unless a later 
enacted statute that is enacted before January 1, 2027, deletes or extends that date. 

  



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 16 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

Public Contract Code sections 20104 – 20104.6 
 

§ 20104.  

(a) (1) This article applies to all public works claims of three hundred seventy-five thousand dollars ($375,000) or 
less which arise between a contractor and a local agency. 

(2) This article shall not apply to any claims resulting from a contract between a contractor and a public agency 
when the public agency has elected to resolve any disputes pursuant to Article 7.1 (commencing with Section 
10240) of Chapter 1 of Part 2. 

(b) (1) “Public work” means “public works contract” as defined in Section 1101 but does not include any work or 
improvement contracted for by the state or the Regents of the University of California. 

(2) “Claim” means a separate demand by the contractor for (A) a time extension, (B) payment of money or 
damages arising from work done by, or on behalf of, the contractor pursuant to the contract for a public work and 
payment of which is not otherwise expressly provided for or the claimant is not otherwise entitled to, or (C) an 
amount the payment of which is disputed by the local agency. 

(c) The provisions of this article or a summary thereof shall be set forth in the plans or specifications for any work 
which may give rise to a claim under this article. 

(d) This article applies only to contracts entered into on or after January 1, 1991. 

§ 20104.2. 

For any claim subject to this article, the following requirements apply: 

(a) The claim shall be in writing and include the documents necessary to substantiate the claim. Claims must be 
filed on or before the date of final payment. Nothing in this subdivision is intended to extend the time limit or 
supersede notice requirements otherwise provided by contract for the filing of claims. 

(b) (1) For claims of less than fifty thousand dollars ($50,000), the local agency shall respond in writing to any 
written claim within 45 days of receipt of the claim, or may request, in writing, within 30 days of receipt of the 
claim, any additional documentation supporting the claim or relating to defenses to the claim the local agency may 
have against the claimant. 

(2) If additional information is thereafter required, it shall be requested and provided pursuant to this subdivision, 
upon mutual agreement of the local agency and the claimant. 

(3) The local agency’s written response to the claim, as further documented, shall be submitted to the claimant 
within 15 days after receipt of the further documentation or within a period of time no greater than that taken by 
the claimant in producing the additional information, whichever is greater. 

(c) (1) For claims of over fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) and less than or equal to three hundred seventy-five 
thousand dollars ($375,000), the local agency shall respond in writing to all written claims within 60 days of receipt 
of the claim, or may request, in writing, within 30 days of receipt of the claim, any additional documentation 
supporting the claim or relating to defenses to the claim the local agency may have against the claimant. 

(2) If additional information is thereafter required, it shall be requested and provided pursuant to this subdivision, 
upon mutual agreement of the local agency and the claimant. 

(3) The local agency’s written response to the claim, as further documented, shall be submitted to the claimant 
within 30 days after receipt of the further documentation, or within a period of time no greater than that taken by 
the claimant in producing the additional information or requested documentation, whichever is greater. 

(d) If the claimant disputes the local agency’s written response, or the local agency fails to respond within the time 
prescribed, the claimant may so notify the local agency, in writing, either within 15 days of receipt of the local 
agency’s response or within 15 days of the local agency’s failure to respond within the time prescribed, 
respectively, and demand an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon 
a demand, the local agency shall schedule a meet and confer conference within 30 days for settlement of the 
dispute. 

(e) Following the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any portion remains in dispute, the claimant may file 
a claim as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 910) of 
Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code. For purposes of those provisions, the running of the 
period of time within which a claim must be filed shall be tolled from the time the claimant submits his or her 
written claim pursuant to subdivision (a) until the time that claim is denied as a result of the meet and confer 
process, including any period of time utilized by the meet and confer process. 

(f) This article does not apply to tort claims and nothing in this article is intended nor shall be construed to change 
the time periods for filing tort claims or actions specified by Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 
2 (commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code. 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 17 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

§ 20104.4. 

The following procedures are established for all civil actions filed to resolve claims subject to this article: 

(a) Within 60 days, but no earlier than 30 days, following the filing or responsive pleadings, the court shall submit 
the matter to nonbinding mediation unless waived by mutual stipulation of both parties. The mediation process 
shall provide for the selection within 15 days by both parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be 
commenced within 30 days of the submittal, and shall be concluded within 15 days from the commencement of the 
mediation unless a time requirement is extended upon a good cause showing to the court or by stipulation of both 
parties. If the parties fail to select a mediator within the 15-day period, any party may petition the court to appoint 
the mediator. 

(b) (1) If the matter remains in dispute, the case shall be submitted to judicial arbitration pursuant to Chapter 2.5 
(commencing with Section 1141.10) of Title 3 of Part 3 of the Code of Civil Procedure, notwithstanding Section 
1141.11 of that code. The Civil Discovery Act (Title 4 (commencing with Section 2016.010) of Part 4 of the Code of 
Civil Procedure) shall apply to any proceeding brought under this subdivision consistent with the rules pertaining to 
judicial arbitration. 

(2) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, upon stipulation of the parties, arbitrators appointed for purposes 
of this article shall be experienced in construction law, and, upon stipulation of the parties, mediators and 
arbitrators shall be paid necessary and reasonable hourly rates of pay not to exceed their customary rate, and such 
fees and expenses shall be paid equally by the parties, except in the case of arbitration where the arbitrator, for 
good cause, determines a different division. In no event shall these fees or expenses be paid by state or county 
funds. 

(3) In addition to Chapter 2.5 (commencing with Section 1141.10) of Title 3 of Part 3 of the Code of Civil 
Procedure, any party who after receiving an arbitration award requests a trial de novo but does not obtain a more 
favorable judgment shall, in addition to payment of costs and fees under that chapter, pay the attorney’s fees of 

the other party arising out of the trial de novo. 

(c) The court may, upon request by any party, order any witnesses to participate in the mediation or arbitration 
process. 

§ 20104.6. 

(a) No local agency shall fail to pay money as to any portion of a claim which is undisputed except as otherwise 
provided in the contract. 

(b) In any suit filed under Section 20104.4, the local agency shall pay interest at the legal rate on any arbitration 
award or judgment. The interest shall begin to accrue on the date the suit is filed in a court of law. 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 18 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

 

 

 
  



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 19 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

EXHIBIT “B” 

CUT SHEET 

 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 20 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

 
  



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 21 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

EXHIBIT “C” 

SAMPLE WARRANTY 

 
  



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 22 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

 
  



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 23 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

 
  



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 24 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

PREVAILING WAGE CERTIFICATION 

 

I hereby certify that I will conform to the State of California Public Works Contract 

requirements regarding prevailing wages, benefits, on-site audits with 48-hours’ notice, 

payroll records, and apprentice and trainee employment requirements, for all Work on the 

above Project, including, without limitation, labor compliance monitoring and enforcement 

by the Department of Industrial Relations. 

 

 

Date:              

Proper Name of Contractor:  AstroTurf Corporation 

Signature:             

Print Name:             

Title:              

 

4/1/2022

John Currence 

Director of Quality Operations



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 25 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION 

 

Labor Code section 3700 in relevant part provides: 

 

Every employer except the State shall secure the payment of compensation in one or 

more of the following ways: 

 

a. By being insured against liability to pay compensation by one or more 

insurers duly authorized to write compensation insurance in this state. 

 

b. By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to 

self-insure, which may be given upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the 

Director of Industrial Relations of ability to self-insure and to pay any 

compensation that may become due to his employees. 

 

I am aware of the provisions of section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every 

employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-

insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such 

provisions before commencing the performance of the Work of this Contract. 

 

 

Date:              

Proper Name of Contractor:  AstroTurf Corporation  

Signature:             

Print Name:             

Title:              

 

(In accordance with Article 5 - commencing at section 1860, chapter 1, part 7, division 2 of 

the Labor Code, the above certificate must be signed and filed with the awarding body prior 

to performing any Work under this Contract.) 

4/1/2022

John Currence

Director of Quality Operations



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 26 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

CRIMINAL BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION 

/FINGERPRINTING CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned does hereby certify to District that I am a representative of Contractor 

currently under contract with District; that I am familiar with the facts herein certified; and 

that I am authorized and qualified to execute this certificate on behalf of Contractor. 

Contractor certifies that it has taken at least one of the following actions (check all that 

apply):  

 Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2(a), Contractor has installed or will install, 

prior to commencement of Work, a physical barrier at the Work Site, that will limit 

contact between Contractor's employees, Subcontractors or suppliers and District pupils 

at all times; and/or 

 Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2(a), Contractor certifies that all employees 

will be under the continual supervision of, and monitored by, an employee of Contractor 

who the California Department of Justice (“DOJ”) has ascertained, or as described below, 

will ascertain, has not been convicted of a violent or serious felony. The name and title 

of the employee who will be supervising Contractor's and its subcontractors' or suppliers’ 

employees is: 

Name:             

Title:              

NOTE: If Contractor is a sole proprietor, and elects the above option, Contractor must have the 
above-named employee’s fingerprints prepared and submitted by District for submission to the 
DOJ, in accordance with Education Code section 45125.1(h). No work shall commence until such 

determination by DOJ has been made.  

 Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2(a), District will take appropriate steps to 

protect the safety of any pupils that may come in contact with Contractor’s employees, 

subcontractors or suppliers so that the fingerprinting and criminal background 

investigation requirements of Education Code section 45125.2 shall not apply to 

Contractor under the Contract.  

 The Work on the Contract is either (i) at an unoccupied school site and no employee of 

Contractor and/or subcontractor or supplier of any tier of the Contract shall come in 

contact with District pupils or (ii) if Contractor’s employees or any subcontractor or 

supplier of any tier of the Contract interacts with pupils, such interaction shall only take 

place under the immediate supervision and control of the pupil’s parent or guardian or a 

school employee, so that the fingerprinting and criminal background investigation 

requirements of Education Code section 45125.1 shall not apply to Contractor under the 

Contract.  

Alberto Guevara
crew Supervisor



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 27 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

 Contractor, who is not a sole proprietor, has complied with the fingerprinting 

requirements of Education Code section 45125.1 with respect to all Contractor’s 

employees and all of its Subcontractors’ employees who may have contact with District 

pupils in the course of providing services pursuant to the Contract, and the DOJ has 

determined (A) that none of those employees has been convicted of a felony, as that 

term is defined in Education Code section 45122.1 and/or (B) that the prohibition does 

not apply to an employee as provided by Education Code section 45125.1(e)(2) or (3). 

When Contractor performs the criminal background check, it shall immediately provide 

any subsequent arrest and conviction information it receives to District pursuant to the 

subsequent arrest service. No work shall commence until the Department of Justice 

ascertains that Contractor’s employees and any subcontractors’ employees have not 

been convicted of a felony as defined in Government Code Section 45122.1. 

 A complete and accurate list of Contractor's employees and of all of its 

subcontractors' employees who may come in contact with District pupils during 

the course and scope of the Contract is attached hereto as ATTACHMENT “A;” 

and/or 

 Contractor is a sole proprietor and intends to comply with the fingerprinting 

requirements of Education Code section 45125.1(h) with respect to all Contractor’s 

employees who may have contact with District pupils in the course of providing services 

pursuant to the Contract, and hereby agrees to District’s preparation and submission of 

fingerprints such that the DOJ may determine (A) that none of those employees has 

been convicted of a felony, as that term is defined in Education Code section 45122.1 
and/or (B) that the prohibition does not apply to an employee as provided by Education 

Code section 45125.1(e)(2) or (3). No work shall commence until the Department of 

Justice ascertains that Contractor’s employees and any subcontractors’ employees have 

not been convicted of a felony as defined in Government Code Section 45122.1.  

Contractor’s responsibility for background clearance extends to all of its employees, 

Subcontractors or suppliers, and employees of Subcontractors or suppliers coming into 

contact with District pupils regardless of whether they are designated as employees or 

acting as independent contractors of Contractor.  

 

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE] 

  



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 28 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

ATTACHMENT “A” 

List of Employees/Subcontractors 

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

Name/Company:     

If further space is required for the list of employees/subcontractors, attach additional copies 

of this page. 

Date:    

Proper Name of Contractor:  AstroTurf Corporation 

Signature:    

Print Name:    

Title:    

4/1/2022

John Currence
Director of Quality operations

To Be Determined 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 29 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

ASBESTOS & OTHER HAZARDOUS MATERIALS CERTIFICATION 

 

Contractor hereby certifies that no Asbestos, or Asbestos-Containing Materials, 

polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), or any material listed by the federal or state Environmental 

Protection Agency or federal or state health agencies as a hazardous material, or any other 

material defined as being hazardous under federal or state laws, rules, or regulations (“New 

Hazardous Material”), shall be furnished, installed, or incorporated in any way into the 

Project or in any tools, devices, clothing, or equipment used to affect any portion of 

Contractor's work on the Project for District. 

 

Contractor further certifies that it has instructed its employees with respect to the above-

mentioned standards, hazards, risks, and liabilities. 

 

Asbestos and/or asbestos-containing material shall be defined as all items containing but 

not limited to chrysotile, crocidolite, amosite, anthophyllite, tremolite, and actinolite. Any or 

all material containing greater than one-tenth of one percent (.1%) asbestos shall be 

defined as asbestos-containing material. 

 

Any disputes involving the question of whether or not material is New Hazardous Material 

shall be settled by electron microscopy or other appropriate and recognized testing 

procedure, at District’s determination. The costs of any such tests shall be paid by 

Contractor if the material is found to be New Hazardous Material. 

 

All Work or materials found to be New Hazardous Material or Work or material installed with 

New Hazardous Material containing equipment will be immediately rejected and this Work 

will be removed at Contractor's expense at no additional cost to District. 

 

Contractor has read and understood the document Hazardous Materials Procedures & 

Requirements, and shall comply with all the provisions outlined therein. Contractor certifies 

that it is knowledgeable of, and shall comply with, all laws applicable to the Work including, 

but not limited to, all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, standards, rules, regulations, 

and ordinances applicable to the Work. 

 

Date:              

 

Name of Contractor:   AstroTurf Corporation 

 

Signature:             

 

Print Name:             

 

Title:              

4/1/2022

John Currence

Director of Quality operations



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 30 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

LEAD-PRODUCT(S) CERTIFICATION 
 
California Occupational Safety and Health Administration (CalOSHA), Environmental Protection Agency 

(EPA), California Department of Health Services (DHS), California Department of Education (CDE), and the 
Consumer Product Safety Commission (CPSC) regulate lead-containing paint and lead products. 
 
Because Contractor and its employees will be providing services for District, and because Contractor’s work 
may disturb lead-containing building materials, CONTRACTOR IS HEREBY NOTIFIED of the potential 
presence of lead-containing materials located within certain buildings utilized by District. All school buildings 
built prior to 1993 are presumed to contain some lead-based paint until sampling proves otherwise. 
 
The CDE mandates that school districts utilize DHS lead-certified personnel when a lead-based hazard is 
identified. Examples of lead-certified personnel include: project designers, inspectors, and abatement 
workers. Furthermore, since it is assumed by District that all painted surfaces (interior as well as exterior) 
within District contain some level of lead, it is imperative that Contractor, its workers and subcontractors 

fully and adequately comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations governing lead-based materials 
(Including Title 8, California Code of Regulations, Section 1532.1). Any and all Work which may 
result in the disturbance of lead-containing building materials must be coordinated through District.  
 
The California Education Code also prohibits the use or import of lead-containing paint, lead plumbing and 
solders, or other potential sources of lead contamination in the construction of any new school facility or in 
the modernization or renovation of any existing school facility. Contractor shall provide District with any 
sample results prior to beginning Work, during the Work, and after the completion of the Work. District may 
request to examine, prior to the commencement of the Work, the lead training records of each employee of 
Contractor. 
 
All contractors who disturb lead-based paint in a six-square-foot area or greater indoors or a 20-square-foot 

area or greater outdoors shall comply with the Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule, shall receive training 
from a U.S. EPA-accredited training provider, and shall be certified by the U.S. EPA. Contractor, its workers 
and subcontractors must fully and adequately comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations 
governing lead-based materials, including those rules and regulations appearing within title 40 of the Code 
of Federal Regulations as part 745 (40 CFR 745). 
 
If failure to comply with these laws, rules, and regulations results in a site or worker contamination, 
Contractor will be held solely responsible for all costs involved in any required corrective actions, and shall 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless District, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of the Contract, for 
all damages and other claims arising therefrom. If lead disturbance is anticipated in the Work, only persons 
with appropriate accreditation, registrations, licenses and training shall conduct this Work. 

 
It shall be the responsibility of Contractor to properly dispose of any and all waste products, including but 
not limited to, paint chips, any collected residue, or any other visual material that may occur from the 
prepping of any painted surface. It will be the responsibility of Contractor to provide the proper disposal of 
any hazardous waste by a certified hazardous waste hauler. This company shall be registered with the 
Department of Transportation (DOT) and shall be able to issue a current manifest number upon transporting 
any hazardous material from any school site within District. 

 
THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES, UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, THAT HE OR SHE HAS 
RECEIVED NOTIFICATION OF POTENTIAL LEAD-BASED MATERIALS ON THE OWNER’S PROPERTY, AS WELL 
AS THE EXISTENCE OF APPLICABLE LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING WORK WITH, AND 

DISPOSAL OF, SUCH MATERIALS WITH WHICH IT MUST COMPLY. THE UNDERSIGNED ALSO WARRANTS 
THAT HE OR SHE HAS THE AUTHORITY TO SIGN ON BEHALF OF AND BIND CONTRACTOR. 

Date:              

Name of Contractor:   AstroTurf Corporation 

Signature:             

Print Name:             

Title:               

4/1/2022

John Currence
Director of Quality operations



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 31 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

REGISTERED SUBCONTRACTORS LIST 

(Labor Code Section 1771.1) 

PROJECT: Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

Date Submitted (for Updates):   

Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it must clearly set forth below the name and 

Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) registration number of each subcontractor for all 

tiers who will perform work or labor or render service to Contractor or its subcontractors in 

or about the construction of the Work at least two (2) weeks before the subcontractor 

is scheduled to perform work. This document is to be updated as all tiers of 

subcontractors are identified. 

Contractor acknowledges and agrees that, if Contractor fails to list as to any subcontractor 

of any tier who performs any portion of Work, the Contract is subject to cancellation and 

Contractor will be subjected to penalty under applicable law.  

If further space is required for the list of proposed subcontractors, attach additional copies 

of page 2 showing the required information, as indicated below. 

Subcontractor Name:    

 DIR Registration #:      

 Portion of Work:     

Subcontractor Name:    

 DIR Registration #:     

 Portion of Work:     

Subcontractor Name:    

 DIR Registration #:     

 Portion of Work:     

Subcontractor Name:    

 DIR Registration #:     

 Portion of Work:     

Subcontractor Name:    

 DIR Registration #:     

 Portion of Work:     

Subcontractor Name:    

 DIR Registration #:     

 Portion of Work:     

Subcontractor Name:    

 DIR Registration #:     

 Portion of Work:     

  



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 32 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

Subcontractor Name:    

 DIR Registration #:     

 Portion of Work:     

Subcontractor Name:    

 DIR Registration #:     

 Portion of Work:     

Subcontractor Name:    

 DIR Registration #:     

 Portion of Work:     

Subcontractor Name:    

 DIR Registration #:     

 Portion of Work:     

Date:   

Name of Contractor: AstroTurf Corporation 

Signature:   

Print Name:    

Title:   

 

   

  

4/1/2022

John Currence

Director of Quality operations



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 33 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

COVID-19 VACCINATION/TESTING CERTIFICATION 

The California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) requires, pursuant to its August 11, 

2021, Order (“Order”), that all public and private schools serving students in transitional 

kindergarten through grade twelve, unless exempt, are required to verify the vaccine status 

of all K-12 school workers.  Further, pursuant to the Order, all such schools are required to 

verify that all workers are either fully vaccinated or undergo weekly diagnostic testing.  

On October 12, 2021, the Board of Education of the Sacramento City Unified School District 

(“District” or “SCUSD”) approved Resolution No. 3233:  Mandatory COVID-19 Vaccination 

for Eligible, Non-Exempt Students and Staff, providing that “all non-exempt SCUSD staff 

(including SCUSD partners, contractors, and other individuals who work directly with 

students and SCUSD staff on SCUSD facilities) must receive their first or second dose by 

November 30, 2021 as a condition of employment and a requirement for contracted 

services.” 

In light of these requirements, Contractor certifies that the following entity:  

________________________________________________________________________ 

has verified that the Contractor and its subcontractors’ personnel providing services at 

District’s Project site(s):  

□ Have all been fully vaccinated in accordance with the District’s Policy. 

□ Have not all been fully vaccinated, but those who are unvaccinated or not 

fully vaccinated undergo weekly diagnostic testing in accordance with the 
District’s Policy. 

□ 
Have not been fully vaccinated and do not undergo weekly diagnostic 
testing in accordance with the District’s Policy.  

Contractor understands that the District’s Project site will need to comply with the District’s 

COVID-19 requirements for fully vaccinated personnel or unvaccinated personnel. 

Contractor will comply with District policy, and all applicable state and local laws for 

vaccinated and unvaccinated personnel.   

CERTIFICATION 

I,       , certify that I am Contractor’s     

and that I have made a diligent effort to ascertain the facts with regard to the 

representations made herein.   

Date:    

Proper Name of Contractor:  AstroTurf Corporation 

Signature:    

Print Name:    

Title:    

  

Astroturf Corporation 

John Currence Director of Quality operations

4/1/2022

John Currence

Director of Quality operations



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 34 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

PERFORMANCE BOND  

(100% of Contract Price) 

(Note:  Contractor must use this form, NOT a surety company form.) 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 

WHEREAS, the governing board (“Board”) of the Sacramento City Unified School District, (“District”) 

and AstroTurf Corporation (“Principal”) have entered into a contract for the furnishing of all 

materials and labor, services and transportation, necessary, convenient, and proper to perform the 

following project: 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

(“Project” or “Contract”) which Contract dated     , 2022, and all of the 

Contract Documents attached to or forming a part of the Contract, are hereby referred to and made 

a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, said Principal is required under the terms of the Contract to furnish a bond for the 

faithful performance of the Contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Principal and          

           (“Surety”) are held 

and firmly bound unto the Board of the District in the penal sum of 

              

Dollars ($   ), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum 

well and truly to be made we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 

assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these presents, to: 

- Promptly perform all the work required to complete the Project; and 

- Pay to the District all damages the District incurs as a result of the Principal’s failure to 

perform all the Work required to complete the Project. 

Or, at the District’s sole discretion and election, the Surety shall obtain a bid or bids for completing 

the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by the District of 

the lowest responsible bidder, arrange for a contract between such bidder and the District and make 

available as Work progresses sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the “balance of the 

Contract Price,” and to pay and perform all obligations of Principals under the Contract, including, 

without limitation, all obligations with respect to warranties, guarantees and the payment of 

liquidated damages.  The term “balance of the Contract Price,” as used in this paragraph, shall 

mean the total amount payable to Principal by the District under the Contract and any modifications 

thereto, less the amount previously paid by the District to the Principal, less any withholdings by the 

District allowed under the Contract.  District shall not be required or obligated to accept a tender of 

a completion contractor from the Surety for any or no reason. 

The condition of the obligation is such that, if the above bound Principal, its heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly 

keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and agreements in the Contract and any alteration 

thereof made as therein provided, on its part to be kept and performed at the time and in the intent 

and meaning, including all contractual guarantees and warrantees of materials and workmanship, 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 35 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

and shall indemnify and save harmless the District, its trustees, officers and agents, as therein 

stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and void, otherwise it shall be and remain in full 

force and virtue. 

Surety expressly agrees that the District may reject any contractor or subcontractor proposed by 

Surety to fulfill its obligations in the event of default by the Principal.  Surety shall not utilize 

Principal in completing the Work nor shall Surety accept a Bid from Principal for completion of the 

Work if the District declares the Principal to be in default and notifies Surety of the District’s 

objection to Principal’s further participation in the completion of the Work. 

As a condition precedent to the satisfactory completion of the Contract, the above obligation shall 

hold good for a period equal to the warranty and/or guarantee period of the Contract, during which 

time Surety’s obligation shall continue if Contractor shall fail to make full, complete, and satisfactory 

repair and replacements and totally protect the District from loss or damage resulting from or 

caused by defective materials or faulty workmanship.  The obligations of Surety hereunder shall 

continue so long as any obligation of Contractor remains. Nothing herein shall limit the District’s 

rights or the Contractor or Surety’s obligations under the Contract, law or equity, including, but not 

limited to, California Code of Civil Procedure section 337.15. 

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 

alteration, or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or the 

specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation on this bond.  The 

Surety also stipulates and agrees that it shall not be exonerated or released from the obligation of 

this bond by any overpayment or underpayment by the District that is based upon estimates 

approved by the Architect.  The Surety does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of 

time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work or to the specifications. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this instrument, each of which shall for all 

purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the Principal and Surety 

above named, on the    day of    , 2022. 

  

Principal Surety 

By By 

 Name of California Agent of Surety 

 Address of California Agent of Surety 

 Telephone No. of California Agent of Surety 

Contractor must attach a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety's signatures and a 

Power of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety.  The California Department of 

Insurance must authorize the Surety to be an admitted surety insurer. 

  



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 36 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

PAYMENT BOND 

Contractor's Labor & Material Bond  

(100% Of Contract Price) 

(Note: Contractor must use this form, NOT a surety company form.) 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 

WHEREAS, the governing board (“Board”) of the Sacramento City Unified School District, 

(“District”) and AstroTurf Corporation, (“Principal”) have entered into a contract for the 

furnishing of all materials and labor, services and transportation, necessary, convenient, 

and proper to perform the following project: 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

(“Project” or “Contract”) which Contract dated     , 2022, and all of the 

Contract Documents attached to or forming a part of the Contract, are hereby referred to 

and made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to law and the Contract, the Principal is required, before entering upon 

the performance of the work, to file a good and sufficient bond with the body by which the 

Contract is awarded in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract 

price, to secure the claims to which reference is made in sections 9000 through 9510 and 

9550 through 9566 of the Civil Code, and division 2, part 7, of the Labor Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Principal and        

            (“Surety”) 

are held and firmly bound unto all laborers, material men, and other persons referred to in 

said statutes in the sum of            

Dollars ($   ), lawful money of the United States, being a sum not less than 

the total amount payable by the terms of Contract, for the payment of which sum well and 

truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or 

assigns, jointly and severally, by these presents. 

The condition of this obligation is that if the Principal or any of its subcontractors, or their 

heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns of any, all, or either of them shall 

fail to pay for any labor, materials, provisions, or other supplies, used in, upon, for or about 

the performance of the work contracted to be done, or for any work or labor thereon of any 

kind, or for amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over to the Employment 

Development Department from the wages of employees of the Principal or any of his or its 

subcontractors of any tier under Section 13020 of the Unemployment Insurance Code with 

respect to such work or labor, that the Surety will pay the same in an amount not exceeding 

the amount herein above set forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, will pay 

a reasonable attorney’s fee to be awarded and fixed by the court, and to be taxed as costs 

and to be included in the judgment therein rendered. 

It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the benefit of any 

and all persons, companies, and corporations entitled to file claims under section 9100 of 

the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their assigns in any suit brought 

upon this bond. 



 

 

Settlement Agreement Page 37 

Rosemont Field Replacement Project 

Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become null 

and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and affect. 

And the Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension 

of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of Contract or the specifications accompanying 

the same shall in any manner affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive 

notice of any such change, extension, alteration, or addition. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this instrument, each of which 

shall for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the 

Principal and Surety above named, on the    day of    , 2022. 

  

Principal Surety 

By By 

 Name of California Agent of Surety 

 Address of California Agent of Surety 

 Telephone No. of California Agent of Surety 

  

 

Contractor must attach a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety's signatures and 

a Power of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety.  The California 

Department of Insurance must authorize the Surety to be an admitted surety 

insurer. 

 



 

 

1717 Second Street   

Sacramento CA 95811 

TEL 916.441.6870 

FAX 916.441.6138 
 

 
 

www.ottoconstruction.com 

CA Lic #178809 

 

March 22, 2023 

 

Brendin Swanson 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

5735 4th Avenue, 

Sacramento, CA 95833 

 

RE:  LBHS EMERGENCY CLASSROOM REPAIR PROPOSAL 

 
Brendin: 

 

We are pleased to submit the following proposal for work related to the above referenced project. We propose to 

furnish all necessary labor, material, equipment and supervision to complete the work, per attached LBHS 

Emergency Classroom Repair Scope, and as specified below, for the sum of: $168,279 

 

COST BREAKDOWN: 

 
1. General Conditions: ............................................................................................................... 41,324 

2. Building J1 & J2 Repairs: .................................................................................................... 101,270 

3. Balance of Scope: .................................................................................................................. 25,685 

Total: ................................................................................................................................. $168,279 

 

ALLOWANCES INCLUDED IN THE TOTAL AFTER FEE: 

 
1. Allowance Flooring Underlayment: ...................................................................................... $7,500 

 

VALUE ENGINEERING ALTERNATES NOT INCLUDED IN THE TOTAL: 

 
1. Broadloom vs. Carpet Tile: ................................................................................................. <$1,200> 

 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: 

 
1. General Provisions: ................................................................................................................ 41,324 

2. Demolition: .............................................................................................................................. 6,017 

3. Landscaping: .......................................................................................................................... 17,700 

4. Rough Carpentry: ................................................................................................................... 12,167 

5. Doors, Frames and Hardware: ................................................................................................. 2,833 

6. Building Insulation: ................................................................................................................. 1,200 

7. Roofing: ................................................................................................................................. 38,000 

8. Acoustical Ceiling: .................................................................................................................. 9,133 

9. Flooring ................................................................................................................................. 12,200 

10. Painting: ................................................................................................................................... 2,020 



 

  
 

 

 

 

11. Overhead & Fee 10%: ........................................................................................................... 14,259 

12. Bonds and Insurance 1.24%: ................................................................................................... 3,926 

13. Allowance Flooring Underlayment: ........................................................................................ 7,500 

 

Total: .................................................................................................................... $168,279 

 

EXCLUDED: 

 
1. Wall coverings, window treatments or coverings, systems or office furniture, appliances 

2. All Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing 

3. Temporary facilities, or utilities for building occupants 

4. Excessive floor prep (i.e. ramping or leveling, major crack filling, or grinding) 

5. Independent inspections, special inspections, 3rd party commissioning, testing, or fees. 

6. Shift work and overtime costs (Regular hours are defined as; M-F 7:00 AM to 3:30 PM) 

7. Hazardous materials testing, abatement, disposal, and Air Quality Management fees 

8. Utility costs or fees 

9. Permits, governmental or utility fees 

10. Architectural and engineering fees 

 

Please give me a call if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

 

OTTO CONSTRUCTION      

By: ___________________      

Sidney Adams      

Project Manager 



DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT COST TOTAL

General Provisions 41,324.00                

Project Manager included included

Foreman 6.0          wks 4,446.40      26,678.00         

Safety Material/Equip included included

First Aid Equipment included included

Construction Fence 240            lf 15.00           3,600.00           

Temp Power/Utility Cost utilizing district power

Dryers & Dehumidifiers exluded; by district if required per Brendin

Telehandler Reach Lift 1           mo 3,734.00      3,734.00           United Rentals

Equipment Fuel 1                ls 250.00         250.00              

Consumables/Sundries 1                ls 250.00         250.00              

Fire Extinguishers - Job 2                ea 25.00           50.00                1/bldg

Storage Containers 1                ea 750.00         750.00              delivery & rental

Dumpster 3                ea 650.00         1,950.00           

Portable Toilet & Wash 6                wks 230.00         1,380.00           

Daily Clean-up AL 24              hr 70.10           1,682.00           4hrs/wk

Detail Final Cleaning 1                bid 1,000.00      1,000.00           CBOC

Demolition 6,017.00                  

General Demolition JL 40              hr 80.32           3,213.00           

General Demolition AL 40              hr 70.10           2,804.00           

Abatement excluded excluded by district

Testing excluded excluded by district

Sitework Excluded

Sitework excluded excluded

Landscaping 17,700.00                

Tree Removal 1                bid 17,700.00    17,700.00         Al's Land Clearing

Rough Carpentry 12,167.00                

Ceiling Framing JC 48              hr 104.18         5,001.00           

Ceiling Framing AC 48              hr 97.20           4,666.00           

Material 1                ls 2,500.00      2,500.00           

Flooring Underlayment excluded excluded

Finish Carpentry Excluded

Finish Carpentry excluded excluded

Doors, Frames, Hardware 2,833.00                  

J1 Door 1                ls 1500.00 1,500.00           

Install Replacement J1 Door 8                hr 104.18 833.00              

Paint J1 Door 1                ls 500.00 500.00              

Glass & Glazing Excluded

Glass & Glazing excluded excluded

Metal Studs & Drywall Excluded

Metal Studs & Drywall excluded excluded

Building Insulation 1,200.00                  

Ceiling Insulation 600            sf 2.00             1,200.00           

Wall Insulation excluded excluded

Roofing 38,000.00                

Roofing 1                bid 36,800.00    36,800.00         Cal Single Ply

Disposal 1                ls 1,200.00      1,200.00           

Acoustical Ceiling 9,133.00                  

Acoustical Ceiling 1                bid 9,133.00      9,133.00           Cemco

LBHS Emergency Repairs J1 & J2

Estimate

3/22/2023

1



DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT $/UNIT COST TOTAL

LBHS Emergency Repairs J1 & J2

Estimate

3/22/2023

Floor Covering 12,200.00                

Carpet, VCT & Base 1                bid 12,200.00    12,200.00         CCF

Painting 2,020.00                  

Exterior 1                bid 2,020.00      2,020.00           Mason Paint

Interior excluded excluded

Wall Covering Excluded

Wall Covering excluded excluded

Specialties Excluded

Specialties excluded excluded

Fire Sprinklers Excluded

Fire Sprinklers excluded excluded

Plumbing Excluded

Plumbing excluded excluded

Heat, Vent, Air Condition Excluded

HVAC excluded excluded

Electrical Excluded

Electrical excluded excluded

SUBTOTAL 142,594.00       142,594.00$            

Bond 1% 1,426.00                  

Fee 10% 14,259.00                

Blanket Builders Risk Ins. 2,500.00                  

SUBTOTAL 160,779.00$            

Flooring Underlayment Allowance 7,500.00                  

Contingency 0% Excluded

TOTAL 168,279.00$            

1



 

Sacramento                            Monterey 
1717 2nd Street                       2150 Garden Road, Suite A-1               
Sacramento, CA 95811          Monterey, CA 93940 
916.441.6870                         831.657.9805 

 

LBHS Emergency Classroom Repair Scope 

 

Classroom J1 

• Moving and temp storage of classroom contents 

• Dehumidify classroom prior to work 

• Complete removal and replacement of built-up roof system 

• Complete removal and replacement of interior carpet and VCT flooring (including 4” cove base) 

• Complete removal and replacement of drop in ceiling tile 

• T-bar repairs as needed at new roof framing 

• Roof insulation removal and replacement as needed at new roof framing 

• Removal of damaged roof sheathing, roof framing, soffit panel and trim, and roof fascia 

• Installation of new roof framing, roof sheathing, soffit panel and trim, and roof fascia. Materials 

to match in like kind 

• Exterior paint as needed at repair work to match existing color 

• J1 door replacement painted to match  

 

Classroom J2 

• Moving and temp storage of classroom contents 

• Dehumidify classroom prior to work 

• Complete removal and replacement of built-up roof system 

• Complete removal and replacement of interior carpet and VCT flooring (including 4” cove base) 

• Complete removal and replacement of drop in ceiling tile 

 

Site Work 

• Complete removal of fallen eucalyptus tree debris  

• Complete removal of remaining eucalyptus tree, stump grinding included 

 

 

  



SA23-00620 
Shimansky Enterprises 

 
 
 
 

 1 of 11 

 

Inspector Agreement 
 

THIS INSPECTOR AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into as of April 26, 2023 by and 
between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (the 
“DISTRICT”) and Jay Shimansky dba Shimansky Enterprises, an Independent Contractor, 
hereinafter referred to as "INSPECTOR".  District and Inspector are each a “Party” and together 
are the “Parties” to this Agreement. 
 

RECITALS: 
 
 A. DISTRICT intends to construct, Cesar Chavez / Edward Kemble Elementary School 
New Construction and Modernization, hereinafter the "Project". 
 
 B. Education Code section 17311 and Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations 
(hereinafter "Title 24") require DISTRICT to provide for competent, adequate and continuous 
inspection for each construction project by a project inspector satisfactory to the Architect or 
Structural Engineer in general responsible charge of observation of the work of construction. 
 
 C. DISTRICT desires to retain INSPECTOR to provide inspection services on the Project. 
INSPECTOR shall have all of the duties and responsibilities of an inspector, as set forth in 
Education Code section 17309 et seq. Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, including 
sections 4-336 and 4-342. 
 
 D. Government Code section 53060 authorizes DISTRICT to contract with persons to 
furnish special services and advice to District in financial, economic, accounting, engineering, 
legal or administrative matters, if such persons are specially trained and experienced and 
competent to perform the special services required. 
 
 E. INSPECTOR is at least 25 years of age, has had at least three years prior experience 
in inspection or construction work on building projects of a type similar to the projects for which 
INSPECTOR is proposed as the inspector, has a thorough knowledge of building materials, is 
able to read and interpret plans and specifications and has been approved as a project inspector 
by the Structural Safety Section, Division of the State Architect (hereinafter "DSA"). 
 
 F. DISTRICT desires to contract with INSPECTOR to provide inspection services to 
DISTRICT on the terms and conditions set forth below, and INSPECTOR desires the same. 
INSPECTOR acknowledges that District is required to obtain DSA approval prior to using 
INSPECTOR’S services on the project. INSPECTOR agrees to do all acts necessary to timely 
obtain DSA approval. 
 
 In consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1:  DUTIES OF THE INSPECTOR 
The duties of the INSPECTOR shall include the duties of the inspector set forth in Education 
Code sections 17309 et seq., and Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, and future 
amendments thereto, including the duties set forth below. 
 
 A. General.  INSPECTOR shall provide competent, adequate, and continuous inspection 
during construction or alteration satisfactory to the Project Manager, Architect and DSA. 
INSPECTOR shall act under the direction of the Architect, or Structural Engineer if applicable, as 



SA23-00620 
Shimansky Enterprises 

 
 
 
 

 2 of 11 

 

the Board of Education of DISTRICT may direct. While performing the services contemplated by 
this Agreement, INSPECTOR agrees to comply with all applicable laws and regulations. 
 
 B. Continuous Inspection Services.  In fulfilling Inspector’s responsibilities, INSPECTOR 
shall represent DISTRICT as the inspector on the Project job site. INSPECTOR shall have 
personal knowledge, obtained by his personal and continuous inspection of the work of 
construction at all stages of its progress, that the requirements of the approved plans and 
specifications are being completely executed. 
 

Continuous inspection means complete inspection of every part of the work to insure a 
workmanlike job is constructed in conformity with the contract documents, all applicable 
requirements of the DSA and all applicable federal and state laws and local ordinances. 
 
 Work such as concrete work or brick work which can be inspected only as it is placed will 
require the constant presence of INSPECTOR. Other types of work which can be completely 
inspected after the work is installed may be carried on while INSPECTOR is not present. In any 
case, INSPECTOR must personally inspect every part of the work. In no event shall INSPECTOR 
have or assume any duties which will prevent INSPECTOR from continuous inspection of the 
work of construction in all stages of its progress at the site where INSPECTOR is responsible for 
inspection. 
 
 C. Personal Knowledge.  INSPECTOR may obtain personal knowledge of the work of 
construction, either on site or off site, performed under the inspection of a special inspector or 
inspector, if any (Section 4-333 of Title 24), from the reporting of others on testing or inspection of 
materials and workmanship for compliance with the plans, specifications and applicable 
standards. The exercise of reasonable diligence to obtain the facts shall be required. 
 
 D. Relations With Architect Or Engineer.  INSPECTOR shall work under the general 
direction of the Architect or Structural Engineer. All inconsistencies or seeming errors in the 
plans and specifications shall be reported promptly to the Architect or Structural Engineer for 
interpretation and instructions. In no case, however, shall the instruction for the Architect or 
Structural Engineer be construed to cause work to be done which is not in conformity with the 
approved plans, specifications and change orders. 
 
 E. Job File.  INSPECTOR shall keep a file of approved plans and specifications (including 
all approved addenda or change orders) on the job at all times, and shall immediately return any 
unapproved documents to the Architect or Structural Engineer for proper action. INSPECTOR 
shall have and maintain on the job at all times all codes and documents referred to in the plans 
and specifications. 
 
 F. Semimonthly Reports.  INSPECTOR shall keep the Architect or Structural Engineer 
thoroughly informed as to the progress of the work by making semimonthly reports in writing as 
required by Section 4-337 of Title 24, signed by the INSPECTOR. A copy of each such report 
shall be sent to the DISTRICT's Director of Facilities, or designee, and to DSA. Failure to comply 
with Section 4-337 is cause for DSA to withdraw approval of INSPECTOR. 
 
 G. Notifications to Division of the State Architect.  INSPECTOR shall notify the DSA (1) 
when work is started on the Project or restarted if previously suspended per no. 4 below, (2) at 
least 48 hours in advance of the time when foundation trenches will be complete, ready for footing 
forms, (3) at least 48 hours in advance of the first pour of foundation concrete and 24 hours in 



SA23-00620 
Shimansky Enterprises 

 
 
 
 

 3 of 11 

 

advance of any subsequent and significant concrete pour, and (4) when all work is suspended for 
a period of more than two weeks. 
 
 H. Construction Procedure Records.  INSPECTOR shall keep a record of certain phases 
of construction procedure including but not limited to the following:  (1) the time and date of 
placing concrete and the time and date of removal of forms in each portion of the structure; 
(2) identification marks of welders, lists of defective welds, manner of correction of defects, and 
other matters regarding welding operations; (3) penetration under the last ten (10) blows for each 
pile when piles are driven for foundations. All such records of construction procedure shall be kept 
on the job until completion of the work, and shall be made a part of the permanent school records. 
 
  I. Deviations.  INSPECTOR shall notify the contractor, in writing, of any deviations from the 
approved plans and specifications which are not immediately corrected by the contractor when 
brought to contractor’s attention. Copies of such notices shall be forwarded immediately to the 
District and Architect or Structural Engineer, and to the DSA. INSPECTOR shall safeguard the 
interest of the District in the construction of the project. 
 

Failure on the part of INSPECTOR to notify the contractor of the deviations from the 
approved plans and specifications shall in no way relieve the contractor of any responsibility to 
complete the work covered by contractor’s contract in accordance with the approved plans and 
specifications and all laws and regulations. 
 
 J. Verified Reports.  From time to time, as the work of construction or alteration 
progresses, INSPECTOR shall prepare and submit to the DSA verified reports, signed by the 
Architect or Structural Engineer and INSPECTOR, upon forms prescribed by the DSA, based 
upon INSPECTOR'S personal knowledge (as defined in Education Code section 17309 that the 
work during the period covered by the report has been performed and materials have been used 
and installed, in every material respect, in compliance with the approved plans and specifications, 
setting forth such detailed statements of fact as are required by the DSA in accordance with 
Section 4-336 of Title 24. INSPECTOR shall also prepare and deliver to the DSA detailed 
statements of fact regarding materials, operations and other matters related to the work of 
construction when requested. 
 
 K. No Authority To Contract. INSPECTOR shall have no authority to contract on behalf of 
DISTRICT. 
  
 L. If not already set forth herein, INSPECTOR must:    
 

a. Be familiar with the plans, specifications, change orders, and the contractor’s operations 
during all phases of the project. 

b. Observe, check and measure items used in the project for compliance with the plans, 
specifications, change orders, and technical instructions from the Architect. 

c. Maintain a daily report/log describing the general work performed by the contractor, 
noting problems, rejections of materials or work and unusual events. The report/log shall 
be filled daily, tersely and factually. The report/log shall reflect the contractor’s activities 
each day. This and all other reports shall be timely and properly completed. All reports 
and records created or maintained by INSPECTOR shall be uploaded to the District’s 
construction management program, e-Builder, and shall be District’s sole property. 

d. Supervise on-site testing and ensure that all required tests are performed by a 
competent testing laboratory, contractor or engineer as specified in the Contract 



SA23-00620 
Shimansky Enterprises 

 
 
 
 

 4 of 11 

 

Documents. Check and report to the Project Manager and the Architect laboratory tests 
indicating defective materials or other problems. Check billings from testing laboratories 
to see that billings reflect only tests actually requested and performed. Maintain a daily 
log of inspection by testing lab. 

e. Make sure that the required record drawings are accurately marked up as required. 
f. Report to the Project Manager and the Architect verbally and in writing: (1) poor 

performance by the contractor; (2) acts prejudicial to the District’s interest; and, (3) work 
performed or materials used which are not in conformance with the Contract Documents. 

g. Assist the Project Manager and the Architect in the final inspection and project 
acceptance phase. 

h. Upon request, provide the District with a written report regarding contractor’s 
performance on the Project. 

i. Maintain an effective working relationship with the contractor, District personnel and 
Architect. 

j. Be tactful, firm and fair in insisting that contractor adhere to the Contract Documents. 
k. Attempt to foresee methods or materials which will not be acceptable and immediately 

bring these facts to the contractor’s attention in order to avoid removal of work already in 
place. 

l. Attempt to anticipate the contractor’s problems and review with the Project Manager 
anticipated schedules and work involved prior to the commencement of a new trade on 
the job. 

m. Attempt to foresee the need for all required tests and inspections. 
n. When notified by contractor, arrange for all tests and inspections which are required by 

the Contract Documents, arrange for prompt notification of the Architect of the results of 
the tests and inspections, and record Architect’s approval or rejection. 

o. Refuse to allow any related work to be installed until shop drawings have received final 
approval from the Architect. 

p. Ensure that Architect’s verbal instructions during field inspections are written in the Daily 
Report/Log for that day or in the Field Instruction Sheet. 

q. Be responsible for slump tests and for taking concrete test cylinders for each concrete 
pour and marking them for identification. Inspector shall make arrangements for 
transportation and storage of test materials. 

r. Receive samples which are required to be furnished at the job site; record date received 
and from whom; notify Architect of their readiness for examination, record Architect’s 
approval or rejection; and maintain custody of approved samples.  

s. Inspect all materials immediately upon their delivery to the site to ensure that they 
comply with the Contract Documents and are in a good and acceptable condition. Exert 
extreme care to ensure that no communications to the contractor or contractor’s agents 
are misinterpreted as changes in the scope of the work. 

t. Assist in the completion and submission of DSA close out documents as required by 
DSA. 

u. INSPECTOR may be required to utilize construction program management software, 
such as, but not limited to, e-Builder™. 

 
 M. Restrictions on the Inspector’s Authority. In the performance of the duties required by 
this Agreement, the INSPECTOR exercises limited authority. The INSPECTOR shall not: 
 

a. Authorize deviations from the Contract Documents; 
b. Avoid conducting any required tests; 
c. Enter the area of responsibility of the contractor’s field superintendent; 



SA23-00620 
Shimansky Enterprises 

 
 
 
 

 5 of 11 

 

d. Expedite the job for the contractor; 
e. Advise on, or issue directions relative to, any aspect of the building technique or 

sequence unless a specific technique or sequence is called for in the specifications; 
f. Approve shop drawings or samples; 
g. Authorize or advise the District to occupy the project, in the whole or in part, prior to final 

acceptance of the project; 
h. Interfere in contractor/subcontractor relationships. 

 
ARTICLE 2:  VIOLATIONS OF THE FIELD ACT 

Failure, refusal or neglect on the part of INSPECTOR to notify the contractor of any work which 
does not comply with the requirements of the approved plans and specifications, or failure, refusal 
or neglect to report immediately, in writing, any such violation to the Architect or Structural 
Engineer, to DISTRICT's Director of Facilities, and to the DSA shall constitute a violation of the 
Field Act and shall be cause for the DSA to take action which may result in the withdrawal of the 
INSPECTOR’S approval. 
 
In accordance with Education Code section 17312, any person who violates the Field Act 
(Education Code sections 17280 through 17313), or makes any false statement in any verified 
report or affidavit required pursuant to that Act is guilty of a felony. 
 

ARTICLE 3:  TERM 
The term of this Agreement shall commence on December 1, 2023, and shall terminate upon 
completion and acceptance by the Board of Education of DISTRICT of the construction project(s) 
for which INSPECTOR was retained, unless earlier terminated as provided in the Agreement.  
 

ARTICLE 4:  COMPENSATION 
DISTRICT agrees to pay INSPECTOR for services rendered and accepted by DISTRICT at the 
rate of $110 per hour for DSA Class 1; $105 per hour for DSA Class 2; and $100 per hour for 
Class 3.  Total compensation shall not exceed Four Hundred Eighty-Nine Thousand Five Hundred 
Dollars ($489,500.00) for this Agreement.  INSPECTOR will be paid for hours worked (not a lump 
sum), and shall record all hours worked in a daily log which shall be submitted to the District on a 
weekly basis. 
 
 Payment will be made within 30 days upon submission of periodic invoices to:  Brendin 
Swanson, Manager III of Facilities, Planning and Construction, Sacramento City Unified School 
District, 5735 47th Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95824. Invoices must show the number of hours 
worked, the Agreement number, the project name and location and must contain the 
INSPECTOR’S original signature on all copies. INSPECTOR’S failure to maintain required 
records or to properly submit invoices may result in non-payment to INSPECTOR.  
 
 INSPECTOR agrees that if the construction schedule is interrupted for an unusual period 
of time, INSPECTOR shall not charge unreasonably for services rendered during the period of 
interruption.  
 

ARTICLE 5. TERMINATION 
Either party may terminate this Agreement, without cause, at any time by giving the other party 
thirty (30) days written notice of termination. The effective date of termination shall occur thirty 
(30) days after the day on which the party terminating this Agreement personally delivers written 
notice of termination to the other party or mails such notice of termination in accordance with 
paragraph 9 of this Agreement. 



SA23-00620 
Shimansky Enterprises 

 
 
 
 

 6 of 11 

 

 
ARTICLE 6:  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A. It is agreed that the relationship between DISTRICT and INSPECTOR is one of 
independent contractor and that no relationship of employer-employee or agency exists between 
the parties hereto. 
 
 B. All persons employed by INSPECTOR or acting at the direction of the INSPECTOR to 
assist INSPECTOR in rendering the services to be provided under this Agreement shall be 
entirely and exclusively employees and agents of the INSPECTOR. All terms of employment, 
including hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring and discharge, or any other terms of 
employment or requirements of law, shall be determined by INSPECTOR, and DISTRICT shall 
have no right or authority over such persons or the terms of such employment. INSPECTOR shall 
comply with any applicable prevailing wage laws. 
 
 C. INSPECTOR hereby indemnifies, holds harmless and agrees to defend DISTRICT, its 
Board members, officers, directors, agents and employees from any contention by a third party 
that an employer-employee or agency relationship exists between DISTRICT and INSPECTOR, 
its agents and employees by reason of this Agreement. 
 
 D. INSPECTOR and his/her/its employees and agents performing services related to this 
Agreement are not agents or employees of DISTRICT and are not entitled to participate in any 
DISTRICT pension plans, retirement, health and welfare programs or any similar programs or 
benefits as a result of performing such services. 
 
 E. INSPECTOR and his/her/its agents and employees performing services related to this 
Agreement are not employees of DISTRICT for federal or state tax purposes or for any other 
purpose. DISTRICT shall have no obligation to pay wages to such persons or to withhold payroll 
taxes from compensation paid to such persons for services under this Agreement.  INSPECTOR 
shall be solely responsible for payment of wages, if any, and employer's payroll tax liability related 
thereto. INSPECTOR agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the District, its Board members, 
agents, officers and employees harmless from any liability which INSPECTOR may incur to the 
Federal or State governments as a consequence of this Agreement. All payments to INSPECTOR 
shall be reported to the appropriate State and Federal tax authorities as required. 
 
 F. It is further understood and agreed by the parties hereto that in the performance of 
INSPECTOR's obligations under this Agreement, INSPECTOR is subject to the control or 
direction of DISTRICT merely as to the designation of tasks to be performed, and results to be 
accomplished by the services agreed to be rendered and performed under this Agreement, and 
not as to the means and methods for accomplishing the result. 
 
 G. If in the performance of this Agreement any third persons are employed by DISTRICT, 
such persons shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction, supervision and control of 
DISTRICT. All terms of employment, including hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring 
and discharging, or any other terms of employment or requirements of law, shall be determined by 
DISTRICT, and INSPECTOR shall have no right or authority over such persons or the terms of 
such employment. Nothing contained in the Agreement shall be deemed to create any contractual 
relationship between the INSPECTOR and the Architect or contractor, nor shall anything 
contained in this Agreement be deemed to give any third party any claim or right of action against 
the District, the Architect or the INSPECTOR which does not otherwise exist. 
 



SA23-00620 
Shimansky Enterprises 

 
 
 
 

 7 of 11 

 

 
ARTICLE 7: FINGERPRINTING REQUIREMENTS 

Education Code Section 45125.1 states that if employees of any contractor providing school site 
administrative or similar services may have any contact with any pupils, those employees shall be 
fingerprinted by the Department of Justice (DOJ) before entering to determine that they have not 
been convicted of a serious or violent felony. If the DISTRICT determines that more than limited 
contact with students will occur during the performance of these services by INSPECTOR, 
INSPECTOR will not perform services until all employees providing services have been 
fingerprinted by the DOJ and DOJ fingerprinting clearance certification has been provided to 
DISTRICT.  
 
 DISTRICT has determined that INSPECTOR’S services will result in limited contact with 
pupils. INSPECTOR is required to comply with the conditions listed in Exhibit A, Contractor’s 
certification of compliance with District fingerprinting and security requirements. If INSPECTOR is 
unwilling to comply, INSPECTOR’S employees may not enter any school site until INSPECTOR 
provides certification of fingerprinting clearance by the DOJ for employees providing services. 
These requirements apply to self-employed inspectors.  
 

ARTICLE 8:  INDEMNIFICATION AND EXCULPATION 
INSPECTOR shall indemnify, hold DISTRICT and its Board members, agents, employees and 
officers harmless from and defend DISTRICT against all claims, demands, actions or liability for 
injury or damage, including attorney’s fees and costs, to persons or property arising for any 
reason from the services to be performed by INSPECTOR under this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 9:  INSURANCE 
INSPECTOR shall maintain comprehensive general liability insurance during the life of this 
Agreement and shall provide the DISTRICT with a current certificate of insurance evidencing its 
general liability insurance coverage in a sum not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, and such 
certificate or policy shall name the District as an additional insured. INSPECTOR shall carry 
workers' compensation coverage for INSPECTOR's employees rendering services to DISTRICT 
under this Agreement. DISTRICT assumes no liability for workers' compensation or for loss, 
damage or injury to persons or property in the performance of the services rendered by 
INSPECTOR under this Agreement. The insurance shall protect the INSPECTOR from the 
claims set forth below that may arise out of or result from the INSPECTOR’S performance of 
services or failure to perform services under this Agreement:   
 

a. Claims under Workers' Compensation, disability benefits and other similar employee 
benefits acts that are applicable to the work performed; 

b. Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease or death 
of Inspector’s employees, agents or invitees; 

c. Claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person; 
d. Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage that are sustained 

(1) by any person as a result of an offense directly related to the employment of such 
person by the Inspector or (2) by any other person 

e. Claims for damages, other than to the work itself, because of injury to or destruction of 
tangible property, including loss of use therefrom; or 

f. Claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage 
arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of any motor vehicle. 

  



SA23-00620 
Shimansky Enterprises 

 
 
 
 

 8 of 11 

 

The Inspector’s comprehensive general and automobile liability insurance shall be written for 
not less than the following limits of liability: 
 
Comprehensive General Liability 
Personal Injury: Property Damage: 
$1,000,000 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
$1,000,000 Aggregate $1,000,000 Aggregate 
 
Comprehensive Automobile Liability 
Bodily Injury: Property Damage: 
$1,000,000 Each Person/Occurrence $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 

ARTICLE 10:  NOTICE 
All notices or other communications that one party may be required to desire to give to the other 
party under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be served personally or by certified or by 
first class or overnight mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows or to such other address as 
either party may provide to the other party in writing:   
 
 DISTRICT: INSPECTOR: 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
Attn: Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contracts  
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

Shimansky Enterprises 
Attn: Jay Shimansky 
4324 Rancho Road 
Marysville CA  95901 

  
ARTICLE 11:  NONASSIGNABILITY 

INSPECTOR is specially trained and competent to render the services to be provided under this 
Agreement. INSPECTOR shall not assign or subcontract all or any part of this Agreement or 
obligation of INSPECTOR under this Agreement or any interest therein, without the prior written 
consent of DISTRICT. 
 

ARTICLE 12:  CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 A. INSPECTOR shall abide by and be subject to all applicable DISTRICT policies, 
regulations, statutes or other laws regarding conflict of interest. 
 
 B. INSPECTOR shall not hire any officer or employee of the District to perform any service 
covered by this Agreement. If the work is to be performed in connection with a Federal contract or 
grant, Inspector shall not hire any employee of the United States government to perform any 
service covered by this Agreement. 
 
 C. INSPECTOR affirms to the best of its/his/her knowledge, there exists no actual or 
potential conflict of interest between Inspector’s family, business or financial interest and the 
services provided under this Agreement, and in the event of change in either private interest or 
services under this Agreement, any question regarding possible conflict of interest which may 
arise as a result of such change will be brought to the District’s attention in writing. 
 

ARTICLE 13:  MODIFICATION IN WRITING 
This Agreement may not be modified, changed, or supplemented, nor may any modifications 
under this Agreement be waived, except by written instruments signed by both parties. 
 
 



SA23-00620 
Shimansky Enterprises 

 
 
 
 

 9 of 11 

 

ARTICLE 14:  NONDISCRIMINATION 
It is the policy of the District that in connection with all services performed under Agreement, there 
will be no discrimination against any prospective or active employee engaged in the work because 
of race, color, ancestry, national origin, handicap, religious creed, sex, age or marital status. 
Contractor agrees to comply with applicable federal and California laws including, but not limited 
to, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act. 
 

ARTICLE 15:  CALIFORNIA LAW 
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws and decisions 
of the State of California. 
 

ARTICLE 16:  BINDING EFFECT 
This Agreement shall be binding upon DISTRICT and INSPECTOR, their heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns. 
 

ARTICLE 17:  SEVERABILITY 
Should any term or provision of this Agreement be determined to be illegal or in conflict with any 
law of the State of California, the validity of the remaining portions or provisions shall not be 
affected thereby, and each term or provision of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced as 
written to the full extent permitted by law. 
 

ARTICLE 18:  COUNTERPARTS 
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the signatures may appear on 
separate signature pages. A copy, facsimile or original, with all signatures appended together, 
shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 19:  INTERPRETATION 
The language of all parts of this Agreement shall, in all cases, be construed as a whole, 
according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against either party. 
 

ARTICLE 20:  ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior 
negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.  
 
Executed on the day and year first above written. 
 
 



SA23-00620 
Shimansky Enterprises 

 
 
 
 

 10 of 11 

 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY 

UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
By:  ________________________________ 

Rose Ramos 
Chief Business Officer 

 
      
 ________________________________ 

Date 

 
INSPECTOR 

 
 
 
By:  ________________________________ 

Jay Shimansky 
 
 
 
    __________________________________ 

  Date 
 

 
 
 

4/26/2023



SA23-00620 
Shimansky Enterprises 

 
 
 
 

 11 of 11 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION 
 
Fingerprinting:  Education Code section 45125.1 provides that any contractor providing school 
site administrative or similar services to a school district must certify that its employees providing 
that service who may come into contact with pupils have not been convicted of a serious or violent 
felony as defined by law. Those employees must be fingerprinted and the Department of Justice 
must report to the Contractor if they have been convicted of such felonies. No person convicted 
may be assigned to work under the Agreement. The school district may determine, under the 
totality of circumstances including (1) the length of time the employees will be on school grounds, 
(2) whether pupils will be in proximity of the site where the employees will be working and (3) 
whether the contractors will be working alone or with others, that the employees will have only 
limited contact with pupils and neither fingerprinting nor certification is required.  
 
The District has determined that section 45125.1 is applicable to this Agreement. The District has 
also determined that the employees assigned to work at a school site under this Agreement will 
have only limited contact with pupils, provided the following conditions are met at all times: 
 
1. Contractor employees shall not come into contact with pupils or work in the proximity of 

pupils at any time except under the direct supervision of school district employees. 
 
2. Contractor employees shall use only restroom facilities reserved for District employees and 

shall not use student restrooms at any time. 
 
3. Contractor will inform all of its employees who perform work at any school or District site of 

these conditions and require its employees, as a condition of employment, to adhere to 
them. 

 
4. Contractor will immediately report to District any apparent violation of these conditions. 
 
5. Contractor shall assume responsibility for enforcement of these conditions at all times during 

the term of this Agreement. 
 
If, for any reason, Contractor cannot adhere to the conditions stated above, Contractor shall so 
inform the District and shall assign only those employees who have been fingerprinted and 
cleared for employment by the Department of Justice. In that case, Contractor shall provide to the 
District the names of all employees assigned to perform work under this Agreement. 
 
Compliance with these conditions, or with the fingerprinting requirements, is a condition of this 
Agreement, and the District reserves the right to terminate the Agreement at any time for 
noncompliance. 
 
 
__________________________________  _______________________________ 
Authorized Signature of Contractor     Date 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Printed Name/Title 

4/26/2023

Jay Shimansky



Shimansky Enterprises 

Jay Shimansky 

Phone: 530  749 – 7431, Cell: 916  501 – 4289, Fax: 530  749 – 1349 

e-mail: jayshimansky@cs.com

4324 Rancho Road, Marysville, Ca. 95901 

April 13, 2023 

Att.: Brendin Swanson 

I propose to provide DSA inspection services per Title 24 to 

Sacramento City Unified School District for the Kemble/Chavez E.S. 

Project, DSA App. # 02 -120693 Increment 2. The time period is December 

2023 to December 2025  through Closeout.  All activities identified for the 

P.I.  in the “Independent Consultant Agreement”. 4,450  hours.  At the rate of

$110.00 per hour. Not to exceed  $ 489,500.  All pay applications are to be 

approved by SCUSD and unbilled funds are to remain with the SCUSD.    

    Sincerely yours, Jay Shimansky 

EXHIBIT B



Shimansky Enterprises 

Jay Shimansky 

Phone: 530  749 – 7431, Cell: 916  501 – 4289, Fax: 530  749 – 1349 

e-mail: jayshimansky@cs.com 

4324 Rancho Road, Marysville, Ca. 95901 

 

 

 



SA23-00685 
MCF Construction Services 

 
 
 
 

 1 of 11 

 

Inspector Agreement 
 

THIS INSPECTOR AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into as of June 8, 2023 by and 
between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (the 
“DISTRICT”) and Matthew C. Fabian aka MCF Construction Services, an Independent 
Contractor, hereinafter referred to as "INSPECTOR".  District and Inspector are each a “Party” 
and together are the “Parties” to this Agreement. 
 

RECITALS: 
 
 A. DISTRICT intends to construct Nicholas Elementary School New Construction, 
hereinafter the "Project". 
 
 B. Education Code section 17311 and Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations 
(hereinafter "Title 24") require DISTRICT to provide for competent, adequate and continuous 
inspection for each construction project by a project inspector satisfactory to the Architect or 
Structural Engineer in general responsible charge of observation of the work of construction. 
 
 C. DISTRICT desires to retain INSPECTOR to provide inspection services on the Project. 
INSPECTOR shall have all of the duties and responsibilities of an inspector, as set forth in 
Education Code section 17309 et seq. Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, including 
sections 4-336 and 4-342. 
 
 D. Government Code section 53060 authorizes DISTRICT to contract with persons to 
furnish special services and advice to District in financial, economic, accounting, engineering, 
legal or administrative matters, if such persons are specially trained and experienced and 
competent to perform the special services required. 
 
 E. INSPECTOR is at least 25 years of age, has had at least three years prior experience 
in inspection or construction work on building projects of a type similar to the projects for which 
INSPECTOR is proposed as the inspector, has a thorough knowledge of building materials, is 
able to read and interpret plans and specifications and has been approved as a project inspector 
by the Structural Safety Section, Division of the State Architect (hereinafter "DSA"). 
 
 F. DISTRICT desires to contract with INSPECTOR to provide inspection services to 
DISTRICT on the terms and conditions set forth below, and INSPECTOR desires the same. 
INSPECTOR acknowledges that District is required to obtain DSA approval prior to using 
INSPECTOR’S services on the project. INSPECTOR agrees to do all acts necessary to timely 
obtain DSA approval. 
 
 In consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1:  DUTIES OF THE INSPECTOR 
The duties of the INSPECTOR shall include the duties of the inspector set forth in Education 
Code sections 17309 et seq., and Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, and future 
amendments thereto, including the duties set forth below. 
 
 A. General.  INSPECTOR shall provide competent, adequate, and continuous inspection 
during construction or alteration satisfactory to the Project Manager, Architect and DSA. 
INSPECTOR shall act under the direction of the Architect, or Structural Engineer if applicable, as 



SA23-00685 
MCF Construction Services 

 
 
 
 

 2 of 11 

 

the Board of Education of DISTRICT may direct. While performing the services contemplated by 
this Agreement, INSPECTOR agrees to comply with all applicable laws and regulations. 
 
 B. Continuous Inspection Services.  In fulfilling Inspector’s responsibilities, INSPECTOR 
shall represent DISTRICT as the inspector on the Project job site. INSPECTOR shall have 
personal knowledge, obtained by his personal and continuous inspection of the work of 
construction at all stages of its progress, that the requirements of the approved plans and 
specifications are being completely executed. 
 

Continuous inspection means complete inspection of every part of the work to insure a 
workmanlike job is constructed in conformity with the contract documents, all applicable 
requirements of the DSA and all applicable federal and state laws and local ordinances. 
 
 Work such as concrete work or brick work which can be inspected only as it is placed will 
require the constant presence of INSPECTOR. Other types of work which can be completely 
inspected after the work is installed may be carried on while INSPECTOR is not present. In any 
case, INSPECTOR must personally inspect every part of the work. In no event shall INSPECTOR 
have or assume any duties which will prevent INSPECTOR from continuous inspection of the 
work of construction in all stages of its progress at the site where INSPECTOR is responsible for 
inspection. 
 
 C. Personal Knowledge.  INSPECTOR may obtain personal knowledge of the work of 
construction, either on site or off site, performed under the inspection of a special inspector or 
inspector, if any (Section 4-333 of Title 24), from the reporting of others on testing or inspection of 
materials and workmanship for compliance with the plans, specifications and applicable 
standards. The exercise of reasonable diligence to obtain the facts shall be required. 
 
 D. Relations With Architect Or Engineer.  INSPECTOR shall work under the general 
direction of the Architect or Structural Engineer. All inconsistencies or seeming errors in the 
plans and specifications shall be reported promptly to the Architect or Structural Engineer for 
interpretation and instructions. In no case, however, shall the instruction for the Architect or 
Structural Engineer be construed to cause work to be done which is not in conformity with the 
approved plans, specifications and change orders. 
 
 E. Job File.  INSPECTOR shall keep a file of approved plans and specifications (including 
all approved addenda or change orders) on the job at all times, and shall immediately return any 
unapproved documents to the Architect or Structural Engineer for proper action. INSPECTOR 
shall have and maintain on the job at all times all codes and documents referred to in the plans 
and specifications. 
 
 F. Semimonthly Reports.  INSPECTOR shall keep the Architect or Structural Engineer 
thoroughly informed as to the progress of the work by making semimonthly reports in writing as 
required by Section 4-337 of Title 24, signed by the INSPECTOR. A copy of each such report 
shall be sent to the DISTRICT's Director of Facilities, or designee, and to DSA. Failure to comply 
with Section 4-337 is cause for DSA to withdraw approval of INSPECTOR. 
 
 G. Notifications to Division of the State Architect.  INSPECTOR shall notify the DSA (1) 
when work is started on the Project or restarted if previously suspended per no. 4 below, (2) at 
least 48 hours in advance of the time when foundation trenches will be complete, ready for footing 
forms, (3) at least 48 hours in advance of the first pour of foundation concrete and 24 hours in 



SA23-00685 
MCF Construction Services 

 
 
 
 

 3 of 11 

 

advance of any subsequent and significant concrete pour, and (4) when all work is suspended for 
a period of more than two weeks. 
 
 H. Construction Procedure Records.  INSPECTOR shall keep a record of certain phases 
of construction procedure including but not limited to the following:  (1) the time and date of 
placing concrete and the time and date of removal of forms in each portion of the structure; 
(2) identification marks of welders, lists of defective welds, manner of correction of defects, and 
other matters regarding welding operations; (3) penetration under the last ten (10) blows for each 
pile when piles are driven for foundations. All such records of construction procedure shall be kept 
on the job until completion of the work, and shall be made a part of the permanent school records. 
 
  I. Deviations.  INSPECTOR shall notify the contractor, in writing, of any deviations from the 
approved plans and specifications which are not immediately corrected by the contractor when 
brought to contractor’s attention. Copies of such notices shall be forwarded immediately to the 
District and Architect or Structural Engineer, and to the DSA. INSPECTOR shall safeguard the 
interest of the District in the construction of the project. 
 

Failure on the part of INSPECTOR to notify the contractor of the deviations from the 
approved plans and specifications shall in no way relieve the contractor of any responsibility to 
complete the work covered by contractor’s contract in accordance with the approved plans and 
specifications and all laws and regulations. 
 
 J. Verified Reports.  From time to time, as the work of construction or alteration 
progresses, INSPECTOR shall prepare and submit to the DSA verified reports, signed by the 
Architect or Structural Engineer and INSPECTOR, upon forms prescribed by the DSA, based 
upon INSPECTOR'S personal knowledge (as defined in Education Code section 17309 that the 
work during the period covered by the report has been performed and materials have been used 
and installed, in every material respect, in compliance with the approved plans and specifications, 
setting forth such detailed statements of fact as are required by the DSA in accordance with 
Section 4-336 of Title 24. INSPECTOR shall also prepare and deliver to the DSA detailed 
statements of fact regarding materials, operations and other matters related to the work of 
construction when requested. 
 
 K. No Authority To Contract. INSPECTOR shall have no authority to contract on behalf of 
DISTRICT. 
  
 L. If not already set forth herein, INSPECTOR must:    
 

a. Be familiar with the plans, specifications, change orders, and the contractor’s operations 
during all phases of the project. 

b. Observe, check and measure items used in the project for compliance with the plans, 
specifications, change orders, and technical instructions from the Architect. 

c. Maintain a daily report/log describing the general work performed by the contractor, 
noting problems, rejections of materials or work and unusual events. The report/log shall 
be filled daily, tersely and factually. The report/log shall reflect the contractor’s activities 
each day. This and all other reports shall be timely and properly completed. All reports 
and records created or maintained by INSPECTOR shall be uploaded to the District’s 
construction management program, e-Builder, and shall be District’s sole property. 

d. Supervise on-site testing and ensure that all required tests are performed by a 
competent testing laboratory, contractor or engineer as specified in the Contract 



SA23-00685 
MCF Construction Services 

 
 
 
 

 4 of 11 

 

Documents. Check and report to the Project Manager and the Architect laboratory tests 
indicating defective materials or other problems. Check billings from testing laboratories 
to see that billings reflect only tests actually requested and performed. Maintain a daily 
log of inspection by testing lab. 

e. Make sure that the required record drawings are accurately marked up as required. 
f. Report to the Project Manager and the Architect verbally and in writing: (1) poor 

performance by the contractor; (2) acts prejudicial to the District’s interest; and, (3) work 
performed or materials used which are not in conformance with the Contract Documents. 

g. Assist the Project Manager and the Architect in the final inspection and project 
acceptance phase. 

h. Upon request, provide the District with a written report regarding contractor’s 
performance on the Project. 

i. Maintain an effective working relationship with the contractor, District personnel and 
Architect. 

j. Be tactful, firm and fair in insisting that contractor adhere to the Contract Documents. 
k. Attempt to foresee methods or materials which will not be acceptable and immediately 

bring these facts to the contractor’s attention in order to avoid removal of work already in 
place. 

l. Attempt to anticipate the contractor’s problems and review with the Project Manager 
anticipated schedules and work involved prior to the commencement of a new trade on 
the job. 

m. Attempt to foresee the need for all required tests and inspections. 
n. When notified by contractor, arrange for all tests and inspections which are required by 

the Contract Documents, arrange for prompt notification of the Architect of the results of 
the tests and inspections, and record Architect’s approval or rejection. 

o. Refuse to allow any related work to be installed until shop drawings have received final 
approval from the Architect. 

p. Ensure that Architect’s verbal instructions during field inspections are written in the Daily 
Report/Log for that day or in the Field Instruction Sheet. 

q. Be responsible for slump tests and for taking concrete test cylinders for each concrete 
pour and marking them for identification. Inspector shall make arrangements for 
transportation and storage of test materials. 

r. Receive samples which are required to be furnished at the job site; record date received 
and from whom; notify Architect of their readiness for examination, record Architect’s 
approval or rejection; and maintain custody of approved samples.  

s. Inspect all materials immediately upon their delivery to the site to ensure that they 
comply with the Contract Documents and are in a good and acceptable condition. Exert 
extreme care to ensure that no communications to the contractor or contractor’s agents 
are misinterpreted as changes in the scope of the work. 

t. Assist in the completion and submission of DSA close out documents as required by 
DSA. 

u. INSPECTOR may be required to utilize construction program management software, 
such as, but not limited to, e-Builder™. 

 
 M. Restrictions on the Inspector’s Authority. In the performance of the duties required by 
this Agreement, the INSPECTOR exercises limited authority. The INSPECTOR shall not: 
 

a. Authorize deviations from the Contract Documents; 
b. Avoid conducting any required tests; 
c. Enter the area of responsibility of the contractor’s field superintendent; 



SA23-00685 
MCF Construction Services 

 
 
 
 

 5 of 11 

 

d. Expedite the job for the contractor; 
e. Advise on, or issue directions relative to, any aspect of the building technique or 

sequence unless a specific technique or sequence is called for in the specifications; 
f. Approve shop drawings or samples; 
g. Authorize or advise the District to occupy the project, in the whole or in part, prior to final 

acceptance of the project; 
h. Interfere in contractor/subcontractor relationships. 

 
ARTICLE 2:  VIOLATIONS OF THE FIELD ACT 

Failure, refusal or neglect on the part of INSPECTOR to notify the contractor of any work which 
does not comply with the requirements of the approved plans and specifications, or failure, refusal 
or neglect to report immediately, in writing, any such violation to the Architect or Structural 
Engineer, to DISTRICT's Director of Facilities, and to the DSA shall constitute a violation of the 
Field Act and shall be cause for the DSA to take action which may result in the withdrawal of the 
INSPECTOR’S approval. 
 
In accordance with Education Code section 17312, any person who violates the Field Act 
(Education Code sections 17280 through 17313), or makes any false statement in any verified 
report or affidavit required pursuant to that Act is guilty of a felony. 
 

ARTICLE 3:  TERM 
The term of this Agreement shall commence on May 18, 2023 and shall terminate upon 
completion and acceptance by the Board of Education of DISTRICT of the construction project(s) 
for which INSPECTOR was retained, unless earlier terminated as provided in the Agreement.  
 

ARTICLE 4:  COMPENSATION 
DISTRICT agrees to pay INSPECTOR for services rendered and accepted by DISTRICT at the 
rate of $110 per hour for DSA Class 1; $105 per hour for DSA Class 2; and $100 per hour for 
Class 3.  Total compensation shall not exceed Four Hundred Sixty-Seven Thousand Dollars 
($467,000.00) for this Agreement.  INSPECTOR will be paid for hours worked (not a lump sum), 
and shall record all hours worked in a daily log which shall be submitted to the District on a weekly 
basis. 
 
 Payment will be made within 30 days upon submission of periodic invoices to:  Brendin 
Swanson, Manager III of Facilities, Planning and Construction, Sacramento City Unified School 
District, 5735 47th Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95824. Invoices must show the number of hours 
worked, the Agreement number, the project name and location and must contain the 
INSPECTOR’S original signature on all copies. INSPECTOR’S failure to maintain required 
records or to properly submit invoices may result in non-payment to INSPECTOR.  
 
 INSPECTOR agrees that if the construction schedule is interrupted for an unusual period 
of time, INSPECTOR shall not charge unreasonably for services rendered during the period of 
interruption.  
 

ARTICLE 5. TERMINATION 
Either party may terminate this Agreement, without cause, at any time by giving the other party 
thirty (30) days written notice of termination. The effective date of termination shall occur thirty 
(30) days after the day on which the party terminating this Agreement personally delivers written 
notice of termination to the other party or mails such notice of termination in accordance with 
paragraph 9 of this Agreement. 



SA23-00685 
MCF Construction Services 

 
 
 
 

 6 of 11 

 

 
ARTICLE 6:  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A. It is agreed that the relationship between DISTRICT and INSPECTOR is one of 
independent contractor and that no relationship of employer-employee or agency exists between 
the parties hereto. 
 
 B. All persons employed by INSPECTOR or acting at the direction of the INSPECTOR to 
assist INSPECTOR in rendering the services to be provided under this Agreement shall be 
entirely and exclusively employees and agents of the INSPECTOR. All terms of employment, 
including hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring and discharge, or any other terms of 
employment or requirements of law, shall be determined by INSPECTOR, and DISTRICT shall 
have no right or authority over such persons or the terms of such employment. INSPECTOR shall 
comply with any applicable prevailing wage laws. 
 
 C. INSPECTOR hereby indemnifies, holds harmless and agrees to defend DISTRICT, its 
Board members, officers, directors, agents and employees from any contention by a third party 
that an employer-employee or agency relationship exists between DISTRICT and INSPECTOR, 
its agents and employees by reason of this Agreement. 
 
 D. INSPECTOR and his/her/its employees and agents performing services related to this 
Agreement are not agents or employees of DISTRICT and are not entitled to participate in any 
DISTRICT pension plans, retirement, health and welfare programs or any similar programs or 
benefits as a result of performing such services. 
 
 E. INSPECTOR and his/her/its agents and employees performing services related to this 
Agreement are not employees of DISTRICT for federal or state tax purposes or for any other 
purpose. DISTRICT shall have no obligation to pay wages to such persons or to withhold payroll 
taxes from compensation paid to such persons for services under this Agreement.  INSPECTOR 
shall be solely responsible for payment of wages, if any, and employer's payroll tax liability related 
thereto. INSPECTOR agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the District, its Board members, 
agents, officers and employees harmless from any liability which INSPECTOR may incur to the 
Federal or State governments as a consequence of this Agreement. All payments to INSPECTOR 
shall be reported to the appropriate State and Federal tax authorities as required. 
 
 F. It is further understood and agreed by the parties hereto that in the performance of 
INSPECTOR's obligations under this Agreement, INSPECTOR is subject to the control or 
direction of DISTRICT merely as to the designation of tasks to be performed, and results to be 
accomplished by the services agreed to be rendered and performed under this Agreement, and 
not as to the means and methods for accomplishing the result. 
 
 G. If in the performance of this Agreement any third persons are employed by DISTRICT, 
such persons shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction, supervision and control of 
DISTRICT. All terms of employment, including hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring 
and discharging, or any other terms of employment or requirements of law, shall be determined by 
DISTRICT, and INSPECTOR shall have no right or authority over such persons or the terms of 
such employment. Nothing contained in the Agreement shall be deemed to create any contractual 
relationship between the INSPECTOR and the Architect or contractor, nor shall anything 
contained in this Agreement be deemed to give any third party any claim or right of action against 
the District, the Architect or the INSPECTOR which does not otherwise exist. 
 



SA23-00685 
MCF Construction Services 

 
 
 
 

 7 of 11 

 

 
ARTICLE 7: FINGERPRINTING REQUIREMENTS 

Education Code Section 45125.1 states that if employees of any contractor providing school site 
administrative or similar services may have any contact with any pupils, those employees shall be 
fingerprinted by the Department of Justice (DOJ) before entering to determine that they have not 
been convicted of a serious or violent felony. If the DISTRICT determines that more than limited 
contact with students will occur during the performance of these services by INSPECTOR, 
INSPECTOR will not perform services until all employees providing services have been 
fingerprinted by the DOJ and DOJ fingerprinting clearance certification has been provided to 
DISTRICT.  
 
 DISTRICT has determined that INSPECTOR’S services will result in limited contact with 
pupils. INSPECTOR is required to comply with the conditions listed in Exhibit A, Contractor’s 
certification of compliance with District fingerprinting and security requirements. If INSPECTOR is 
unwilling to comply, INSPECTOR’S employees may not enter any school site until INSPECTOR 
provides certification of fingerprinting clearance by the DOJ for employees providing services. 
These requirements apply to self-employed inspectors.  
 

ARTICLE 8:  INDEMNIFICATION AND EXCULPATION 
INSPECTOR shall indemnify, hold DISTRICT and its Board members, agents, employees and 
officers harmless from and defend DISTRICT against all claims, demands, actions or liability for 
injury or damage, including attorney’s fees and costs, to persons or property arising for any 
reason from the services to be performed by INSPECTOR under this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 9:  INSURANCE 
INSPECTOR shall maintain comprehensive general liability insurance during the life of this 
Agreement and shall provide the DISTRICT with a current certificate of insurance evidencing its 
general liability insurance coverage in a sum not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, and such 
certificate or policy shall name the District as an additional insured. INSPECTOR shall carry 
workers' compensation coverage for INSPECTOR's employees rendering services to DISTRICT 
under this Agreement. DISTRICT assumes no liability for workers' compensation or for loss, 
damage or injury to persons or property in the performance of the services rendered by 
INSPECTOR under this Agreement. The insurance shall protect the INSPECTOR from the 
claims set forth below that may arise out of or result from the INSPECTOR’S performance of 
services or failure to perform services under this Agreement:   
 

a. Claims under Workers' Compensation, disability benefits and other similar employee 
benefits acts that are applicable to the work performed; 

b. Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease or death 
of Inspector’s employees, agents or invitees; 

c. Claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person; 
d. Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage that are sustained 

(1) by any person as a result of an offense directly related to the employment of such 
person by the Inspector or (2) by any other person 

e. Claims for damages, other than to the work itself, because of injury to or destruction of 
tangible property, including loss of use therefrom; or 

f. Claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage 
arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of any motor vehicle. 

  



SA23-00685 
MCF Construction Services 

 
 
 
 

 8 of 11 

 

The Inspector’s comprehensive general and automobile liability insurance shall be written for 
not less than the following limits of liability: 
 
Comprehensive General Liability 
Personal Injury: Property Damage: 
$1,000,000 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
$1,000,000 Aggregate $1,000,000 Aggregate 
 
Comprehensive Automobile Liability 
Bodily Injury: Property Damage: 
$1,000,000 Each Person/Occurrence $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 

ARTICLE 10:  NOTICE 
All notices or other communications that one party may be required to desire to give to the other 
party under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be served personally or by certified or by 
first class or overnight mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows or to such other address as 
either party may provide to the other party in writing:   
 
 DISTRICT: INSPECTOR: 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
Attn: Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contracts  
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

MCF Construction Services 
Attn: Matt Fabian  
4991 Keane Drive 
Carmichael CA  95608 
 

  
ARTICLE 11:  NONASSIGNABILITY 

INSPECTOR is specially trained and competent to render the services to be provided under this 
Agreement. INSPECTOR shall not assign or subcontract all or any part of this Agreement or 
obligation of INSPECTOR under this Agreement or any interest therein, without the prior written 
consent of DISTRICT. 
 

ARTICLE 12:  CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 A. INSPECTOR shall abide by and be subject to all applicable DISTRICT policies, 
regulations, statutes or other laws regarding conflict of interest. 
 
 B. INSPECTOR shall not hire any officer or employee of the District to perform any service 
covered by this Agreement. If the work is to be performed in connection with a Federal contract or 
grant, Inspector shall not hire any employee of the United States government to perform any 
service covered by this Agreement. 
 
 C. INSPECTOR affirms to the best of its/his/her knowledge, there exists no actual or 
potential conflict of interest between Inspector’s family, business or financial interest and the 
services provided under this Agreement, and in the event of change in either private interest or 
services under this Agreement, any question regarding possible conflict of interest which may 
arise as a result of such change will be brought to the District’s attention in writing. 
 

ARTICLE 13:  MODIFICATION IN WRITING 
This Agreement may not be modified, changed, or supplemented, nor may any modifications 
under this Agreement be waived, except by written instruments signed by both parties. 
 



SA23-00685 
MCF Construction Services 

 
 
 
 

 9 of 11 

 

 
ARTICLE 14:  NONDISCRIMINATION 

It is the policy of the District that in connection with all services performed under Agreement, there 
will be no discrimination against any prospective or active employee engaged in the work because 
of race, color, ancestry, national origin, handicap, religious creed, sex, age or marital status. 
Contractor agrees to comply with applicable federal and California laws including, but not limited 
to, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act. 
 

ARTICLE 15:  CALIFORNIA LAW 
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws and decisions 
of the State of California. 
 

ARTICLE 16:  BINDING EFFECT 
This Agreement shall be binding upon DISTRICT and INSPECTOR, their heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns. 
 

ARTICLE 17:  SEVERABILITY 
Should any term or provision of this Agreement be determined to be illegal or in conflict with any 
law of the State of California, the validity of the remaining portions or provisions shall not be 
affected thereby, and each term or provision of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced as 
written to the full extent permitted by law. 
 

ARTICLE 18:  COUNTERPARTS 
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the signatures may appear on 
separate signature pages. A copy, facsimile or original, with all signatures appended together, 
shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 19:  INTERPRETATION 
The language of all parts of this Agreement shall, in all cases, be construed as a whole, 
according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against either party. 
 

ARTICLE 20:  ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior 
negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.  
 
Executed on the day and year first above written. 
 
 



SA23-00685 
MCF Construction Services 

 
 
 
 

 10 of 11 

 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY 

UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
By:  ________________________________ 

Rose Ramos 
Chief Business Officer 

 
      
 ________________________________ 

Date 

 
MCF CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

 
 
 
By:  ________________________________ 

Matthew Fabian 
 
 
 
    __________________________________ 

  Date 
 

 
 
 

04-17-23



SA23-00685 
MCF Construction Services 

 
 
 
 

 11 of 11 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION 
 
Fingerprinting:  Education Code section 45125.1 provides that any contractor providing school 
site administrative or similar services to a school district must certify that its employees providing 
that service who may come into contact with pupils have not been convicted of a serious or violent 
felony as defined by law. Those employees must be fingerprinted and the Department of Justice 
must report to the Contractor if they have been convicted of such felonies. No person convicted 
may be assigned to work under the Agreement. The school district may determine, under the 
totality of circumstances including (1) the length of time the employees will be on school grounds, 
(2) whether pupils will be in proximity of the site where the employees will be working and (3) 
whether the contractors will be working alone or with others, that the employees will have only 
limited contact with pupils and neither fingerprinting nor certification is required.  
 
The District has determined that section 45125.1 is applicable to this Agreement. The District has 
also determined that the employees assigned to work at a school site under this Agreement will 
have only limited contact with pupils, provided the following conditions are met at all times: 
 
1. Contractor employees shall not come into contact with pupils or work in the proximity of 

pupils at any time except under the direct supervision of school district employees. 
 
2. Contractor employees shall use only restroom facilities reserved for District employees and 

shall not use student restrooms at any time. 
 
3. Contractor will inform all of its employees who perform work at any school or District site of 

these conditions and require its employees, as a condition of employment, to adhere to 
them. 

 
4. Contractor will immediately report to District any apparent violation of these conditions. 
 
5. Contractor shall assume responsibility for enforcement of these conditions at all times during 

the term of this Agreement. 
 
If, for any reason, Contractor cannot adhere to the conditions stated above, Contractor shall so 
inform the District and shall assign only those employees who have been fingerprinted and 
cleared for employment by the Department of Justice. In that case, Contractor shall provide to the 
District the names of all employees assigned to perform work under this Agreement. 
 
Compliance with these conditions, or with the fingerprinting requirements, is a condition of this 
Agreement, and the District reserves the right to terminate the Agreement at any time for 
noncompliance. 
 
 
__________________________________  _______________________________ 
Authorized Signature of Contractor     Date 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Printed Name/Title 

04-17-23

Matthew C. Fabian, Owner



MCF Construction Services 
Construction Consulting and DSA Inspections 

916.716.2402 Phone

March 31, 2023 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

Brendin Swanson, Manager III, Facilities Project Manager 

5735 47th Avenue 

Sacramento, California 95824 

Re: Inspection Proposal for Nicholas Elementary School Rebuild Project 

Dear Brendin, 

I propose to provide the required DSA inspections for the Site Construction/ Building and Site Finishes 

Project at Nicholas Elementary School. Terms of this Proposal are as follows: 

 Total not to exceed $467,000.00.

 Standard hourly rate to be $110.00 per hour.

 Proposal is based on a 24 month construction period commencing August 2023.

 Phase 1 Site Construction is based on 20-30 hours per week.

 Phase 2 Building and Site Finishes Construction is based on 30-40 hours per week.

 Actual work hours will vary based upon contractor daily scope of work.

 Overtime and Saturday work will be billed at one and one half times the standard rate per DIR

regulations.

 Sunday and holiday hours will be billed at double time per DIR regulations.

 General Liability Insurance is included.

 No additional fees will be charged for cell phone, travel, or other project related expenses.

 MCF Construction Services DIR Number is #1000017677.

Upon acceptance of this Proposal, a DSA Form 5 will need to be submitted for approval and is subject to 

approval by DSA for each specific project. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

Matthew C. Fabian 

4991 Keane Drive 

Carmichael, California 95608 

EXHIBIT B



























 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement for Construction Management Services 

between 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

and 

Innovative Construction Services 

 
 

Albert Einstein Core Academic  
Renovation Project 

 
 

Dated: May 4, 2023



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
ARTICLE 1. Definitions ............................................................................................................................................................ 1 

ARTICLE 2. Term ....................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

ARTICLE 3. Scope, Responsibilities and Services of CM ........................................................................................... 3 

ARTICLE 4. CM Staff ................................................................................................................................................................ 5 

ARTICLE 5. Schedule of Work .............................................................................................................................................. 5 

ARTICLE 6. Construction Cost Budget ............................................................................................................................. 6 

ARTICLE 7. Fee and Method of Payment for Basic Services .................................................................................... 7 

ARTICLE 8. Payment for Extra Services ............................................................................................................................ 7 

ARTICLE 9. Ownership of Data ............................................................................................................................................ 8 

ARTICLE 10. Termination of Contract ................................................................................................................................. 8 

ARTICLE 11. Indemnity ............................................................................................................................................................. 9 

ARTICLE 12. Conduct on Project Site and Fingerprinting ....................................................................................... 10 

ARTICLE 13. Responsibilities of the District .................................................................................................................. 11 

ARTICLE 14. Liability of District .......................................................................................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE 15. Insurance ........................................................................................................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE 16. Nondiscrimination ......................................................................................................................................... 15 

ARTICLE 17. Covenant Against Contingent Fees ........................................................................................................ 15 

ARTICLE 18. Entire Agreement/Modification ............................................................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE 19. Non-Assignment of Agreement ............................................................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE 20. Law, Venue ........................................................................................................................................................ 16 

ARTICLE 21. Alternative Dispute Resolution ................................................................................................................. 16 

ARTICLE 22. Tolling of Claims ............................................................................................................................................. 17 

ARTICLE 23. Severability ....................................................................................................................................................... 17 



 

ARTICLE 24. Employment Status ....................................................................................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE 25. Warranty of CM .............................................................................................................................................. 18 

ARTICLE 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports ......................................................................... 18 

ARTICLE 27. Communications / Notice ........................................................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE 28. RESERVED .......................................................................................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE 29. District’s Right to Audit ............................................................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE 30. Other Provisions ............................................................................................................................................. 20 

ARTICLE 31. Exhibits. .............................................................................................................................................................. 21 

 

EXHIBITS “A” – “E” 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 1 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 

This Agreement for Construction Management Services (“Agreement”) is made as of May 4, 2023, 
between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (“District”), and 
Innovative Construction Services Inc. (“CM”) (both collectively “Parties”), for the following project (“Project”):  

The construction administration of Albert Einstein Core Academic Renovation Project.  

See Exhibit “A” for detailed Project scope. 

The Project may include multiple components. Any one of the components or combination thereof 
may be changed, including terminated, as indicated herein, without changing in any way the remaining 
component(s) or this Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall apply to each component without 
regard to the status of the remaining component(s). CM shall invoice for each component separately and 
District shall compensate CM for each component separately on a proportionate basis based on the level 
and scope of work completed for each component. 

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

ARTICLE 1. Definitions 

1.1 In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions for words or 
phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits: 

1.1.1 Agreement: The Agreement consists exclusively of this document 
and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference. 

1.1.2 Architect: The architect(s) that the District designates as being the 
architect(s) for all or a portion of the Project, including all 
consultants to the Architect(s). 

1.1.3 As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”): Any document prepared and 
submitted by District Contractor that details on a Conforming Set, 
the actual construction performed during the Project, including 
changes necessitated by Construction Change Documents and 
change orders, and detailed by the District’s construction 
Contractor on a Conforming Set.  

1.1.4 Board: The District’s Governing Board. 

1.1.5 Conforming Set: The plans, drawings, and specifications at the 
end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, 
issued during the Bidding Phase.  

1.1.6 Construction Budget: The total amount indicated by the District 
for the Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, 
administration, financing, and all other costs. 

1.1.7 Construction Change Documents (“CCD”): The documentation 
of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents. 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 2 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

1.1.8 Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all 
elements of a Project designed or specified by the Architect, as 
adjusted during and at the end of the design phase in accordance 
with this Agreement and the Agreement for Architectural Services. 
The Construction Cost Budget does not include the compensation 
of the Project Design Team, the Program Manager, the CM and 
any subconsultants, the cost of the land, rights-of-way, or 
financing which are the responsibility of the District. 

1.1.9 Construction Manager: The entity listed in the first paragraph of 
this Agreement.   

1.1.10 Consultant(s): Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), 
subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the CM. 

1.1.11 Contractor: One or more licensed and registered contractors 
under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion 
of the Project. 

1.1.12 Design Team: The Architect(s) that the District designates as 
being the architect(s) for all or a portion of the Project, including 
all consultants to the Architect(s), plus all engineer(s) or other 
designer(s), who have a responsibility to the District to design all 
or a portion of the Project either directly or as a subconsultant or 
subcontractor. The term Design Team includes the Design 
Professional in General Responsible Charge on this Project. 

1.1.13 DIR: California Department of Industrial Relations. 

1.1.14 District: The Sacramento City Unified School District. 

1.1.15 District’s Representative: The individual identified herein that is 
authorized to act on the District’s behalf with respect to the 
Project. The initial District’s Representative shall be Chris Ralston, 
Director III of Facilities. District may change the District’s 
Representative by notice as set forth herein. 

1.1.16 DSA: Division of the State Architect in the California Department 
of General Services. 

1.1.17 Extra Services: District-authorized Services outside of the scope 
in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursables not included 
in CM’s fee. 

1.1.18 Fee: The CM’s Fee is defined in Article 7 and payable as set forth 
in Exhibit “D.”  

1.1.19 Program Manager: Any program manager hired to perform 
program management services for the District, including all 
Consultant(s) to the Program Manager.  



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 3 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

1.1.20 Project Inspector, Inspector of Record, IOR: The agent of the 
DSA at the project site whose primary responsibility will be to 
insure that the project is constructed in compliance with current 
codes; DSA-approved plans and specifications relating to fire life 
safety, structure, and accessibility; and quality controls required of 
a public works facility. The IOR will report to both the DSA and the 
Architect. 

1.1.21 Record Drawings: A final set of drawings prepared by the 
Architect incorporating all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, 
details, and clarifications. 

1.1.22 Service(s): All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and 
work that the CM is required to perform and that are required by, 
or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are 
necessary for the design and completion of the Project.  

ARTICLE 2. Term 

2.1 Term: This Agreement shall become effective upon final execution, and except 
as otherwise provided herein, will continue in effect until December 31, 2024. 

ARTICLE 3. Scope, Responsibilities and Services of CM 

3.1 Scope: CM shall provide the Services described herein and under Exhibit “A” 
for the Project.  

3.2 Standard of Care: CM, its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, 
Consultants and any persons or entities for whom CM is responsible, shall 
provide all Services pursuant to this Agreement in accordance with the 
requirements of this Agreement and in a manner consistent with the standard 
of care under California law applicable to those who specialize in providing the 
same services for projects of the type, scope, and complexity of the Project. 
The District’s review, approval of, or payment for any of the Services required 
under this Agreement shall not be construed as assent that CM has complied, 
nor in any way relieve the CM of compliance, with (i) the applicable standard 
of care, or (ii) applicable statutes, regulations, rules, guidelines and 
requirements. 

3.3 Coordination: In the performance of CM’s services under this Agreement, CM 
agrees that it will maintain coordination with District-designated 
representatives as may be requested and desirable. This shall include, without 
limitation, coordination with all members of the District’s Design Team, the 
Project Inspector, and the Program Manager.  

3.4 Other Consultants: If the CM employs sub-consultant(s), the CM shall ensure 
that its contract(s) with its sub-consultant(s) include language incorporating 
the terms of this Agreement. 

3.5 CM’s as District Representative: CM will act as the District’s agent to render 
the Services and furnish the work as described in Exhibit “A,” commencing 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 4 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

with the receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District 
Representative. CM’s services will be completed in accordance with the 
schedule attached as Exhibit “C.” During the Project’s Construction Phase, the 
District may require that the Contractors submit all notices and communication 
relating to the Project directly to the CM. 

3.6 Review of General Obligation Bond Program Report and District’s 
Facilities Master Plan: CM will review the District’s Facilities Master Plan for 
the District and other written materials the District makes available by the 
District to CM to understand fully the nature, extent and intent of the Facilities 
Plan and the Project. 

3.7 Review of Measure H: CM will review Measure H and other written materials 
made available by the District to CM that relate to Measure H to fully 
understand the extent of funding available to implement the District’s Master 
Facilities Plan for the District, the anticipated schedule for issuance of Bonds 
under Measure H relative to the anticipated design, bidding and construction 
of projects.  

3.8 Expansion of Work based on Additional Funds: Should the Board decide to 
expand the scope of the Project and/or supplement the Construction Budget 
based upon availability of additional funds, Construction Manager agrees to 
perform the additional scope of work under the fee and cost terms of this 
Agreement. 

3.9 Conflicts of Interest Prohibited:   

3.9.1 CM understands that District officials and employees are 
prohibited from involvement in decisions in which they may have 
a financial interest pursuant to Government Code sections 1090 
and 87100 et seq., and certifies that it does not know of any facts 
indicating that any District official or employee has an ownership 
or other financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement.  
Further, CM hereby certifies that no current District official or 
employee of the District, and no one who has been a District 
official or employee of the District within the past two years has 
participated in bidding, selling or promoting this Agreement.  CM 
understands that in addition to the remedies available at law, that 
any failure to provide an accurate certification or any violation of 
this provision shall make the Agreement voidable by District.  

3.9.2 CM shall not be permitted to submit proposals or otherwise seek 
contracts for the following services to be procured by the District 
in connection with any project covered by this Agreement: Design 
Professional, IORs or Test/Inspection. If CM identifies potential 
Design Professionals, Project Inspectors or Test/Inspection 
services in connection with a project, CM shall affirmatively and 
unequivocally represent and warrant to the District that neither 
CM nor any person who holds equity interest in CM’s organization 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 5 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

is a former or current holder of any equity interest in the firm 
identified or has any financial interest in the firm identified. District 
reserves the sole discretion to waive this subsection’s 
requirements on a case-by-case basis. 

ARTICLE 4. CM Staff 

4.1 The District selected CM to perform the Services because of the CM’s skills and 
expertise of key personnel.  

4.2 CM agrees that the following key personnel in CM’s firm shall be associated 
with the Project and perform the Services in the following capacities: 

Construction Manager during construction:  Isaac White  

Project Manager:     Isaac White  

Asst, Construction Manager:   Nick Valentine 

4.3 CM shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without the 
District’s prior written approval, unless said personnel cease to be employed 
by CM. Regardless of the reason for the change in key personnel, District shall 
be allowed to interview and retains the right to approve replacement 
personnel.  

4.4 If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the 
District, then upon the District’s written notice, the CM will have seven (7) 
calendar days to remove that person from the Project and shall provide a 
replacement person acceptable to the District.  

4.4.1 All lead or key personnel for any Consultant must also be 
designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions 
stated in this Agreement. 

4.5 CM represents that the Construction Manager has no existing interest and will 
not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that could conflict in any manner or 
degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement. CM 
agrees further that no person having any such interest shall be employed by 
CM. 

ARTICLE 5. Schedule of Work 

CM shall commence work under this Agreement upon receipt of a Notice to Proceed 
and shall prosecute the work diligently as described in Exhibit “A” so as to proceed 
with and complete the Services in compliance with the schedule attached as Exhibit 
“C.” Time is of the essence and failure of CM to perform work on time as specified in 
this Agreement is a material breach of this Agreement.  



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 6 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

ARTICLE 6. Construction Cost Budget 

6.1 CM shall have responsibility, along with the Architect, to develop, review, and 
reconcile the Construction Cost Budget per Project with the Architect and the 
District throughout the design process and construction.  

6.2 The Construction Cost Budget shall be the total cost to District of all Project 
elements the Design Team designs or specifies.  

6.3 CM shall work cooperatively with the Project Design Team throughout the 
Project, including but not limited to, the Schematic Design Phase, Design 
Development Phase, and Construction Documents Phase, as described in 
Exhibit “A,” so that the Project’s construction cost as designed by the Project 
Design Team will not exceed the Construction Cost Budget, as may be adjusted 
subsequently with the District’s written approval. CM shall notify the District if 
it believes the Project’s construction cost of the work by the Project Design 
Team will exceed the Construction Cost Budget, and/or if it believes the 
construction cost as designed will exceed the Construction Cost Budget. CM, 
however, shall not perform or be responsible for any design or architectural 
services.  

6.4 Evaluations of the District’s Construction Budget, and CM’s preliminary and 
detailed cost estimates, represent the CM’s best judgment as a professional 
familiar with the construction industry. 

6.5 If the Bidding Phase has not commenced within ninety (90) days after DSA 
approval of the plans and specifications, the Construction Cost Budget may be 
adjusted at District’s request to reflect changes in the general level of prices in 
the construction industry between the date of submission of the Construction 
Documents to the District and the date on which proposals are sought. 

6.6 The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the 
following if any of the events in Article 6.7 occur: 

6.6.1 Give CM written approval of an agreed adjustment to the 
Construction Cost Budget. 

6.6.2 Authorize CM to re-negotiate and/or re-bid the Project, when 
appropriate, within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids, at no 
additional cost to the District (exclusive of District and other 
agencies’ review time). 

6.6.3 Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the 
District without further obligation by either party. 

6.6.4 Within three (3) months of receipt of bids, instruct Design Team 
to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as 
approved by the District) to bring the Project within the 
Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding. CM will perform cost 
estimation, value engineering, constructability reviews, and/or 
bidding support at no additional cost to the District.  



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 7 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

6.7 If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or any 
combination, of the actions set forth in Article 6.6 above: 

6.7.1 The lowest responsive base bid received is five percent (5%) or 
more in excess of the Construction Cost Budget or  

6.7.2 The combined total of base bid and all additive alternates equal 
or exceed ten percent (10%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or  

6.7.3 The Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to 
the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable 
changes in the condition of the construction market in the 
Sacramento Area, in so far as these have not been caused by Acts 
of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to 
uncontrollable events in the world economy. 

ARTICLE 7. Fee and Method of Payment for Basic Services 

7.1 District shall pay CM an amount not to exceed One Hundred Fifty-Eight 
Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($158,750) for all services 
contracted for under this Agreement and based on the Fee Schedule set forth 
in Exhibit “D.”  

7.2 District shall pay CM the Fee pursuant to the provisions herein and the method 
of payment set forth in Exhibit “D.” 

7.3 CM shall bill its work under this Agreement on a percent of completion basis 
in accordance with Exhibit “D.”  

7.4 No increase in fee will be due from change orders generated during the 
construction period to the extent caused by CM’s error(s) or omission(s). 

7.5 The CM’s fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of 
CM’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in Exhibit “D,” 
including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel within two hundred 
(200) miles of the Project location, offices, per diem expenses, printing, 
providing or shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in Exhibit “A.”  

ARTICLE 8. Payment for Extra Services 

8.1 Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in 
Exhibit “B” at the rates set forth in Exhibit “D” only upon certification of the 
District’s prior written authorization of the claimed Extra Services and the Extra 
Services have been satisfactorily completed.  

8.2 CM shall submit to District a written proposal describing the proposed scope 
of services and listing the personnel, labor duration, rates, and cost. CM shall 
proceed with Extra Services only upon receiving the District’s prior written 
authorization. CM will not be entitled to any compensation for Extra Services 
performed prior to receiving District’s written authorization. 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 8 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

8.3 If CM performs any Extra Services without the District’s authorized 
representative’s prior written authorization, the District will not be obligated 
to pay for such Extra Services. The foregoing provision notwithstanding, CM 
will be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” for Extra Services the 
District’s authorized representative verbally requests, provided CM confirms 
such request in writing pursuant to the notice requirements of this Agreement, 
and proceeds with such Extra Services not earlier than two (2) business days 
after the District receives CM’s written confirmation of the request. 

ARTICLE 9. Ownership of Data 

9.1 All of CM’s work product prepared or generated in connection with this 
Agreement is the District’s property.  

9.2 Upon the District’s request, the CM shall make available to the District all work 
product completed or in progress at the time of such a request. 

9.3 After Project completion or, if the District exercises the right to terminate this 
Agreement pursuant to the Agreement terms, CM shall assemble and deliver 
to District within five (5) calendar days of the District’s written request, all of 
CM’s work product of the generated, prepared, reviewed or compiled in 
connection with this Agreement and the Services and authorized Extra Services 
hereunder. This includes, without limitation, all CM generated documents, 
copies of all documents CM exchanged with or copied to or from all other 
Project participants, and all closeout documents. CM shall be index and 
organize appropriately said Project records for easy use by District personnel.  

9.4 All Project records are District property, whether or not those records are in 
the CM’s possession. District retains all rights to all copyrights, designs, and 
other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, 
specifications, estimates, and other documents that CM or its Consultants 
prepare or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding 
the preceding sentence, CM and its Consultants shall be entitled to reuse work 
product generated under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 10. Termination of Contract  

10.1 District’s Request for Assurances: If District at any time reasonably believes CM 
is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion 
notify CM of this fact and request written assurances from CM of performance 
of Services and a written plan from CM to remedy any potential default under 
the terms this Agreement that the District may advise CM of in writing. CM 
shall, within ten (10) calendar days of District’s request, deliver a written cure 
plan that meets the District’s requirements in its request for assurances. CM’s 
failure to provide such written assurances of performance and the required 
written plan, within ten (10) calendar days of request, will constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement sufficient to justify termination for cause. 

10.2 District’s Termination of CM for Cause: If CM fails to perform CM’s duties to 
the District’s satisfaction, or if CM fails to fulfill in a timely and professional 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 9 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

manner CM’s material obligations under this Agreement, or if CM violates any 
of the material terms or provisions of this Agreement, the District shall have 
the right to terminate this Agreement effective immediately upon the District 
giving CM written notice thereof. In the event of a termination pursuant to this 
subdivision, CM may invoice District for all work performed until the notice of 
termination, but District shall have the right to withhold payment and deduct 
any amounts equal to the District’s costs because of CM’s actions, errors, or 
omissions.  

10.3 District’s Termination of CM for Convenience: District shall have the right in its 
sole discretion to terminate this Agreement for its own convenience. In the 
event of a termination for convenience, CM may invoice District and District 
shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for work performed until the notice of 
termination. This shall be the only amount(s) potentially owing to CM if there 
is a termination for convenience. 

10.4 CM’s Termination of Agreement for Cause: CM has the right to terminate this 
Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this 
Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of receipt 
of written notice of said defaults, or if the default cannot be cured within sixty 
(60) days, commence to cure such default, diligently pursue such cure, and 
complete the cure within a reasonable time following written notice and demand 
from CM. Such termination shall be effective after receipt of written notice from 
CM to the District. 

10.5 Effect on Pre-Termination Services: Except as indicated in this Article, 
termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the 
Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of 
such termination. 

10.6 Ceasing Services upon Termination: If, at any time in the progress of 
performing Services under this Agreement, the District determines that CM’s 
Services should be terminated, the CM, upon the District’s written notice of 
such termination, shall immediately cease providing Services, except to 
transfer files as directed by the District. The District shall pay CM only the fee 
associated with the Services provided and approved by District since the last 
paid invoice and up to the notice of termination. 

10.7 Project Suspension: If the Project is suspended by the District for more than 
one hundred and eighty (180) consecutive days, the CM shall be compensated 
for services performed prior to notice of such suspension. When the Project is 
resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and the CM’s compensation shall be 
equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption of the 
CM’s Services. CM shall make every effort to maintain the same Project 
personnel after suspension. 

ARTICLE 11. Indemnity  

11.1 To the furthest extent permitted by California law, CM shall indemnify and hold 
free and harmless the District, its Governing Board, agents, representatives, 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 10 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

officers, consultants, employees, trustees, and volunteers (“the Indemnified 
Parties”) from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, 
liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity (“Claim”) that arise 
out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful 
misconduct of the CM, its officers, employees, subcontractors, consultants, or 
agents, including without limitation, the payment of all consequential 
damages.  CM shall also, to the furthest extent permitted by California law, 
defend the Indemnified Parties at CM’s own expense, including attorneys’ fees 
and costs, from any and all Claim(s) and allegations relating thereto with 
counsel approved by District where such approval is not to be unreasonably 
withheld.  

11.2 CM shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may be rendered 
against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim. CM’s obligation pursuant to 
Article 11.1 includes reimbursing the District for the cost of any settlement paid 
by the Indemnified Parties and for any and all fees and costs, including but not 
limited to, legal fees and costs, expert witness fees, and consultant fees, 
incurred by the Indemnified Parties in the defense of any Claim(s), or to enforce 
the indemnity herein. CM’s obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to 
insurance proceeds.  

11.3 District may withhold from amounts owing to CM any and all costs that arise 
out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful 
misconduct of the CM.  

ARTICLE 12. Conduct on Project Site and Fingerprinting 

12.1 Unacceptable and/or loud language will not be tolerated. “Cat calls” or other 
derogatory language toward students or public will not be allowed. 

12.2 Drugs, alcohol, and smoking on District property are strictly prohibited. No 
drugs, alcohol and/or smoking are allowed at any time in any building and/or 
grounds on District’s property. No students, staff, visitors or contractors are to 
use drugs on District’s property.  

12.3 Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined on 
the basis of the scope of Services in this Agreement that CM and its 
subcontractors and employees will have only limited contact with pupils. CM 
will promptly notify the District in writing of any facts or circumstances which 
might reasonably lead the District to determine that contact will be more than 
limited.  Should there be more than limited contact, CM shall comply with the 
provisions of Education Code section 45125.1 regarding the submission of 
employee fingerprints to the California Department of Justice and the 
completion of criminal background investigations of its employees. CM shall 
not permit any employee to have any contact with District pupils until such 
time as the CM has verified in writing to the governing board of the District 
that the employee has not been convicted of a felony, as defined in Education 
Code section 45122.1. CM’s responsibility shall extend to all employees, 
agents, and employees or agents of its Consultants regardless of whether 
those individuals are paid or unpaid, concurrently employed by the District, or 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 11 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

acting as CM’s independent contractors. CM shall provide to District 
verification of compliance with this section by submitting an executed Criminal 
Background Investigation Certification (Exhibit “E”). 

12.4 For all workers on District property, CM shall comply with all applicable federal, 
state and local laws regarding COVID-19, including but not limited to the 
CDPH’s State Public Health Officer Orders. 

ARTICLE 13. Responsibilities of the District 

13.1 The District shall examine the documents submitted by the CM and shall 
render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the CM’s 
Services.  

13.2 The District shall provide to the CM as complete information as is available to 
District regarding the District’s Project requirements.  

13.3 The District shall retain design professional(s) whose services, duties and 
responsibilities will be described in written agreement(s) between the District and 
design professional(s). 

13.4 Unless the contract documents require that Contractor provide any of the 
following, the District shall, in a timely manner, and with CM’s assistance, secure, 
submit and pay for necessary approvals, easements, assessments, permits and 
charges required for the construction, use, or occupancy of permanent structures 
or for permanent changes in existing facilities, subject to CM’s and/or the Design 
Team’s duties to recommend or provide same.  

13.5 The District, its representatives, and consultants shall communicate with the 
Contractor either directly or through the CM. 

13.6 The District shall designate an officer, employee and/or other authorized 
representatives to act on the District’s behalf with respect to the Project. The 
District’s Project representative shall be available during working hours and as 
often as may be required to render decisions and to furnish information in a 
timely manner. 

ARTICLE 14. Liability of District 

14.1 Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s obligations under this 
Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation as provided 
in this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in 
no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on 
contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, 
including but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement for the services performed in connection with 
this Agreement.   

14.2 CM shall pay to District any and all costs incurred by District, or for which 
District may become liable, to the extent caused by negligent delays, acts, or 
omissions of CM in its performance of its Services.  



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 12 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

14.3 District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a 
result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by CM, or by its 
employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to CM by 
District.  

14.4 CM hereby waives any and all claim(s) for recovery from the District under this 
Agreement, which loss or damage is covered by valid and collectible insurance 
policies. CM agrees to have its required insurance policies endorsed to prevent 
the invalidation of insurance coverages by reason of this waiver. This waiver 
shall extend to claims paid, or expenses incurred, by CM’s insurance company 
on the District’s behalf. 

ARTICLE 15. Insurance  

15.1 CM shall procure, prior to commencement of Services, and will maintain for 
the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the CM, their agents, representatives, 
employees and sub-consultant(s). CM’s liabilities, including but not limited to, 
CM’s indemnity or defense obligations under this Agreement, shall not be 
deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage required herein. 
Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this 
Agreement and CM’s failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide 
evidence of renewal during the term of this Agreement, as required or when 
requested, may be treated by the District, subject to its sole discretion, as a 
material breach of contract. 

15.2 Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad 
as the following scopes and limits: 

15.2.1 Commercial General Liability. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) 
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, property damage, 
death, advertising injury, and medical payments arising from the 
performance of any portion of the Services. If Commercial General 
Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either 
the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 
Project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the 
required occurrence limit.  

15.2.2 Commercial Automobile Liability, Any Auto. One million dollars 
($1,000,000) per occurrence. 

15.2.3 Workers' Compensation. Statutory limits required by the State of 
California. For all of the CM’s employees who are subject to this 
Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or 
federal law, CM shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' 
Compensation policy. CM shall provide an endorsement that the 
insurer waives the right of subrogation against the District and its 
respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers. 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 13 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

15.2.4 Employer's Liability. One million dollars ($1,000,000) per 
accident for bodily injury or disease. For all of the CM’s employees 
who are subject to this Agreement, CM shall keep in full force and 
effect, an Employers’ Liability policy. That policy shall provide 
employers’ liability coverage with minimum liability coverage of 
Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence. CM shall provide 
an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation 
against the District and its respective elected officials, officers, 
employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and 
volunteers.  

15.2.5 Professional Liability. This insurance shall cover the CM and its 
sub-consultant(s), if any, for one million dollars ($1,000,000) 
aggregate limit subject to no claim deductible, coverage to 
continue through completion of construction plus two years 
thereafter. The policy must contain terms or endorsements 
extending coverage that requires the insurer to defend and 
indemnify for acts which happen before the effective date of the 
policy provided the claim is first made during the policy period. 

15.3 The District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described 
herein, with appropriate credits or charges to be negotiated for such changes.  

15.4 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention: Any deductibles or self-insured 
retention exceeding Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) must be declared 
to and approved by the District. At the option of the District, either:  

15.4.1 The District can accept the higher deductible; 

15.4.2 CM’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-
insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers; or  

15.4.3 CM shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and 
related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.  

15.5 Other Insurance Provisions: The general liability and automobile liability 
policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  

15.5.1 All policies except for the worker’s compensation, employer’s 
liability and professional liability insurance policy shall be written 
on an occurrence form. 

15.5.2 The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, 
officials, employees, agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) 
are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising 
out of activities performed by or on behalf of the CM; Instruments 
of Service and completed operations of the CM; premises owned, 
occupied or used by the CM; or automobiles owned, leased, hired 
or borrowed by the CM. The coverage shall contain no special 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 14 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Additional 
Insureds. All endorsements shall waive any right to subrogation 
against any of the Additional Insureds.  

15.5.3 Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the 
policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage 
provided to the Additional Insureds.  

15.5.4 CM shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for 
required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional 
insureds. If CM fails to maintain insurance, District may take out 
comparable insurance, and deduct and retain amount of premium 
from any sums due CM under the Agreement. 

15.5.5 The CM’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against 
whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the 
limits of the insurer’s liability.  

15.5.6 Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to 
state that coverage shall not be canceled, not renewed, or material 
change in coverage except after thirty (30) days prior written 
notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given 
to the District.  

15.5.7 CM’s insurance coverage shall be primary and non-contributory 
insurance as respects the Additional Insureds with respect to any 
claims related to, arising out of, or connected with the Project. Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds 
shall be in excess of the CM’s insurance and shall not contribute 
with it.  

15.5.8 Construction Manager shall provide an endorsement that the 
insurer waives the right of subrogation against the District and its 
respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers. 

15.5.9 CM shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of 
insurance CM deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s 
scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. 
CM shall cause the subconsultants to furnish proof thereof to 
District within ten (10) days of District’s request. Should CM not 
require subconsultants to provide the same level of insurance as 
is required of CM, as provided in this Agreement, CM is not 
relieved of its indemnity obligations to District or fulfilling its 
insurance requirements as provided in this Agreement. 

15.5.10 If CM normally carries insurance in an amount greater than the 
minimum amounts required herein, that greater amount shall 
become the minimum required amount of insurance for purposes 
of the Agreement. Therefore, CM hereby acknowledges and 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 15 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

agrees that all insurance carried by it shall be deemed liability 
coverage for all actions it performs in connection with the 
Agreement. 

15.6 Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in 
California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII. CM shall inform 
the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating less than 
A:VII. At the option of the District, the District may either: 

15.6.1 Accept the lower rating; or 

15.6.2 Require CM to procure insurance from another insurer. 

15.7 Verification of Coverage: Prior to commencing with its provision of Services 
under this Agreement, but no later than three (3) calendar after the Notice of 
Award, CM shall furnish the District with:  

15.7.1 Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required 
insurance coverage;  

15.7.2 Original endorsements affecting coverage. The endorsements are 
to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 
coverage on its behalf. All endorsements are to be received and 
approved by the District before work commences.  

15.8 Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, CM will furnish 
District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services 
under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 16. Nondiscrimination 

CM agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and 
Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, 
commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth in Public 
Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; and all administrative 
rules and regulations found to be applicable to Consultant and all of its subcontractors. 
In addition, Consultant agrees to require like compliance by all of its subcontractor(s).  

ARTICLE 17. Covenant Against Contingent Fees 

CM warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than 
a bona fide employee working solely for the CM, to solicit or secure this Agreement, 
and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for the CM, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage 
fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent on or resulting from the award or 
making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the District shall 
have the right to annul this Agreement without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct 
from the contract price or consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such 
fee, commission, percentage fee, gift, or contingency. 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 16 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

ARTICLE 18. Entire Agreement/Modification 

This Agreement, including the Exhibits hereto, supersedes all previous contracts and 
constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto. CM shall be entitled to no 
benefit other than those specified herein. No changes, amendments or alterations shall 
be effective unless in writing and signed by both Parties. CM specifically acknowledges 
that in entering into this Agreement, CM relies solely upon the provisions contained in 
this Agreement and no others. 

ARTICLE 19. Non-Assignment of Agreement 

This Agreement is intended to secure the CM’s specialized services. CM may not assign, 
transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein without the District’s prior written 
consent. Any assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without the District’s prior 
written consent shall be considered null and void.  

ARTICLE 20. Law, Venue 

20.1 This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and 
the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this 
Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of 
California.  

20.2 To the fullest extent permitted by California law, Sacramento County shall be 
the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in 
connection with or by reason of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 21. Alternative Dispute Resolution 

21.1 All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the 
interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided 
through mediation as the first method of resolution. Notice of the demand for 
mediation of a dispute shall be filed in writing with the other party to the 
Agreement. The demand for mediation shall be made within a reasonable time 
after written notice of the dispute has been provided to the other party, but in 
no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial written notice.  

21.2 If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all 
applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Consultant shall comply with 
all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing 
with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 of 
Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to the 
Consultant’s right to bring a civil action against the District. For purposes of 
those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be 
presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Consultant submits 
its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time utilized 
by any applicable meet and confer process.  

21.3 Notwithstanding any disputes, claims or other disagreements between the CM 
and the District, CM shall continue to provide and perform Services hereunder 
pending a subsequent resolution of such disputes.  



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 17 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

ARTICLE 22. Tolling of Claims 

CM agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District’s assertion of claims against CM 
that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims against 
District involving CM’s work, until the Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims are finally 
resolved. 

ARTICLE 23. Severability 

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the 
provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, 
impaired or invalidated thereby. 

ARTICLE 24. Employment Status 

24.1 CM shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be construed to be an 
independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it 
be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture 
relationship, or to allow District to exercise discretion or control over the 
professional manner in which CM performs the Services which are the subject 
matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the Services to be 
provided by CM shall be provided in a manner consistent with all applicable 
standards and regulations governing such Services.  

24.2 CM understands and agrees that CM’s personnel are not and will not be 
eligible for: membership in, or to receive any benefits from, any District group 
plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance; membership in any District 
retirement program; paid vacation, paid sick leave or other leave, with or 
without pay; or any other benefits which accrue to a District employee. 

24.3 Should District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the 
Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, 
or both, determine that CM or any employee of CM is an employee of District 
for purposes of collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable 
under this Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the 
employee and employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for 
amounts already paid by CM which can be applied against this liability). District 
shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority. 

24.4 Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services 
performed by CM for District, upon notification of such fact by District, CM 
shall promptly remit the amount due or arrange with District to have the 
amount due withheld from future payments to CM under this Agreement 
(again, offsetting any amounts already paid by CM which can be applied as a 
credit against that liability). 

24.5 A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two 
paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, 
and for all other purposes of this Agreement, CM shall not be considered an 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 18 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

employee of District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should any court, 
arbitrator, or administrative authority determine CM is an employee for any 
other purpose, then CM agrees to a reduction in District’s liability resulting 
from this Agreement pursuant to principles similar to those stated in the 
foregoing paragraphs so that the total expenses of District under this 
Agreement shall not be greater than they would have been had the court, 
arbitrator, or administrative authority determined CM was not an employee. 

24.6 Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons 
or entities not a party to this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 25. Warranty of CM 

25.1 CM warrants that CM is properly licensed and/or certified under the laws and 
regulations of the State of California to provide the Services that it has herein 
agreed to perform. CM further warrants that all of the work CM performs under 
this Agreement shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
codes of the United States and the State of California. CM also warrants that it 
shall comply with all applicable ordinances, regulations, and resolutions of 
Sacramento County. 

25.2 CM certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code of 
the State of California, requiring every employer to be insured against liability 
for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with 
the provisions of that code, and it certifies that, if applicable, it will comply with 
those provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this 
Agreement. 

25.3 To the extent that the work performed under this contract is subject to labor 
compliance and enforcement by the DIR, CM specifically acknowledges and 
understands that it shall perform the Services while complying with all 
applicable provisions of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1 of the Labor Code and 
Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations, including all applicable prevailing 
wage requirements. 

ARTICLE 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports 

CM shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code section 7550, 
if the total cost of the Agreement is over five thousand dollars ($5,000). 

 

 

 

 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 19 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

ARTICLE 27. Communications / Notice 

Notices and communications between the Parties to this Agreement may be sent to 
the following addresses by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid, return 
receipt requested, by overnight delivery service, or by personal delivery: 

District: 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
ATTN: Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contracts  

CM: 
 
Innovative Construction Services, Inc. 
5433 El Camino Ave Ste 2 
Carmichael, CA  95608 
ATTN: Meredith Collins 

 
If notice is given by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid, return receipt 
requested, it shall be considered delivered on the day the notice is signed for. If notice 
if given by overnight delivery service, it shall be considered delivered on the date stated 
in the proof of delivery.  

CM and District, by notice given hereunder, may designate different addresses to which 
subsequent notices, certificates or other communications will be sent. 

ARTICLE 28. [RESERVED]  

ARTICLE 29. District’s Right to Audit 

29.1 District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access 
to CM’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the CM’s 
compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s Right”). The 
District’s Right includes the right to inspect, photocopy, and to retain copies, 
outside of CM’s premises, of any and all Project-related records and other 
information with appropriate safeguards, if such retention is deemed necessary 
by the District in its sole discretion. The District shall keep this information 
confidential, as allowed by applicable law. 

29.2 The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, 
documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the 
District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether CM is in 
compliance with all requirements of this Agreement. 

29.3 If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the 
District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and 
any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the 
District determines is necessary to discover and verify all direct and indirect 
costs, of whatever nature, which are claimed to have been incurred, or 
anticipated to be incurred. 

29.4 CM shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices in the industry. CM shall make available to the 
District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and 



 

Agreement for Construction Management Services Page 20 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

documents and any other financial data. Upon District’s request, CM shall 
submit exact duplicates of originals of all requested records to the District. 

29.5 CM shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall 
ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants. 

29.6 CM shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District’s 
written request to review and audit any or all of CM’s Project-related records 
and information. 

ARTICLE 30. Other Provisions 

30.1 CM shall be responsible for the cost of construction change orders caused 
directly by CM’s willful misconduct or negligent acts, errors or omissions. 
Without limiting CM’s liability for indirect or consequential cost impacts, the 
direct costs for which CM shall be liable shall equal its proportionate share of 
the difference between the cost of the change order and the reasonable cost 
of the work had such work been a part of the originally prepared Construction 
Documents. These amounts shall be paid by CM to District or the District may 
withhold those costs from amounts due or to become due to CM. 

30.2 Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services 
required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of 
any rights under this Agreement, and CM shall remain liable to the District in 
accordance with this Agreement for all damages to the District caused by CM’s 
failure to perform any of the Services furnished under this Agreement to the 
standard of care of the CM for its Services, which shall be, at a minimum, the 
standard of care of construction managers performing similar work for 
California public school districts at or around the same time and in or around 
the same geographic area of the District.  

30.3 CM shall share, credit, or reimburse District fifty percent (50%) of the amount 
of any tax deduction and/or credit CM receives for District Projects under the 
Commercial Buildings Energy-Efficiency Tax Deduction, 26 U.S. Code § 179D 
(“Section 179D”).  CM shall provide District with all necessary documentation 
to enable District to verify the amounts of the Section 179D tax deduction.  CM 
shall notify District in writing of the Section 179D tax deduction within 30 days 
of when CM receives IRS notice of the Section 179D tax deduction or receives 
the Section 179D tax refund, whichever occurs first. 

30.4 Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and 
understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing 
it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement 
was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of this Agreement, 
and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any party as the drafter 
of the Agreement. 

30.5 The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of CM warrants and 
represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the 
CM to all terms hereof. 





DWK DMS 3772577v1 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF CONSTRUCTION MANGER 
 

Page 

1. BASIC SERVICES .................................................................................................................................................................... 1 
2. GENERAL PROJECT SERVICES ......................................................................................................................................... 4 
3. PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE ............................................................................................................................................ 5 
4. PRE-BID PHASE ..................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
5. BIDDING PHASE ................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
6. CONSTRUCTION PHASE ................................................................................................................................................... 8 
7. PROJECT COMPLETION .................................................................................................................................................. 11 
8. FINAL DOCUMENTS......................................................................................................................................................... 12 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-1 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

EXHIBIT “A” 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 

Construction Manager (“CM”) shall provide professional services necessary for completing the following: 

1. BASIC SERVICES 

1.1. Provide work which shall comply with professional standards and applicable requirements 
of federal, state, and local law. 

1.2. Monitor and advise the District as to all material developments in the Project. Maintain 
reporting systems for scope, sequencing, scheduling, budgets and communication for the 
Project using existing District software. 

1.3. Be the focal point of all communication to and from construction Contractor(s). 

1.4. Implement methods to budget and track all expenditures on the Project. CM shall generate 
monthly reports to the District reflecting this information. 

1.5. Prepare methods to track and report on schedule status for the Project. CM shall develop 
master schedules and milestone schedules for the Project, and shall report on same each 
month to the District. 

1.6. CM shall work cooperatively with District to anticipate and maintain a schedule of 
upcoming Board information and action items and shall prepare reports, background 
materials, and preliminary materials in District-specified format.  

1.7. CM shall work cooperatively with the Design Team and the District to: 

1.7.1. Define and schedule the Project.  

1.7.2. Provide Services that will result in the development of an overall Project strategy 
with regard to phases, construction schedules, timing, budget, prequalification, 
contactor and consultant procurement, construction materials, building systems, 
and equipment. 

1.8. Organize an initial planning workshop to create baseline parameters for the Project(s), to 
define overall building requirements, Project(s) strategy, conceptual budget and schedule. 
Pursuant to understandings reached at these meetings, CM will develop an implementation 
plan that identifies the various phases of the Project(s), coordination among phases, and 
budget and time constraints for each phase of the Project. The plan will include a detailed 
strategy, Project Budget and Project schedule as well as identification of critical events and 
milestone activities. 

1.9. Perform constructability reviews, determine construction feasibility, availability of materials 
and labor, time requirements for installation and construction, and factors related to cost, 
including costs of alternative designs, of materials, preliminary budgets, and possible 
economies. 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-2 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

1.10. Interface with the Contractor and all subcontractors during construction to ensure that the 
District is provided with an acceptable Project and the best value for taxpayer dollars. 

1.11. Advise the District as to the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over any portion or 
all of the Project, and as to coordination with and implementation of the requirements of 
the regulatory agencies, including without limitation DSA. 

1.12. Contract for or employ, at CM’s expense, sub-consultant(s) to the extent deemed necessary 
for CM’s services. Nothing in the foregoing shall create any contractual relationship 
between the District and any sub-consultant(s) employed by the CM under terms of this 
Agreement. 

1.13. Cooperate with the District, Board, and other professionals employed by the District for the 
design, coordination or management of other work related to the Project, including District 
staff and consultants, project manager(s), citizens’ oversight committee, other District 
committees, and the community to facilitate the timely completion of the Project within 
Board-approved budgets and to District design standards.  

1.14. Chair, conduct and take minutes of periodic meetings between District and its design 
professional(s), the Site Committee meetings, and construction meetings during the course 
of the Project. CM shall invite the District and/or its representative and the Project Inspector 
to participate in these meetings. CM shall keep meeting minutes to document comments 
generated in these meetings. 

1.15. Develop for District approval a Project time schedule at the start of Project development 
that does the following: 

1.15.1. Provides sufficient time for prequalification, and if necessary the resolution of 
any appeals, bidding, and, if necessary, rebidding, or negotiating if applicable, 
the Project;  

1.15.2. Coordinates and integrates the design professional(s)’ design efforts with 
bidding schedules;  

1.15.3. Includes realistic activity sequences and durations, allocation of labor and 
materials and delivery of products requiring long lead-time procurement; and 

1.15.4. Takes into account the District’s occupancy requirements (showing portions of 
the Project having occupancy priority and ongoing operational occupancy 
requirements).  

1.16. Be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of all cost estimates, 
constructability reviews, studies, reports, projections, opinions of the probable cost of 
construction, and other services furnished by CM under this Agreement as well as 
coordination with all Master Plans, studies, reports and other information provided by 
District to CM. CM shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or 
omissions in materials it generates. 

1.17. Maintain a log of all meetings, site visits or discussions held in conjunction with the work 
of the Project, with documentation of major discussion points, observations, decisions, 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-3 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

questions or comments. These shall be furnished to the District and/or its representative 
for inclusion in the overall Project documentation. 

1.18. Coordinate transmittal of documents to regulatory agencies for review and advise the District 
of potential problems in completion of such reviews. 

1.19. Prepare a bidders list for each bid package for approval by the District. 

1.20. Assistance with administration of the prequalification process;  

1.21. Assistance in development of documents necessary or appropriate for bidding the 
Construction Contract for the Project;  

1.22. Development of bidders’ interest in a Project, including but not limited to telephonic and 
correspondence campaigns and preparing and placing notices and advertisements to solicit 
bids for the Project(s);  

1.23. Assistance in conducting job walks and bidders’ conferences and the maintenance and 
preparation of minutes of job walks or bidder’s conferences;  

1.24. Assistance in responding to bidders’ inquiries and the development of bid addenda as 
necessary or appropriate;  

1.25. Review of bid proposals for responsiveness to bid requirements, evaluation of bidder 
responsibility, and analysis of completed questionnaires; 

1.26. Interviewing possible bidders, references, bonding agents and financial institutions;  

1.27. Preparing recommendations for the District for pre-qualification of prospective bidders; 

1.28. Tabulations and evaluation of bid results along with a recommendation for award of the 
Construction Contract for a Project;  

1.29. Assisting with resolution of any appeals;  

1.30. For Lease Leaseback projects, coordinate Request for Qualifications/Proposals (“RFP”) process 
and assist in negotiation of agreements, including, Site Lease and Facilities Lease with 
guaranteed maximum price; and 

1.31. Preparation of agenda items for Board approval. 

1.32. Provide documentation, pictures, and other information and assistance to the District for the 
District’s use on a website for public access to show Project status. 

1.33. Provide direction and planning to ensure Project adherence to applicable environmental 
requirements, such as those emanating from the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”), 
Cal/EPA, the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), and State of California laws, 
regulations and rules. CM shall comply with, and ensure that all Consultants, all Contractors 
and their subcontractors and design professionals and their subconsultants comply with, any 
storm water pollution prevention plans, other storm water management program and other 
environmental impact mitigation requirements that are approved by the District and 
applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District. 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-4 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

1.34. Cooperate and implement District’s reporting to and interface with the Labor Commissioner’s 
Office, including but not limited to: 

1.34.1. Registering public works project with the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) 
within thirty (30) days of the award, but in no event later than the first day in which 
a contractor has workers employed upon the public work; 

1.34.2. Requiring proof of public works contractor registration before accepting a bid or 
awarding a contract; and 

1.34.3. Reporting any suspected public works violations to the Labor Commissioner. 

1.35. CM shall maintain accurate Project cost accounting records maintained with generally 
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) on authorized work performed under unit costs, 
actual costs for labor and material, or other basis for maintaining required accounting records. 
CM shall provide accounting records to the District on a monthly basis, or as reasonably 
requested by District. CM shall afford the District access to these records and preserve these 
records for a period of three (3) years after final payment, at no cost to the District. 

1.36. Assist Architect with the preparation of an estimate of costs for all addenda and coordinate 
with Architect to submit the estimate to the District for approval. Assist and coordinate with 
Architect as required to adjust the Construction Cost Budget and other Project costs as 
indicated in this Agreement and as required in the Agreement for Architectural Services. 

1.37. Provide and maintain a management presence on the Project site. 

1.38. CM is NOT responsible for: 

1.38.1. Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis. 

1.38.2. Any asbestos testing, design or abatement; however, it shall coordinate and 
integrate its work with any such information provided by District. 

1.38.3. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), except that 
CM agrees to coordinate its work with that of any CEQA consultants retained by 
the District, and the work of Contractor and the Design Team to provide current 
information for use in CEQA compliance documents and to identify and carry out 
mitigation measures. 

1.38.4. Historical significance report. 

1.38.5. Soils investigation. 

1.38.6. Geotechnical hazard report. 

1.38.7. Topographic survey, including utility locating services. 

2. GENERAL PROJECT SERVICES 

2.1 General: Monitor and advise the District and Program Manager as to all material 
developments on the Project. CM shall implement with District approval reporting methods 
developed by Program Manager for schedules, cost and budget status. The CM shall be 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-5 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

the focal point of all communication to and from construction Contractor and shall be 
copied on all communications between the District and its Design Team. 

2.2 Scheduling: Track and report on schedule status for Project. The CM shall develop Project 
master schedules and milestone schedules, and review and approve Contractor project 
schedules and milestone schedules for the project per specifications, and shall report on 
same each month to the District and Program Manager. 

2.3 Cost Controls: Implement methods to track construction expenditures on the Project using 
methods developed by Program Manager. The CM shall generate monthly reports to the 
District reflecting this information. 

3. PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE 

3.1 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with providing overall 
coordination of the Project; serve as the focal point of communication, transmitting 
information to the District and Design Team on general aspects of the Project, including 
planning, scheduling, cost management, progress reporting, design review, dispute 
resolution, and documentation. Communications from the construction Contractor to the 
District and Design Team shall be through the CM. The CM shall receive simultaneous 
copies of all written communications from the District or the Design Team to the 
construction Contractor. 

3.2 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with the detailed definition 
of project scope, budget, and schedule, as needed. Review and reconcile cost estimates 
from the assigned architect and coordinate peer review estimates when requested by the 
District. Advise the District regarding owner-supplied equipment and other potential cost-
saving measures. 

3.3 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist the District in the solicitation 
and retention of design and engineering consultants, and coordinate design consultants’ 
activities and delivery schedules, as needed. Provide value engineering and life cycle cost 
analysis.  

3.4 Provide design-phase services in conjunction with the architecture firms awarded the 
Project by the District. Work with the Architect to conform and refine designs to correlate 
designs to budget and Facilities Master Plan, if applicable. Review design documents for 
constructability, scheduling, consistency, and coordination during schematic and design 
development phases of work. Perform constructability reviews at appropriate stages of 
design. Assist with verification of site conditions. Expedite design reviews, including 
modifications. Keep accurate documentation of all discussions with users regarding scope 
and resolution. 

3.5 Prepare and maintain a Construction Management schedule for the Project. Prepare a 
procurement plan and move in occupancy planning, where required.  

3.6 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with monitoring and 
reporting to the District on status of design and state approval in relation to the schedule 
for the Project. Attend meetings to coordinate design efforts for the Project. Assist in 
identifying and obtaining all necessary approvals. 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-6 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

3.7 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with soliciting proposals, 
evaluate, and recommend other professional consultants needed to complete the Project.  

3.8 Implement District-approved implementation procedures, forms and reporting 
requirements for the Project that involve all members of the Project team, including the 
District, Design Team, and construction Contractor. 

3.9 Work with the Design Team and District to develop the final sizes, choice of materials, 
services and utilities and other detailed design and performance criteria of the Project.  

3.10 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, provide value engineering at the 
Schematic Design and/or 100% Design Development Phase. This evaluation will consist of 
a review of the proposed materials, equipment, systems and other items depicted in the 
design documents and shall be coordinated with the District’s design guidelines and design 
professional(s). The CM will prepare a value engineering report documenting the results of 
the evaluation and make recommendations to the District with respect to alternatives, 
deletions, or amendments of such proposed items that pertain to the anticipated 
construction costs, useful life, maintenance and operational costs and efficiencies. The CM 
shall provide to the District value engineering recommendations and cost/benefit analysis 
of those recommendations. 

3.11 Perform or subcontract for constructability reviews of the Project at the Design 
Development Phase and at 90% of the Construction Documents Phase. The CM shall review 
the design documents for clarity, consistency, constructability and coordination. The results of 
the review shall be provided in writing and as notations on the documents to the District. The 
CM shall also make recommendations to the District with respect to constructability, 
construction cost, sequence of construction, and construction duration.  

3.12 Develop master bid/award schedule(s) including construction milestones for the Project 
through the completion of construction, as directed by the District, in coordination with 
design professional(s) and advise and consult with the District. CM shall review and approve 
construction Contractor‘s schedules, but shall not dictate any construction Contractor‘s 
means and/or methods of performance. 

3.13 Establish schedules for any Consultant, and for any hazardous materials or other testing, 
and review costs, estimates, and invoices of each. 

3.14 Implement a management control system to support such functions as planning, 
organizing, scheduling, budgeting, reporting progress, and identifying and documenting 
problems and solutions for the Project. Prepare monthly progress reports for the District 
regarding the schedule for the Project. 

3.15 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, organize an initial planning 
workshop to create baseline parameters for the Project, to define overall building 
requirements, Project strategy, conceptual budget and schedule.  Pursuant to 
understandings reached at these meetings, Construction Manager will develop an 
implementation plan that identifies the various phases of the Project, coordination 
among phases, and budget and time constraints for each phase of the Project.  The plan 
will include a detailed strategy, master budget and master schedule as well as 
identification of critical events and milestone activities. 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-7 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

 
3.16 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, provide updated cost estimates 

for the Project at the Schematic Design, Design Development, and Construction Documents 
Phases as directed by District; coordinate with design professional(s) and reconcile cost 
estimates with design professional(s)’ estimates. 

3.17 Advise District regarding “green building” technology and lifecycle costing, when 
applicable. 

3.18 Fully coordinate all changes requested by any utility company needed to complete the 
Project. 

3.19 Review and tailor the District’s front end documents for the Project. Recommend the 
number of days required for the construction phase (and any sub-phases, such as 
hazardous material abatement) and recommend the amount of the liquidated damages.  

4. PRE-BID PHASE 

4.1 Develop master schedules and construction schedules for the Project. Develop budget(s) 
for the Project based on construction cost estimates. 

4.2 In consultation with the District and according to District-approved policies, procedures, 
and standards, implement procedures, forms, and reporting requirements for the Project. 
Establish, accordingly, a communications procedure for the Project that allows for decision 
making at appropriate levels of responsibility and accountability. 

4.3 Work with the Program Manager and Design Team to modify or add to standard, special, 
or general conditions for contract documents that might be needed for unique Project or 
contract conditions, for the District’s approval, and/or assist in the development of 
documents necessary for the bidding phase. 

4.4 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, make recommendations for 
development and implementation of procedures to comply with applicable bidding or RFP 
requirements for the Project as applicable and for expediting completion of the bidding 
process for the Project. The scope of the foregoing includes without limitation, 
recommendations of CM with respect to: (a) pre-qualification of potential contractors; (b) 
combination of two or more of the Projects for design, bidding and/or construction 
purposes; and (c) alternative construction delivery approaches for the Project, including 
consideration of a single general contractor and/or Lease Leaseback approach to 
construction for each Project. 

5. BIDDING PHASE 

5.1 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, assist with pre-qualification 
process for the selection of prime and/or sub-contractors based on the detailed definition 
of Project scope, budget, schedule, and programming support. Develop a list of pre-
qualified prime and sub-contractors, as required. 

5.2 Develop bidders’ interest in the Project. Coordinate all bid phase activities with District 
departments. Conduct pre-bid conferences to familiarize bidders with the bidding 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-8 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

documents, and any special systems, materials or methods and with Project procedures. 
Conduct job walks and bidders’ conferences, maintain and prepare minutes of job walks or 
bidder’s conferences. Field questions from bidders, referring questions to Design Team and 
District as required. Coordinate with Design Team to respond to bidder questions by 
addenda.  

5.3 Prepare public solicitation notices for District approval. Review, coordinate, and estimate 
cost of bid phase addenda.  

5.4 Review bid proposals for responsiveness to bid requirements, evaluate bidder 
responsibility, and conduct reference checks. Prepare bid analyses and advise the District 
on compliance of bidders with District requirements and bid requirements. Report and 
recommend to the District after review and evaluation. Make recommendations to the 
District for prequalification of bidders and award of contracts or rejection of bids. 

5.5 Conduct post-bid conferences as required. Assist and advise regarding bid protests.  

5.6 If appropriate, coordinate contracting with Contractor awarded the contract, including 
evaluating bonds and insurance, and negotiate final terms of construction contractor’s 
contract(s), if applicable. 

5.7 Conduct pre-award conferences with successful bidders. 

5.8 Schedule and conduct preconstruction meetings. Maintain, prepare, and distribute 
minutes. 

5.9 Assist with the preparation of agenda items for Board approval. Coordinate submittals 
required by governing agencies. 

6. CONSTRUCTION PHASE 

6.1 Administer the construction Contract.  

6.2 Develop detailed construction schedules or review Contractor’s submitted schedules, as 
needed. Administer and coordinate the work of Contractor on a daily basis. Enforce 
performance, scheduling, and notice requirements. Review Contractor’s schedule 
submittals and make recommendations to the District.  

6.3 Monitor schedule and cost information for Contractor. Document the progress and costs 
of the Project. Report and advise proactively on potential schedule and budget variances 
and impacts. Recommend potential solutions to schedule and cost problems. Work 
cooperatively with the District, Architect, and Contractor to ensure that Project is delivered 
on time and within budget. Review construction progress and prepare reports.  

6.4 Verify permits, approvals, bonds, insurances, and schedules of values. Coordinate with DSA 
Project Inspector, and ensure compliance with all DSA reporting and closeout 
requirements. Submit necessary reports to state and local authorities.  

6.5 Monitor the construction Contractor to verify that tools, equipment, and labor are furnished 
and work performed and completed within the time required or indicated by the plans and 
specifications, under the direction and to the satisfaction of the District. The CM expressly 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-9 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

agrees to verify that the specifications are met, observed, performed, and followed in 
accordance with the professional standards of care for construction management.  

6.6 Coordinate work of the construction Contractor and effectively manage the Project to 
achieve the District’s objectives in relation to cost, time and quality.  

6.7 Provide continuous on-site construction management personnel, as needed. Conduct 
construction meetings for the Project to discuss and resolve such matters as progress, 
quality and scheduling. Said meetings shall be weekly unless Project conditions do not 
require that frequency. Prepare and promptly distribute minutes. When required by field 
or other conditions, construction progress, or the quality of workmanship, conduct special 
construction meetings; record, prepare, and distribute minutes of these meetings to the 
District, the affected construction Contractor, and Design Team.  

6.8 Establish and implement team communication procedures.  

6.9 Ensure that construction Contractor provides construction schedules as required by the 
construction Contracts, including activity sequences and durations, submittal schedule, or 
procurement schedule for products that require long lead time. The CM shall review 
construction Contractor’s construction schedules for conformity with the requirements of 
the construction Contract and conformity with the overall schedule for the Project. Where 
construction Contractor’s construction schedules do not so conform, the CM will take 
appropriate measures to secure compliance, subject to District approval. 

6.10 Ensure construction Contractor‘s compliance with the requirements of the respective 
construction Contract for updating, revising, and other obligations relative to their 
respective construction schedules.  

6.11 Cost Control. CM shall develop and monitor an effective system of construction cost control 
for the Project. CM shall identify variances between actual and budgeted or estimated costs 
and advise District and design professional(s) whenever a Project cost exceeds budgets or 
estimates. CM shall manage the construction bids and contracts in accordance with the 
Construction Budget.  

6.12 Continually monitor whether construction contract requirements are being fulfilled and 
recommend courses of action to the District when Contractor fails to fulfill contractual 
requirements.  

6.13 The CM may authorize minor variations in the work from the requirements of the contract 
documents that do not involve an adjustment in the contract price or the contract time or 
design and which are consistent with the overall intent of the contract documents. The CM 
shall provide to the design professional(s) and the District copies of these authorizations. 

6.14 Evaluate and process payment applications and verify progress.  

6.15 Verify that safety programs are developed and submitted by the construction Contractor 
as required by the Contract. Neither CM, Project Manager nor District shall be responsible 
for or have any liability for Contractor’s failure to provide, comply with, or enforce said 
safety programs. 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-10 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

6.16 Implement quality control program, including As-Built Drawings accuracy. Coordinate and 
evaluate Contractor’s recovery schedules.  

6.17 Record the progress of the Project by a log. 

6.18 Monitor ongoing Project costs to verify that projected costs do not exceed approved 
budget and provide the District timely notice of any potential increase in costs in excess of 
approved budgets provided to CM.  

6.19 Negotiate Contractor’s proposals and review change orders prepared by Design Team, with 
Design Team’s input as needed, for approval by the District. 

6.20 Evaluate and process change order requests. Make recommendations to the District. 
Determine cost and schedule effects of change orders. Prepare change order reports and 
maintain a change order log for the Project and implement procedures to expedite 
processing of change orders. 

6.21 Assist the District in coordinating the services of special consultants and testing 
laboratories on the Project. 

6.22 In conjunction with the Design Team, monitor work of the construction Contractor to 
determine that the work is being performed in accordance with the requirements of the 
respective construction documents for the Project, including but not limited to the plans, 
specifications, addenda, and all other contract documents, as well as all applicable laws, 
regulations and directives of agencies with jurisdiction over any of the Project. As 
appropriate, with assistance of Design Team, make recommendations to the District and 
Program Manager regarding special inspection or testing of work that is not in accordance 
with the provisions of the contract documents.  

6.23 To guard District against defects in the work of the construction Contractor, the CM shall 
implement a quality control program to monitor the quality and workmanship of 
construction for conformity with:  

6.23.1 Accepted industry standards;  

6.23.2 Applicable laws, rules, or ordinances; and  

6.23.3 The design documents and contract documents. 

6.24 Where the work of a construction Contractor does not conform as set forth above, the CM 
shall, with the input of Design Team: 

6.24.1 Notify the District of any non-conforming work observed by the CM; 

6.24.2 Reject the non-conforming work; and  

6.24.3 Take any and all action(s) necessary to compel the construction Contractor to 
correct the work.  

6.25 Evaluate, track, and maintain logs of requests for information (“RFI”) from construction 
Contractor and responses, shop drawings, samples, and other submittals, based, in part, on 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-11 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

information obtained from the design professional(s). Advise District and Program 
Manager as to status and criticality of RFIs.  

6.26 Implement procedures, in collaboration with the District, Program Manager and Design 
Team, for expediting the processing and approval of shop drawings, product data, samples, 
and other submittals for each contract. Receive and transmit all submittals from the 
construction Contractor to the Design Team for review and approval. Maintain submittal 
and shop drawing logs. 

6.27 Record the progress of work at the Project. When present, prepare daily reports for the 
Project containing a record of weather, construction Contractor(s) present and their 
number of workers, work accomplished, problems encountered, and other relevant data. 

6.28 Prepare and distribute monthly project status reports for the Project including updates on 
project activities, progress of work, outstanding issues, potential problems, schedule, and 
status of RFIs, change orders, and submittals. 

6.29 Coordinate, assist, and support Architect during construction administration phase as 
required. 

6.30 CM shall maintain records of principal building layout lines, elevations of the bottom of 
footings, floor levels, and key site elevations as provided by the construction Contractor. At 
the completion of the Project, deliver all such records to District. Construction Contractor 
and design professional(s) share responsibility to prepare Record Drawings and As-Built 
Drawings. 

6.31 Coordinate the move into the Projects. 

6.32 Work with District team to develop lists of incomplete or unsatisfactory work (“punch lists”).  

6.33 Fully document and prepare deductive change orders for extra services of consultants that 
are the responsibility of a Contractor or another consultant. Present such a change order 
for signature by the Contractor or consultant.  

6.34 Determine final completion and payment. Determine completion dates, final payments, and 
release of retention. Coordinate procurement and installation of Furniture, Fixtures, and 
Equipment (“FF&E”). 

7. PROJECT COMPLETION 

7.1 The CM shall observe the construction Contractor’s check-outs of utilities, operational 
systems and equipment, and start-up and testing. The CM shall maintain records of start-
up and testing as provided by the construction Contractor and shall ensure the District of 
compliance with applicable provisions of the Contract, that all work has been performed 
and accepted, and that all systems are complete and operative. 

7.2 At the punch list phase of the Project or designated portions thereof, CM, in consultation 
with the Architect, shall ensure the preparation of a list of incomplete or unsatisfactory 
work or work which does not conform to the requirements of the contract documents 
(“punch list work”) and a schedule for the completion of the punch list work. CM shall 
provide this list to the construction Contractor. CM shall coordinate construction 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-12 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

Contractor’s performance and completion of punch list work. CM shall review, with the 
Architect and District, the completed punch list work. CM shall ensure that, with input of 
the Architect, the completed punch list work complies with applicable provisions of the 
construction Contract. 

7.3 CM shall determine, with the Architect and District, when the Project or designated portions 
thereof are complete. 

7.4 CM shall conduct, with the Architect and District, final inspections of the Project or 
designated portions thereof. CM shall notify the District of final completion. 

7.5 CM shall consult with the Architect and District and shall determine when the Project and 
the construction Contractor’s work are finally completed. CM shall assist with the issuance 
of a Certificate of Final Completion, and shall provide to the District a written 
recommendation regarding payment to the Contractor. 

7.6 CM shall coordinate close-out procedures, including personnel training. Advise District staff 
on systems operations, training and close-out of Project.  

7.7 CM shall coordinate and expedite Contractor close-out requirements, including 
guarantees/warranties, certificates, keys, manuals, As-Built Drawings, Record Drawings, 
specifications, daily logs, and verified reports. Ensure that all other project participants 
submit necessary close-out documentation. 

7.8 CM shall coordinate operational safety reviews with District post occupancy and manage 
corrective work as necessary. 

7.9 CM shall ensure that all building commissioning requirements have been fulfilled in a timely 
manner through District commissioning agents. 

7.10 CM shall obtain occupancy permits (where required), coordinate final testing, 
documentation, and regulatory inspections. Prepare occupancy plan report. 

7.11 CM shall prepare final accounting reports.  

8. FINAL DOCUMENTS 

The Construction Manager shall review and monitor all As-Built Drawings, maintenance and 
operations manuals, and other closeout documents to be sure that all required documents meeting 
contract requirements are provided, and shall secure and transmit to the District and Program 
Manager those documents and all required guarantees, keys, manuals, record drawings, and daily 
logs.  The Construction Manager shall also forward all documents and plans to the District upon 
completion of the project and ensure all such plans and documents are well organized for any 
appropriate audit or review of the Project. 

9. WARRANTY 

The Construction Manager shall assist Program Manager as necessary to implement a Warranty 
Inspection and Warranty Work procedure for the Project that Contractor must follow.  The 
procedure shall include a twelve (12) month call back period and a final warranty inspection eleven 



 

EXHIBITS Page A-13 
Agreement for Construction Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

(11) months after Project completion to inspect the Project and identify any outstanding warranty 
work.  

10. PROJECT CLOSEOUT 

To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, the Construction Manager shall assist 
District, Architect, and Program Manager as necessary to ensure all information and documentation 
necessary for Project closeout with the DSA is complete and the Project is timely closed out with 
DSA.  This includes but is not limited to reports from independent consultants, inspectors, testing 
laboratories, and corresponding or required DSA forms. 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

 



 

EXHIBITS Page B-1 
Agreement for Program Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

EXHIBIT “B” 

CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES 

The following Extra Services to this Agreement shall be performed by CM if needed and requested by 
District: 

1. Providing services required because of significant documented changes in the Project initiated by 
the District, including but not limited to size, quality, complexity, or the District’s schedule. 

2. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during 
construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of such work. 

3. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor, or by major defects or deficiencies 
in the work of the Contractor, or by failure of performance of the District’s consultants. 

4. Seeking variances or changes to agency guidelines on behalf of the District when so directed by 
the District. 

5. Preparing to serve or serving as a witness in connection with any public hearing, dispute resolution 
proceeding or legal proceeding, other than that necessitated by the negligent acts, errors or 
omissions of CM or where the CM is a party thereto, except for a Contractor’s hearing necessitated 
by a bid protest or by a Contractor’s request to substitute a subcontractor, or by handling of any 
stop payment notices. 

6. Performing technical inspection and testing. 

7. Providing other services not otherwise included in this Agreement and not customarily furnished in 
accordance with the generally accepted scope of construction management practice. 

Format and Content of Invoices 

CM acknowledges that the District requires CM’s invoices to include detailed explanations of the Services 
performed. For example, a six hour charge for the entire day is unacceptable and will not be payable. A 
more detailed explanation describing specific tasks is required.  



 

EXHIBITS Page B-2 
Agreement for Program Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

Hourly Rates for Extra Services 

1. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost and profit, shall be utilized in 
arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of the Agreement. CM 
shall bill in quarter-hour increments for all Extra Services.  

Job Title Hourly Rate 

Project Director $160 

Construction Manager $140 

Project Manager $145 

Sr. Project Manager $150 

Estimator $135 

Asst Construction Manager $95 

Asst Project Manager $115 

Scheduler $140 

Contract Administrator $85 

 

2. The mark-up on any approved item of Extra Services performed by sub-consultant(s) or 
subcontractor(s) shall not exceed five percent (5%). 

 

 



 

EXHIBITS Page C-1 
Agreement for Program Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

EXHIBIT “C” 

SCHEDULE OF WORK 

 

[To be completed/inserted] 
 



 

 
Project & Construction Management Services Proposal  

 
March 9, 2023 
 
Mr. Chris Ralston, Director III 
Facilities Management, Maintenance & Operations, and Resource Management 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
5735 47th Ave. 
Sacramento, CA. 95824 
 
Innovative Construction Services (ICS) is pleased to submit the following Project and Construction 
Management proposal for the Albert Einstein MS Modernization.  This project has 2 phases of 
construction to include Re-roof and Exterior Paint and HVAC and Landscape. The duration of this 
proposal is from March 2023 – December 2024. Total budget for construction is $6-8M. ICS’ 
proposal includes the following services: 
 
Project manager to assist and coordinate the AE team during the project; Site visits for confirmation 
of scope and site logistics; Design coordination and weekly construction meetings as needed; Bid & 
award assistance with SCUSD contracts department; Pre-construction meeting; and Availability 
during construction for resolution to any scope or contract concerns.  
250 hours at $145/hour = $36,250.00 
 
Construction manager/project engineer to coordinate and provide over-sight on day-to-day activities 
during construction to include construction status meetings; submittal distribution; RFI distribution; 
review and processing potential change orders; review and approval of payment applications; punch-
list monitoring; close-out document coordination; and DSA close-out. 
Re-Roof and Exterior Paint Construction – Closeout  
25 hours per week for 20 weeks at $140/hour = $70,000.00 
HVAC and Landscape 
25 hours per week for 15 weeks at $140/hour = $52,500.00 
 
Total Fee for Services is One hundred fifty-eight thousand Seven hundred fifty dollars 
($158,750). 

 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit our proposal and please don’t hesitate to contact me if you 
have any questions. 
 
Respectfully,  

Meredith Collins     

Meredith Collins 
CFO/Project Manager   
Innovative Construction Services, Inc.      



 

EXHIBITS Page D-2  
Agreement for Program Management Services 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
DWK DMS 3772577v1 

EXHIBIT “D” 

FEE SCHEDULE 

Compensation 

1. The CM’s fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of CM’s Services incurred 
in its performance, including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel within two hundred 
(200) miles of the Project location (travel reimbursements must be approved by District prior to 
travel), offices, per diem expenses, office supplies, printing, providing, or shipping of deliverables 
in the quantities set forth in Exhibit “A.” 

2. The amount of compensation shall be the amount set forth in the Agreement, including all billed 
expenses. No compensation will be paid or due, without advance written approval of the District.  

Method of Payment of Basic Services 

1. CM shall submit monthly invoices for the portion of the overall fee reflecting the services performed 
and costs incurred for each respective month. In no event shall the total payments exceed the CM’s 
fee set forth in Article 7 this Agreement except as authorized under Exhibit “B.” 

2. CM shall submit these invoices in duplicate to the District via the District’s authorized 
representative. 

3. CM shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof that payments were 
made to his/her sub-consultants. 

4. Upon receipt and approval of CM’s invoices, the District agrees to make payments on all undisputed 
amounts no later than thirty (30) days from receipt of the invoice. 

5. The District may withhold or deduct from amounts otherwise due CM hereunder if CM fails to timely 
and completely perform material obligations to be performed on its part under this Agreement, 
with the amounts withheld or deducted being released after CM has fully cured such failure of 
performance, less costs, damages or losses sustained by the District resulting therefrom. 

 







































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 12.1c 
 

 
Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Human Resources Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  N/A 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Clean and Healthy Schools 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Certificated Personnel Transactions Dated May 18, 2023 
2. Classified Personnel Transactions Dated May 18, 2023 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:   Cancy McArn, Ed.D, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A Aguilar, Superintendent  

 
 Page 1 of 1 



Page 1 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 1:  CERTIFICATED 5/18/2023

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
LEAVES
BIER CHARLOTTE A Teacher, Child Development EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 5/5/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN 5/5/23                                                                                                          
ELLEFSEN MICHELE A Teacher, Elementary ABRAHAM LINCOLN ELEMENTARY 5/6/2023 6/15/2023 LOA (PD) 5/6-6/15/23                                                                                                 
RODRIGUEZ LINDSEY A Teacher, Elementary FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 5/9/2023 5/31/2023 LOA (PD) 5/9-5/31/23                                                                                                 
ROSENHEIM LAURA A Teacher, Elementary THEODORE JUDAH ELEMENTARY 6/10/2023 6/30/2023 LOA (PD) 6/10-30/23                                                                                                    
SAUNDERS MICHELLE A Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 4/29/2023 6/30/2023 RTN LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 4/29/23                                                                                       
STINSON LISA A Teacher, Elementary TAHOE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/18/2023 6/30/2023 ADMIN LOA (UNPD) 4/18/23                                                                                                
TSAN PHUONG A Teacher, Middle School FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 4/22/2023 6/30/2023 RTN LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 4/22/23                                                                                       

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
PARSH DAVID B Coord III, District Athletics EQUITY, ACCESS & EXCELLENCE 4/17/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 4/17/23                                                                      
SERIN ABIGAIL B School Nurse HEALTH SERVICES 3/10/2023 6/30/2023 STCHG 3/10/23                                                                                                 
ZOLNIKOV IRINA A Teacher, Child Development EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 5/15/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 5/15/23                                                                                                   

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
CUNANAN JOY B School Nurse HEALTH SERVICES 10/3/2022 10/10/2022 SEP/RESIGN 10/10/22                                                                                                   
HATTER ANGELA C Coor III Adult Education CHARLES A. JONES CAREER & ED 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 SEP/RESIGN 6/30/23                                                                                                    
HEDEGARD SADIE B Asst Sup, Spec Ed I & L SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 SEP/RESIGN 6/30/23                                                                                                    
LEE DIANE A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. LEATAATA FLOYD ELEMENTARY 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RESIGN 6/16/23                                                                                                      
MILLER MELISSA A Teacher, Child Development EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/23                                                                                                      
RICHARDSON SUSAN A Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj GOLDEN EMPIRE ELEMENTARY 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                      
WILLIAMS ANDREA B School Psychologist SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 8/17/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RESIGN 6/16/23                                                                                                      

TRANSFER
MINAMIDE MARLEY A Teacher, Elementary TAHOE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 3/23/2023 6/30/2023 TR  

 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
May 18, 2023



Page 1 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 2:  CLASSIFIED 5/18/2023

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY

ALMEIDA JOSHUA B Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 5/8/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 5/8/23                                                                                                     
BERRING JASON B Supv I, Safety Officer JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 5/8/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 5/8/23                                                                                                      
DU BARD BRENDA B Noon Duty JOHN H. STILL - K-8 4/17/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 4/17/23                                                                                                     
FRANCO LILIANA B Teacher Assistant, Bilingual MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/17/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 4/17/23                                                                                                     
GOMEZ EVA B School Office Manager I ETHEL I. BAKER ELEMENTARY 4/10/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 4/10/23                                                                                                     
MCMILLAN PHILLIP B HRS Tech Analyst, CARES HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 5/8/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 5/8/23                                                                                                      
SMYERS SALLIE B Mngr Nutri Srvc Prcrmnt & Wrhs NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 4/24/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 4/24/23                                                                                                    

LEAVES
BROWN KAREN B Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 4/12/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN 4/12/23                                                                                                         
HELTON-ADAMS SANDRA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2023 8/23/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 7/1-8/23/23                                                                                               
IDLEMAN TYRONE B School Plant Ops Mngr I JOHN D SLOAT BASIC ELEMENTARY 7/1/2023 7/9/2023 EXT LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 7/1-9/23                                                                                        
IMHOF KAREN A Inst Aid, Spec Ed WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/6/2023 5/11/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 4/6-5/11/23                                                                                         
MURILLO DE PENA MANUELA A Clerk II H.W. HARKNESS ELEMENTARY 4/10/2023 5/10/2023 LOA (PD) 4/10-5/10/23                                                                                                
NIETO LETICIA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/18/2023 5/18/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 4/18-5/18/23                                                                                            
PHILLIPS TARA A Nutr Serv Purch and Wrhse Spec NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 4/13/2023 5/10/2023 LOA (PD) 4/13-5/10/23                                                                                                  
REYES JR MARIO A School Plant Ops Mngr I O. W. ERLEWINE ELEMENTARY 5/1/2023 6/30/2023 RTN LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 5/1/23                                                                                        
SANCHEZ JUAN A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 5/3/2023 6/30/2023 RTN LOA 5/3/23                                                                                                   
VANG KIA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/12/2023 6/30/2023 RTN LOA 4/12/23                                                                                                         

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
ALCALA GARCIA ANA B Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 5/1/2023 6/30/2023 STCHG 5/1/23                                                                                                       
ARROYO-CARRILLO RAYNA B Noon Duty ETHEL PHILLIPS ELEMENTARY 4/1/2023 6/30/2023 STCHG 4/1/23                                                                                                            
BLACKSHIRE CHRISTY B Personnel Tech I HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 5/2/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 5/2/23                                                                 
CHAPMAN COREY B Instructional Aide ISADOR COHEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 12/19/2022 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG12/19/22                                                                                                   
FIGUEROA BEATRIZ B Office Tchncn III SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 5/3/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 5/3/23                                                                                           
HEADLEY CRYSTAL B Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 5/2/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 5/2/23                                                                 
JENNETT JENNIFER A Inst Aid, Spec Ed JOHN CABRILLO ELEMENTARY 3/1/2023 6/30/2023 STCHG 3/1/23                                                                                                     
MENDOZA MAGDA B Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 5/1/2023 6/30/2023 STCHG 5/1/23                                                                                                       
MORTENSEN KIMBERLY B Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 5/1/2023 6/30/2023 STCHG 5/1/23                                                                                                       
ORIYAVONG MANIDA A School Office Manager I EARL WARREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 3/21/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 3/21/23                                                                                                
RAHLF CATALINA B Adm & Family Svcs Tech ENROLLMENT CENTER 5/2/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 5/2/23                                                                 
SANDOVAL JOSEPH B Supv I, Safety Officer JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 3/27/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 3/27/23                                                                                                    
VEGAS TANYA B Assessment Technician STRATEGY & CONTINOUS IMPRVMNT 4/29/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 4/29/23                                                                                                 
VIRAY MICHELLE B Noon Duty CALEB GREENWOOD ELEMENTARY 4/1/2023 6/30/2023 STCHG 4/1/23                                                                                                            
VUE MAI B Instructional Aide PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 12/7/2022 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 12/7/22                                                                                                    

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
AMARO ANTHONY A School Plant Ops Mngr I A.WARREN McCLASKEY ADULT 7/1/2023 7/6/2023 SEP/RETIRE 7/6/23                                                                                                      
JARAMILLO WILLIAM A Pers Tech II HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 7/1/2023 7/8/2023 SEP/RETIRE 7/8/23                                                                                                       
LEVIN VALERIE B Personnel Tech I HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 7/1/2023 7/21/2023 SEP/RETIRE 7/21/23                                                                                                     
MARRON VANESSA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 3/13/2023 3/31/2023 SEP/RESIGN 3/31/23                                                                                                    
OLIVARES MOISES A Inst Aid, Spec Ed CAROLINE WENZEL ELEMENTARY 1/23/2023 4/14/2023 SEP/RESIGN 4/14/23                                                                                                      
OSBOURNE BRIANA B Foster Youth Srvs Prog Assct FOSTER YOUTH SERVICES PROGRAM 10/1/2022 5/16/2023 SEP/ RESIGN 5/16/23                                                                                                     
PHUNG LIEN A Bus Attendant TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 12/15/2022 6/30/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/23                                                                                                      
RAMIREZ NICOLAS B Custodian WOODBINE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 12/7/2022 4/11/2023 SEP/TERM 4/11/23                                                                                                        
SILVA-ARMSTRONG KIMBERLY B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 4/1/2023 4/28/2023 SEP/RESIGN 4/28/23                                                                                                      

TRANSFER
AULIN CODY A Campus Monitor SUCCESS ACADEMY 4/24/2023 6/30/2023 TR 4/24/23                                                                                                          
LEWIS JR. BRIAN A Campus Monitor JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 4/24/2023 6/30/2023 TR 4/24/23                                                                                                          

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
May 18, 2023



Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _12.1d___ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023 
 
Subject: Approve Business and Financial Report: Warrants, Checks and Electronic 

Transfers Issued for the period of April 1-30, 2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve attached list of warrants and checks. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  The detailed list of warrants, checks and electronic transfers issued 
for the period of April 1-30, 2023 are available for the Board members upon request. 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  Normal business items that reflect payments from district funds. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached: 
Warrants, Checks and Electronic Transfers – April 1-30, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent    



.lkl

Page 1 : 2 Sacramento City Unified School District
Warrants, Checks and Electronic Funds Transfers April 2023

Account Document Numbers Fund Amount 

97413870 - 97414617 748 items 22,651,286.27$         
General (01) 18,070,293.26$         
Charter (09) 92,579.84$                
Adult Education (11) 53,485.36$                
Child Development (12) 35,089.74$                
Cafeteria (13) 1,229,722.51$           
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21) 3,057,764.19$           
Developer Fees (25) 6,757.93$                  
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)
Cafeteria Enterprise (61) 171.39$                     
Self Insurance (67) 374.77$                     
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68) 28,155.42$                
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 76,891.86$                

00002270 - 00002278 9 items 35,101.89$                
General (01) 16,530.00$                
Charter (09) -$                           
Adult Education (11)
Child Development (12)
Cafeteria (13)
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21)
Developer Fees (25)
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)
Self Insurance (67)
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68)
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 18,571.89$                

97889466 - 97890583 1118 items 5,099,454.10$           
General (01) 1,503,750.11$           
Charter (09) 43,779.65$                
Adult Education (11) 26,674.08$                
Child Development (12) 43,202.05$                
Cafeteria (13) 145,884.77$              
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21)
Developer Fees (25)
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)
Cafeteria Enterprise (61)
Self Insurance (67)
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68)
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 3,336,163.44$           

County Accounts 
Payable Warrants

Alternate Cash 
Revolving Checks

Payroll and Payroll 
Vendor Warrants



.lkl

Page 2 : 2 Sacramento City Unified School District
Warrants, Checks and Electronic Funds Transfers April 2023

Account Document Numbers Fund Amount 

ACH 01509619 - 01511346 1729 items 18,515,736.00$         
EFT 00000123 - 00000124 General (01) 16,755,105.31$         

Charter (09) 521,717.55$              
Adult Education (11) 190,012.15$              
Child Development (12) 361,685.08$              
Cafeteria (13) 563,657.09$              
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21) 41,729.05$                
Developer Fees (25)
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)
Cafeteria Enterprise (61)
Self Insurance (67) 16,202.15$                
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68) 5,420.99$                  
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 60,206.63$                

9700349903 - 9700349925 23 items 28,621,187.25$         
General (01) 678,932.26$              
Charter (09)
Adult Education (11)
Child Development (12)
Cafeteria (13)
Deferred Maintenance (14)
Building (21)
Developer Fees (25)
Mello Roos Capital Proj (49)
Self Insurance (67)
Self Ins Dental/Vision (68)
Retiree Benefits (71)
Payroll Revolving (76) 27,942,254.99$         

Total 3627 items 74,922,765.51$         

Payroll ACHs and  
Payroll Vendor EFTs

County Wire Transfers 
for Benefit, Debt & Tax



Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _12.1e___ 

 
 
Meeting Date:   May 18, 2023 
 
Subject:   Donations to the District for the Period of April 1-30, 2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Accept the donations to the District for the period of April 1-30, 2023. 
   
Background/Rationale:  Per Board Policy 3290 Gifts, Grants and Bequests, the Board of 
Education accepts donations on behalf of the schools and the District. After Board approval, 
the Board Office will send a letter of recognition to the donors.  
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy and 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached: 
• Donations Report for the period of April 1-30, 2023  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent    



Receipt DetailAR06a

B OF A   - BANK OF AMERICA

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

04/04/23 Supplies Donation, 1st Christian Church, Ck16115BA23-0002160 BA0000371First Christian Church Check 161157787Posted 300.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0117- 300.00 

04/20/23 S Wiseman Grant, Perennial Plant Club, Ck1489BA23-0002308 Perennial Plant Club Check 14897805Posted 1,000.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0495- 1,000.00 

04/25/23 4/25/23 BENEVITY FUND FOR WILLIAM LANDBA23-0002384 (000454) BENEVITY FUND Electronic Funds Xfer7826Posted 8,732.80 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0384- 8,732.80 

10,032.80 Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  

Fund-Object Recap

01-8690 10,032.80 Donation Board Acknowledgement

10,032.80 Fund 01 - General Fund   

Fiscal Year 2023      

Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  10,032.80 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 4/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 4/30/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for NAI SAELEE (NAI-SAELEE), May  9 2023  6:27PM

Page 1 of 3



Receipt DetailAR06a

BOTW AP  - Bank of the West (AP)

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

04/19/23 DONA RECRUITMENT/RETENTION,SCHOOLSFIRST,CK234634BW23-0001014 (000688) SCHOOLS FIRST FEDERAL CREDIT UNIONCheck 2346340Open 1,500.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0770- 1,500.00 

04/26/23 Music Dept Donation Fidelity Charitable,Ck13288338BW23-0001032 (000665) FIDELITY CHARITABLE Check 132883380Open 200.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0495- 200.00 

11,732.80 Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  

Fund-Object Recap

01-8690 1,700.00 Donation Board Acknowledgement

1,700.00 Fund 01 - General Fund   

Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  11,732.80 

Org Recap

Sacramento City Unified School District

1,300.00 C - Check

8,732.80 E - Electronic Funds Xfer

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 4/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 4/30/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for NAI SAELEE (NAI-SAELEE), May  9 2023  6:27PM

Page 2 of 3



Receipt DetailAR06a

BOTW AP  - Bank of the West (AP)

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

Org Recap

Sacramento City Unified School District (continued)

1,700.00 C - Check

Total Receipts 11,732.80 

Report Total 11,732.80 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 4/1/2023, Ending Receipt Date = 4/30/2023, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for NAI SAELEE (NAI-SAELEE), May  9 2023  6:27PM

Page 3 of 3



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Agenda Item# _12.1f_ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Staff Recommendations for Expulsion # 20, 21, 22, 23, and 24 

2022-2023  
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Student Hearing and Placement Department 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve staff recommendation for Expulsion # 20,21, 22, 23, & 24 
(2022-2023) 
#14 is a return based on the Board’s request 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College and Career Ready Students 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. None 
2.  
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: (N/A) 
Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Deputy Superintendent  
                          Stephan Brown, Director III 
Approved by:   Jorge Aguilar, Superintendent 

 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 12.1g 
 

 
Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3325: Authorizing Execution of Delegate 

Agency Agreement from SETA 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Academic Office / Early Learning and Care Department 
 
 
Recommendation:  None 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  The Office of Head Start, under the auspices of the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services/Administration for Children and Families, 
mandates that all Head Start governing entities receive specified reports related to the 
operational and fiduciary status of the program. These reports must include information 
and/or a status update in the followings areas: budget, credit card usage, USDA 
meals/snacks, enrollment, and program updates or summaries, if applicable. Attached, 
are essential monthly reports for Board members’ review. 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College and Career Ready; Family and Community Engagement 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Resolution No. 3325 Authorizing Execution of Delegate Agency Agreement from SETA 
 
 
 



 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Melissa Sigars, Director, Child Development, 

Yvonne Wright, Chief Academic Officer 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 1 of 1 













Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item 12.1h 

 
Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3323:  Resolution Regarding Board Stipends 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Board of Education 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3323: Resolution Regarding Board 
Stipends.  
 
Background/Rationale:  Education Code section 35120 fails to define hardship which 
has led to uncertainty regarding payment of stipends for Board members who may be 
deserving of payment due to absence resulting from hardship or other duties such as 
jury duty or performing duties or services for the District at the time of a Board meeting.  
All stipend payments will be based on an attendance sign-in sheet as well as any Board 
resolution(s) excusing absences in compliance with law.  A Board member who is 
absent from a meeting may be eligible for payment by reporting the excused absence to 
the Board Office.  A Board resolution will be periodically placed, as needed, on the 
Board agenda to state that the reason for the absence complies with Education Code 
section 35120 and shall be reflected in the minutes. 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Resolution No. 3323: Resolution Regarding Board Stipends 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Chinua Rhodes, Board President 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent  



 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3323 

 
RESOLUTION REGARDING BOARD STIPENDS 

 
WHEREAS, Education Code section 35120 and Board Bylaw 9250 of the Sacramento City 

Unified School District (“District”) authorize Board members to be paid stipends for meetings they 
were unable to attend due to illness, hardship or other duties such as jury duty or performing duties or 
services for the District at the time of a Board meeting; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the Board members may be paid, or retain, stipends for 
meetings they were unable to attend as stated in Attachment A. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sacramento City Unified School District 
Board of Education which finds and determines as follows:   

 
1.   Adopts the foregoing recitals as true and correct; 
 
2.   Authorizes stipends for meetings the Board members were unable to attend pursuant to  

Attachment A; and 
 
3.   Incorporates herein by reference Attachment A. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on 
this 18th day of May, 2023, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED TO: 
  
______________________________________  
Jorge A. Aguilar        Chinua Rhodes 
Secretary of the Board of Education                                       President of the Board of Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 3323 
 

1. Absence Due to Hardship and/or Other Duties: Stipends are authorized to the following 
Board member(s) due to Other Duties: 

a. Board member Tara Jeane for the Regular Board meeting on May 4, 2023. 
 



Page 1 of 1 
  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _12.1i__ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023 
 
 
Subject:  Approve Business and Financial Information: Purchase Order Board 
Report for the Period of March 15, 2023 through April 14, 2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve attached list of purchase orders.  
 
 
Background/Rationale:  N/A 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  Reflects standard business information. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached:   

• PO Board Report Period of March 15, 2023 through April 14, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
  Estimated Time:  N/A 
  Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
  Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

B23-00855 SYSCO FOOD SVCS OF 

SACRAMENTO

2022-23 (SUPPER) FOOD & 

PAPER FOR CENTRAL 

KITCHEN

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

12,000.00 

B23-00856 CHARTER AMERICA BUS CO 

THANDI ENTERPRISES INC

TRANSPORTATION FOR 

ATHLETICS

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,441.00 

B23-00857 CSUS PROCUREMENT & 

CONTRACTS S UZANNE 

SWARTZ CONTRACTS 

COOR

LEASE OF CLASS SPACE  FY 

22-23

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

7,686.84 

B23-00858 EAST BAY RESTAURANT 

SUPPLY INC

DISHABLE SORTING SHELF 

CENTRAL KITCHEN SY22-23

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

763.19 

B23-00859 LUX BUS AMERICA CO TRANSPORTATION FOR 

ATHLETIC GAMES

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

5,000.00 

B23-00860 UNIVERSAL LIMOUSINE CO TRANSPORTATION FOR 

ATHLETIC GAMES

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

4,250.00 

B23-00861 JTM PROVISIONS CO INC 

dba JTM FOOD GROUP

MACARONI & CHEESE FOR 

2022-23

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

53,000.00 

B23-00862 HIGHLAND BEEFALO FARMS 

INC HIG HLAND BEEF 

FARMS INC

BEEF STICKS &SLICES FOR 

2022-23SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

45,000.00 

B23-00863 FOOD DISTRIBUTORS OF 

NEVADA SM 

ARTFOODS4SCHOOLS

CRACKERS FOR 2022-23 SY 13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

5,910.00 

B23-00864 WAWONA FROZOEN FOODS FROZEN FRUIT BLENDS FOR 

23 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

20,000.00 

B23-00865 ATORIAS BAKING COMPANY 

dba WHE AT VALLEY 

BAKERY

PITA SOFT DIPPERS  2022-23 

SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

25,100.00 

B23-00866 NIPPON SHOKKEN USA TO PURCHASE TERIYAKI 

SAUCE FOR 2022-2023 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

11,000.00 

B23-00867 HMC GROUP MARKETING 

INC

GRAPES FOR 2022-23 SY 13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

65,000.00 

B23-00868  FEDERAL PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE 2022-23 E.W.

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,530.35 

B23-00869  FEDERAL PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE 2021-22 E.W.

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,498.36 

B23-00870 EAN SERVICES LLC ATHLETICS 

TRANSPORTATION

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 1,500.00 

B23-00871 BARFRESH CORP FRUIT SMOOTHIES FOR 

2022-23 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

44,164.00 

B23-00872 4 IMPRINT INC **BLANKET** RECRUITMENT 

ITEMS

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

5,000.00 

B23-00873 SACRAMENTO REGIONAL 

TRANSIT FA RE 

PREPAYMENT UNIT

BUS TICKETS 2022-2023 FOR 

HOMELESS SVS.

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

6,000.00 

CHB23-00399 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

22-23 BLANKET OFFICE 

DEPOT-INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUPPLIES

01GENEVIEVE DIDION 

ELEMENTARY

1,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 1 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

CHB23-00400 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

23-23 BLANKET OFFICE 

DEPOT-INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUPPLIES

01GENEVIEVE DIDION 

ELEMENTARY

5,000.00 

CHB23-00401 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

SUPPLEMENTARY 

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

750.00 

CHB23-00402 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

OFFICE DEPOT BLANKET 01A. M. WINN - K-8 10,064.28 

CHB23-00403 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

SUPPLEMENTAL 

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

1,230.48 

CHB23-00404 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

OFFICE DEPOT 22-23 TITLE 1 

ENGLISH

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,483.00 

CS23-00261 JIM SCHEIBLE Lane 9,LLC NJB STEER 

COMM BYLAWS REVIEW AND 

PREP

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 2,000.00 

CS23-00451 JIM SCHEIBLE LANE 9,LLC NJB STEERING 

COMM TRAINING

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 1,250.00 

CS23-00457 PARALLEL LEARNING, INC SLP SERVICES 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

75,000.00 

CS23-00458 SCOE K12 CURRICULUM & 

INSTRUCT ION

2022-23 SCHOOL YEAR 

AGREEMENT #23002

01SUSAN B. ANTHONY 

ELEMENTARY

7,200.00 

CS23-00459 KMM SERVICES INC 0354-465 SUTTERVILLE 

SECURITY PROJECT 

CONSULTANT

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

5,103.00 

CS23-00461 KMM SERVICES INC 0146-465 ISADOR COHEN 

SECURITY PROJECT 

CONSULTANT

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

3,969.00 

CS23-00462 HEIDI KOSKI CONSULTING Heidi Koski Consulting 

2022-23

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

4,098.00 

CS23-00464 MARY ASHLEY ATWOOD 

CHERNEY dba  MOON 

MAGIC

MUSIC PERFORMANCE AT 

THE COMMUNITY EVENT 

4/15/23

01COMMUNICATIONS OFFICE 200.00 

CS23-00465 KMM SERVICES INC 0520-464 HJHS INTERCOM 

UPGRADE DESIGN

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

48,510.00 

CS23-00466 WARMLINE FAMILY 

RESOURCE CENTE R

PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN 

SCUSD & WARMLINE

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

24,999.00 

CS23-00467 SCOE K12 CURRICULUM & 

INSTRUCT ION

TUPE SUPPLEMENTAL 

PROVIDER 22-23 FY (SCOE)

01FOSTER YOUTH SERVICES 

PROGRAM

800.00 

CS23-00468 CROWE LLP ANNUAL AUDIT SERVICES, 

YEAR END 6/30/23

01INTERNAL AUDIT 145,000.00 

CS23-00469 LP CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS INC

0117-464 FKBK 

TELECENTER LOW VOLTAGE 

TECHNOLOGY

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

11,025.00 

CS23-00470 LP CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS INC

0142-464 H.PARK TELECOM 

REMOVE/INSTALL INTERCOM

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

10,342.50 

CS23-00471 LP CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS INC

0151-464 LDV TELECENTER 

REMOVE/INSTALL INTERCOM

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

25,200.00 

CS23-00472 JORDAN KNIGHTON 

ARCHITECTS INC  dba JK 

ARCHITECTURE ENG

0415-468 CALIFORNIA 

RENEWAL ARCHITECTURAL 

SVC

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

88,200.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 2 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

CS23-00473 GUIDEPOST SOLUTIONS 

LLC

0148-464 LFLOYD 

TELECENTER CONSULTING 

SERVICES

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

21,766.50 

CS23-00474 HEIDI KOSKI CONSULTING Heidi Koski Consulting 01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

2,800.00 

CS23-00475 ENTEK CONSULTING 

GROUP, INC

0530-462 LBHS STORM 

DRAIN

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

2,870.00 

CS23-00476 ENTEK CONSULTING 

GROUP, INC

0420-453 ROSA PARKS GYM 

HVAC HAZARDOUS 

MATERIALS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

3,400.00 

CS23-00477 ENTEK CONSULTING 

GROUP, INC

0530-434 LBHS CORE PH2 

HAZMAT INSPECTIONS

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

4,200.00 

CS23-00478 UNIVERSAL ENGINEERING 

SCIENCES

0151-453 LDV GYM HVAC 

SPECIAL TESTING

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

4,976.00 

CS23-00479 PLAYWORKS EDUCATION 

ENERGIZED

SAC CITY SUB EXPERIENCE 

PROJECT SPRING 2023

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

19,200.00 

CS23-00480 CROWE LLP AUDIT SERVICES FOR BOND 

MSR Q & R YE 6/30/23

21INTERNAL AUDIT 27,000.00 

CS23-00482 STUDIOS FOR THE 

PERFORMING ART S 

OPERATING CO

CLARA Classroom Leataata 

Floyd

01ACADEMIC OFFICE 44,000.00 

CS23-00483 ENTEK CONSULTING 

GROUP, INC

0151-453 LDV GYM HVAC 

HAZARDOUS TESTING

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

6,050.00 

CS23-00484 UNIVERSAL ENGINEERING 

SCIENCES

0431-453 FERN BACON GYM 

HVAC INSPECTION

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

7,756.00 

CS23-00485 UNIVERSAL ENGINEERING 

SCIENCES

0420-453 ROSA PARKS HVAC 

SPECIAL TESTING

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

9,701.00 

CS23-00486 BORRELLI AND 

ASSOCIATES,INC.

0163-464 JCABRILLO 

TELECENTER ENGINEERING 

SVC

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

29,400.00 

CS23-00487 INNOVATIVE 

CONSTRUCTION SERVIC ES 

INC

0327-401 SEQUOIA 

RESTROOM PROJECT 

MANAGER

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

50,150.00 

CS23-00488 INNOVATIVE 

CONSTRUCTION SERVIC ES 

INC

0363-409 THEO JUDAH 

PLAYGROUND PROJECT 

CONSULTANT

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

70,875.00 

CS23-00489 JUST US UNITED CONFLICT 

MEDIATION/COMMUNITY 

ENGAGEMENT

01SAFE SCHOOLS OFFICE 25,000.00 

CS23-00490 EARTH MAMA HEALING INC GIRLS LEADERSHIP 

PROGRAM

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

3,000.00 

CS23-00491 WARREN CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS

0540-465 ROSEMONT 

SECURITY TOPOGRAPHIC 

SURVEY

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

19,687.50 

CS23-00492 MOORE RECREATION 

CONSULT INC.

Recreational Therapy 

Assessment

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,800.00 

CS23-00493 GAMETRUCK SACRAMENTO Bancroft Game Truck Rental 

1st Round

01ENROLLMENT CENTER 425.00 

CS23-00494 MEDIATION OFFICE OF 

KIMBERLY S CHULIST LLC

ADR Services 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

24,500.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 3 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

N23-00045 MOUNTAIN VALLEY CHILD & 

FAMILY  SERVICES

RESIDENTIAL PLACEMENT 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

478,938.50 

N23-00050 ATX LEARNING LLC NONPUBLIC AGENCY (SPED 

TEACHER)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

104,000.00 

P23-01025 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

LAW- Alcatraz Field trip 

admission

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,307.20 

P23-01997 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

B STREET THEATRE 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 754.00 

P23-02572 MARVIN NAKAMOTO WOMEN'S 

BASKETBALL-REIMBURSE

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

811.33 

P23-02573 BARCODES LLC K-12 Social Studies Adoption 

Barcodes

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

6,164.39 

P23-02574 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS

MLK Library order 2023 01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

270.18 

P23-02575 FEIFEI XIE REIMB FOR INSTRUCTIONAL 

MTLS - MS. XIE

01WILLIAM LAND ELEMENTARY 465.18 

P23-02576 KOMBAT SOCCER INC SOCCER UNIFORMS - TREAT 

AS CONFIRMING

01WEST CAMPUS 2,511.40 

P23-02577 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES TK teacher supplies 01PARKWAY ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

97.80 

P23-02578 CHARTER AMERICA BUS CO 

THANDI ENTERPRISES INC

BASEBALL  GAME 03/17/23 01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,455.30 

P23-02579 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES TRANSITION CLASSROOM - 

SPRAY LINE 226

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

62.60 

P23-02580 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS- 

SPED

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

85.15 

P23-02581 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES HEADPHONES FOR 6TH 

GRADE CLASS

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

315.35 

P23-02582 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SCIENCE CLASSROOM 

MATERIALS - PARENT 

DONATIONS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

243.51 

P23-02583 BEST ENVIRONMENTAL 

SERVICES

SOURCE TEST WORK TO BE 

PREFORMED

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 4,850.00 

P23-02584 BOOKS EN MORE PRIMARY GRADE LEVEL 

NOVELS-1ST GRADE

01CAMELLIA BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

964.57 

P23-02585 BOOKS EN MORE PRIMARY GRADE LEVEL 

NOVELS-KINDERGARTEN

01CAMELLIA BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

1,489.92 

P23-02586 CHARTER AMERICA BUS CO 

THANDI ENTERPRISES INC

BUS FOR SWIM MEET 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 952.56 

P23-02587 BOOKS EN MORE PRIMARY GRADE LEVEL 

NOVELS-2ND GRADE

01CAMELLIA BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

651.14 

P23-02588 UNIVERSAL ATHLETIC LLC 

GAME ON E

NET FOR TRACK AND FIELD 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,719.57 

P23-02589 FISHER SCIENTIFIC CO CLASSROOM 

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

01SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

264.29 

P23-02590 RUSSELL BURCH dba U PAY 

WE TRA VEL

INVOICE 1639 BASKETBALL 

FEE

01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 255.00 

P23-02591 WARDS NATURAL SCIENCE 

ESTABLIS HMENT INC

BIOLOGY LAB MATERIALS 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,369.70 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 4 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02592 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLARKE OFFICE DEPOT 

ORDER

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

394.32 

P23-02593 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

SUPPLIES FOR ASB CLASS 

OFFICE DEPOT

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

310.57 

P23-02594 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

EMERGENCY CLASSROOM 

FOLDERS

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,820.69 

P23-02595 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

PRINTERS FOR PRINCIPAL & 

OFC CLERKS CONFID

01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

464.36 

P23-02596 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

Printer upgrade for teachers 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 560.28 

P23-02597 UNIVERSAL ATHLETIC LLC 

GAME ON E

ATHLETICS- BASEBALL HATS 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,984.48 

P23-02598 MICHAEL'S 

TRANSPORTATION

FIELD TRIP: LIBERTY 

TOWERS 30.30.23

01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 2,432.00 

P23-02599 CHARTER AMERICA BUS CO 

THANDI ENTERPRISES INC

CHARTER BUS FOR 6TH 

GRADE SLY PARK TRIP

01ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

1,571.40 

P23-02600 DELTA WIRELESS INC Radios 01PARKWAY ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

3,279.98 

P23-02601 SCHOOL SPECIALTY KINDER-SCHOOL SPECIALTY 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 654.16 

P23-02602 CAREERSAFE, LLC CERTIFICATION OSHA-10 

HOUR GEN. 

INDUSTRY-CACHO

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

3,200.00 

P23-02603 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

BOARD OF R EGISTERED 

NURSING

MUSSER CE PROV APPL 

BOARD OF REG NURSING

01HEALTH SERVICES 750.00 

P23-02604 CDW GOVERNMENT REPLACEMENT COMPUTER 

FOR OM

01FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 1,098.59 

P23-02605 CDW GOVERNMENT LENOVO THINKPAD X1 

TABLET LAPTOP FOR 

INSTRUCTION

01WILLIAM LAND ELEMENTARY 1,651.10 

P23-02606 CDW GOVERNMENT DOCUMENT CAMERA FOR 

CLASSROOMS

01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

761.25 

P23-02607 RUSSELL BURCH dba U PAY 

WE TRA VEL

**TREAT AS CONFIRMING**  

SOCCER FEES

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,687.50 

P23-02608 CURTIS ROBERTS 

INSPECTIONS

LEAD WATER TESTING - Abe. 

LincolnPRESCHOOL

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

860.00 

P23-02609 ZANER-BLOSER INC Building Fact 

Fluency-Multiplication

09BG CHACON ACADEMY 1,387.10 

P23-02610 SCHOLASTIC INC 

SCHOLASTIC MAGA ZINES

ATTN CHRISTINA R. - 

SCHOLASTIC BOOK ORDER

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

12,341.82 

P23-02611 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO SUPPLIES 01SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

3,196.78 

P23-02612 BULK BOOKSTORE EXTRA CLASS SETS OF ELA 

NOVEL

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,277.76 

P23-02613 RECREATE SC WASTE REDUCTION 

EDUCATION

01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

350.00 

P23-02614 ACCREDITING COMMISSION 

FOR SCH OOLS, WASC

WASC MEMBERSHIP FEES 01NEW TECH 1,130.00 

P23-02615 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PA SYSTEM HOOK UPS 01OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

28.43 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 5 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02616 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES FILE CABINET AND 

WHITEBOARD FOR 

PRINCIPAL'S OFFICE

01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

129.22 

P23-02617 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ICE MAKER FOR STUDENTS 

DURING 

RECCESS/INJURIES)

01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

239.23 

P23-02618 JOSTENS INC DIPLOMA COVERS - TREAT 

AS CONFIRMING

01WEST CAMPUS 1,313.37 

P23-02619 DOUGLAS P NEILL HMS VERBAL TO VISUAL 

SUBSCRIPTIONS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

849.00 

P23-02620 EPIC SPORTS ATHLETICS-FOOTBALL 

PRACTICE UNIFORMS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,834.16 

P23-02621 CDW GOVERNMENT CB WIRE NETWORK FOR 

NICHOLAS INTERIM 

HOUSING

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

154,920.47 

P23-02622 COMMUNICATIONS 

TECHNOLOGIES IN C

SAFE SCHOOLS EQUIPMENT 

- TIPS CONTRACT #220105

01SAFE SCHOOLS OFFICE 21,093.13 

P23-02623 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

CALCARD - BOB LYONS, CIO 

EXPENSES - MAR 2023

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 70.14 

P23-02624 SCHOLASTIC INC 

SCHOLASTIC MAGA ZINES

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 01SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

365.37 

P23-02625 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPL MATERIALS TO 

ENHANCE 

DRAMA/PRODUCTION CLASS

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,263.50 

P23-02626 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES/MATERIALAS FOR 

YOUTH CONFERENCE (CN)

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

1,317.25 

P23-02627 CHARTER AMERICA BUS CO 

THANDI ENTERPRISES INC

TRANSP VOLLEYBALL (B) TO 

FOOTHILLS HS

01WEST CAMPUS 953.45 

P23-02628 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PRIMARY GRADE LEVEL 

NOVELS-KINDERGARTEN 

SPED

01CAMELLIA BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

423.92 

P23-02629 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SP ED RESOURCE - MR 

MCCLATCHY J5

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

536.02 

P23-02630 SCHOOL SPECIALTY CLASSROM TEACHING 

MATERIALS

01HUBERT H BANCROFT 

ELEMENTARY

424.95 

P23-02631 THE HOME DEPOT PRO CHILD DEV CUSTODIAL 

SUPPLIES - FOR JILL 

HERNANDEZ

12WOODBINE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

300.33 

P23-02632 THE HOME DEPOT PRO FLOOR MATS FOR 

DOORWAYS

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

133.50 

P23-02633 THE HOME DEPOT PRO STUDENT GROVENMENT 

SUPLLIES

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

301.67 

P23-02634 SCHOOL SPECIALTY PURCHASING INCENTIVES 

FOR STUDENTS

01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

709.52 

P23-02636 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS

Sam Brannan novel sets order 01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

2,011.88 

P23-02637 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

ROLLING WHITEBOARD FOR 

LIBRARY

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

367.56 

P23-02638 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

STUDENT GOVERNMENT 

SUPPLES

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,220.42 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 6 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02639 CDW GOVERNMENT CLASSROOM PRINTERS TO 

ASSIST WITH EL STUDENTS

01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

1,451.79 

P23-02640 CDW GOVERNMENT SPED MEETING MATERIAL 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

59.51 

P23-02641 CDW GOVERNMENT HP COLOR-LASERJET 

PRINTER FOR CK

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

2,723.28 

P23-02642 SCHOLASTIC BOOK CLUBS 

INC

SCHOLASTIC - CONFIRMING 01PONY EXPRESS 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

1,362.21 

P23-02643 SUCCESS BY DESIGN INC STUDENT PLANNERS 01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

617.70 

P23-02644 PAR INC PSYCHOLOGIST TEST KIT - 

LINE 225 WILLIAMS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

205.43 

P23-02645 AURORA ENVIRONMENTAL 

SERVICES

AURORA BIANNUAL AHERA 

INSPECTION

01RISK MANAGEMENT 7,124.11 

P23-02646 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

CAL CARD FEBRUARY 2023 

4710/5800 RECONCILE

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

1,344.34 

P23-02647 Gaumard Scientific NURSING 

PROGRAM_NOELLE 

MANNEQUINN_REPAIRS

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

2,274.08 

P23-02648 CAL DEPT OF SOCIAL 

SERVICES

ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

LICENSING FEE 2023

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

500.00 

P23-02649 BLICK ART MATERIALS LLC ART INSTRUCTIONAL 

MATERIALS

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

765.46 

P23-02650 RUSSELL BURCH dba U PAY 

WE TRA VEL

MIDDLE SCHOOL SOCCER 

LEAGUE FEES

01GENEVIEVE DIDION 

ELEMENTARY

1,687.50 

P23-02651 GWENDOLYN GILES dba 

DOG PARTY PUBLISHING

JOHN CABRILLO 

ELEMENTARY COMMUNITY 

FAIR PERFORMANC

01COMMUNICATIONS OFFICE 500.00 

P23-02652 COOLE SCHOOL INC STUDENT PLANNER 01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

4,522.00 

P23-02653 POCKET NURSE PHARM 

PROGRAM-INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUPPLIES

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

1,278.87 

P23-02654 KANTER & ROMO 

IMMIGRATION LAW OFFICE

LEGAL FEES-NONIMMIGRANT 

VISA

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

6,810.00 

P23-02655 CAROLINA BIOLOGICAL 

SUPPLY CO ACCT #121087

SCIENCE INSTRUCTIONAL 

MATERIALS

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

330.58 

P23-02656 4 IMPRINT CROSSLAND SOFT SHELL 

JACKETS

01COMMUNICATIONS OFFICE 346.32 

P23-02657 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SPED MEETING MATERIAL 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

172.18 

P23-02658 ROYALE MGMT GROUP LLC BMX SHOW W/ POWERFUL 

POSITIVE MESSAGE

01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

697.00 

P23-02659 ENABLING DEVICES AT MATERIALS - A.M. @ 

RUTTER MS (LINE 233)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

222.69 

P23-02660 MELANIE ZARBACK REIMBURSEMENT FOR 

WALDORF KINDER 

TEACHING SUPPLIES

01A. M. WINN - K-8 311.91 

P23-02661 UNIVERSAL LIMOUSINE CO SOFTBALL GAME 01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 7 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02662 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PBIS INCENTIVES 01FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 6,590.45 

P23-02663 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

room 23 chair 01MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

129.99 

P23-02664 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 

INC

price box 01MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

137.90 

P23-02665 THE HOME DEPOT PRO AFTERSCHOOL CUSTODIAL 

SUPPLIES

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,008.66 

P23-02666 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

E.WARREN  ATTN: SUZIE 

SARABA

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,035.47 

P23-02667 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

Classroom Supplies Parkway 

Preschool - Rm P2

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,480.72 

P23-02668 BECKER'S SCHOOL 

SUPPLIES

HJ PRESCHOOL RM B1 ATTN: 

DOME

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,098.60 

P23-02669 THE HOME DEPOT PRO GOVERNMENT CLASS 

SUPPLIES

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,781.11 

P23-02670 CDW GOVERNMENT COMPUTER ORDER FOR 

NEW MANAGERS

01DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT 5,313.46 

P23-02671 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

FIELD TRIP 2ND, 3RD, 3/4 

SPLIT CLASSES

01FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 493.21 

P23-02672 UNITED CAMPS CONF & 

RETREATS

6TH GR FLDTRP TO CAMP 

SEA LAB FOR 22/23

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

17,875.00 

P23-02673 LUX BUS AMERICA CO 22-23 6TH GRADE SCIENCE 

TRIP TRANSPORTATION

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

5,663.07 

P23-02674 CDW GOVERNMENT STUDENT CHROME BOOKS 01SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

17,029.27 

P23-02675 CDW GOVERNMENT HP ProBook 440 G9 Notebook 01STRATEGY & CONTINOUS 

IMPRVMNT

1,242.53 

P23-02676 CDW GOVERNMENT AT ORDER - LINE 217 

WATTENBERG

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

10,617.48 

P23-02677 PRECISION 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

0363-409 THEO JUDAH 

CCTV/SECURITY

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

20,955.86 

P23-02678 PRECISION 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

0037-465 CWENZEL 

SECURITY CCTV

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

14,783.86 

P23-02679 PERKINS ELECTRIC INC 0505-465 GWCAVER 

SECURITY FURNISH & 

INSTALL

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

32,700.00 

P23-02680 PERKINS ELECTRIC INC 0242-465 MATSUYAMA 

SECURITY FURNISH/INSTALL

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

18,700.00 

P23-02681 PORTER CORP 0029-401 BRET HARTE 

PLYGRND SHADE 

STRUCTURE

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

114,732.07 

P23-02682 GULFSIDE SUPPLY INC dba 

GULFEA GLE SUPPLY

ROOF REPAIR @ CP 

HUNTINGTON CHILDRENS 

CENTER

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 7,235.84 

P23-02683 WEST COAST ARBORISTS 

INC

STUMP REMOVAL  @ 

GOLDEN EMPIRE

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 2,280.00 

P23-02684 WEST COAST ARBORISTS 

INC

STUMP REMOVAL  @ SUTTER 01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 2,850.00 

P23-02685 MSI MECHANICAL SYS 3 DUCTLESS MINI SPLITS @ 

MCCLASKEY ROOMS 4 & 5

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 19,720.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 8 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02689 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

GOLDEN EMPIRE 

PRESCHOOL ATTN: MARIA 

AVETISOV

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

868.91 

P23-02690 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

JAMES MARSHALL 

PRESCHOOL ATTN:Roxane 

Sjolund

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

868.91 

P23-02691 GBC GENERAL BINDING 

CORP

Laminator 01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

2,201.36 

P23-02692 SCHOOL SPECIALTY ASES Equipment-Pt.1 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 3,550.62 

P23-02693 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

HEADPHONES 09BOWLING GREEN 

ELEMENTARY

6,696.66 

P23-02694 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

STANDIING DESK FOR 

CLASSROOM-B. DAVIS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

312.10 

P23-02695 ZOHO CORPORATION MANAGE ENGINE 

OPMANAGER ENTERPRISE 

RENEWAL 23-24

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 7,906.50 

P23-02696 NATUREBRIDGE FINAL PAYMENT FOR 6TH 

GRADE SCIENCE CAMP

01ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - 

K-8

5,267.00 

P23-02697 SIERRA NEVADA JOURNEYS 5th Grade Field Trip-Hands In 

the River

09BG CHACON ACADEMY 530.00 

P23-02698 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

ALCATRAZ TICKETS FOR 

LPPA FIELD TRIP 5/10

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,038.00 

P23-02699 UNIVERSAL LIMOUSINE CO 2nd Grade-Universal 

Limousine

09BG CHACON ACADEMY 1,012.50 

P23-02700 ALL WEST COACHLINES INV 79210, 79238, 79290, 

79293

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 5,144.30 

P23-02701 KHANNA ENTERPRISES II LP 

DBA: WYNDHAM 

SACRAMENTO

Attitude Explosion Conference 

5-6-23

01FOSTER YOUTH SERVICES 

PROGRAM

2,383.44 

P23-02702 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Firetect Flame Retardant 09THE MET 66.58 

P23-02703 UNIVERSAL ATHLETIC LLC TREAT-AS-CONFIRMING - 

GIRLS BBALL UNIFORMS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

637.49 

P23-02704 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES DIAPERS FOR M.RUSHTON 

PETERSON - HJ CC RM B2

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

49.96 

P23-02705 KOMBAT INK PT UNFORMS 01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,142.65 

P23-02706 CAROLINA BIOLOGICAL 

SUPPLY CO ACCT #121087

MIRCOSCOPES FOR 

SCIENCE LABS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

6,457.72 

P23-02707 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ATTN CHRISTINA ROSELI 

PACKING- MOVING PLASTIC

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

58.49 

P23-02708 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Denise Auzenne /ELC 

Deptment

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

96.08 

P23-02709 SUPER DUPER INC SPEECH DIGITAL LIBRARY 

ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

13,595.75 

P23-02710 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ATTN DENISE AUZENNE - 

SNACKS FOR PL MTGS

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

70.21 

P23-02711 FOLLETT CONTENT 

SOLUTIONS LLC

Earl Warren Library Bks 

3/2023 # 11194964

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

4,287.46 

P23-02712 FOLLETT CONTENT 

SOLUTIONS LLC

Earl Warren Class Novel Sets 

(4,5,6, SDC)

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

1,389.64 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 9 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02713 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STUDENT STORE - PT 1 01EDWARD KEMBLE 

ELEMENTARY

1,383.21 

P23-02714 BECKER'S SCHOOL 

SUPPLIES

WOODBINE 

PRESCHOOLERS ATTN: JILL 

HERNANDEZ, RM 23

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

102.70 

P23-02715 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CLASSROOM MATERIALS 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

163.01 

P23-02716 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INTERMEDIATE GRADE 

LEVEL NOVELS-5TH GRADE

01CAMELLIA BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

174.22 

P23-02717 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES COMPOSITION BOOKS FOR 

STUDENTS

01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 156.56 

P23-02718 CHAMBER THEATRE 

PRODUCTION INC

CHAMBER THEATRE 

SUBSCRIPTION

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

516.56 

P23-02719 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STUDENT STORE - PT 2 01EDWARD KEMBLE 

ELEMENTARY

2,725.08 

P23-02720 BOSTOCK, GREGORY REIMBURSE SCIENCE 

CLASS SUPPLIES

01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

698.15 

P23-02721 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

CAL CARD JANUARY 2023 

4710/5800 RECONCILE

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

1,033.84 

P23-02722 SENTINEL FIRE EQUIPMENT 

CO

SEMI-ANNUAL ANSUL 

SERVICE

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

135.00 

P23-02723 THE HOME DEPOT PRO SPRAY LINE PAINT EAST 

CAMPUS

01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 141.85 

P23-02724 SCHOOL SPECIALTY SCIENTIFIC CALC & COMPAS 

FOR MATH STUDENTS

01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

322.30 

P23-02725 AZTEC SOFTWARE 

ASSOCIATES INC

AZTEC SOFTWARE - ABE/HSE 11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

11,850.00 

P23-02726 DELTA WIRELESS INC REPLACEMENT BATTERIES 

FOR WALKIE-TALKIES

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

388.24 

P23-02727 CDW GOVERNMENT HP COMPUTERS, PRINTER ( 

Monica M. Homeless Svs.)

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

455.63 

P23-02728 LEARNING ALLY, INC LEARNING ALLY, INC 01CRISTO REY 909.30 

P23-02729 SARAH SCHEELINE IPAD & IPAD CASE 01H.W. HARKNESS 

ELEMENTARY

508.55 

P23-02730 PAR INC PSYCHOLOGIST 

PROTOCOLS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

32,519.31 

P23-02731 CDW GOVERNMENT CDW  DESK TOPS & 

MONITORS FOR EE

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

38,022.38 

P23-02732 CDW GOVERNMENT TEACHER PRINTERS, HP 

LASERJET PRO M255DW

01GENEVIEVE DIDION 

ELEMENTARY

2,653.23 

P23-02733 APPLE INC LOW INCIDENCE - AT/VI 

MULTIPLE STUDENTS (LINE 

219)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

14,524.20 

P23-02734 CDW GOVERNMENT Classroom projectors 01GENEVIEVE DIDION 

ELEMENTARY

2,963.44 

P23-02735 CDW GOVERNMENT HP LAPTOPS FOR NEW 

STAFF

01ACCOUNTING SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

3,328.64 

P23-02736 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

ATTN CHRISTINA R. - 

LAKESHORE BACKPACK 

ORDER

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

21,671.40 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 10 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02737 MARKERBOARD PEOPLE WHITEBOARD FOR 

ACCOUNTING DIRECTOR'S 

OFFICE

01ACCOUNTING SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

859.08 

P23-02738 AAA GARMENTS & 

LETTERING INC

TRACK UNIFORMS 01WEST CAMPUS 6,851.25 

P23-02740 SCHOOL INFO APP LLC SCHOOL INFO APP 

SUBSCRIPTION 2023-2024

01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

3,000.00 

P23-02741 CDW GOVERNMENT PRINTERS FOR SITE 01MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

2,162.22 

P23-02742 FOLLETT CONTENT 

SOLUTIONS LLC

ComputerTech Library 

Improvement (SP)) #11191577

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

3,037.50 

P23-02743 SCHOOL SPECIALTY WEIGHTED VESTS FOR 

PRESCHOOL SPED 

STUDENTS

01PONY EXPRESS 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

510.45 

P23-02744 FOLLETT CONTENT 

SOLUTIONS LLC

C. Wenzel Computer Tech Lib 

Improvement 3/23

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

4,995.16 

P23-02745 JM ENVIRONMENTAL INC EMERGENCY SEWER WASTE 

REMOVAL-CKM BOILER RM

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 59,021.00 

P23-02746 JM ENVIRONMENTAL INC EMERGENCY SEWER WASTE 

REMOVAL-CKM BASEMENT

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 92,698.00 

P23-02747 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ASB Fundraiser order 01ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

347.79 

P23-02748 CDW GOVERNMENT CLASSROOM TEACHING 

TOOLS/DOC CAMS

01HUBERT H BANCROFT 

ELEMENTARY

1,141.88 

P23-02749 SCOE FINANCIAL SERVICES SLY PARK DEPOSIT 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

1,400.00 

P23-02750 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM DESK FOR 

TEACHER ROOMH5 MR 

MUTH

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

790.45 

P23-02751 WA KRAPF INC MAGNATAG 

VISIBLE SYSTEMS

COURSE SCHEDULE 

BOARD, PRINCIPAL USE

01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,682.11 

P23-02752 MACKIN EDUCATIONAL 

RESOURCES

LIBRARY/CLASSROOM 

BOOKS FOR SUPP. INST./EL 

BOOKS

01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

14,913.00 

P23-02753 SDI INNOVATIONS INC dba 

SCHOOL  DATEBOOKS

Student Planners to support 

students

01GENEVIEVE DIDION 

ELEMENTARY

1,104.11 

P23-02754 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

SUPPLIES FOR TEACHER 

CLASSROOM SUPPLY 

CLOSET

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

368.06 

P23-02755 BOOKS EN MORE EL READING RESOURCE 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

349.55 

P23-02756 WESTERN PSYCHOLOGICAL 

SERVICES

PSYCHOLOGISTS ADOS-2 

SOFTWARE (LINE 223)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

3,200.31 

P23-02757 IMAGINE LEARNING Imagine Espanol 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 15,500.00 

P23-02758 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CLASSROOM TRASH 

GRABBERS

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

179.38 

P23-02759 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PRESCHOOL HJ B2 ATTN: 

SUZIE VANG

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

145.18 

P23-02760 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Playground Balls 01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

211.68 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 11 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02761 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ATHLETIC 

SUPPLIES/MATERIALS FOR 

STUDENTS

01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

214.10 

P23-02762 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES RECRUITMENT EVENTS 

ITEMS

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

217.46 

P23-02763 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES HEADPHONES 01CESAR CHAVEZ 

INTERMEDIATE

1,065.75 

P23-02764 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES/MATERIALS- 

HOMELESS SERVICES

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

5,856.41 

P23-02765 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STUDENT STORE - PT 3 01EDWARD KEMBLE 

ELEMENTARY

2,269.50 

P23-02766 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AT ORDER (LINE 

216-WATTENBERG)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

737.79 

P23-02767 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STUDENT STORE - PT 4 01EDWARD KEMBLE 

ELEMENTARY

1,746.75 

P23-02768 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AMAZON MENTAL HEALTH 

GREEN RIBBONS ORDER

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

2,110.76 

P23-02769 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

HEADSPHONES 09BOWLING GREEN 

ELEMENTARY

11,238.33 

P23-02771 DEMCO INC DEMCO LIB SHELVING FOR 

NEW LIB TECH COMP LAB

01CAROLINE WENZEL 

ELEMENTARY

13,166.80 

P23-02772 GILCHRIST GOLF CARS, LLC SECURITY GOLF CARTS 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 12,619.35 

P23-02774 PRINTWORKS INC UNIFORMS FOR VOLLEYBALL 

TEAM

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

525.65 

P23-02775 LUX BUS AMERICA CO FLDTRIP TRANSP - 6TH 

GRADE SAC PHILHARMONIC 

ORCH

01PETER BURNETT 

ELEMENTARY

1,380.88 

P23-02776 CHARTER AMERICA BUS CO 

THANDI ENTERPRISES INC

TRANSPORTATION FOR LSJ 

TO FED COURTHOUSE

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,067.50 

P23-02777 AMADOR STAGE LINES INC SLY PARK CAMP 

TRANSPORTATION

01PONY EXPRESS 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

2,148.48 

P23-02778 MUSICIANS FRIEND MUSIC SUPPLIES FOR 

STRINGS CLASS - YETI

01A. M. WINN - K-8 1,604.11 

P23-02779 SCHOLASTIC SCOLASTIC MAGAZINES FOR 

2023-2024

01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

2,753.95 

P23-02780 SACRAMENTO CHILDRENS 

MUSEUM

1ST GRADE CHILDERN'S 

MUSEUM PRESENTATION

01PETER BURNETT 

ELEMENTARY

450.00 

P23-02781 PACKAGING SOLUTIONS FEEDING FILM BELT AND 

KNIFE FOR VAI BAGGER

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

762.88 

P23-02782 EPIC SPORTS INC PE CLASSRROOM 

EQUIPMENT UPGRADE

01SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

371.53 

P23-02783 ALTA LANGUAGE SERVICES 

INC

ALTA LANGUAGE SVCS - 

INVOICE # IS625588

01MULTILINGUAL EDUCATION 

DEPT.

528.00 

P23-02784 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES 

LLC

IREADY 01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

12,357.20 

P23-02785 LEXIA LEARNING SYSTEMS 

LLC

LEXIA CORE 5 SITE LICENSE 01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

10,500.00 

P23-02786 STEWART SIGNS StewartSigns (Marquee) 01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

14,613.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 12 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02787 SACRAMENTO COUNTY 

OFFICE OF ED UCATION

SLYPARK CAMP-PONY 

EXPRESS

01PONY EXPRESS 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

12,895.00 

P23-02788 CLOVIS UNIFIED SCHOOL 

DISTRICT

TREAT AS CONFIRMING - 

OUTDOOR OVERNIGHT TRIP

01CESAR CHAVEZ 

INTERMEDIATE

18,382.00 

P23-02789 CP PRINTING DIRECT THERMAL LABELS 

FOR CK  CHEF TOM LUCERO

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

697.13 

P23-02790 B&H FOTO & ELECTRONICS 

CORP B& H PHOTO-VIDEO

CAMERAS FOR YEARBOOK 

CLASS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,575.05 

P23-02791 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ICE MAKER 01CESAR CHAVEZ 

INTERMEDIATE

104.85 

P23-02792 BAKE-BEST TRAYS LLC PET FOOD TRAY CENTRAL 

KITCHEN

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

3,201.35 

P23-02793 AMADOR STAGE LINES INC FIELD TRIP 

TRANSPORTATION

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,187.23 

P23-02794 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

INSULATED LINERS FOR 

CENTRAL KITCHEN

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

1,753.87 

P23-02795 CDW GOVERNMENT HP PROBOOK 450 G9 

NOTEBOOK

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

3,429.84 

P23-02796 CDW GOVERNMENT KEYBOARD AND MOUSE 

SETS

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

160.52 

P23-02797 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

INTERACTIVE BOARDS 01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

15,415.59 

P23-02798 CDW GOVERNMENT PURCHASE COMPUTERS 

FOR STUDENTS

01CAROLINE WENZEL 

ELEMENTARY

43,935.51 

P23-02799 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES 

LLC

PURCHASE OF 

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

45,700.00 

P23-02800 IXL LEARNING INC IXL INTRVNTION PRGRM 

MATH, ELA, SCIENCE, SOC 

STUD

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

13,100.00 

P23-02801 PEAK TECHNOLOGIES INC SERVICE MAINTENANCE FOR 

THE LM7 CHECK SEALER

01ACCOUNTING SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

2,219.40 

P23-02802 STUDIES WEEKLY INC ONLINE STUDENT 

CURRICULUM

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

1,430.25 

P23-02803 CDW GOVERNMENT ERATE YR26 - SWITCHES 21TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 8,793.94 

P23-02804 SCHOOL SPECIALTY INST MATERIALS FOR SP ED 

CLASS - CATHY STIDGER

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

581.94 

P23-02805 CDW GOVERNMENT LAPTOPS FOR CLASSROOMS 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

17,000.78 

P23-02806 KAHOOT! AS PROGRAM FOR TEACHERS 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 108.00 

P23-02807 NEWCASTLE SYSTEMS INC MIDRANGE POWERED 

CART.POWER SWAP 

NUCLEUS

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

10,454.55 

P23-02808 CDW GOVERNMENT ERATE YR26 - UPS 

EQUIPMENT & 

INSTALL/CONFIGURATION

21TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 18,728.01 

P23-02809 CDW GOVERNMENT REMEDY FORCE LICENSES 01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

7,009.14 

P23-02810 CDW GOVERNMENT PROOFPOINT EMAIL FRAUD 

DEFENSE 360 LIMITED

21TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 39,950.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 13 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02811 CDW GOVERNMENT TRAINING LAPTOP 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,651.10 

P23-02812 CDW GOVERNMENT CHROMEBOOKS FOR 

STUDENTS-SUPP. 

MATERIALS

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

49,796.88 

P23-02813 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES 

LLC

I-READY SOFTWARE 

LICENSE FOR RDG & MATH

01ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

16,705.00 

P23-02814 IXL LEARNING INC IXL LEARNING SITE LICENSE 01HEALTH PROFESSIONS 

HIGH SCHOOL

10,632.00 

P23-02815 CDW GOVERNMENT NEW DESKTOP FOR 

TEACHER - T.DOUGLAS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

932.38 

P23-02816 APPLE INC IPADS AND APPLE PENCILS - 

MATH

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

6,605.01 

P23-02817 SCHOOL SPECIALTY CHAIR CADDY TO HOLD 

CHAIRS FOR FAMILY EVENTS

01ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

556.63 

P23-02818 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

DIGITAL TIME CLOCK FOR 

TARDIES

01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

208.27 

P23-02819 RJ COMMERCIAL FLOORING 

CO

HIRAM JOHNSON 

PRESCHOOL B1, B2 & Office 

080819-TFU

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

44,214.28 

P23-02820 916 INK 916 Ink 01HEALTH PROFESSIONS 

HIGH SCHOOL

5,000.00 

P23-02821 APPLE INC IPAD, PENCIL AND CASE FOR 

IPAD

01ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

1,026.90 

P23-02822 RUMPLESTILTSKIN PRESS 

dba DRAM A NOTEBOOK

DRAMA NOTEBOOK 

SUBSCRIPT - DRAMA DEPT

01KIT CARSON INTL ACADEMY 99.96 

P23-02824 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STEM AND CODING 

MATERIALS FOR CHLOE 

STIDGER

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

219.39 

P23-02825 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STEM AND CODING 

MATERIALS FOR CHLOE 

STIDGER

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

544.21 

P23-02826 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STEM AND CODING 

MATERIALS FOR CHLOE 

STIDGER

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,299.86 

P23-02827 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STEM AND CODING 

MATERIALS FOR CHLOE 

STIDGER

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,459.60 

P23-02828 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STEM AND CODING 

MATERIALS FOR CHLOE 

STIDGER

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

623.55 

P23-02829 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STEM AND CODING 

MATERIALS FOR CHLOE 

STIDGER

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

707.42 

P23-02830 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STEM AND CODING 

MATERIALS FOR CHLOE 

STIDGER

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

354.61 

P23-02831 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES STEM AND CODING 

MATERIALS FOR CHLOE 

STIDGER

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

398.58 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 14 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02832 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CLASSROOM PROJECTOR 

FOR 5TH GRD

01A. M. WINN - K-8 255.50 

P23-02833 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES TECH ITEMS FOR 

RSP/IEP/504 ACCESS FOR 

STUDENTS

01A. M. WINN - K-8 243.26 

P23-02834 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CLASSROOM PROJECTOR 

FOR 4TH GRD

01A. M. WINN - K-8 316.63 

P23-02835 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES/MATERIALS - 

HOMELESS SERVICES

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

4,114.45 

P23-02836 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 

HOMELESS SERVICES

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

2,597.39 

P23-02837 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES/MATERIALS - 

HOMELESS SERVICES

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

2,771.66 

P23-02838 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 

(HOMELESS SERVICES)

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

2,733.47 

P23-02839 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES/MATERIALS - 

HOMELESS SERVICES

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

2,226.55 

P23-02840 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AT ORDER (LINE 

215-WATTENBERG)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

163.42 

P23-02841 UNITED RENTALS N.A. INC W CAMPUS- TEMP LIGHTING 

FOR FOOTBALL FIELDS

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 42,955.38 

P23-02842 GEARY PACIFIC CORP REPLACEMENT OF HVAC 

UNIT FOR JAMES MARSHALL

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 12,027.05 

P23-02843 SASE COMPANY LLC CONCRETE GRINDER FOR 

CARPENTRY SHOP

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 8,269.44 

P23-02844 ONE STOP TRUCK SHOP WINCHES FOR NEW F250 

TRUCK #1

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 5,257.95 

P23-02845 ONE STOP TRUCK SHOP WINCHES FOR NEW F250 

TRUCK #2

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 5,257.95 

P23-02846 ONE STOP TRUCK SHOP SHELVING & STORAGE UNIT 

FOR VEHICLE #G2 22

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 8,275.76 

P23-02847 ONE STOP TRUCK SHOP SHELVING & STORAGE UNIT 

FOR VEHICLE #G2 44

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 8,275.76 

P23-02848 DFS FLOORING LP GYM WALK OFF MATS - WEST 

CAMPUS

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 14,652.22 

P23-02849 GABRIEL F GARCIA REPAIR PAINT SHOP VAN 

#202

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 3,190.16 

P23-02850 BCI BURKE CO LLC SLIDE REPLACEMENT 

@HOLLYWOOD PARK

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 7,536.38 

P23-02851 HEIECK SUPPLY BLACK IRON PRESS KIT - 

PLUMBING SHOP TOOL

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 2,672.78 

P23-02852 THE SHADE CARE CO INC 0305-409 JMARSHALL ADMIN 

ROOF TREE REMOVAL

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

5,570.00 

P23-02853 WIREMAN FENCE 

PRODUCTS

FRONT FENCE @ BOWLING 

GREEN McCOY

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 5,829.02 

P23-02854 HERC RENTALS INC CONFIRMING TEMP 

LIGHTING FOR SPORT 

FIELDS

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 31,903.44 

P23-02855 GILCHRIST GOLF CARS, LLC USED GOLF CART FOR 

CAMPUS USE

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

8,494.46 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 15 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02856 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES, ABE 

LINCOLN - RM D1

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

624.57 

P23-02857 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES, 

PACIFIC PRESCHOOL - 18

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

2,579.20 

P23-02858 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES, B.G. 

MCCOY PRESCHOOL - RM 

OH6

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,842.56 

P23-02859 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES, ED. 

KEMBLE PRESCHOOL - RM 

P2

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,176.19 

P23-02860 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES, MLK 

JR PRESCHOOL - RM 12

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

973.94 

P23-02861 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES, 

LEATAATA PRESCHOOL - RM 

1

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

774.97 

P23-02862 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES, OAK 

RIDGE PRESCHOOL - RM 1

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

586.41 

P23-02863 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES, 

ETHEL BAKER PRESCHOOL - 

RM 29

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

735.06 

P23-02864 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES, J. 

BIDWELL PRESCHOOL - RM 

22

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

424.54 

P23-02865 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CAREERS WITH CHILDREN 

SPRING PURCHASE 2 22-23

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

237.68 

P23-02866 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,365.10 

P23-02867 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM MATERIALS 01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

791.04 

P23-02868 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

SUPPLIES FOR SPECIAL ED 

CLASSROOM - J. JUTOVSKI

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

193.59 

P23-02869 NSAV SOLUTIONS REPLACEMENT PROJECTOR 

BULBS

01FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 440.44 

P23-02871 BOOKS EN MORE BOOKS FOR ENGLISH DEPT 01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

332.34 

P23-02872 BOOKS EN MORE ELD READING RESOURCE - 

COEY E10

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

479.14 

P23-02873 BOOKS EN MORE Staff Development Books 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,083.24 

P23-02874 BOOKS EN MORE 2ND GRADE LITERATURE 

CIRCLES

01OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

480.12 

P23-02875 BOOKS EN MORE FIRST GRADE CLASSROOM 

BOOKS

01OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

1,166.35 

P23-02876 BOOKS EN MORE READING RESOURCE - BLIA 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,801.47 

P23-02877 BOOKS EN MORE 4TH GRADE LIBRARY 01OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

694.35 

P23-02878 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES, 

CABRILLO PRESCHOOL - RM 

K

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,992.14 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 16 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02879 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES, HJ 

PRESCHOOL WRAP - RM B1

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

2,018.14 

P23-02880 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

CARPET, FTHR KB KENNY 

PRESCHOOL - RM L3

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

597.04 

P23-02881 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

TABLES, WOODBINE 

PRESCHOOL - RM 23

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,269.11 

P23-02882 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

CLASSROOM MATERIALS, 

CABRILLO PRESCHOOL - RM 

K

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

549.21 

P23-02883 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES, B.G 

MCCOY PRESCHOOL - RM 

OH6

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,430.88 

P23-02884 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

LAKESHORE SPED 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

238.45 

P23-02885 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

WASHINGTON PRESCHOOL 

ROOM P ATTN: MR. WILL

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,257.15 

P23-02886 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

ELC DEPT. AT SERNA 

CENTER

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

2,609.13 

P23-02887 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

PURCHASE OF CLASSROOM 

SUPPLIES

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

420.24 

P23-02888 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

OAKRIDGE PRESCHOOL RM 

1 ATTN CHONG VANG

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,499.66 

P23-02889 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

GOLDEN EMPIRE 

PRESCHOOL ATTN: MARIA 

AVETISOV

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

868.91 

P23-02890 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

HEADPHONES 01ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

9,786.52 

P23-02891 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

SPARE HEADPHONES 01ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

3,262.17 

P23-02892 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

WOOBLE CUSHION FOR 

PRIMARY STUDENTS

01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

774.52 

P23-02893 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

1ST GRADE: SMALL GROUP 

LEARNING GAMES

01OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

1,277.37 

P23-02894 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

KINDERGARTEN WORKSHOP 

LEARNING GAMES

01OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

626.33 

P23-02895 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

SPED ALLOCATED 

FUNDS,NEDA KHOI(RSP)

01MARTIN L. KING JR 

ELEMENTARY

141.30 

P23-02896 THE HOME DEPOT PRO HJ PRESCHOOL ATT: SUZIE 

VANG RM B2

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

177.56 

P23-02897 THE HOME DEPOT PRO MATERIALS FOR 

CLASSROOM

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

216.53 

P23-02898 THE HOME DEPOT PRO 7FT  BLACK 4-PANEL ROOM 

DVIVDER FOR TESTING

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

348.79 

P23-02899 THE HOME DEPOT PRO ELC Department Tables for 

Recruitment and Events

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

239.16 

P23-02900 VIRCO INC LUNCH TABLES 01SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

17,544.52 

P23-02901 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

E.WARREN  ATTN: SUZIE 

SARABA

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

228.85 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 17 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02902 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

NICHOLAS PRESCHOOL 

ATTN: THERESA PEREZ

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

140.52 

P23-02903 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

CAJ SKILLS ATTN CHRISTINA 

SETZER

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,252.27 

P23-02904 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

PRESCHOOL ATTN: YVETTE 

LEE

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

109.17 

P23-02905 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

Supplies for Abe Lincoln 

Preschool - Rm D1

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

797.44 

P23-02906 CDW GOVERNMENT Notebook 01MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

2,219.09 

P23-02907 KE2 THERM SOLUTIONS KE2 LICENSE FOR 

EQUIPMENT PROGRAMS

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

840.00 

P23-02908 CDW GOVERNMENT CLASSROOM PROJECTORS 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

3,556.13 

P23-02909 QUIZIZZ INC QUIZIZZ - LEARNING 

PLATFORM LICENSE

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

6,525.00 

P23-02910 IXL LEARNING INC IXL SITE LICENSE - MATH 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

10,560.00 

P23-02911 J WESTON WALCH 

PUBLISHER

Walch Integrated Math online 1 

yr licenses

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

2,880.00 

P23-02912 CDW GOVERNMENT COMPUTERS & MONITORS 

FOR NEW PAYROLL 

EMPLOYEES

01EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 3,266.86 

P23-02913 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

COLOR PRINTER FOR 

COUNSELING DEPARTMENT

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

433.91 

P23-02914 SAN DIEGO COUNTY OFFICE 

OF EDU CATION

RED HERRING 

SUBSCRIPTION

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 2,280.00 

P23-02915 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PC SPEAKERS AND WALL 

CLOCK FOR CINDY TAO

01ACCOUNTING SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

81.54 

P23-02916 SACRAMENTO COUNTY 

OFFICE OF ED  FINANCIAL 

SERVICES

WIDE AREA NETWORK 

CONNECTION - SCOE

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 2,600.00 

P23-02917 CA DEPT OF GENERAL 

SERVICES DI VISION OF 

STATE ARCHITECT

0262-461 NICHOLAS 

CONSTRUCTION PLAN 

REVIEW FEE

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

397,500.00 

P23-02918 AIRGAS USA LLC MFG _BOOKSTORE  

SUPPLIES_WELDING KITS

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

5,428.18 

P23-02919 ACP DIRECT STUDENT HEADPHONES 

FOR EL STUDENTS/TESTING

01ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

1,322.21 

P23-02920 PRECISION PRODUCTS 

GROUP, INC

PHARMACY 

PROGRAM_INSTRUCTIONAL

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

259.66 

P23-02921 CDW GOVERNMENT MULTI-FACTOR 

AUTHENTICATION KEY FOBS

21TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 16,312.50 

P23-02922 CDW GOVERNMENT Chromebooks 01ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

31,964.21 

P23-02923 APPLE INC PURCHASE TECHNOLOGY 

FOR CLASSROOM TEACHING

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

17,363.03 

P23-02924 CINTAS CORP VN_UNIFORM 

ORDER_BOOKSTORE

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

4,456.85 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 18 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02925 CINTAS CORP MA_UNIFORM 

ORDER_BOOKSTORE

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

2,563.26 

P23-02926 APPLE INC COMPUTERS TEACHERS 

USE IN CLASSRMS

01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

11,768.56 

P23-02927 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

Newline Interactive Boards 09NEW TECH 40,313.14 

P23-02928 SCHOOL OUTFITTERS DBA 

FAT CATA LOG

CHAIRS AND TABLES FOR 

MATH

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 6,199.23 

P23-02929 SCHOOL SPECIALTY WHITEBOARD FOR 

CLASSROOM, HOLT

01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,595.40 

P23-02930 GOPHER SPORT INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 

PE

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

5,502.32 

P23-02931 BLICK ART MATERIALS LLC ART SUPPLIES 01CESAR CHAVEZ 

INTERMEDIATE

330.12 

P23-02932 SCHOOL SPECIALTY PURCHASING OF 

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

130.32 

P23-02933 SCHOOL SPECIALTY CLASSROOM DIVIDERS 01ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

3,327.66 

P23-02934 SCHOOL SPECIALTY MOBILE DESKS FLEXIBLE 

FURNITURE

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

4,565.74 

P23-02935 SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY 

INC

WHEELCHAIR  - HEALTH 

ROOM

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

462.83 

P23-02936 BOOKS EN MORE CLASSROOM LIBRARY - ENG 

- GREEN D5

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

253.47 

P23-02937 BOOKS EN MORE CLASSROOM LIBRARY - 

HOEKSTRA D7

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

259.76 

P23-02938 BOOKS EN MORE CLASSROOM LIBRARY - 

OGAWA H3

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

248.56 

P23-02939 BOOKS EN MORE CLASSROOM LIBRARY - 

SCRIVNER 221

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

243.44 

P23-02940 BOOKS EN MORE CLASSROOM LIBRARY - 

SYNHORST H6

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

231.14 

P23-02941 BOOKS EN MORE CLASSROOM LIBRARY - 

SESSA E6

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

233.91 

P23-02942 BOOKS EN MORE CLASSROOM LIBRARY - 

VINGAN  C6

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

239.07 

P23-02943 BOOKS EN MORE CLASSROOM LIBRARY - JEFF 

JOHNSON  225

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

240.41 

P23-02944 THE HOME DEPOT PRO PROMOTE SEL, SCHOOL 

CLIMATE AND CULTURE

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

946.54 

P23-02945 THE HOME DEPOT PRO TECHNOLOGY FOR 

CLASSROOM USE

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

594.61 

P23-02946 SCHOOL OUTFITTERS DBA 

FAT CATA LOG

WOBBLE STOOLS FOR 

FLEXIBLE SEATING

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

474.54 

P23-02947 CDW GOVERNMENT PERSONAL PA SYSTEM FOR 

FAMILY EVENTS

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,619.02 

P23-02948 ZAJIC APPLIANCE SERVICE 

INC

REFRIGERATOR + 2 FILTERS 01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

2,448.35 

P23-02949 DOCUSIGN INC DOCUSIGN SUBSCRIPTION 

FOR DISTRICT CONTRACTS

01PURCHASING SERVICES 2,953.20 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 19 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-02950 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

VN, VNP, & NA OFFICE 

SUPPLIES

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

740.94 

P23-02951 SCHOOL SPECIALTY STUDENT CHAIRS 

INTERVENTION CLASSROOM

01ABRAHAM LINCOLN 

ELEMENTARY

1,583.29 

P23-02952 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

ESL_PRINTER_VICTORIA 

HAWES

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

776.11 

P23-02953 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

710.28 

P23-02954 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES WALKIE TALKIES 09BOWLING GREEN 

ELEMENTARY

456.68 

P23-02956 DREAMBOX LEARNING INC MULTI-YEAR DREAMBOX SITE 

LICENSE

01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

8,850.00 

P23-02957 IXL LEARNING INC IXL RENEWAL QUOTE 2023 

-2026 SCHOOL YR

01CAROLINE WENZEL 

ELEMENTARY

10,120.00 

P23-02958 CENGAGE LEARNING Big Ideas Math 1900 licenses 

digtal access 1 yr

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

19,760.00 

P23-02959 MCGRAW HILL COMPANIES ACTIVELY LEARN - ELA, 

SCIECE & SOCIAL STUDIES

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

14,732.00 

P23-02960 SCHOOL SPECIALTY COLOR PRINTER: ALL 

STAFF/SUPPORT CLASS 

PROJECTS

01A. M. WINN - K-8 1,676.83 

P23-02961 GOPHER SPORT SDC PRIMARY MOVEMENT 

CLASS

01A. M. WINN - K-8 382.67 

P23-02962 GOPHER SPORT GOPHER EQUIPMENTS FOR 

STUDENT

01PONY EXPRESS 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

5,072.09 

P23-02963 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

TK Playground Equipment 01PARKWAY ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

977.15 

P23-02964 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

RM5 LAKESHORE 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

345.94 

P23-02965 GOPHER SPORT SUPPLIES FOR MOVEMENT 

CLASS

01A. M. WINN - K-8 2,718.12 

P23-02966 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

CLASSROOM SUPPLIES FOR 

JOHN STILL - IRINA

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

513.16 

P23-02967 DEMCO INC LIBRARY MATERIALS 01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH 

SCHOOL

207.29 

P23-02968 DEMCO INC Demco Library & Curriculum 

supplies

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

199.01 

P23-02969 BARNES & NOBLE 

BOOKSTORES INC ACCT 

5858824

BOOKS FOR CLASSROOM 

TEACHING

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

1,824.89 

P23-02970 BARNES & NOBLE 

BOOKSTORES INC ACCT 

5858824

DICTIONARES FOR 

CLASSROOM LEARNING

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

332.09 

P23-02971 CORWIN PRESS INC BOOKS FOR PRINCIPAL AND 

PROFESSIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT

01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

403.98 

P23-02972 VENTRIS LEARNING LLC RSP RESOURCES 01JAMES W MARSHALL 

ELEMENTARY

95.43 

P23-02975 E-BUILDER INC CONSTRUCTION 

MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

84,634.76 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 20 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

TB23-00011 FOLLETT SCHOOL 

SOLUTIONS

Waldorf 2023-2024 curriculum 01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

860.43 

Total 4,304,771.20 Total Number of  POs 459 

Fund Recap

Fund Description PO Count Amount

01 General Fund 341 2,424,151.22 

09 Charter School 15 85,970.05 

11 Adult Education 10 29,762.95 

12 Child Development 45 113,398.06 

13 Cafeteria 20 304,908.95 

21 Building Fund 28 1,346,579.97 

Total 4,304,771.20 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 21 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO Changes 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

B23-00002 770,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 180,000.00-

B23-00004 175,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 50,000.00-

B23-00026 14,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 4,000.00 

B23-00039 8,168.16 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 6,504.09 

B23-00085 5,500.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 2,000.00 

B23-00090 11,831.84 01-5690 General Fund/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 6,668.16-

B23-00117 25,000.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 5,000.00 

B23-00119 309,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 170,000.00-

B23-00128 343,153.30 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 28,000.00 

B23-00134 795,784.12 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 150,000.00 

B23-00143 106,000.00 13-4326 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Paper Supplies 45,000.00 

B23-00158 10,580.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 2,580.00 

B23-00195 1,819.62 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 319.62 

B23-00202 9,680.38 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 319.62-

B23-00206 .00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 5,000.00-

B23-00240 45,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 8,000.00 

B23-00243 37,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,500.00 

B23-00248 1,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 500.00 

B23-00259 6,500.00 13-4325 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Equipment Parts 2,276.26 

B23-00265 19,600.00 01-5690 General Fund/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 500.00 

13-5690 Cafeteria/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 2,000.00 

2,500.00 Total PO B23-00265 

B23-00271 17,500.00 13-5540 Cafeteria/Waste Removal 4,641.39 

B23-00276 11,762.00 13-5690 Cafeteria/Other Contracts, Rents, Leases 12,000.00-

B23-00287 3,100.00 13-4325 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Equipment Parts 464.49 

B23-00304 136,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 37,000.00 

B23-00305 406.95 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 9,186.10-

B23-00310 90,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 15,950.00 

B23-00313 5,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,000.00 

B23-00314 976.92 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 23.08-

B23-00316 6,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,500.00-

B23-00319 12,528.08 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,528.08 

B23-00323 .00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,500.00-

B23-00335 649,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 100,000.00 

B23-00336 180,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 30,000.00-

B23-00421 19,200.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 11,700.00 

B23-00433 12,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 7,000.00 

B23-00437 2,300.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 500.00 

B23-00468 768.70 01-5930 General Fund/Telephones/Cell Phones 24,231.30-

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 22 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO Changes (continued) 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

B23-00495 53,750.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 250.00 

B23-00499 154,701.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 16,000.00 

B23-00510 85,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 25,000.00-

B23-00511 86,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 31,000.00 

B23-00515 173,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 16,000.00 

B23-00521 6,800.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 42.67 

B23-00529 2,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 200.00 

B23-00562 500.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 100.00 

B23-00568 39,000.00 12-5560 Child Development/Laundry and Dry Cleaning 15,000.00 

B23-00570 59,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 14,000.00 

B23-00581 10,432.96 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 898.93 

B23-00593 96,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 15,805.27 

B23-00621 101,360.96 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 16,504.48 

B23-00629 183,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 17,000.00 

B23-00689 94,333.80 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 30,666.20-

B23-00704 91,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 31,000.00 

B23-00733 18,000.00 01-5832 General Fund/Transportation-Field Trips 8,000.00 

B23-00737 24,000.00 01-5832 General Fund/Transportation-Field Trips 4,000.00 

B23-00756 107,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 77,000.00 

B23-00759 7,840.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 7,000.00 

B23-00771 1,530.35 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 28.53 

B23-00772 1,530.35 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 28.53 

B23-00779 1,530.35 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 28.53 

B23-00780 1,530.35 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 28.53 

B23-00784 1,530.35 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 28.53 

B23-00792 1,530.35 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 28.53 

B23-00795 102,294.44 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 21,000.00 

B23-00810 62,394.27 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 5,289.27 

B23-00816 6,980.80 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 5,000.00-

B23-00817 50,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 20,000.00 

B23-00827 1,530.35 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 28.53 

B23-00828 70,302.00 01-5810 General Fund/Tickets/Fees/Regis.for Parents 357.00 

B23-00832 196,881.00 01-5100 General Fund/Subagreements for Services abo 81,881.00 

B23-00837 32,481.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 2,689.00-

CHB23-00001 20,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

CHB23-00014 1,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 300.00 

CHB23-00017 40,000.00 13-4320 Cafeteria/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 7,000.00 

CHB23-00018 6,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 5,000.00 

CHB23-00020 17,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 7,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 23 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO Changes (continued) 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

CHB23-00024 3,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

CHB23-00029 24,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 7,000.00 

CHB23-00030 24,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 12,000.00-

CHB23-00087 14,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 10,000.00 

CHB23-00089 23,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

CHB23-00104 800.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 300.00 

CHB23-00216 7,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

CHB23-00217 9,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

CHB23-00224 23,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 7,000.00 

CHB23-00226 25,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

CHB23-00234 20,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

CHB23-00262 2,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 500.00 

CHB23-00271 2,565.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 565.00 

CHB23-00275 18,500.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 4,500.00 

CHB23-00287 16,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 2,000.00 

CHB23-00289 3,549.06 09-4310 Charter School/Instructional Materials/Suppli 2,049.06 

CHB23-00293 17,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 7,000.00 

CHB23-00297 11,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

CHB23-00300 13,800.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 2,000.00 

CHB23-00325 9,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,500.00-

CHB23-00333 2,500.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 1,300.00 

CHB23-00365 6,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 1,000.00 

CHB23-00366 3,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 2,000.00 

CHB23-00370 13,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

CS22-00165 594,000.00 13-5800 Cafeteria/Other Contractual Expenses 120,000.00 

CS23-00077 199,000.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 100,000.00 

CS23-00257 5,685.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 1,575.00 

CS23-00361 151,646.00 21-6200 Building Fund/Buildings (Improvements) 76,836.00 

CS23-00386 109,299.00 01-5100 General Fund/Subagreements for Services abo 31,499.00 

01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 25,000.00 

56,499.00 Total PO CS23-00386 

N23-00020 8,000.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 2,000.00 

P22-02857 23,787.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 100.00 

P23-00339 290.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 145.00 

P23-01086 1,502.49 09-4310 Charter School/Instructional Materials/Suppli 97.83 

P23-01206 1,565.77 09-4310 Charter School/Instructional Materials/Suppli 335.71-

P23-01792 40.82 12-4310 Child Development/Instructional Materials/Suppli 383.59-

P23-01843 520.04 12-4320 Child Development/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 118.74-

P23-01899 .00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 1,368.95-

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 24 of 25



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 03/15/2023 - 04/14/2023 ***

PO Changes (continued) 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

P23-02200 275.14 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 25.16 

P23-02341 371.40 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 63.92 

P23-02426 1,425.48 12-4310 Child Development/Instructional Materials/Suppli 22.77-

P23-02427 1,095.30 12-4310 Child Development/Instructional Materials/Suppli 19.71-

P23-02428 1,539.36 12-4310 Child Development/Instructional Materials/Suppli 6.01-

P23-02429 911.46 12-4310 Child Development/Instructional Materials/Suppli 19.71-

P23-02432 1,340.70 12-4310 Child Development/Instructional Materials/Suppli 15.66-

P23-02434 1,056.57 12-4310 Child Development/Instructional Materials/Suppli 19.72-

P23-02436 1,130.64 12-4310 Child Development/Instructional Materials/Suppli 19.72-

P23-02443 1,023.89 12-4310 Child Development/Instructional Materials/Suppli 30.00-

P23-02453 183.79 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 54.38 

P23-02468 2,170.13 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 83.08-

P23-02525 564.79 12-4310 Child Development/Instructional Materials/Suppli 32.62 

P23-02533 1,086.29 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 92.23 

P23-02537 55.81 09-4310 Charter School/Instructional Materials/Suppli 3.50 

Total PO Changes 735,804.13 

Information is further limited to: (Minimum Amount = (999,999.99))

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), May  2 2023  

1:57PM

Page 25 of 25



Page 1 of 2 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 12.1j 

 
 

Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3322: Resolution of Intention to Convey Easement 

Entitlements to the City of Sacramento for a Public Sidewalk in Front of 
Ethel Phillips Elementary  

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: _____)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 

Division:  Facility Support Services 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3322, which provides notice of a Public Hearing 
and the adoption of the City of Sacramento Public Sidewalk Easement Entitlements at its 
regularly scheduled Board Meeting on June 8, 2023. 
 
Background/Rationale:  The City of Sacramento is seeking to acquire a permanent Easement 
for the widening of the sidewalk over a portion of Ethel Phillips School, located at 2930 21st 
Avenue, in the City of Sacramento. The City is proposing the project to enhance public safety by 
installing a wider public sidewalk which will provide adequate walkways to Ethel Phillips from 
Franklin Boulevard.   
 
Financial Considerations:  City of Sacramento will pay the District $11,700 for the Easement.  
 
LCAP Goal(s): Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:  

1. Resolution No. 3322 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: NA 

Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 

  Nathaniel Browning, Director I of Facilities  

Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3322 

 
RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO CONVEY EASEMENT ENTITLEMENTS TO THE 

CITY OF SACRAMENTO FOR A PUBLIC SIDEWALK IN FRONT OF ETHEL 
PHILLIPS ELEMENTARY 

 
WHEREAS, the Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) owns the property at Ethel 

Phillips Elementary School located at 2930 21st Avenue, in the City of Sacramento; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Sacramento is seeking to acquire a permanent easement (“Easement”) for the 
installation of a wider public sidewalk over a portion of the property along 21st Avenue; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Education Code, the District must adopt this Resolution of Intention, by a 

two-thirds vote, and establish a time at a subsequent Board meeting to hold a public hearing in order to consider 
adoption of a resolution, by the same vote, for the actual approval of the utility entitlements (the “SMUD 
Easement Entitlements Resolution”); and 

 
WHEREAS, a widened public sidewalk improves public safety and the walkability to school; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Sacramento desires to acquire an area of approximately 1,312 square feet for 
said Easement for $11,700. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of 

Education which finds and determines as follows: 
 

1. Adopts the foregoing recitals as true and correct. 
 

2. Pursuant to Education Code 17557, hereby determines that the Board will hold a public hearing 
and consider the adoption of the City of Sacramento Public Sidewalk Easement Entitlements Resolution at its 
regularly scheduled Board meeting on June 8, 2023 at 6:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as the matter may be 
heard on the agenda. 

 
3. Authorizes the Superintendent, or his designee, to provide notice of the Board meeting set forth 

above as required by law. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on this 
18th day of May 2023,  by the following vote: 
 

AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSTAIN:   
ABSENT:   

 

ATTESTED TO 
 
 

 

Jorge A. Aguilar                                                                                       Chinua Rhodes 
Secretary of the Board of Education                                                        President of the Board of Education  
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                   00592577.DOC 


	1 May 18 2023FINAL_
	9.1 Agenda Cover Sheet State Seal of Biliteracy State Seal of Civic Engageme.._
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	9.2 Approve the Recognition of the 25th Anniversary of Parent Teacher Home Visits Res No 3312
	9.2 USE BR Cover Sheet 2023 May Mental Health Awareness Month
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	9.2.1 USE PULLED 9.1.2 PTHV 2 25th Anniversary Board Resolution Final. doc

	9.3 CS Asian Amer - Pacific Islander Heritage Month
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	9.4 Approve Res No 3319 Recognition of May is Mental Health Awareness Month
	9.4 BR Cover Sheet 2023 May Mental Health Awareness Month
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	9.4.1 2023 May is Mental Health Awareness Month  Reso DRAFT

	9.5 Board Cover _ District_Investments_BMtg 5_4_23
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	10.1 Carbon Neutral Goals and Guidelines for SCUSD Buildings
	10.1 Cover Sheet-Carbon Neutral Goals and Guidelines for SCUSD Buildings
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	10.1.1 Exec Summary_Carbon Neutral Goals and Guidelines_v2
	10.1.2 Energy and Carbon Goals for Sacramento City School District_Final
	10.1.3 Energy and Carbon Requirements for SCSUD_final_4.18.2023
	DIstrict Energy and Carbon Emissions Goals  The district is committed to leveraging each opportunity to further progress toward achieving these goals. This includes bond-funded new construction and modernization projects, facilities retrofit projects ...
	Portfolio Level Goals:
	 Will be PV-ready (where site appropriate),
	 Will reduce life cycle impacts associated with high embodied carbon materials wherever possible,
	 Will prioritize local products, manufacturers, and contractors to reduce carbon impacts in the supply chain,
	 Will utilize low refrigerants that minimize (if not eliminate) global warming impacts,
	(2) All major modernization projects:
	(3) All school facility retrofits will improve the site Energy Use Intensity (EUI) by 20-50% from a 2018-2019 baseline:
	 Retrofitted systems should prioritize a shift to all-electric.
	 All retrofitted systems must be the most efficient equipment available whether gas or electric.




	10.2 Revision to Board Policies 0420, 0420.1, 0420.2, and 0420.3 Charter Schools
	10.2 Agenda Cover Sheet_May 18_Goldman
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	10.2.2 Executive Summary_May18_Goldman
	10.2.3 1a_AR0420.4
	Sacramento City USD

	10.2.4 1b_AR0420.4_Redline
	Sacramento City USD

	10.2.5 2a_BP0420.4
	Sacramento City USD

	10.2.6 2b_BP0420.4_Redline
	Sacramento City USD

	10.2.7 3a_BP0420.41_ Charter School Oversight
	Policy Reference Disclaimer:

	10.2.8 3b_BP0420.41_ Charter School Oversight_Redline
	CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
	Policy Reference Disclaimer:


	10.2.9 4a_BP0420.42_ Charter School Renewal
	Policy Reference Disclaimer:

	10.2.10 4b_BP0420.42_ Charter School Renewal_Redline
	CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
	Policy Reference Disclaimer:


	10.2.11 5a_BP0420.43_ Charter School Revocation
	Policy Reference Disclaimer:

	10.2.12 5b_BP0420.43_ Charter School Revocation_Redline
	CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
	Policy Reference Disclaimer:



	12.1a Approve Res No 3320 Chavez Kemble Elementary School Rebuild Project Mitigated Negative Declaration MND
	12.1a Cover Sheet-CEQA MND_20230518
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	12.1a.1 Reso for Chavez-Kemble MND
	12.1a.3 SCUS-03.0_MMRP
	MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM
	Chavez-Kemble Elementary School Rebuild Project
	CEQA ACTION. Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND)

	12.1a.4 SCUSD-03.0_Response to Comments
	1. Introduction
	1.1 Background
	1.2 Document Format
	1.3 CEQA REQUIREMENTS REGARDING COMMENTS AND RESPONSES

	2. Response to Comments


	12.1b Grants Entitlements and Other Income Agreements
	12.1b USE 5-18-23 FINAL
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	12.1b.1 SA23-00543 Lionakis LBHS Softball Baseball
	EXHIBIT “A” – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT A-1
	EXHIBIT “B” – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES B-1

	This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of May 18, 2023, between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (“District”), and Lionakis (“Architect”) (collectively “Parties”), for the following projec...
	New Softball Field and Baseball Field Improvements on the campus of Luther Burbank High School, 3500 Florin Road, Sacramento, CA 95823
	Article 1. Definitions
	1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:
	1.1.1. Agreement:  The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference.
	1.1.2. Architect:  The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect.  The term Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge on this Project.
	1.1.3. As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”):  Any document prepared and submitted by District’s Contractor(s) that details on a Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Docu...
	1.1.4. Bid Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State Architect (“DSA”) has approved and that the District can use to go out to bid for construction of the Project.
	1.1.5. Conforming Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, issued during the Bidding Phase.  The Architect shall ensure that DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that ...
	1.1.6. Construction Budget:  The total amount of funds indicated by the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, administration, and financing.
	1.1.7. Construction Change Documents (“CCD”):  The documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents.
	1.1.8. Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with this Agreement.  The Construction Cost Budget does not in...
	1.1.9. Construction Manager:  The District’s representative on the Project if the District retains a construction manager, project manager, or owner’s representative.
	1.1.10. Contractor:  One or more licensed contractors under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project.
	1.1.11. Consultant(s):  Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect.
	1.1.12. District:  The Sacramento City Unified School District.
	1.1.13. DSA:  The Division of the State Architect.
	1.1.14. Extra Services:  District-authorized services outside of the scope in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursables not included in Architect’s Fee.
	1.1.15. Laboratory of Record: The District-designated laboratory(ies) for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required testing.
	1.1.16. Project:  District’s Luther Burbank New Softball Field and Baseball Field Improvements Project at 3500 Florin Road, Sacramento, CA 95823.
	1.1.17. Record Drawings:  A final set of drawings prepared by the Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.
	1.1.18. Service(s):  All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the Architect is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of t...
	1.1.19. Visually Verify: To verify to the fullest extent possible by physical observation and reasonable investigation and without any destructive action.

	Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect
	2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in Exhibit “A,” commencing with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District representative.  Architect’s Services will be completed in accordance with the schedule attached as Exhibi...
	2.2. Architect and its Consultants shall provide Services for a Project: (i) using its professional skill and judgment; (ii) acting with due care and in accordance with respective applicable standards of care under California law for those providing s...
	2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a competitive bid process.  District reserves its right to use alternative delivery methods and the Architect’s scope of work may be adjusted accordingly.
	2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect’s expense, Consultant(s) to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil engineers; landscape...
	2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or management of other work related t...
	2.9. Architect shall coordinate the work of the District’s DSA project inspector(s) (“Project Inspector(s)”) and the Laboratory of Record.  Architect shall provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided by the Laboratory of Record.
	2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its professional skill and attention.  Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions (“Contract Documents”) and ...
	2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests for Information (“RFI”), providing R...

	Article 3. Architect Staff
	3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the skills and expertise of key individuals.
	3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect’s firm shall be associated with the Project in the following capacities:
	Principal In Charge:  Laura Knauss
	3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be employed by Architect.  In either case, the District shall be allowed to interview and approve repl...
	3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with one acceptable to ...
	3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement and that no person hav...
	3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed personnel shall be in “responsib...

	Article 4. Schedule of Services
	Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in Exhibit “A,” so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with the schedule...
	Article 5. Construction Cost Budget
	5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District’s established Construction Cost Budget and Project scope.  In accordance with Exhibit “A,” the Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget for th...
	5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in Exhibit “A,” including all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not exceed the Construct...
	5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent (5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or
	5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or
	5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the county in which the District is located, in so far as these ha...


	Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment
	6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this Agreement an amount equal to the following (“Fee”):

	An amount not to exceed Three Hundred Ninety Thousand Dollars ($390,000) based on the rates set forth in Exhibit “D.” Reimbursable expenses are not expected to exceed $390,000.  Reimbursable expenses are not expected to exceed $19,500.
	6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit “D.”
	6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in accordance with Exhibit “D.”
	6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect’s error or omission.
	6.5. The Architect’s Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in Exhibit “D.”
	6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect’s Fee, the Architect’s Fee may be adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced by the District in accordance with this Agreement.
	6.7. Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable to the District in acco...

	Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes
	Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed.  If any ...

	Article 8. Ownership of Data
	8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, estimates and other docum...
	8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared p...
	8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting Technology (“CADD”) (e.g., AutoCAD).  Architect shall deliver to District all drawings in DWG format.  As to...
	8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a “hard” copy of reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect produces the CADD information....
	8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter “Instruments of Service”), which the Dis...
	8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the Project, in hard copy, reproducible format.
	8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings that are part of the Contract Documents.
	8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and exterior elevations of the Project.
	8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports prepared by the Architect under this Agreement.
	8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.

	8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed documents without Architect’s knowledge or participation or both, the District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and shall hold Architect har...

	Article 9. Termination of Contract
	9.1. District’s Request for Assurances:  If District at any time reasonably believes that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances from Arc...
	9.2. District’s Termination of Architect for Cause:  If Architect fails to perform Architect’s duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect’s material obligations under this...
	9.3. District’s Termination of Architect for Convenience:  District shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own convenience.  In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may invoice District and Dist...
	9.4. Architect’s Termination of Agreement for Cause:  Architect has the right to terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of ...
	9.5. Effect on Pre-Termination Services:  Except as indicated in this Article, termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such terminat...
	9.6. Ceasing Services upon Termination:  If, at any time in the progress of the Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the District of such termi...
	9.7. Project Suspension:  If the District suspends the Project for more than one hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is resumed, the schedule...

	Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability
	Article 11. Fingerprinting and Other On-Site Requirements
	11.1. The District has determined that Architect, its Consultants and their employees shall not interact with pupils, except under the immediate supervision and control of the pupil’s parent or guardian or a school employee, so that the fingerprinting...
	11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19.  Further, except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and Architect’s personnel shall con...

	Article 12. Responsibilities of the District
	12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the Architect’s Services.
	12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s documents.  Failure to provide such notice shal...
	12.3. The District shall furnish the services of a hazardous material consultant or other consultants when such services are requested in writing by Architect and deemed necessary by the District or are requested by the District. These services shall ...
	12.4. The District shall timely provide to the Architect all relevant information in its possession regarding the project that is necessary for performance of Architect’s services.

	Article 13. Liability of District
	13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event s...
	13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to Architect by District.

	Article 14. Nondiscrimination
	Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth ...

	Article 15. Insurance
	15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, set forth in Exhibit “E.”
	15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required in Exhibit “E.”

	Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees
	Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification
	Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement
	Article 19. Law, Venue
	19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
	19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agr...

	Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution
	20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution.  Notice of the demand for mediation of a...
	20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 90...
	20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.
	Article 21. Tolling of Claims
	Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District’s assertion of claims against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims against District involving Architect’s work, until the Contrac...
	Article 22. Attorneys’ Fees
	Article 23. Severability
	Article 24. Employment Status
	24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow the Dis...
	24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect’s personnel are not and will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in any District retirement ...
	24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or Consultant of Architect, is an empl...
	24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the District to ha...
	24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be considered an employee of ...
	24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

	Article 25. Certificate of Architect
	25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the professional services that it has herein agreed to perform.
	25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that cod...
	25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and “mainten...

	Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports
	Article 27. Notice & Communications
	Article 28. Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation
	Pursuant to section 17076.11 of the Education Code, the District has a participation goal for disabled veteran business enterprises (“DVBEs”) of at least three percent (3%), per year, of funds expended each year by the District on projects that use fu...
	Article 29. District’s Right to Audit
	29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access to Architect’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the Architect’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s Right”). The Distri...
	29.2. The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is in compliance with ...
	29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the District determi...
	29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and doc...
	29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants.
	29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District’s written request to review and audit any or all of Architect’s Project-related records and information.
	Article 30. Other Provisions
	30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of ...
	30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the CM to all terms hereof.
	30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All counterparts so executed shall ...
	30.4. Architect shall issue a credit to the District as an offset to the Architect’s Fee, an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the actual tax benefit derived by the Architect or its shareholders, after deducting associated tax consulting fees bas...

	Article 31. Exhibits “A” through “E” attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.
	SCOPE OF PROJECT
	Project Name:  Luther Burbank High School New Softball Field and Baseball Field Improvements
	Construction Cost Budget:  $6,000,000 (budget)

	B. BASIC SERVICES
	3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information relates to Architect’s scope of work.  This information shall include, if available,
	a. As-builts;
	b. Physical characteristics;
	c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);
	d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);
	e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;
	f. Adjacent drainage;
	g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);
	h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees;
	i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;
	j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and
	k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings.
	Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent...
	If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires:  a topographical survey; a geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests ...
	9. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	11. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.
	9. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.
	[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	3. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.
	1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project.
	2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents with the District.
	6. Attend bid opening.
	7. Coordinate with Consultants.
	8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications.
	9. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:
	7. Record Drawings.  Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District.  The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of dra...
	These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based on information submitted, in part, by others.  Architect has provided a review consistent with its legal standard of care.

	11. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	12. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.
	g. Architect shall review all warranty and O&M documentation prepared by the General Contractor.
	h. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to close-out the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants.

	3. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	a. Punch list; and
	b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including Record Drawings.  These are the sole property of the District.

	4. Meetings
	During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

	I. MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS
	1. Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below.  Architect shall chair, conduct and take minutes of all coordination meetings with its Consultant(s) during the entire desig...
	2. General Meeting, Site Visit, and Workshop Requirements
	a. Architect shall always be prepared to answer questions and issues from District staff, site staff, potential bidders, and/or Contractors, as applicable.
	b. Architect shall maintain a log of all meetings, site visits or site observations held in conjunction with the design and construction of the Project, with documentation of major discussion points, observations, decisions, questions or comments.  Th...
	c. As required, Architect shall provide at no additional cost to the District copies of all documents or other information needed for each meeting, site visit, and workshop.
	d. Each meeting may last up to four hours and shall be held at the District office or at the Project site, unless otherwise indicated.
	3. Initial Site Visits (One (1) meeting(s))
	a. Architect shall visit the Project site to complete a visual inventory and documentation of the existing conditions.
	4. Meetings During Schematic Design Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))
	a. Within the first two weeks following the start of the Schematic Design Phase, Architect shall conduct one (1) design meeting with the District’s facilities team and site personnel to complete a basic design framework with computer-aided design equi...
	(i) Architect shall designate its team member duties and responsibilities.
	(ii) Architect and District shall review District goals and expectations.
	(iii) District shall provide input and requirements.
	(iv) Architect and District shall review Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.
	(v) Prepare and/or revise the scope of work list and general work plan from the Pre-Design Phase, for documentation in a computer-generated Project schedule.
	(vi) Establish methods to facilitate the communication and coordination efforts for the Project.
	b. Architect shall participate in One (1) additional meeting to review the schematic design package and opinion of probable cost and confirm any design alternates that may be required.

	5. Meetings During Design Development Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))
	a. At approximately mid-point of the Design Development phase, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting with District personnel and applicable engineering sub-consultants to confirm District standards and preferred systems.
	b. At the time designated for completion of the Design Development package, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting, per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
	(i) Present the Design Development package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specification.
	(ii) Architect and District shall review Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget. At this time, proposed design alternates that may be required to ensure compliance with the District’s Construction ...
	6. Meetings During Construction Documents Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))
	a. At approximately the time designated for completion of the fifty percent (50%) submittal package, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
	(i) Present progress on the Construction Documents submittal package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
	(ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.
	b. At the time designated for completion of the one hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package, concurrent with review by the Division of the State Architect, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with the Dis...
	(i) Present the hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
	(ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.
	7. Meetings During Bidding Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))
	a. Attend and take part in One (1) pre-bid meeting(s), per package or submittal, with all potential bidders, District staff, and Construction Manager.
	b. Conduct One (1) kick-off meeting(s) with the successful bidder, District staff, and Construction Manager to finalize the roles and responsibilities of each party and provide protocols and processes to follow during construction.
	8. Meetings During Construction Administration Phase (weekly Project meetings until entire Project is complete, (6-month construction schedule assumed))
	a. Architect shall visit the Project site as necessary or when requested, and in no case less than once per week, sufficient to determine that the Project is being constructed in accordance with the plans and specifications, and to resolve discrepanci...
	b. Conduct weekly Project meetings with District staff to review with District staff the progress of the work.  Architect agrees to attend weekly Project meetings, at no additional cost to the District, until the work of the Project is complete.
	c. Architect shall ensure that Consultant(s) visit the site in conformance with their agreement(s) and that Consultant agreements shall reference District requirements for Construction Phase services.



	CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES
	The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if authorized or requested by the District:
	A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this Agreement, or otherwise included within Exhibit “A.”
	B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit “A.”  Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of t...
	C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the preparation of the Conforming Set.
	D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of that work.
	E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s).
	F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under t...
	G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way cause the dispute that is being adjudicated.
	H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of the Agreement.
	I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five percent (5%).
	1. The following items are approved for mark-up:
	a. Sub-consultant Invoices.
	2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be marked-up.
	J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only)
	Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect’s invoices to include detailed explanations of the Services performed.  For example, a six hour charge for “RFIs and CORs” is unacceptable and will not be payable.  A more detailed explanatio...
	SCHEDULE OF SERVICES
	A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect proposes to carry out Architect's Services (“Schedule of Services”).  The Sc...
	B. Architect shall complete Services required under the Schematic Design Phase within 30 calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed (March 1 – March 30, 2023).
	C. Architect shall complete Services required under the Design Development Phase within 30 calendar days after receipt of a written authorization from District to proceed (April 1-April 30, 2023).
	D. Architect shall complete Services required under Construction Documents Phase within 60 calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed, and as more specifically indicated below (May 1-June 30, 2023).  Excluded from this duration...
	E. The durations stated above include the review periods of 10 calendar days required by the District.
	F. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the Agreement.  If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District’s inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Archite...
	PAYMENT SCHEDULE
	A. Compensation
	1. The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof, including, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in Exhibit “A,”...
	2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement.
	3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this Agreement:
	Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional Services and will be billed at a multiple of 1.10% the expenses incurred.  These charges include, but are not limited to, expenses incurred which are directly related to th...
	B. Method of Payment
	1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the District via the District’s authorized representative.
	2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof that payments were made to its Consultant(s).
	3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect’s monthly pay request format.
	4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect’s invoices, the District agrees to make payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as follows:
	a. For Schematic Design Phase:
	Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Schematic Design Phase by the District.
	b. For Design Development Phase:
	c. For Construction Documents Phase:
	d. For Bidding Phase:
	e. For Construction Contract Administration Phase:
	f. For Close Out:
	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
	A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the ...
	B. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the need for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability cov...
	1. Commercial General Liability. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregat...
	2. Commercial Automobile Liability. One million dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury and property damage.
	3. Workers' Compensation Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation polic...
	4. Employers’ Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employment Practices Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of Two million dollars ($2,000,00...
	5. Professional Liability.  This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate limit subject to no more than Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000) ...

	C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.
	D. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention:  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000).  At the option of the District, either:
	1. The District can accept the higher deductible; or
	2. Architect’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.
	E. Other Insurance Provisions:  The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
	1. The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on beh...
	2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Additional Insureds.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect’s insuranc...
	3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
	4. Architect’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
	5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
	6. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt r...
	7. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and re...
	8. Architect shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the subconsultants to fu...

	F. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII.  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating ...
	1. Accept the lower rating; or
	2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer.
	G. Verification of Coverage:  Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:
	1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; and
	2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage.  The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverages on its behalf.  All endorsements are to be received and approved by the...

	H. Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, Architect will furnish District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement.
	END OF EXHIBIT


	12.1b.2 SA23-00545 Lionakis CKM Softball Baseball
	EXHIBIT “A” – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT A-1
	EXHIBIT “B” – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES B-1

	This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of May 18, 2023, between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (“District”), and Lionakis (“Architect”) (collectively “Parties”), for the following projec...
	New Softball Field and Baseball Field Improvements on the campus of C.K. McClatchy High School, 3066 Freeport Boulevard, Sacramento, CA 95818
	Article 1. Definitions
	1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:
	1.1.1. Agreement:  The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference.
	1.1.2. Architect:  The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect.  The term Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge on this Project.
	1.1.3. As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”):  Any document prepared and submitted by District’s Contractor(s) that details on a Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Docu...
	1.1.4. Bid Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State Architect (“DSA”) has approved and that the District can use to go out to bid for construction of the Project.
	1.1.5. Conforming Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, issued during the Bidding Phase.  The Architect shall ensure that DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that ...
	1.1.6. Construction Budget:  The total amount of funds indicated by the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, administration, and financing.
	1.1.7. Construction Change Documents (“CCD”):  The documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents.
	1.1.8. Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with this Agreement.  The Construction Cost Budget does not in...
	1.1.9. Construction Manager:  The District’s representative on the Project if the District retains a construction manager, project manager, or owner’s representative.
	1.1.10. Contractor:  One or more licensed contractors under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project.
	1.1.11. Consultant(s):  Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect.
	1.1.12. District:  The Sacramento City Unified School District.
	1.1.13. DSA:  The Division of the State Architect.
	1.1.14. Extra Services:  District-authorized services outside of the scope in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursables not included in Architect’s Fee.
	1.1.15. Laboratory of Record: The District-designated laboratory(ies) for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required testing.
	1.1.16. Project:  District’s C.K. McClatchy New Softball Field and Baseball Field Improvements Project at 3066 Freeport Boulevard, Sacramento, CA 95818.
	1.1.17. Record Drawings:  A final set of drawings prepared by the Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.
	1.1.18. Service(s):  All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the Architect is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of t...
	1.1.19. Visually Verify: To verify to the fullest extent possible by physical observation and reasonable investigation and without any destructive action.

	Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect
	2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in Exhibit “A,” commencing with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District representative.  Architect’s Services will be completed in accordance with the schedule attached as Exhibi...
	2.2. Architect and its Consultants shall provide Services for a Project: (i) using its professional skill and judgment; (ii) acting with due care and in accordance with respective applicable standards of care under California law for those providing s...
	2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a competitive bid process.  District reserves its right to use alternative delivery methods and the Architect’s scope of work may be adjusted accordingly.
	2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect’s expense, Consultant(s) to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil engineers; landscape...
	2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or management of other work related t...
	2.9. Architect shall coordinate the work of the District’s DSA project inspector(s) (“Project Inspector(s)”) and the Laboratory of Record.  Architect shall provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided by the Laboratory of Record.
	2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its professional skill and attention.  Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions (“Contract Documents”) and ...
	2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests for Information (“RFI”), providing R...

	Article 3. Architect Staff
	3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the skills and expertise of key individuals.
	3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect’s firm shall be associated with the Project in the following capacities:
	Principal In Charge:  Laura Knauss
	3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be employed by Architect.  In either case, the District shall be allowed to interview and approve repl...
	3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with one acceptable to ...
	3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement and that no person hav...
	3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed personnel shall be in “responsib...

	Article 4. Schedule of Services
	Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in Exhibit “A,” so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with the schedule...
	Article 5. Construction Cost Budget
	5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District’s established Construction Cost Budget and Project scope.  In accordance with Exhibit “A,” the Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget for th...
	5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in Exhibit “A,” including all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not exceed the Construct...
	5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent (5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or
	5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or
	5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the county in which the District is located, in so far as these ha...


	Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment
	6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this Agreement an amount equal to the following (“Fee”):

	An amount not to exceed Three Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollars ($380,000) based on the rates set forth in Exhibit “D.” Reimbursable expenses are not expected to exceed $19,000.
	6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit “D.”
	6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in accordance with Exhibit “D.”
	6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect’s error or omission.
	6.5. The Architect’s Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in Exhibit “D.”
	6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect’s Fee, the Architect’s Fee may be adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced by the District in accordance with this Agreement.
	6.7. Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable to the District in acco...

	Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes
	Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed.  If any ...

	Article 8. Ownership of Data
	8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, estimates and other docum...
	8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared p...
	8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting Technology (“CADD”) (e.g., AutoCAD).  Architect shall deliver to District all drawings in DWG format.  As to...
	8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a “hard” copy of reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect produces the CADD information....
	8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter “Instruments of Service”), which the Dis...
	8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the Project, in hard copy, reproducible format.
	8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings that are part of the Contract Documents.
	8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and exterior elevations of the Project.
	8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports prepared by the Architect under this Agreement.
	8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.

	8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed documents without Architect’s knowledge or participation or both, the District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and shall hold Architect har...

	Article 9. Termination of Contract
	9.1. District’s Request for Assurances:  If District at any time reasonably believes that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances from Arc...
	9.2. District’s Termination of Architect for Cause:  If Architect fails to perform Architect’s duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect’s material obligations under this...
	9.3. District’s Termination of Architect for Convenience:  District shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own convenience.  In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may invoice District and Dist...
	9.4. Architect’s Termination of Agreement for Cause:  Architect has the right to terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of ...
	9.5. Effect on Pre-Termination Services:  Except as indicated in this Article, termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such terminat...
	9.6. Ceasing Services upon Termination:  If, at any time in the progress of the Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the District of such termi...
	9.7. Project Suspension:  If the District suspends the Project for more than one hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is resumed, the schedule...

	Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability
	Article 11. Fingerprinting and Other On-Site Requirements
	11.1. The District has determined that Architect, its Consultants and their employees shall not interact with pupils, except under the immediate supervision and control of the pupil’s parent or guardian or a school employee, so that the fingerprinting...
	11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19.  Further, except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and Architect’s personnel shall con...

	Article 12. Responsibilities of the District
	12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the Architect’s Services.
	12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s documents.  Failure to provide such notice shal...
	12.3. The District shall furnish the services of a hazardous material consultant or other consultants when such services are requested in writing by Architect and deemed necessary by the District or are requested by the District. These services shall ...
	12.4. The District shall timely provide to the Architect all relevant information in its possession regarding the project that is necessary for performance of Architect’s services.

	Article 13. Liability of District
	13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event s...
	13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to Architect by District.

	Article 14. Nondiscrimination
	Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth ...

	Article 15. Insurance
	15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, set forth in Exhibit “E.”
	15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required in Exhibit “E.”

	Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees
	Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification
	Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement
	Article 19. Law, Venue
	19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
	19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agr...

	Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution
	20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution.  Notice of the demand for mediation of a...
	20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 90...
	20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.
	Article 21. Tolling of Claims
	Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District’s assertion of claims against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims against District involving Architect’s work, until the Contrac...
	Article 22. Attorneys’ Fees
	Article 23. Severability
	Article 24. Employment Status
	24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow the Dis...
	24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect’s personnel are not and will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in any District retirement ...
	24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or Consultant of Architect, is an empl...
	24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the District to ha...
	24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be considered an employee of ...
	24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

	Article 25. Certificate of Architect
	25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the professional services that it has herein agreed to perform.
	25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that cod...
	25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and “mainten...

	Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports
	Article 27. Notice & Communications
	Article 28. [RESERVED]
	Article 29. District’s Right to Audit
	29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access to Architect’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the Architect’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s Right”). The Distri...
	29.2. The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is in compliance with ...
	29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the District determi...
	29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and doc...
	29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants.
	29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District’s written request to review and audit any or all of Architect’s Project-related records and information.
	Article 30. Other Provisions
	30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of ...
	30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the CM to all terms hereof.
	30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All counterparts so executed shall ...
	30.4. Architect shall issue a credit to the District as an offset to the Architect’s Fee, an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the actual tax benefit derived by the Architect or its shareholders, after deducting associated tax consulting fees bas...

	Article 31. Exhibits “A” through “E” attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.
	SCOPE OF PROJECT
	Project Name:  C.K. McClatchy High School New Softball Field and Baseball Field Improvements
	Construction Cost Budget:  $5,000,000 (budget)

	B. BASIC SERVICES
	3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information relates to Architect’s scope of work.  This information shall include, if available,
	a. As-builts;
	b. Physical characteristics;
	c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);
	d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);
	e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;
	f. Adjacent drainage;
	g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);
	h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees;
	i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;
	j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and
	k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings.
	Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent...
	If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires:  a topographical survey; a geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests ...
	9. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	11. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.
	9. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.
	[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	3. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.
	1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project.
	2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents with the District.
	6. Attend bid opening.
	7. Coordinate with Consultants.
	8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications.
	9. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:
	7. Record Drawings.  Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District.  The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of dra...
	These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based on information submitted, in part, by others.  Architect has provided a review consistent with its legal standard of care.

	11. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	12. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.
	g. Architect shall review all warranty and O&M documentation prepared by the General Contractor.
	h. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to close-out the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants.

	3. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	a. Punch list; and
	b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including Record Drawings.  These are the sole property of the District.

	4. Meetings
	During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below in Section J.

	I. MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS
	1. Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as indicated below.  Architect shall chair, conduct and take minutes of all coordination meetings with its Consultant(s) during the entire desig...
	2. General Meeting, Site Visit, and Workshop Requirements
	a. Architect shall always be prepared to answer questions and issues from District staff, site staff, potential bidders, and/or Contractors, as applicable.
	b. Architect shall maintain a log of all meetings, site visits or site observations held in conjunction with the design and construction of the Project, with documentation of major discussion points, observations, decisions, questions or comments.  Th...
	c. As required, Architect shall provide at no additional cost to the District copies of all documents or other information needed for each meeting, site visit, and workshop.
	d. Each meeting may last up to four hours and shall be held at the District office or at the Project site, unless otherwise indicated.
	3. Initial Site Visits (One (1) meeting(s))
	a. Architect shall visit the Project site to complete a visual inventory and documentation of the existing conditions.
	4. Meetings During Schematic Design Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))
	a. Within the first two weeks following the start of the Schematic Design Phase, Architect shall conduct one (1) design meeting with the District’s facilities team and site personnel to complete a basic design framework with computer-aided design equi...
	(i) Architect shall designate its team member duties and responsibilities.
	(ii) Architect and District shall review District goals and expectations.
	(iii) District shall provide input and requirements.
	(iv) Architect and District shall review Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.
	(v) Prepare and/or revise the scope of work list and general work plan from the Pre-Design Phase, for documentation in a computer-generated Project schedule.
	(vi) Establish methods to facilitate the communication and coordination efforts for the Project.
	b. Architect shall participate in One (1) additional meeting to review the schematic design package and opinion of probable cost and confirm any design alternates that may be required.

	5. Meetings During Design Development Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))
	a. At approximately mid-point of the Design Development phase, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting with District personnel and applicable engineering sub-consultants to confirm District standards and preferred systems.
	b. At the time designated for completion of the Design Development package, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting, per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
	(i) Present the Design Development package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specification.
	(ii) Architect and District shall review Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget. At this time, proposed design alternates that may be required to ensure compliance with the District’s Construction ...
	6. Meetings During Construction Documents Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))
	a. At approximately the time designated for completion of the fifty percent (50%) submittal package, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with the District to review the following:
	(i) Present progress on the Construction Documents submittal package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
	(ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.
	b. At the time designated for completion of the one hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package, concurrent with review by the Division of the State Architect, Architect shall conduct One (1) meeting(s), per package or submittal, with the Dis...
	(i) Present the hundred percent (100%) Construction Document package for review and comment to proceed with preparation of final plans and specifications.
	(ii) Architect and District shall provide further review of Project scope and budget, including the Construction Cost Budget and the Construction Budget.
	7. Meetings During Bidding Phase (Two (2) meeting(s))
	a. Attend and take part in One (1) pre-bid meeting(s), per package or submittal, with all potential bidders, District staff, and Construction Manager.
	b. Conduct One (1) kick-off meeting(s) with the successful bidder, District staff, and Construction Manager to finalize the roles and responsibilities of each party and provide protocols and processes to follow during construction.
	8. Meetings During Construction Administration Phase (weekly Project meetings until entire Project is complete, (6-month construction schedule assumed))
	a. Architect shall visit the Project site as necessary or when requested, and in no case less than once per week, sufficient to determine that the Project is being constructed in accordance with the plans and specifications, and to resolve discrepanci...
	b. Conduct weekly Project meetings with District staff to review with District staff the progress of the work.  Architect agrees to attend weekly Project meetings, at no additional cost to the District, until the work of the Project is complete.
	c. Architect shall ensure that Consultant(s) visit the site in conformance with their agreement(s) and that Consultant agreements shall reference District requirements for Construction Phase services.



	CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES
	The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if authorized or requested by the District:
	A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this Agreement, or otherwise included within Exhibit “A.”
	B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit “A.”  Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of t...
	C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the preparation of the Conforming Set.
	D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of that work.
	E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s).
	F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under t...
	G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way cause the dispute that is being adjudicated.
	H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of the Agreement.
	I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five percent (5%).
	1. The following items are approved for mark-up:
	a. Sub-consultant Invoices.
	2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be marked-up.
	J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only)
	Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect’s invoices to include detailed explanations of the Services performed.  For example, a six hour charge for “RFIs and CORs” is unacceptable and will not be payable.  A more detailed explanatio...
	SCHEDULE OF SERVICES
	A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect proposes to carry out Architect's Services (“Schedule of Services”).  The Sc...
	B. Architect shall complete Services required under the Schematic Design Phase within 30 calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed (March 1 – March 30, 2023).
	C. Architect shall complete Services required under the Design Development Phase within 30 calendar days after receipt of a written authorization from District to proceed (April 1-April 30, 2023).
	D. Architect shall complete Services required under Construction Documents Phase within 60 calendar days after written authorization from District to proceed, and as more specifically indicated below (May 1-June 30, 2023).  Excluded from this duration...
	E. The durations stated above include the review periods of 10 calendar days required by the District.
	F. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the Agreement.  If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District’s inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Archite...
	PAYMENT SCHEDULE
	A. Compensation
	1. The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof, including, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in Exhibit “A,”...
	2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement.
	3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this Agreement:
	Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional Services and will be billed at a multiple of 1.10% the expenses incurred.  These charges include, but are not limited to, expenses incurred which are directly related to th...
	B. Method of Payment
	1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the District via the District’s authorized representative.
	2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof that payments were made to its Consultant(s).
	3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect’s monthly pay request format.
	4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect’s invoices, the District agrees to make payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as follows:
	a. For Schematic Design Phase:
	Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Schematic Design Phase by the District.
	b. For Design Development Phase:
	c. For Construction Documents Phase:
	d. For Bidding Phase:
	e. For Construction Contract Administration Phase:
	f. For Close Out:
	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
	A. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the ...
	B. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the need for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability cov...
	1. Commercial General Liability. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregat...
	2. Commercial Automobile Liability. One million dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury and property damage.
	3. Workers' Compensation Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation polic...
	4. Employers’ Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employment Practices Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of Two million dollars ($2,000,00...
	5. Professional Liability.  This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate limit subject to no more than Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000) ...

	C. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.
	D. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention:  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000).  At the option of the District, either:
	1. The District can accept the higher deductible; or
	2. Architect’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.
	E. Other Insurance Provisions:  The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
	1. The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on beh...
	2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Additional Insureds.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect’s insuranc...
	3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
	4. Architect’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
	5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
	6. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt r...
	7. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and re...
	8. Architect shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the subconsultants to fu...

	F. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII.  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating ...
	1. Accept the lower rating; or
	2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer.
	G. Verification of Coverage:  Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:
	1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; and
	2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage.  The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverages on its behalf.  All endorsements are to be received and approved by the...

	H. Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, Architect will furnish District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement.
	END OF EXHIBIT


	12.1b.3 AstroTurf-SCUSD Settlement Agreement - final_3830450_2(DMS)
	12.1b.4 Otto Construction Proposal - LBHS Emergency Repairs 03-22-2023
	12.1b.5 SA23-00620 Shimansky Enterprises
	IOR Jay Shimasky CChavez EKemble New Construction Proposal 04-13-2023.pdf
	SA23-00620 Shimansky Enterprises
	Comprehensive General Liability
	CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION
	Fingerprinting:  Education Code section 45125.1 provides that any contractor providing school site administrative or similar services to a school district must certify that its employees providing that service who may come into contact with pupils hav...


	12.1b.6 SA23-00685 MCF Nicholas
	SA23-00685 MCF Nicholas
	Comprehensive General Liability
	CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION
	Fingerprinting:  Education Code section 45125.1 provides that any contractor providing school site administrative or similar services to a school district must certify that its employees providing that service who may come into contact with pupils hav...

	MCF Construction Services Proposal - 03.31.23 Nicholas Elementary School Rebuild Project

	12.1b.7 SA23-00617 Chavez Kemble Freeman Inspections
	12.1b.8 SA23-00553 ICS AEinstein Core
	SA23-00553 ICS AEinstein Core
	SA23-00553 ICS AEinstein Core
	ARTICLE 1. Definitions
	1.1 In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions for words or phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:
	1.1.1 Agreement: The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference.
	1.1.2 Architect: The architect(s) that the District designates as being the architect(s) for all or a portion of the Project, including all consultants to the Architect(s).
	1.1.3 As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”): Any document prepared and submitted by District Contractor that details on a Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Documents a...
	1.1.4 Board: The District’s Governing Board.
	1.1.5 Conforming Set: The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, issued during the Bidding Phase.
	1.1.6 Construction Budget: The total amount indicated by the District for the Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, administration, financing, and all other costs.
	1.1.7 Construction Change Documents (“CCD”): The documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents.
	1.1.8 Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all elements of a Project designed or specified by the Architect, as adjusted during and at the end of the design phase in accordance with this Agreement and the Agreement for Architectural...
	1.1.9 Construction Manager: The entity listed in the first paragraph of this Agreement.
	1.1.10 Consultant(s): Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the CM.
	1.1.11 Contractor: One or more licensed and registered contractors under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project.
	1.1.12 Design Team: The Architect(s) that the District designates as being the architect(s) for all or a portion of the Project, including all consultants to the Architect(s), plus all engineer(s) or other designer(s), who have a responsibility to the...
	1.1.13 DIR: California Department of Industrial Relations.
	1.1.14 District: The Sacramento City Unified School District.
	1.1.15 District’s Representative: The individual identified herein that is authorized to act on the District’s behalf with respect to the Project. The initial District’s Representative shall be Chris Ralston, Director III of Facilities. District may c...
	1.1.16 DSA: Division of the State Architect in the California Department of General Services.
	1.1.17 Extra Services: District-authorized Services outside of the scope in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursables not included in CM’s fee.
	1.1.18 Fee: The CM’s Fee is defined in Article 7 and payable as set forth in Exhibit “D.”
	1.1.19 Program Manager: Any program manager hired to perform program management services for the District, including all Consultant(s) to the Program Manager.
	1.1.20 Project Inspector, Inspector of Record, IOR: The agent of the DSA at the project site whose primary responsibility will be to insure that the project is constructed in compliance with current codes; DSA-approved plans and specifications relatin...
	1.1.21 Record Drawings: A final set of drawings prepared by the Architect incorporating all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.
	1.1.22 Service(s): All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the CM is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.


	ARTICLE 2. Term
	2.1 Term: This Agreement shall become effective upon final execution, and except as otherwise provided herein, will continue in effect until December 31, 2024.

	ARTICLE 3. Scope, Responsibilities and Services of CM
	3.1 Scope: CM shall provide the Services described herein and under Exhibit “A” for the Project.
	3.2 Standard of Care: CM, its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, Consultants and any persons or entities for whom CM is responsible, shall provide all Services pursuant to this Agreement in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement ...
	3.3 Coordination: In the performance of CM’s services under this Agreement, CM agrees that it will maintain coordination with District-designated representatives as may be requested and desirable. This shall include, without limitation, coordination w...
	3.4 Other Consultants: If the CM employs sub-consultant(s), the CM shall ensure that its contract(s) with its sub-consultant(s) include language incorporating the terms of this Agreement.
	3.5 CM’s as District Representative: CM will act as the District’s agent to render the Services and furnish the work as described in Exhibit “A,” commencing with the receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District Representative. CM’s se...
	3.6 Review of General Obligation Bond Program Report and District’s Facilities Master Plan: CM will review the District’s Facilities Master Plan for the District and other written materials the District makes available by the District to CM to underst...
	3.7 Review of Measure H: CM will review Measure H and other written materials made available by the District to CM that relate to Measure H to fully understand the extent of funding available to implement the District’s Master Facilities Plan for the ...
	3.8 Expansion of Work based on Additional Funds: Should the Board decide to expand the scope of the Project and/or supplement the Construction Budget based upon availability of additional funds, Construction Manager agrees to perform the additional sc...
	3.9 Conflicts of Interest Prohibited:
	3.9.1 CM understands that District officials and employees are prohibited from involvement in decisions in which they may have a financial interest pursuant to Government Code sections 1090 and 87100 et seq., and certifies that it does not know of any...
	3.9.2 CM shall not be permitted to submit proposals or otherwise seek contracts for the following services to be procured by the District in connection with any project covered by this Agreement: Design Professional, IORs or Test/Inspection. If CM ide...


	ARTICLE 4. CM Staff
	4.1 The District selected CM to perform the Services because of the CM’s skills and expertise of key personnel.
	4.2 CM agrees that the following key personnel in CM’s firm shall be associated with the Project and perform the Services in the following capacities:
	Construction Manager during construction:  Isaac White
	Project Manager:     Isaac White
	Asst, Construction Manager:   Nick Valentine
	4.3 CM shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without the District’s prior written approval, unless said personnel cease to be employed by CM. Regardless of the reason for the change in key personnel, District shall be allowed to inter...
	4.4 If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the District, then upon the District’s written notice, the CM will have seven (7) calendar days to remove that person from the Project and shall provide a replacement per...
	4.4.1 All lead or key personnel for any Consultant must also be designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions stated in this Agreement.

	4.5 CM represents that the Construction Manager has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement. CM agrees furth...

	ARTICLE 5. Schedule of Work
	ARTICLE 6. Construction Cost Budget
	6.1 CM shall have responsibility, along with the Architect, to develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget per Project with the Architect and the District throughout the design process and construction.
	6.2 The Construction Cost Budget shall be the total cost to District of all Project elements the Design Team designs or specifies.
	6.3 CM shall work cooperatively with the Project Design Team throughout the Project, including but not limited to, the Schematic Design Phase, Design Development Phase, and Construction Documents Phase, as described in Exhibit “A,” so that the Project...
	6.4 Evaluations of the District’s Construction Budget, and CM’s preliminary and detailed cost estimates, represent the CM’s best judgment as a professional familiar with the construction industry.
	6.5 If the Bidding Phase has not commenced within ninety (90) days after DSA approval of the plans and specifications, the Construction Cost Budget may be adjusted at District’s request to reflect changes in the general level of prices in the construc...
	6.6 The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the following if any of the events in Article 6.7 occur:
	6.6.1 Give CM written approval of an agreed adjustment to the Construction Cost Budget.
	6.6.2 Authorize CM to re-negotiate and/or re-bid the Project, when appropriate, within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids, at no additional cost to the District (exclusive of District and other agencies’ review time).
	6.6.3 Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the District without further obligation by either party.
	6.6.4 Within three (3) months of receipt of bids, instruct Design Team to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as approved by the District) to bring the Project within the Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding. CM will perfor...

	6.7 If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 6.6 above:
	6.7.1 The lowest responsive base bid received is five percent (5%) or more in excess of the Construction Cost Budget or
	6.7.2 The combined total of base bid and all additive alternates equal or exceed ten percent (10%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or
	6.7.3 The Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the Sacramento Area, in so far as these have not been caused by Acts o...


	ARTICLE 7. Fee and Method of Payment for Basic Services
	7.1 District shall pay CM an amount not to exceed One Hundred Fifty-Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($158,750) for all services contracted for under this Agreement and based on the Fee Schedule set forth in Exhibit “D.”
	7.2 District shall pay CM the Fee pursuant to the provisions herein and the method of payment set forth in Exhibit “D.”
	7.3 CM shall bill its work under this Agreement on a percent of completion basis in accordance with Exhibit “D.”
	7.4 No increase in fee will be due from change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by CM’s error(s) or omission(s).
	7.5 The CM’s fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of CM’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in Exhibit “D,” including, without limitation, all costs for personnel, travel within two hundred (200) mi...

	ARTICLE 8. Payment for Extra Services
	8.1 Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” at the rates set forth in Exhibit “D” only upon certification of the District’s prior written authorization of the claimed Extra Services and the Extra Servic...
	8.2 CM shall submit to District a written proposal describing the proposed scope of services and listing the personnel, labor duration, rates, and cost. CM shall proceed with Extra Services only upon receiving the District’s prior written authorizatio...
	8.3 If CM performs any Extra Services without the District’s authorized representative’s prior written authorization, the District will not be obligated to pay for such Extra Services. The foregoing provision notwithstanding, CM will be paid by the Di...

	ARTICLE 9. Ownership of Data
	9.1 All of CM’s work product prepared or generated in connection with this Agreement is the District’s property.
	9.2 Upon the District’s request, the CM shall make available to the District all work product completed or in progress at the time of such a request.
	9.3 After Project completion or, if the District exercises the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to the Agreement terms, CM shall assemble and deliver to District within five (5) calendar days of the District’s written request, all of CM’s wo...
	9.4 All Project records are District property, whether or not those records are in the CM’s possession. District retains all rights to all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, est...

	ARTICLE 10. Termination of Contract
	10.1 District’s Request for Assurances: If District at any time reasonably believes CM is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion notify CM of this fact and request written assurances from CM of performance of Se...
	10.2 District’s Termination of CM for Cause: If CM fails to perform CM’s duties to the District’s satisfaction, or if CM fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner CM’s material obligations under this Agreement, or if CM violates any of the ...
	10.3 District’s Termination of CM for Convenience: District shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate this Agreement for its own convenience. In the event of a termination for convenience, CM may invoice District and District shall pay ...
	10.4 CM’s Termination of Agreement for Cause: CM has the right to terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of receipt of writ...
	10.5 Effect on Pre-Termination Services: Except as indicated in this Article, termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such termination.
	10.6 Ceasing Services upon Termination: If, at any time in the progress of performing Services under this Agreement, the District determines that CM’s Services should be terminated, the CM, upon the District’s written notice of such termination, shall...
	10.7 Project Suspension: If the Project is suspended by the District for more than one hundred and eighty (180) consecutive days, the CM shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the s...

	ARTICLE 11. Indemnity
	11.1 To the furthest extent permitted by California law, CM shall indemnify and hold free and harmless the District, its Governing Board, agents, representatives, officers, consultants, employees, trustees, and volunteers (“the Indemnified Parties”) f...
	11.2 CM shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may be rendered against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim. CM’s obligation pursuant to Article 11.1 includes reimbursing the District for the cost of any settlement paid by the Indem...
	11.3 District may withhold from amounts owing to CM any and all costs that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the CM.

	ARTICLE 12. Conduct on Project Site and Fingerprinting
	12.1 Unacceptable and/or loud language will not be tolerated. “Cat calls” or other derogatory language toward students or public will not be allowed.
	12.2 Drugs, alcohol, and smoking on District property are strictly prohibited. No drugs, alcohol and/or smoking are allowed at any time in any building and/or grounds on District’s property. No students, staff, visitors or contractors are to use drugs...
	12.3 Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined on the basis of the scope of Services in this Agreement that CM and its subcontractors and employees will have only limited contact with pupils. CM will promptly notify the D...
	12.4 For all workers on District property, CM shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19, including but not limited to the CDPH’s State Public Health Officer Orders.

	ARTICLE 13. Responsibilities of the District
	13.1 The District shall examine the documents submitted by the CM and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the CM’s Services.
	13.2 The District shall provide to the CM as complete information as is available to District regarding the District’s Project requirements.
	13.3 The District shall retain design professional(s) whose services, duties and responsibilities will be described in written agreement(s) between the District and design professional(s).
	13.4 Unless the contract documents require that Contractor provide any of the following, the District shall, in a timely manner, and with CM’s assistance, secure, submit and pay for necessary approvals, easements, assessments, permits and charges requ...
	13.5 The District, its representatives, and consultants shall communicate with the Contractor either directly or through the CM.
	13.6 The District shall designate an officer, employee and/or other authorized representatives to act on the District’s behalf with respect to the Project. The District’s Project representative shall be available during working hours and as often as m...

	ARTICLE 14. Liability of District
	14.1 Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation as provided in this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall Dist...
	14.2 CM shall pay to District any and all costs incurred by District, or for which District may become liable, to the extent caused by negligent delays, acts, or omissions of CM in its performance of its Services.
	14.3 District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by CM, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to CM by District.
	14.4 CM hereby waives any and all claim(s) for recovery from the District under this Agreement, which loss or damage is covered by valid and collectible insurance policies. CM agrees to have its required insurance policies endorsed to prevent the inva...

	ARTICLE 15. Insurance
	15.1 CM shall procure, prior to commencement of Services, and will maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the wor...
	15.2 Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following scopes and limits:
	15.2.1 Commercial General Liability. Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, property damage, death, advertising injury, and medical payments arising from the performance of any portion of the Services. If C...
	15.2.2 Commercial Automobile Liability, Any Auto. One million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence.
	15.2.3 Workers' Compensation. Statutory limits required by the State of California. For all of the CM’s employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, CM shall keep in full force and effe...
	15.2.4 Employer's Liability. One million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury or disease. For all of the CM’s employees who are subject to this Agreement, CM shall keep in full force and effect, an Employers’ Liability policy. That poli...
	15.2.5 Professional Liability. This insurance shall cover the CM and its sub-consultant(s), if any, for one million dollars ($1,000,000) aggregate limit subject to no claim deductible, coverage to continue through completion of construction plus two y...

	15.3 The District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or charges to be negotiated for such changes.
	15.4 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention: Any deductibles or self-insured retention exceeding Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) must be declared to and approved by the District. At the option of the District, either:
	15.4.1 The District can accept the higher deductible;
	15.4.2 CM’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or
	15.4.3 CM shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

	15.5 Other Insurance Provisions: The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
	15.5.1 All policies except for the worker’s compensation, employer’s liability and professional liability insurance policy shall be written on an occurrence form.
	15.5.2 The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on...
	15.5.3 Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
	15.5.4 CM shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If CM fails to maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and retain amoun...
	15.5.5 The CM’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability.
	15.5.6 Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be canceled, not renewed, or material change in coverage except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt reque...
	15.5.7 CM’s insurance coverage shall be primary and non-contributory insurance as respects the Additional Insureds with respect to any claims related to, arising out of, or connected with the Project. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the ...
	15.5.8 Construction Manager shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against the District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
	15.5.9 CM shall require all subconsultants to maintain the level of insurance CM deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. CM shall cause the subconsultants to furnish proof there...
	15.5.10 If CM normally carries insurance in an amount greater than the minimum amounts required herein, that greater amount shall become the minimum required amount of insurance for purposes of the Agreement. Therefore, CM hereby acknowledges and agre...

	15.6 Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII. CM shall inform the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating less th...
	15.6.1 Accept the lower rating; or
	15.6.2 Require CM to procure insurance from another insurer.

	15.7 Verification of Coverage: Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this Agreement, but no later than three (3) calendar after the Notice of Award, CM shall furnish the District with:
	15.7.1 Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverage;
	15.7.2 Original endorsements affecting coverage. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the District before work commences.

	15.8 Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, CM will furnish District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement.

	ARTICLE 16. Nondiscrimination
	ARTICLE 17. Covenant Against Contingent Fees
	ARTICLE 18. Entire Agreement/Modification
	ARTICLE 19. Non-Assignment of Agreement
	ARTICLE 20. Law, Venue
	20.1 This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
	20.2 To the fullest extent permitted by California law, Sacramento County shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agreement.

	ARTICLE 21. Alternative Dispute Resolution
	21.1 All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution. Notice of the demand for mediation of a d...
	21.2 If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Consultant shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 90...
	21.3 Notwithstanding any disputes, claims or other disagreements between the CM and the District, CM shall continue to provide and perform Services hereunder pending a subsequent resolution of such disputes.

	ARTICLE 22. Tolling of Claims
	ARTICLE 23. Severability
	ARTICLE 24. Employment Status
	24.1 CM shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be construed to be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow...
	24.2 CM understands and agrees that CM’s personnel are not and will not be eligible for: membership in, or to receive any benefits from, any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance; membership in any District retirement program...
	24.3 Should District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that CM or any employee of CM is an employee of District for purposes of co...
	24.4 Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by CM for District, upon notification of such fact by District, CM shall promptly remit the amount due or arrange with District to have the amount due withheld f...
	24.5 A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, CM shall not be considered an employee of District. No...
	24.6 Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

	ARTICLE 25. Warranty of CM
	25.1 CM warrants that CM is properly licensed and/or certified under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the Services that it has herein agreed to perform. CM further warrants that all of the work CM performs under this Agre...
	25.2 CM certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code of the State of California, requiring every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provi...
	25.3 To the extent that the work performed under this contract is subject to labor compliance and enforcement by the DIR, CM specifically acknowledges and understands that it shall perform the Services while complying with all applicable provisions of...

	ARTICLE 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports
	ARTICLE 27. Communications / Notice
	ARTICLE 28. [RESERVED]
	ARTICLE 29. District’s Right to Audit
	29.1 District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access to CM’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the CM’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s Right”). The District’s Right incl...
	29.2 The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether CM is in compliance with all requ...
	29.3 If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the District determin...
	29.4 CM shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. CM shall make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and documents and any ...
	29.5 CM shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants.
	29.6 CM shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District’s written request to review and audit any or all of CM’s Project-related records and information.

	ARTICLE 30. Other Provisions
	30.1 CM shall be responsible for the cost of construction change orders caused directly by CM’s willful misconduct or negligent acts, errors or omissions. Without limiting CM’s liability for indirect or consequential cost impacts, the direct costs for...
	30.2 Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and CM shall remain liable to the District in accordance ...
	30.3 CM shall share, credit, or reimburse District fifty percent (50%) of the amount of any tax deduction and/or credit CM receives for District Projects under the Commercial Buildings Energy-Efficiency Tax Deduction, 26 U.S. Code § 179D (“Section 179...
	30.4 Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of n...
	30.5 The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of CM warrants and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the CM to all terms hereof.

	1. BASIC SERVICES
	2. GENERAL PROJECT SERVICES
	3. PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE
	3.15 To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, organize an initial planning workshop to create baseline parameters for the Project, to define overall building requirements, Project strategy, conceptual budget and schedule.  Pursuant to u...

	4. PRE-BID PHASE
	5. BIDDING PHASE
	6. CONSTRUCTION PHASE
	7. PROJECT COMPLETION
	8. FINAL DOCUMENTS
	The Construction Manager shall review and monitor all As-Built Drawings, maintenance and operations manuals, and other closeout documents to be sure that all required documents meeting contract requirements are provided, and shall secure and transmit ...

	9. WARRANTY
	The Construction Manager shall assist Program Manager as necessary to implement a Warranty Inspection and Warranty Work procedure for the Project that Contractor must follow.  The procedure shall include a twelve (12) month call back period and a fina...

	10. PROJECT CLOSEOUT
	To the extent requested by District or Program Manager, the Construction Manager shall assist District, Architect, and Program Manager as necessary to ensure all information and documentation necessary for Project closeout with the DSA is complete and...
	[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

	EXHIBIT “B”
	SCHEDULE OF WORK
	EXHIBIT “D”
	Method of Payment of Basic Services


	Innovative Construction Services - Proposal Albert Einstein Core 0410-409 03-09-2023

	DOC_20230501110724

	12.1b.9 R23-05711 Creative Bus Sales
	12.1b.10 SA23-00434  Iris Taylor Amendment No. 2
	12.1b.11 Chavez Kemble contract
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6


	12.1c Approve Personnel Transactions
	12.1c 5-18-2023 Cover page Personnel Transactions_
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	12.1c.1 5-18-2023 Certificated Board Agenda
	Sheet1

	12.1c.2 5-18-2023 Certificated Board Agenda
	Sheet1


	12.1d Approve Business and Financial Report Warrants Checks and Electronic Transfers Issued for the period of April 1-30 2023
	12.1d Warrants Report Cover
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	12.1d.1 April 2023 Payments Warrants Checks and Electronic Funds Transfers

	12.1e Donations to the District for the Period of April 1-30 2023
	12.1e Donations Report Cover Sheet May 18 2023
	Meeting Date:   May 18, 2023

	12.1e.1 Donations Board Report 5-18-23
	Receipt Detail
	Main Body
	97
	B OF A
	1
	
	
	BA23-0002160
	BA23-0002308
	BA23-0002384



	2
	2023
	01
	




	BOTW AP
	1
	
	
	BW23-0001014
	BW23-0001032



	2
	2023
	01
	






	Recap
	97
	B OF A
	1
	
	
	C
	E




	BOTW AP
	1
	
	
	C









	12.1f Agenda Cover Sheet May 18 23
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	12.1g Approve Res No 3325 Authorizing Execution of Delegate Agency Agreement from SETA
	12.1g Head Start Report
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	12.1g.1May 18 Resolution Submission
	0504_001.pdf


	12.1h Approve Res No 3323 Resolution Regarding Board Stipends
	12.1h Board Absence Resolution-Jeane
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	12.1h.1 Board Absence Resolution-Jeane

	12.1i Approve Business and Financial Information Purchase Order Board Report for the Period of March 15 2023 through April 14 2023
	12.1i Business and Financial Cover_PO 05.18.23 v1
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	12.1i.1 PO Report 03.15.23-04.14.23_Redacted
	Board Report with Fund
	97
	1
	B23-00855
	B23-00856
	B23-00857
	B23-00858
	B23-00859
	B23-00860
	B23-00861
	B23-00862
	B23-00863
	B23-00864
	B23-00865
	B23-00866
	B23-00867
	B23-00868
	B23-00869
	B23-00870
	B23-00871
	B23-00872
	B23-00873
	CHB23-00399
	CHB23-00400
	CHB23-00401
	CHB23-00402
	CHB23-00403
	CHB23-00404
	CS23-00261
	CS23-00451
	CS23-00457
	CS23-00458
	CS23-00459
	CS23-00461
	CS23-00462
	CS23-00464
	CS23-00465
	CS23-00466
	CS23-00467
	CS23-00468
	CS23-00469
	CS23-00470
	CS23-00471
	CS23-00472
	CS23-00473
	CS23-00474
	CS23-00475
	CS23-00476
	CS23-00477
	CS23-00478
	CS23-00479
	CS23-00480
	CS23-00482
	CS23-00483
	CS23-00484
	CS23-00485
	CS23-00486
	CS23-00487
	CS23-00488
	CS23-00489
	CS23-00490
	CS23-00491
	CS23-00492
	CS23-00493
	CS23-00494
	N23-00045
	N23-00050
	P23-01025
	P23-01997
	P23-02572
	P23-02573
	P23-02574
	P23-02575
	P23-02576
	P23-02577
	P23-02578
	P23-02579
	P23-02580
	P23-02581
	P23-02582
	P23-02583
	P23-02584
	P23-02585
	P23-02586
	P23-02587
	P23-02588
	P23-02589
	P23-02590
	P23-02591
	P23-02592
	P23-02593
	P23-02594
	P23-02595
	P23-02596
	P23-02597
	P23-02598
	P23-02599
	P23-02600
	P23-02601
	P23-02602
	P23-02603
	P23-02604
	P23-02605
	P23-02606
	P23-02607
	P23-02608
	P23-02609
	P23-02610
	P23-02611
	P23-02612
	P23-02613
	P23-02614
	P23-02615
	P23-02616
	P23-02617
	P23-02618
	P23-02619
	P23-02620
	P23-02621
	P23-02622
	P23-02623
	P23-02624
	P23-02625
	P23-02626
	P23-02627
	P23-02628
	P23-02629
	P23-02630
	P23-02631
	P23-02632
	P23-02633
	P23-02634
	P23-02636
	P23-02637
	P23-02638
	P23-02639
	P23-02640
	P23-02641
	P23-02642
	P23-02643
	P23-02644
	P23-02645
	P23-02646
	P23-02647
	P23-02648
	P23-02649
	P23-02650
	P23-02651
	P23-02652
	P23-02653
	P23-02654
	P23-02655
	P23-02656
	P23-02657
	P23-02658
	P23-02659
	P23-02660
	P23-02661
	P23-02662
	P23-02663
	P23-02664
	P23-02665
	P23-02666
	P23-02667
	P23-02668
	P23-02669
	P23-02670
	P23-02671
	P23-02672
	P23-02673
	P23-02674
	P23-02675
	P23-02676
	P23-02677
	P23-02678
	P23-02679
	P23-02680
	P23-02681
	P23-02682
	P23-02683
	P23-02684
	P23-02685
	P23-02689
	P23-02690
	P23-02691
	P23-02692
	P23-02693
	P23-02694
	P23-02695
	P23-02696
	P23-02697
	P23-02698
	P23-02699
	P23-02700
	P23-02701
	P23-02702
	P23-02703
	P23-02704
	P23-02705
	P23-02706
	P23-02707
	P23-02708
	P23-02709
	P23-02710
	P23-02711
	P23-02712
	P23-02713
	P23-02714
	P23-02715
	P23-02716
	P23-02717
	P23-02718
	P23-02719
	P23-02720
	P23-02721
	P23-02722
	P23-02723
	P23-02724
	P23-02725
	P23-02726
	P23-02727
	P23-02728
	P23-02729
	P23-02730
	P23-02731
	P23-02732
	P23-02733
	P23-02734
	P23-02735
	P23-02736
	P23-02737
	P23-02738
	P23-02740
	P23-02741
	P23-02742
	P23-02743
	P23-02744
	P23-02745
	P23-02746
	P23-02747
	P23-02748
	P23-02749
	P23-02750
	P23-02751
	P23-02752
	P23-02753
	P23-02754
	P23-02755
	P23-02756
	P23-02757
	P23-02758
	P23-02759
	P23-02760
	P23-02761
	P23-02762
	P23-02763
	P23-02764
	P23-02765
	P23-02766
	P23-02767
	P23-02768
	P23-02769
	P23-02771
	P23-02772
	P23-02774
	P23-02775
	P23-02776
	P23-02777
	P23-02778
	P23-02779
	P23-02780
	P23-02781
	P23-02782
	P23-02783
	P23-02784
	P23-02785
	P23-02786
	P23-02787
	P23-02788
	P23-02789
	P23-02790
	P23-02791
	P23-02792
	P23-02793
	P23-02794
	P23-02795
	P23-02796
	P23-02797
	P23-02798
	P23-02799
	P23-02800
	P23-02801
	P23-02802
	P23-02803
	P23-02804
	P23-02805
	P23-02806
	P23-02807
	P23-02808
	P23-02809
	P23-02810
	P23-02811
	P23-02812
	P23-02813
	P23-02814
	P23-02815
	P23-02816
	P23-02817
	P23-02818
	P23-02819
	P23-02820
	P23-02821
	P23-02822
	P23-02824
	P23-02825
	P23-02826
	P23-02827
	P23-02828
	P23-02829
	P23-02830
	P23-02831
	P23-02832
	P23-02833
	P23-02834
	P23-02835
	P23-02836
	P23-02837
	P23-02838
	P23-02839
	P23-02840
	P23-02841
	P23-02842
	P23-02843
	P23-02844
	P23-02845
	P23-02846
	P23-02847
	P23-02848
	P23-02849
	P23-02850
	P23-02851
	P23-02852
	P23-02853
	P23-02854
	P23-02855
	P23-02856
	P23-02857
	P23-02858
	P23-02859
	P23-02860
	P23-02861
	P23-02862
	P23-02863
	P23-02864
	P23-02865
	P23-02866
	P23-02867
	P23-02868
	P23-02869
	P23-02871
	P23-02872
	P23-02873
	P23-02874
	P23-02875
	P23-02876
	P23-02877
	P23-02878
	P23-02879
	P23-02880
	P23-02881
	P23-02882
	P23-02883
	P23-02884
	P23-02885
	P23-02886
	P23-02887
	P23-02888
	P23-02889
	P23-02890
	P23-02891
	P23-02892
	P23-02893
	P23-02894
	P23-02895
	P23-02896
	P23-02897
	P23-02898
	P23-02899
	P23-02900
	P23-02901
	P23-02902
	P23-02903
	P23-02904
	P23-02905
	P23-02906
	P23-02907
	P23-02908
	P23-02909
	P23-02910
	P23-02911
	P23-02912
	P23-02913
	P23-02914
	P23-02915
	P23-02916
	P23-02917
	P23-02918
	P23-02919
	P23-02920
	P23-02921
	P23-02922
	P23-02923
	P23-02924
	P23-02925
	P23-02926
	P23-02927
	P23-02928
	P23-02929
	P23-02930
	P23-02931
	P23-02932
	P23-02933
	P23-02934
	P23-02935
	P23-02936
	P23-02937
	P23-02938
	P23-02939
	P23-02940
	P23-02941
	P23-02942
	P23-02943
	P23-02944
	P23-02945
	P23-02946
	P23-02947
	P23-02948
	P23-02949
	P23-02950
	P23-02951
	P23-02952
	P23-02953
	P23-02954
	P23-02956
	P23-02957
	P23-02958
	P23-02959
	P23-02960
	P23-02961
	P23-02962
	P23-02963
	P23-02964
	P23-02965
	P23-02966
	P23-02967
	P23-02968
	P23-02969
	P23-02970
	P23-02971
	P23-02972
	P23-02975
	TB23-00011

	2
	2023

	3
	B23-00002
	B23-00004
	B23-00026
	B23-00039
	B23-00085
	B23-00090
	B23-00117
	B23-00119
	B23-00128
	B23-00134
	B23-00143
	B23-00158
	B23-00195
	B23-00202
	B23-00206
	B23-00240
	B23-00243
	B23-00248
	B23-00259
	B23-00265
	B23-00271
	B23-00276
	B23-00287
	B23-00304
	B23-00305
	B23-00310
	B23-00313
	B23-00314
	B23-00316
	B23-00319
	B23-00323
	B23-00335
	B23-00336
	B23-00421
	B23-00433
	B23-00437
	B23-00468
	B23-00495
	B23-00499
	B23-00510
	B23-00511
	B23-00515
	B23-00521
	B23-00529
	B23-00562
	B23-00568
	B23-00570
	B23-00581
	B23-00593
	B23-00621
	B23-00629
	B23-00689
	B23-00704
	B23-00733
	B23-00737
	B23-00756
	B23-00759
	B23-00771
	B23-00772
	B23-00779
	B23-00780
	B23-00784
	B23-00792
	B23-00795
	B23-00810
	B23-00816
	B23-00817
	B23-00827
	B23-00828
	B23-00832
	B23-00837
	CHB23-00001
	CHB23-00014
	CHB23-00017
	CHB23-00018
	CHB23-00020
	CHB23-00024
	CHB23-00029
	CHB23-00030
	CHB23-00087
	CHB23-00089
	CHB23-00104
	CHB23-00216
	CHB23-00217
	CHB23-00224
	CHB23-00226
	CHB23-00234
	CHB23-00262
	CHB23-00271
	CHB23-00275
	CHB23-00287
	CHB23-00289
	CHB23-00293
	CHB23-00297
	CHB23-00300
	CHB23-00325
	CHB23-00333
	CHB23-00365
	CHB23-00366
	CHB23-00370
	CS22-00165
	CS23-00077
	CS23-00257
	CS23-00361
	CS23-00386
	N23-00020
	P22-02857
	P23-00339
	P23-01086
	P23-01206
	P23-01792
	P23-01843
	P23-01899
	P23-02200
	P23-02341
	P23-02426
	P23-02427
	P23-02428
	P23-02429
	P23-02432
	P23-02434
	P23-02436
	P23-02443
	P23-02453
	P23-02468
	P23-02525
	P23-02533
	P23-02537





	12.1j Approve Res No 3322 Convey Easement Entitlements to the City of Sacramento Sidewalk Ethel Phillips Elementary
	12.1j Cover Sheet-Resolution of Intention to Convey Easement at Phillips
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	12.1j.1 Resolution of Intention to Convey Utility Entitlements to CoS sidewalk at Phillips

	12.1c.3 5-18-2023 Classfied Board Agenda.pdf
	Sheet1

	9.4 Resolution No. 3319 Mental Health Awareness.pdf
	9.4 BR Cover Sheet 2023 May Mental Health Awareness Month
	Meeting Date:  May 18, 2023

	9.4.1 2023 May is Mental Health Awareness Month  Reso DRAFT




